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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December 31,

$ in millions 2010 2049 2008
Revenues 1.790.5 % 1,5504 % 1,572.9
Cost of revenues: : T S
Fuel 371.9 3236 2314
Purchased power 383.5 2592 379.9
Total cost of revenues 7554 582.8 611.3

Gross margin 1,035.1 967.6 961.6

Operating expenses:

* QOperation and maintenance . 3301 - 2934 273.0
Depreciation and amortization 130.7 135.5 127.8
General taxes ? 124.1 116.8" 1242

Total operating expenses 584.9 545.7 525.0

Operating income 450.2 4219 436.6

Other income / (expense), net:

Investment income 1.7 2.8 7.0

Interest expense 37.1) (38.5) (36.5)

Other income (deductions) - {LY (2.8) - (1.1)
Total other income / (expense), net (37.3) (38.5) (30.6)

Earnings before income tax 412.9 3834 406.0

Income tax expense 135.2 124.5 120.2

Net income 2713 2589 285.8

Dividends on preferred stock 0.9 0.9 0.9

Earnings on common stock 2768 $ 2580 § 284.9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the vears ended December 31,

$ in millions 2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities: : ’ R

Net income o $ 27117 § 2589 § 2858

Adjustments to reconcile Net income fo Net cash provided by ' . FE

- operating activities: . RS o - e L
Depreciation and amortization - 130.7 135.5 127.8

Deferred income taxes ' 543 - 0 2001 40.9
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable s ' 152 Y- Ty AR (3.9
Inventories 10.1 (20.5) (0.2)
Prepaid taxes C o 8.9) , Tt T —
Taxes applicable to subsequent years (3.6) (1.3) (9.9)
Deferred regulatory costs, net R " 160 (24.6) C(12.9)
Accounts payable 16.9 (63.9) 2069
Accrued taxes payable - ' o S el (0.9 (50.0)
Accrued interest payable 5.9 0.2 —
Pension, retiree and other benefits . - {58.2) T 152 31.3
Unamortized investment tax credit (2.8 (2.8) (2.8)
Other . : 2.7 {5.9) : (40.7)
Net cash provided by operating activities 446.4 513.7 392.7
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures ' (150.0) - (167.4) C(242.0)
Purchases of short-term investments and securities 1.4 1.4 1.9
Net cash used for investing activities =~ | {148.6) ~  (166.0) . .  (240.1)
Cash flows from financing activities: ' ' P R
Dividends paid on common stock to parent . {300.0) (325.0) (155.0)
Dividends paid on preferred stock ' 0.9 0.9).. (0.9)
Issuance of pollution control bonds, net _ — 98.4
Retirement of pollution control bonds ‘ : — —_— {90.0)
Pollution control bond proceeds held in trust — — (10.0)
Withdrawal of restricted funds held in trust, net e 145 . - 325
Withdrawals from revolving credit facilities — 260.0 115.0
Repayment of borrowings from revolving credit faciliies - L — (260.0) 7 {115.0)
Payment of short-term debt held by parent . — — (20.0)
Net cash used for financing activities ' : . - (300.9) - (311.4) {145.0)
Cash and cash equivalents: S - ' )
Net change 3.1 36.3 7.6
Balance at beginning of period - T 57.1 S0208 1 U132
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period b 540 3% 571 % 20.8

Supplemental cash flow infermation:

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized’ $ 451 8 395 § 334

Income taxes (refunded) / paid, net $ 870 S (94.7) $ 127.0

Non-cash financing and investing activities: - R — S
Accruals for capital expenditures $ 232 3% 208 3 34.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

BALANCE SHEETS
At December 31,
% in millions 2010 2009
ASSETS Sl
Current assets: ‘ e L
Cash and cash equwalcnts $ 540 § 57.1
Accounts receivable, net (Note 2) ‘ - 1780 . 1920
Inventories (Note 2) 1142 1243
Taxes applicable to subsequent years . 62.8 592
Other prepayments and current assets 42.7 26.0
.. Total current assets 4517 458.6
Property, plant and equlpment IR
Property, plant and equipment 5,093.7 5,011.0
Less; Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2453.1) ¢ (2370.7)
2,640.6 2,6403
Construction work in process 119.6 879
‘Total net property, ‘plant and equlpment ' 2,760.2 27282
Other noncurrent assets: R e
Regulatory assets (Note 3) 189.0 214.2
Other assets 74.5 - 564
Total other noncurrent assets 263.5 2706
Total Assets $ 34754 $ 3,4574

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

BALANCE SHEETS
At December 31,
¥ in millions 2010 2009
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY :
Current liabilities: : i, -
Current portion - long-term debt (Note 5) $ 0.1 § 100.6
Accounts payable ' - 95.7 75.1
Accrued taxes 66.6 68.6
Accrued interest o B 13.1.
Customers security deposits 18.7 194
Other current liabilities 33.6 . 232
Total current liabilities 222.4 300.0
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 5) 8840 . 783.7
Deferred taxes (Note 6) - 598.0 553.0
‘Regulatory liabilities (Note 3) 1394 125.4
Pension, retiree and other benefits 64.9 111.7
Unamortized investment tax credit - 324 352
Other deferred credits 131.9 122.9
Total noncurrent liabilities : 1,850.6 . 1,731.9
Redeemable preferred stock 229 29
Commnitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Common shareholder’s equity:
Common stock, at par value of $0 01 per share 0.4 0.4
Other paid-in capital 782.4- 781.6
Accumulated other oomprehenswe loss (20.2) 19.7)
Retained earnings 616.9: - 6403
Total common shareholder’s equity . 1,379.5 1,402.6
Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity b 34754 § 3.4574

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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in millions (except Outstanding
Shares)

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Accumuiated

Common Stock {a)
Outstanding

Shares Amount

Other
Paid-in

Capital

Income / (Loss)

Other
Comprehensive

Retained

Earnings Total

Beginning balance

2008:7

Net income

Change in unrealized gains
(losses) on financial
instrurnents, net of tax

Change in deferred gains
(losses) on cash flow
hedges, net of tax

Change in unrealized gains
(losses) on pension and =
postretirement benefits, net .
of tax -

Total comprehensive income

Common stock dividends

Preferred stock dividends

Tax effects to equity

Employee / Director stock
plans

Ending balance

2009: '

Net mcome

Change in unrealized gains

" (losses) on financial -
instrumenis, net of tax

Change in deferred gains
(losses) on cash flow
hedges, net of tax

Change in unrealized gains

- {losses) on pensioh and

“ postretirement benefits, net

oftax i = :

Total comprehensive income

Common stock dividends

Preferred stock dividends

Tax effects to equity

Employee / Director stock
plans

Other =~

Ending balance

2010:

Net income

Change in unrealized gains
(losses) on financial
instruments, net of tax

Change in deferred gains
(Josses} on cash flow
hedges, net of tax

{C39875: }

41,172,173 $_" - 0.4 $

78438 $

0.3

2.0

17.1:8 5776 3 13799

2858
(9.8)
(1.7}

QL)
2526
(155.0).
(0.9)
0.3

(155.0)
(0.9)

(2.0)

41172173 $ 04 $

783.1 $

(16.1) S 7075 $ 14749

-0.8.

(2.5)
0.2

NG

2589
2.7

(3.7)

@7
2552
(325.0)
©09)

(325.0) -
{0.9)

(2.5)
o (0.2) 0.1

41,172,173 § 04 3

7816 $

(197 S 6403 $ 14026

2777

(1.0)

(2.85'



Change in unrealized gains
(losses) on pension and
postretirement benefits, net

of tax 3.3

Total coraprehensive income , 2772
Common stock dividends (300.0) (300.0)
Preferred stock dividends (0.9} {0.9)
Tax effects to equity 0.2 0.2
Employee/ Director stock '

_plans 04 : 04
Other 0.2 {0.2) —
Ending balance 41,172,173 '§ 04 § 7824 § {202) § 61698 ‘1,379.5

(a) 30.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. DP&L is the principal subsidiary of DPL providing
approximately 93% of DPL’s total consolidated gross margin and approximately 91% of DPL’s total consolidated
asset base. Throughout this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and “ours” are used to refer to both DPL and DP&L,
respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates otherwise. Discussions or areas of this report that apply only
to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section.
Some of the Notes presented in this report are only applicable to DPL or DP&L as indicated. The other Notes apply
to both registrants and the financial information presented is segregated by registrant.
1. Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business
DPL is a diversified regional energy company organized in 1985 under the laws of Ohio. During 2010, DPL, for the
first time, met the GA AP requirements for separate segment reporting. DPL’s two segments are the Utility segment,
comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment, comprised of its DPLER subsidiary. Refer
to Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information relating to these reportable
segments,
DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio. DP&L is engaged in generation,
transmission, distribution and the sale of electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental
customers in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. Electricity for DP&L’s 24 county service area is
primarily generated at eight coal-fired power plants and is distributed to more than 500,000 retail customers.
Principal industries served include antomotive, food processing, paper, plastic manufacturing and defense.
DP&L’s sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather patterns of the arca. DP &L sells any
excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market.
DPLER sells competitive retail electric service, under contract, primarily to commercial and industrial customers.
DPLER has approximately 9,000 customers currently located throughout Ohic. All of DPLER’s electric energy was
purchased from DP&L to meet these sales obligations,
DPL’s other significant subsidiaries include DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, our captive insurance company that provides insurance
services to us and our subsidiaries. All of DPL’s subsidiaries are wholly-owned.
DPL also has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust IT, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital
securities to investors.
PP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory labilities
when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.
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Financial Statement Presentation
We prepare Consolidated Financial Statements for DPL. DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements include the
accounts of DPL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries except for DPL Capital Trust IT which is not consolidated,
consistent with the provisions of GAAP.
DP&L has undivided ownership interests in seven electric generating facilities and numerous transmission facilities.
These undivided interests in jointly-owned facilities are accounted for on a pro rata basis in DP&L’s Financial
Statements.
Certain immaterial amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current reporting
presentation.
All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant items
subject to such estimates and judgments include: the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment; unbilled
revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the valuation of
allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves recorded for income
tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; and assets and labilities related to employee
benefits,
Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recognized from retail and wholesale electricity sales and electricity transmission and distribution
delivery services. We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and earned when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Energy sales to customers are based on the reading of their
meters that occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize the revenues on our statements of
results of operations using an accrual method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed, but
where electricity has been consumed. This is termed “unbilled revenues” and is a widely recognized and accepted
practice for utilities. At the end of each month, unbilled revenues are determined by the estimation of unbilled
energy provided to customers since the date of the last meter reading, estimated line losses, the assignment of
unbilled energy provided to customer classes and the average rate per customer class.
All of the power produced at the generation plants is sold to an RTQ and we in turn purchase it back from the RTO
to supply our customers. These power sales and purchases are reported on a net hourly basis as revenues or
purchased power on our statements of results of operations. We record expenses when purchased electricity is
received and when expenses are incurred, with the exception of the ineffective portion of certain power purchase
contracts that are derivatives and gualify for hedge accounting. We also have certain derivative contracts that do not
qualify for hedge accounting, and their unrealized gains or losses are recorded prior to the receipt of electricity.
Allowance fer Uncollectible Accounts
We establish provisions for uncollectible accounts by using both historical average loss percentages to project future
losses and by establishing specific provisions for known credit issues.
Property, Plant and Equipment
We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held plants as an asset in property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. For regulated transmission and distribution property,
cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for funds used during
construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to finance regulated
construction projects. Capitalization of AFUDC ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by
regulators. AFUDC capitalized in 2010, 2009 and 2008 was not material.
For unregulated generation property, cost inchides direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and
interest capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized
interest. Capitalized interest was $1.5 million, $2.4 million and $8.9 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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For substantially all depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less
any salvage value is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization consistent with the composite method of
depreciation.

Property is evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

At December 31, 2010, neither DPL nor DP&L had any material plant acquisition adjustments or other plant-
related adjustments.

Repairs and Maintenance

Costs associated with maintenance activities, primarily power plant outages, are recognized at the time the work is
performed. These costs, which include labor, materials and supplies, and outside services required to maintain
equipment and facilities, are capitalized or expensed based on defined units of property.

Depreciation Stady — Change in Estimate

Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method, which allocates the cost of property over its
estimated useful life. For DPL’s generation, transmission and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied
monthly on an average composite basis using group rates. In July 2010, DPL completed a depreciation rate study for
non-regulated generation property based on its property, plant and equipment balances at December 31, 2009, with
certain adjustments for subsequent property additions. The results of the depreciation study concluded that many of
DPL’s composite depreciation rates should be reduced due to projected useful asset lives which are longer than
those previously estimated. DPL adjusted the depreciation rates for its non-regulated generation property effective
Tuly 1, 2010, resulting in a net reduction of depreciation expense. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the net
reduction in depreciation expense amounted to $4.8 million ($3.2 million net of tax) and increased diluted EPS by
approximately $0.03 per share. On an annualized basis, the net reduction in depreciation expense is projected to be
approximately $9.6 million ($6.4 million net of tax) or approximately $0.06 per diluted share.

For DPL’s generation, transmission, and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied on an average
annual composite basis using group rates that approximated 2.6% in 2010, 2.7% in 2009 and 2.7% in 2008.

The following is a summary of DPL’s Property, plant and equipment with corresponding composite depreciation
rates at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

DPL
Composite Composite
$ in millions 2010 Rate 2009 Rate
Regulated: ) ‘ : o _ , '
Transmission $ 360.6 2.5% 3 3553 2.4%
Distribution 1,256.5 3.4% TTL1L,2067 0 3.7%.
General 79.6 3.7% 76.8 3.1%
Non-depreciable 58.6 NA- 57.8 N/A
Total regulated 8 1,755.3 3 1,696.6
Unregulated: o 7 o
Production / Generation : ‘8 3,543.6 S 23% 0§70 3,5192 ¢ 25% -
Other 36.1 3.6% 350 3. 7%
Non-depreciable ' . 186 - NA - - 184 . NAT
Total unregulated $ 3,598.3 $ 3,572.6
Total property, plant and equipment in service  § 5,353.6 2.6% $ 5,269.2 2.7%

For DP&L’s generation, transmission, and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied on an average
annual composite basis using group rates that approximated 2.6% in 2010, 2.7% in 2009 and 2.6% in 2008.
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The following is 2 summary of DP&L’s Property, plant and equipment with corresponding composite depreciation
rates at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

DP&L
Composite Composite
§ in millions 2019 Rate 2009 Rate
Regulated: R : ) ' :
Transmission _ $ 360.6 2.5% $ 355.3 2.4%
Distribution - . - ‘ 1,2565 . 34% C 12067 . 37%
General 79.5 3.7% 76.8 31%
Non-depreciable : 58.7 N/A : 5738 ‘N/A
Total regulated _ 5 1,755.3 3 1,696.6
Unregulated: . .
Production / Generation . 5 33230 23% - % 3,299.1 v 24%
Non-depreciable 15.4 N/A 15.3 N/A
Total unregulated ' $ - 33384 S8 7331440 L
Total property, plant and equipment in service  § 5,093.7 2.6% $ 50110 ~27%
AROs

We recognize AROs in accordance with GAAP which requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time those obligations are inciered. Upon initial
recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and depreciated over the
useful life of the related asset. Our legal obligations associated with the retirement of our long-lived assets consisted
primarily of river intake and discharge structures, coal unloading facilities, loading docks, ice breakers and ash
disposal facilities. Our generation AROs are recorded within other deferred credits on the balance sheets.
Estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures of this type requires significant judgment. Management
routinely updates these estimates as additional information becomes available.

Changes in the Liability for Generation AROs

$ in millions 2010 2009
Balance at January 1 8 162 § 13.2
Accretion expense 0.2 . 0.8
Additions _ 08 21
Settlements 0.3 (0.5)
Estimated cash flow.revisions ' 0.6 - 0.6
Balance at December 31 $ 175 § 16.2
Asset Removal Costs

We continue to record cost of removal for our regulated transmission and distribution assets through our
depreciation rates and recover those amounts in rates charged to our customers. There are no known legal AROs
associated with these assets. We have recorded $107.9 million and $99.1 million in estimated costs of removal at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, as regulatory liabilities for our transmission and distribution property.
These amounts represent the excess of the cumulative removal costs recorded through depreciation rates versus the
cumulative removal costs acteally incurred. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Changes in the Liability for Transmission and Distribution Asset Removal Costs

§ in millions 2010 2009

Balance at January 1.~ - . $ 99.1: § 96.0

Additions 11.2 6.5

Settlements . - : 2.4) (3:4)

Balance at December 31 5 1079 § 99.1
Regulatory Accounting

In accordance with GAAP, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded in the balance sheets for our regulated
transmission and distribution businesses. Regulatory assets are the deferral of costs expected to be recovered in
future customer rates and Regulatory liabilities represent current recovery of expected future costs.
We evaluate our Regulatory assets each period and believe recovery of these assets is probable. We have received or
requested a return on certain regulatory assets for which we are currently recovering or seeking recovery through
rates, We record a return after it has been authorized in an order by a regulator. If we were required to terminate
application of these GAAP provisions for all of our regulated operations, we would have to write off the amounts of
all regulatory assets and liabilities to the statements of results of operations at that time. See Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Inventories
Inventories are carried at average cost and include coal, limestone, oil and gas used for electric generation, and
materials and supplies used for utility operations.
We account for our emission allowances as inventory and record emission allowance inventory at weighted average
cost, We calculate the weighted average cost by each vintage (year) for which emission allowances can be used and
charge to fuel costs the weighted average cost of emission allowances used each month. Net gains or losses on the
sale of excess emission allowances, representing the difference between the sales proceeds and the weighted average
cost of emission allowances, are recorded as a component of our fuel costs and are reflected in Operating income
when realized. During the periods ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, we recognized gains from the sale of
emission allowances in the amounts of $0.8 million, $5.0 million and $34.8 miliion, respectively. Beginning in
January 2016, a portion of the gains on emission allowances was used to reduce the overall fuel rider charged to our
SS0 retail customers.
Income Taxes
GAAP requires an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes with tax
effects of differences, based on currently enacted income tax rates, between the financial reporting and tax basis of
accounting reported as deferred tax assets or liabilities in the balance sheets. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets unless it is more
likely than not that the asset will be realized.
Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce federal income taxes payable, are deferred for financial
reporting purposes and are amortized over the useful lives of the property to which they relate. For rate-regulated
operations, additional deferred income taxes and offseiting regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded to recognize
that income taxes will be recoverable or refundable through future revenues.
DPL files a consolidated UJ.S. federal income tax return in conjunction with its subsidiaries. The consolidated tax
liability is allocated to each subsidiary based on the separate return method which is specified in our tax allocation
agreement and which provides a consistent, systematic and rational approach. See Note 6 of Notes 1o Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Financial Instruments

We classify our investments in debt and equity financial instruments of publicly traded entities into different
categories: held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and
unrealized gains and losses on those securities, net of deferred income taxes, are presented as a separate component
of shareholders’ equity. Other-than-temporary declines in value are recognized currently in eamings, Financial
instruments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. The cost basis for public equity security and
fixed maturity investments is average cost and amortized cost, respectively.

Short-Term Investments

DPL utilizes VRDNSs as part of its short-term investment strategy, The VRDN are of high credit quality and are
secured by irrevocable letters of credit from major financial institutions. VRDN investments have variable rates tied
to short-term interest rates. Interest rates are reset every seven days and these VRDNs can be tendered for sale back
to the financial institution upon notice. Although DPL’s VRDN investments have original maturities over one year,
they are frequently re-priced and trade at par. We account for these VRDNs as available-for-sale securities and
record them as short-term investments at fair value, which approximates cost, since they are highly liquid and are
readily available to support DPL’s current operating needs.

DPL also holds investment-grade fixed income corporate securities in its short-term investment portfolio. These
securities are accounted for as held-to-maturity investments.

Accounting for Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

DP&L collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. DP&L’s excise taxes
are accounted for on a gross basis and recorded as revenues and general taxes in the accompanying Statements of

Results of Operations as follows:
For the years ended
December 31,

$ in millions 2010 2009 2008

State/Local excise taxes  $ 517 $. 495 § - 523
Share-Based Compensation
We measure the cost of employee services received and paid with equity instruments based on the fair-value of such
equity instrument on the grant date. This cost is recognized in results of operations over the peried that employees
are required to provide service. Liability awards are initially recorded based on the fair-value of equity instruments
and are to be re-measured for the change in stock price at each subsequent reporting date until the liability is
vitimately settled. The fair-value for employee share options and other similar instruments at the grant date are
estimated using option-pricing models and any excess tax benefits are recognized as an addition to paid-in capital.
The reduction in income taxes payable from the excess tax benefits is presented in the statements of cash flows
within Cash flows from financing activities. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. All highly liquid short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
Financial Derivatives
All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets and are measured at fair value.
Changes in the fair value are recorded in earnings unless they are designated as a cash flow hedge of a forecasted
transaction or qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception.
We use forward contracts to reduce our exposure to changes in energy and commodity prices and as a hedge against
the risk of changes in cash flows associated with expected electricity purchases. These purchases are used to hedge
our full load requirements. We also hold forward sales contracts that hedge against the risk of chaoges in cash flows
associated with power sales during periods of projected generation facility availability. We use cash flow hedge
accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is deemed to be highly effective and MTM accounting when
the hedge or a portion of the hedge is not effective. See Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Insurance and Claims Costs

In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL,
provides insurance coverage to us, our subsidiaries and, in some cases, our partners in commonly owned facilities
we operate, for workers’ compensation, general liability, property damage, and directors’ and officers’ liability.
Insurance and claims costs on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of DPL include insurance reserves of approximately
$10.1 million and $16.2 million for 2010 and 2009, respectively. Furthermore, DP& L is responsible for claim costs
below certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for the insurance coverage noted above. In addition, DP&L has
medical, life, and disability reserves for claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of third-party providers. We
record these additional insurance and claims costs of approximately $19.0 million and $11.3 million for 2010 and
2009, respectively, within Other current liabilities and Other deferred credits on the balance sheets. The MVIC
reserves at DPL and the workers” compensation, medical, life and disability reserves at DP&L are actuarially
determined based on a reasonable estimation of insured events occurring. There is uncertainty associated with these
loss estimates and actual resufts may differ from the estimates. Modification of these loss estimates based on
experience and changed circumstances is reflected in the period in which the estimate is re-evaluated.

DPL Capital Trust I '

DPL has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust II (the Trust), formed for the purpose of issuing trust
capital securities to third-party investors. Effective 2003, DPL deconsolidated the Trust upon adoption of the
accounting standards related to variable interest entities and currently treats the Trust as a nonconsolidated
subsidiary. The Trust holds mandatorily redeemable trust capital securities. The investment in the Trust, which
amounts to $3.6 million and $3.8 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, is included in Other deferred
assets within Other noncurrent assets. DPL also has a note payable to the Trust amounting to $142.6 million at
December 31, 2010 and 2009 that was established upon the Trust’s deconsolidation in 2003. See Note 5 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Staternents.

In additicn to the obligations under the note payable mentioned above, DPL also agreed to a security obligation
which represents a full and unconditional guarantee of payments to the capital security holders of the Trust.
Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, DP&L enters into transactions with other subsidiaries of DPL. All material
intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements. The following

table provides a summary of amounts transacted by DP&L with its related parties:
For the years ended December 31,

$ in millions 2010 2009 2008
DP&L Revenues: o : . . B g
Sales to DPLER (a) § 2385 $ 648 § 1506

DP&L Operation & Maintenance Expenses:
Premiums paid for insurance services provided by MVIC " : - o
T {b) - _ ' S SR 8 (34 8 (3.5)

Expense recoveries for services provided to DPLER {(c} 5 58 § 1.5 % 0.9

(@) DP&L sells power to DPLER {0 satisfy the electric vequirements of DPLER s retail customers. The revenue
dollars associated with sales to DPLER are recorded as wholesale revenues by DP&L. The increase in
DP&L’s sales to DPLER during the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the same period in 2009
is primarily due to customers electing to switch their generation service from DP&L to DPLER.

(B)MVIC, a wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiary of DPL, provides insurance coverage to DP&L and
other DPL subsidiaries for workers’ compensation, general lability, property damages and directors’ and
officers’ liability. These amounts represent insurance premiums paid by DP&L {0 MVIC.

{c) In the normal course of business DP&L incurs and records expenses on behalf of DPLER. Such expenses
include but are not limited to emplovee-related expenses, accounting, information technology, payroll,
legal and other administration expenses. DP&L subsequently charges these expenses to DPLER at
DP&L’s cost and credits the expense in which they were initially recorded.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Variable Interest Entities

We adopted ASU 2009-02 “Omnibus Update™ (formerly SFAS No. 167, a revision to FASB Interpretation No.
46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Ensifies”) {ASU 2009-02), on Janvary 1, 2010. This standard updates
FASC Topic 810 “Consolidation.” ASU 2009-02 changes how a company determines when an entity that is
insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting (or similar) rights should be consolidated. The
determination of whether a company is required to consolidate an entity is based on, among other things, an entity’s
purpose and design and a company’s ability 1o direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impact the
entity’s economic performance. ASU 2009-02 did not have a material impact on our overall results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows.

Fair Value Disclosures

We adopted ASU 2010-06 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures™ (ASU 2010-06) on January 1, 2010. This
standard updates FASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.”” ASU 2010-06 requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements including transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 and a higher level of
disaggregation for the different types of financial instruments. For the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements, information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements are presented separately, ASU 2010-06
did not have a material impact on our overall results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. See Note § of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recently Issued Acconnting Standards

There were no recently issued accounting standards that could potentially have a significant impact on our financial
statements,
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2. Supplemental Financial Information

DPL Inc.
At At
December 31, December 31,
$ in milliens 2010 2009
Accounis receivable, net: . S
Unbilled revenue $ 845 3% 74.9
Customer receivables ' 113.9 994
Amounts due from partners in Jomﬂy—owned plants 7.0 12.6
Coal sales 4.0 10.6
Other 7.0 16.4
Provision for uncollectible accounts {0.9) (1.1}
Total accounts receivable, net $ 2155 % 212.8
Inventories, at average cost: .
Fuel, limestone and emission allowances 8 732 % -85.8
Plant materials and Supplles 38.8 385
Other : 3.3 o 1.4
Total inventories, at average cost $ 1153 § 125.7
PP&L
At At
December 31, December 31,
% in millions 20160 200%
Accounts recéivable, net: : ) S
Unbilled revenue $ 643 § 71.0
Customer receivables 95.6 944
Amounts due from partners in Jomtly-owned plants 7.0 12.6
Coal sales ’ 4.0 " 106
Other 1.9 4.5
Provision for uncollectible accounts (0.8 . C (1D
Total accounts receivable, net 5 1780 § 192.0
Inventories, at average cost: ]
Fuel, limestone and emission allowances $ 732 % 858"
Plant materials and supplies 377 37.1
Other 33 14
Total inventories, at average cost $ 1142 % 124.3
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3. Regulatory Matters

In accordance with GAAP, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets for our
regulated electric transmission and distribution businesses. Regulatory assets are the deferral of costs expected to be
recovered in future customer rates and regulatory liabilities represent current recovery of expected future costs or
gains probable of recovery being reflected in future rates.

We evaluate our regulatory assets each period and believe recovery of these assets is probable. We have received or
requesied a return on certain regulatory assets for which we are currently recovering or seeking recovery through
rates. We record a return after it has been authorized in an order by a regulator.

Regulatory assets and labilities on the consolidated balance sheets of DPL and DP&L include:

At At
Type of Amortization December 31, December 31,
§ in millions Recovery () Through 2010 2009
Regnlatory Assets: - o ' : :
Deferred recoverable income taxes B/C Ongoing A3 299 § 36.8
Pension benefits ' C . Ongoing - - 811 . 852
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt C Ongoing 14.3 15.6
Electric Choice systems costs 'F 2011 . 0.9 ' 4.0
Regional transmission organization costs D 2014 . 55 7.0
TCRR,; transmission, ancillary and other : T
PIM-related costs . F, 2011 11.8 . 5.5
RPM capacity costs F 2011 27 20.0
Deferred storm costs - 2008 D C 169 ] 16.0,
Power plant emission fees C Ongoing 6.6 6.3
CCEM smart grid and advanced metering . : C
infrastructure costs D ; 6.6 6.5
CCEM energy efficiency program costs F Ongoing . 4.8 3.6
Other costs SR c ' 7.9 : 7.7
Total regulatory assets _ b 189.0 S 2142
Regulatory Liabilities:
Estimated costs of removal - regulated R : L : et _ v
property. . ' - s 1679 3% -99.1
SECA net revenue subject to refun 15.4 20.1
- Postretirement benefits ) o s I % I 51
Fuel and purchased power recovery costs C Ongoing 10.0 —
Other costs S ' B _ e T I |
Total regulatory liabilities $ 1394 3 1254

(a) B — Balance has an offsetting liability resulting in no impact on rate base.

C — Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return.

D — Recovery not yet determined, but is probable of occurring in future rate proceedings.

F — Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of refurn.
Regulatory Assets
Deferred recoverable income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of flow
through items as the result of amounts previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow through benefit
given to regulated customers that will be collected from them in future years. Since currently existing temporary
differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse in subsequent periods,
these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over time.
Pension benefits represent the qualifying FASC Topic 715 “Compensation — Retirement Benefits” costs of our
regulated operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an asset for a
plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of other
comprehensive income (OCI), the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion that
would otherwise be charged as a loss to OCL
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior periods.
These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issues in accordance with FERC and PUCO rules.
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Electric Choice systems costs represent costs incurred to modify the customer billing system for unbundled
customer rates and electric choice utility bills relative to other generation suppliers and information reports provided
10 the state administrator of the low-income payment program. In March 2006, the PUCO issued an order that
approved our tariff as filed. We began collecting this rider immediately and expect to recover all costs over five
years.

Regional transmission organization costs represent costs incurred to join an RTO. The recovery of these costs will
be requested in a future FERC rate case. In accordance with FERC precedence, we are amortizing these costs over a
19-year period that began in 2004 when we joined the PIM RTO.

TCRR. transmission. ancillary and other PIM-related costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary
service and other PTM-telated charges that have been incurred as a member of PIM. We review retail rates and are
required to make true-up adjustments on an annual basis.

RPM capacity costs represent the costs related to PJM RPM assigned to DP&L that have not yet been recovered
through the RPM rider. We review this rate and make true-up adjustments on an annual basis.

Deferred storm costs — 2008 relate to costs incurred to repair the damage caused by hurricane force winds in
September 2008, as well as other major 2008 storms. On January 14, 2009, the PUCO granted DP&L the authority
to defer these costs with a return until such time that DP&L seeks recovery in a future rate proceeding.

Power plant emission fees represent costs paid to the State of Ohio since 2002. An application is pending before the
PUCO to amend an approved rate rider that had been in effect to collect fees that were paid and deferred in years
prior to 2002. The deferred costs incurred prior to 2002 have been fully recovered. As the previously approved rate
rider continues to be in effect, we believe these costs are probable of future rate recovery.

CCEM smart grid and AMI costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution system
upgrades and implementation of AMI. Consistent with the ESP Stipulation, DP &L re-filed its smart grid and AMI
business cases with the PUCO on August 4, 2009 seeking recavery of costs associated with a 10-year plan to deploy
smart meters, distribution and substation automation, core telecommunications, supporting software and in-home
technologies. On October 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw the re-filed case pertaining to the Smart Grid and
AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal in an order issued on January 3, 2011. The PUCO also
indicated that it expects DP&L to continue to monitor other utilities” Smart Grid and AMJ programs and to explore
the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI programs and that DP&L will, when appropriate, file new
Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the future. We plan to file to recover these deferred costs in a future
regulatory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCO precedent, we believe these costs are probable of future recovery in
rates.

CCEM energy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various new customer
programs addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an energy efficiency rider that
began July 1, 2009 and is subject to a two-year true-up for any over/under recovery of costs.

Other costs primarily include consumer education advertising costs regarding electric deregulation, setttement
system costs, other PJM and rate case costs and alternative energy costs that are or will be recovered over various
periods.
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Regulatory Liabilities

Estimated costs of removal — regulated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for costs
that are expected to be incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution property from service
when the property is retired.

SECA net revenue subject to refund represents our deferral of revenues and costs that were billed to PJIM
transmission customers and paid to transmission owners during 2005 and 2006, but which remain subject to
litigation before the FERC and potential reversal. DP&L is both a transmission customer and a transmission owner.
SECA revenue and expenses represent FERC-ordered transitional payments for the use of transmission lines within
PJM. We began receiving and paying these transitional payments in May 2003, subject to refund. Since 2005, a
large number of settiements have been entered into among various market participants including DP&L. A final
FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supports DP&L.’s and other utilities’
position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system during the timeframe
stated above. DP&L, along with other transmission owners in PJM and the Midwest Independent System Operator
(MISQ} made a compliance filing at FERC on August 19, 2010 that fully demonstrated all payment obligations to
and from all parties within PJIM and the MISO. The FERC has made no ruling regarding the compliance filing and
some parties have requested rehearing by FERC of its May 21, 2010 order. It is expected that any order on the
compliance filing and any order regarding the rehearing request will be appealed for Court review. In October 2014,
DP&L entered into another settlement agreement to settle a portion of SECA amounts still owed to DP&L. With
respect to unsettled claims, DP&L management believes it has deferred as a regulatory liability the appropriate
amounts that are subject to refund. The eventual outcome of this litigation is uncertain.

Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC Topic 715 “Compensation — Retirement Benefits™ gains
related to our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We
recognize an asset for a plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a
component of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not recognized as a
component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion that would
otherwise be reflected as a gain to OCIL

Fuel and purchased power recovery costs represent prudently incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative, emission
and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the operation of
the fuel and purchased power recovery rider. The fuel and purchased power recovery rider fluctuates based on actual
costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of each seasonal quarter. DP&L implemented the fuel and
purchased power recovery rider on January 1, 2010. DP&L is currently undergoing an audit of its fuel and
purchased power recovery rider and, as a result, there is some uncertainty as to the costs that will be approved for
recovery. Independent third parties conduct the fuel audit in accordance with the PUCO standards. DP&L
anticipates that some of this uncertainty witl be resolved during the summer of 2011 after completion of the fuel
audit. As a result of the fuel audit, DP&L may record a favorable or unfavorable adjustment to earnings. Based on
past PUCO precedent, we believe these deferred costs are probable of future recovery or repayment in the case of
OVEr recovery.
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4. Ownership of Coal-fired Facilities

DP&L and other Ohio utilities have undivided ownershlp interests in seven coal-fired electric generating facilities
and numerous transmission facilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating units, are allocated to
the owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses, investments in fuel inventory, plant materials and
operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance with their respective ownership
interests. As of December 31, 2010, we had $56 million of construction work in process at such facilities. DP&L’s
share of the operating cost of such facilities is included within the corresponding tine in the Statements of Results of
Operations and DP&L’s share of the investment in the facilities is included in the Balance Sheets.

DP&L’s undivided ownership interest in such facilities as well as our wholly-owned coal fired Hutchings plant at
December 31, 2010, is as follows: :

DP&L investment
SCR and
FGD
Equipment
DP&L Share Construction Installed
Gross Plant  Accumulated Work in
Production In Service Depreciation Process and In
Ownership Capacity ($in - ($in ($in Service
{Ve) (MW) millions) millions) millions) {Yes/No)
Production Units: :: . : - o o B
Beckjord Unit 6 500 210 § 75§ 52 % 2 No
Conesville Unit 4 Y168 0 129 - 118~ .. 27 ' 5 Yes.
East Bend Station 31.0 186 200 131 1 Yes
- Killen Station .. . 670 . 402 611 . 288 3 Yes:
Miami Fort Units 7 and 8 360 368 347 130 7 Yes
Stuart Station : C350 .. 820 697 266 25 Yes
Zimmer Station 28.1 365 1,059 612 12 Yes
Transmission (at varying B - ' : :
percentages) ' - - 91 56 - —
Total 2,480 § 3,198 % 1,562 % 55
Wholly-owned production unit: o . .
Hutchings Station - 100.0 - - 388 % 123 % 111°.%: 1 No.

DP&L’s share of operating costs associated with the jointly-owned generating facilities is included within the
corresponding line in the Statements of Results of Operations,
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3. Debt Obligations
Long-term Debt

At At
December 31, December 31,

$ in millions 2010 2009
DP&L - ' L - . -
First mortgage bonds maturing in October 2013 - 5.125% 5 470.0 % 470.0
Pollution control series maturing in January 2028 - 4.70% 353 0 0 353
Pollution control series maturing in January 2034 - 4.80% 179.1 179.1
PoHution control series maturing in September 2036 - 4.80% G 1000 100.0.
Pollution control series maturing in November 2040 - variable rates:

0.16% - 0.35% and 0.24% - 0.85% (a) 100.0 —

_ : - S ST 8844 o T844

Obligation for capital lease c o 0.1-. BRI
Unamortized debt discount {0.5) (0.7)
.- Total long-ferm debt - DF&L: . . : o ad o 8840 8 783.7
DPL C ? - . =
Senior notes maturing in September 2011 - 6.875% — 297.4
Note to DPL Capital Trust Il maturing in September 2031 - §.125% C1426 142.6
Unamortized debt discount — {0.2)

Total long-term debt - DPL , . $ 1,026.6° §.. -..1,223.5
Current pertion - Long-term Debt

At At
December 31, December 31,

$ in millions 2010 2009
DP&L SR ' - . .
Pollution control series maturing in November 2040 - variable rates:

0.16% - 0.35% and 0.24% - 0.85% (a) $ —§ 100.0
Obligation for capital lease ' T 01 LT 0.6

Total current portion - long-term debt - DP&L 3 0.1 % 100.6
DPL . .
Senior notes maturing in September 2011 - 6.375% - . o 297.4 |

Total current portion - long-term debt - DPL b 2975 % 100.6

(a) Range of inierest rates for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respeciively.
At December 31, 2010, maturities of long-term debt, including capital lease obligations, are summarized as foilows:

§ in millions DPL DP&L

Due within one year = 8 2975 $. - 01
Due within two years 0.1 0.1
Due within three years o 4700 C 47000

Due within four years — ‘ —

Due within five years R S

Thereafter . _ 557.0 4144

: ' 3 11,3246 - §. 884.6
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Debt
On November 21, 2006, DP&L entered into a $220 million unsecured revolving credit agreement. This agreement
has a five-year term that expires on November 21, 2011 and provides DP&L with the ability to increase the size of
the facility by an additional $50 million at any time. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this credit facility
at December 31, 2010. Fees associated with this credit facility were approximately $1.2 mitlion and $0.9 million
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Changes in DP&L’s credit ratings may affect
fees and the applicable interest rate. This revolving credit agreement contains a $50 million letter of credit sublimit,
As of December 31, 2010, DP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against the facility.
On December 4, 2008, the OAQDA issued $100 million of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the OAQDA and issued
corresponding First Mortgage Bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on
each series of the bonds when due is backed by a standby LOC issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. This L.OC
facility, which expires in December 2013, is irrevocable and has no subjective acceleration clanses. The bonds were
classified within the current portion of long term debt at December 31, 2009 as the standby LOC backing the bonds
was set to expire during the fourth quarter of 2010. During the fourth quarter of 2010, DP&L renewed the standby
LOC to back the payment of principal and interest on each series of the bonds when due. The new LOC facility
expires in December 2013 therefore the bonds have been reclassified to Long-term debt on the balance sheets of
DPL and DP&L.
On March 31, 2009, DPL paid its $175 million 8.00% Senior notes when the notes became due.
On April 21, 2009, DP&L entered into 2 $100 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated bank
group. The agreement was for a 364-day term and expired on April 20, 2010.
On December 21, 2009, DPL purchased $52.4 million principal amount of DPL Capital Trust If 8.125% capital
securities in a privately negotiated transaction. As part of this transaction, DPL paid a $3.7 million, or 7%, premium
which was recorded within Interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Resulis of Operations.
On April 20, 2010, DP&L entered into a $200 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated bank
group. This agreement is for a three year term expiring on April 20, 2013 and provides DP&L with the ability to
increase the size of the facility by an additional $50 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this credit
facility at December 31, 2010. Fees associated with this credit facility were approximately $0.5 milfion during the
period between April 20, 2010 and December 31, 2010. This facility also contains a $50 million letier of credit
sublimit. As of December 31, 2010, IHP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against the facility.
Substantially all property, plant and equipment of PP&L is subject to the lien of the mortgage securing DP&L’s
First and Refunding Mortgage, dated October 1, 1935, with the Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee.
See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion relating to DPL’s 8.125% Note
to DPL. — Capital Trust II.
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6. Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, DPL’s components of income tax expense were as follows:
DPL

For the years ended

December 31,
$ in millions 2018 2009 2008
Computation of Tax Expense - R : :
Federal income tax (a) $ 15.7 § 1199 % 1219
Increases (decreases) in tax resulting
from;
State income taxes, net of federal ‘ -
effect .- . 24 .09 4.1
Depreciation of AFUDC - Equity 2.2) 2.0y {4.3)
Investment tax credit amortized 28 . 238 = %)
Section 199 - domestic production
deduction {9.1) (4.6) 4.2)
Accrual (settlement) for open tax B .
years (b) o 02" (1.4 (7.2)
Other, net (c) _ 2.8 2.5 (4.6)
Total tax expense -8 1430-%3 1125 $ 1029
Components of Tax Expense D .
Federal - Current $ 848 § {844) § 60.9
State and Local - Current RS I O (1.8) C18
Total Current 5 859 § (86.2) §$ 62.7
Federal - Deferred $ 559 §% 1960 § 379
State and Local - Deferred 1.2 2.7 2.3
Total Deferred 3 571 § 198.7 § 40.2
Total tax expense $ 143.0 § 1125 § 102.9
Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
At December 31,
$ in millions 2010 2049
Net Noncarrent Assets / (Liabilities) e .
Depreciation / property basis $ (618.6) $ {583.5)
" Income taxes recoverable ‘ : 183 -~ . (129
Regulatory assets (12.4) (16.5)
Investment tax credit ' . 113 12.3
~ Investment loss (0.5) 0.1
- Compensation and employ - o
benefits s : - 21.0 358
Insurance (1.5) 08
Other (d) (14.4) . (5.2)
Net noncurrent (Liabilities) $ (6254) § (569.1)
Net Current Assets (¢)
Other - : b 1.1 § - 37
Net current assets 3 1.1 § 3.7

(a}  The statutory tax rate of 35% was applied fo pre-tax earnings from continuing operations.

(B)  DPL has recorded an expense of $0.2 million, benefits of $2.9 million and $40.7 million in 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively, for tax deduction or income positions taken in prior tax returns that we believe
were properly treated on such tax refurns but for which it is possible that these positions may be
contested. The 2008 amount relates to the ODT settlement discussed further below in Note 6 of Notes to
Conselidated Financial Statements.

(¢} Includes a benefit of 80.3 million, an expense of $2.0 million, a benefit of $3.8 million in 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively, of income tax related to adjustments from prior years.
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(d)  The Other noncurrent liabilities caption includes deferred tax assets of $13.1 million in 2010 and §12.0
million in 2009 related to state and local tax net operating loss carryforwards, net of related valuation
allowances of §13.1 million in 2010 and $12.0 million in 2009. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, all
deferred tax assets related to net operating losses were valued at zevo. These net operating loss
carryforwards expire from 2017 to 2025.

fe)  Amounts are included within Other prepayments and current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

of DPL.
99

{C39875: }



Table of Contents

DPL has recorded $0.2 million, $0.7 million and $0.3 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for tax benefits
related to stock-based compensation that were credited to Retained earnings. DPL has recorded $5.8 million of tax
expense in 2010 and $1.7 million and $11.5 million of tax benefits in 2009 and 2008, respectively, for tax benefits
related to pensions, postretirement benefits, cash flow hedges and financial instruments that were credited to
Accumulated other comprehensive loss.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, DP&L’s components of income tax were as follows:
DP&L

For the vears ended

December 31,
$in millions 2010 2009 2008
Computation of Tax Expense S R, S
Federal income tax (a) $ 1442 3§ 1342 % 142.1
Increases (decreases) in tax resulting
from:
State income taxes, net of federal - : e S
effect : ‘ 19 C 04 2.6
Depreciation of AFUDC - Equity (2.2) (2.0) (4.3)
Investment tax credit amortized Q8 . (28 2.8)
Section 199 - domestic production
deduction 9.1) (4.6} 4.2)
Accrual (settlement) for open tax : B T o
years (b) _ S22 0 1 T (12
Otber, net (c) ‘ 3.0 0.7 (6.0)
©. Total tax expense = - - % 1352 % 1245 § 1202
Components of Tax Expense ' S ' A .
Federal - Current S 831 3 (70.3) § 812
State and Local - Current . = .08 (2 . .09
Total Current 3 839 § (72.8) § 82.1
Federal - Deferred $ 501 8§ 1944 § 364
State and Local - Deferred 12 . 29 L7
Total Deferred 5 513 § 1973 § 38.1
Total tax expense $ 1352 § 1245 § 1202
Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
At December 31,
$ in millions 2010 2009
Net Noncurrent Assets / (Liabilities) ~ - . S
Depreciation / property basis 53 (5956 § (563.7)
Income taxes recoverable s {(103) - (12.9)
Regulatory assets (12.4) (16.5)
- Investment tax credit i 113 ©123
Compensation and employee
benefits 21.0 35.8
Other - ; L 120) - (8.0)
Net noncurrent (liabilities) $ (598.0) $ (553.0)
Net Current Assets {d)
Other S . 3 12§ 37
Net current assets $ 1.2 § 3.7

(a}  The statutory tax rate of 35% was applied to pre-tax earnings.

(b} DP&L has recorded an expense of $0.2 million and benefits of $2.9 million and 340.7 million in 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively, of tax provisions for tax deduction or income positions taken in prior tax
returns that we believe were properly treated on such tax returns but for which it is possible that these
positions may be contested. The 2008 amount relates to the ODT settlement discussed further below in
Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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{c}  Includes a benefit of $0.3 million, an expense of $0.8 million, and a benefit of $3.5 million in 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively, of income tax related to adjustments from prior years.
(d)  Amounts are included within QOther prepayments and current assets on the Balance Sheets of DP&L.
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DP&L has recorded $0.2 million, $0.7 million and $0.3 million in 2610, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for tax
benefits refated to stock-based compensation that were credited to Other paid-in capital. DP&L has recorded $0.1
million of tax expense in 2010 and $0.5 million and $16.5 million of tax benefits in 2009 and 2008, respectively, for
tax benefits related to pensions, postretirement benefits, cash flow hedges and financial instruments that were
credited to Accumulated other comprehensive oss.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

We apply the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for DPL and DP&L is as follows:

§ in millions 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of vear .. = . § 193 -% . .19
Tax positions taken during prior periods 0.4) —
Tax positions taken during current period : — 1206
Settlement with taxing authorities 0.3 (3.2)
Lapse of applicable statute of limitations: = 0.2 L —
Balance at end of year $ 194 § 19.3

Of the December 31, 2010 balance of unrecognized tax benefits, $20.6 million is due to uncertainty in the timing of
deductibility offset by $1.1 million of unrecognized tax Habilities that would affect the effective tax rate.
We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in Income tax expense. The amount of
interest and penalties accrued was an expense of $0.3 million as of December 31, 2010, a benefit of $0.1 million as
of December 31, 2009 and an expense of less than $0.1 million as of December 31, 2008. The amount of interest and
penalties recorded in the statements of results of operations for 2410, 2009 and 2008 was an expense of $0.2 million,
and benefits of $0.1 million and $9.0 million, respectively.
Following is a summary of the tax years open to examination by major tax jurisdiction:

U.S. Federal — 2007 and forward

State and Local — 2005 and forward
None of the unrecognized tax benefits are expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve
months.
The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second
quarter of 2010. The examination is still ongoing and we do not expect the results of this exanination to have a
material impact on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
On December 17, 2010, the Federal Tax Relief, Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, and Job Creation Act of
2010 was enacted. This legislation amends, creates and extends various Federal tax statutes. Among the various
statutes is the extension and expansion of capital expensing provisions, commonly referred to as bonus depreciation,
for 2010, 2011 and 2012. While these provisions are not expected to have a material impact on our results of
operations, we anticipate they will result in positive cash flow contributions over the next few years.
On June 21, 2010, Chio Senate Bill 232 was enacted. This legislation eliminates Ohio’s tangible personal property
tax and real property taxes on generation for renewable and advanced energy project facilities that begin
construction before January 1, 2012, produce energy by 2013 {(or 2017 for nuclear, clean coal and cogeneration
projects) and create Ohio jobs. Rules containing implementation provisions were proposed on September 29, 2010.
We do not anticipate this law and the related rules will have a material impact on either DPL’s or DP&L’s financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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On February 13, 2006, we received correspondence from the ODT notifying us that the ODT had completed their
examination and review of our Ohio Corporation Franchise Tax Returns for tax years 2002 through 204 and that
the final proposed audit adjustments resulted in a balance due of $90.8 million before interest and penalties. On June
27, 2008, we entered into a $42.0 million settlement agreement with the ODT resolving all outstanding audit issues
and appeals, including uncertain tax positions for tax years 1998 through 2006. The $42 million payment was made
to the ODT in July 2008. Due to this settlement agreement, the balance of our unrecognized state tax lLiabilities
recorded at December 31, 2007, in the amount of $56.3 million, was reversed resulting in a recorded income tax
benefit of $8.5 million, net of federal tax impact, in 2008.
7. Pension and Postretirement Benefits
DP&L sponsors a defined benefit pension plan for substantially all employees. For collective bargaining employees,
the defined benefits are based on a specific dollar amount per year of service. For all other employees (management
employees), the defined benefit pension plan is based primarily on compensation and years of service. As of
December 31, 2010, this pension plan was closed to new management employees. A participant is 100% vested in
all amounts credited to his or her account upon the completion of five vesting years, as defined in The Dayton Power
and Light Company Retirement Income Plan, or upon a change of control or the participant’s death or disability. If a
participant’s employment is terminated, other than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100%
vested in his or her account, the account shall be forfeited as of the date of termination.
Management employees beginning employment on or after January 1, 2011 will be enrolled in a cash balance plan.
Similar to the defined benefit pension plan for management employees, the cash balance benefits are based on
compensation and years of service. A participant shall become 100% vested in all amounts credited to his or her
account upon the completion of three vesting years, as defined in The Dayton Power and Light Company Retirement
Income Plan or upon a change of control or the participant’s death or disability. If a participant’s employment is
terminated, other than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his or her account,
the account shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Vested benefits in the cash balance plan are fully portable
upon termination of employment.
In addition, we have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for certain active and retired key
executives. Benefits under this SERP have been frozen and no additional benefits can be earned. The SERP was
replaced by the DPL Inc. Supplemental Executive Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (SEDCRP). The
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors designates the eligible employees. Pursuant to the SEDCRP, we
provide a supplemental retirement benefit to participants by crediting an account established for each participant in
accordance with the Plan requirements. We designate as hypothetical investment funds under the SEDCRP one or
more of the investment funds provided under The Dayton Power and Light Company Employee Savings Plan. Each
participant may change his or her hypothetical investment fund selection at specified times. If a participant does not
elect a hypothetical investment fund(s}, then we select the hypothetical investment fund(s) for such participant. We
also have an unfunded liability related to agreements for retirement benefits of certain terminated and retired key
executives. The unfunded liabilities for these agreements and the SEDCRP were $1.8 million and $1.4 million at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
We generally fund pension pian benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and, in addition, make voluntary contributions from
time to time. In February 2010, DP&L contributed $20.0 million to the defined benefit plan. In September 2010,
DP&L contributed an additional $20.0 million to the defined benefit plan for a total contribution of $40.0 million in
2010,
Qualified employees who retired prior to 1987 and their dependents are eligible for health care and life insurance
benefits until their death, while qualified employees who retired after 1987 are eligible for life insurance benefits
and partially subsidized health care. The partially subsidized health care is at the election of the employee, who pays
the majority of the cost, and is available only from their retirement until they are covered by Medicare at age 65. We
have funded a portion of the union-eligible benefits using a Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association Trust.
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Regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded for the portion of the under- or over-funded obligations related to the
transmission and distribution areas of our electric business and for the changes in the funded status of the plan that
arise during the year that are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. These regulatory assets and
liabilities represent the regulated portion that would otherwise be charged or credited to AOCI. We have historically
recorded these costs on the accrual basis and this is how these costs have been historically recovered. This factor,
combined with the historical precedents from the PUCO and FERC, make these costs probable of future rate
recovery.
The following tables set forth our pension and postretirement benefit plans” obligations and assets recorded on the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. The amounts presented in the following tables for pension
include both the defined benefit pension plan and the SERP in the aggregate, and use a measurement date of
December 31, 2010 and 2009. The amounts presented for postretirement include both heaith and life insurance
benefits and use a measurement date of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
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Pension Postretirement

$ in millions 2010 2009 2010 2009
Change in Benefit Obligation During Year IR S AR
Benefit obligation at Januaxy 1 '$ 3239 § 2946 3 26.2 $ 25.2
Service cost - 4.8 3.6 0.1 pr—
Interest cost 1.7 18.1 1.2 1.5
Plan amendments. - — 7.2 — 11
Actuarial (gain) / loss 8.0 20.3 (2.0) 03
Benefits paid (20.6) 9.9y 2.0) (1.9)
Medicare Part D Reimbursement — — 0.2 —
Benefit obligation at December 31 $ 3338 § 3239 S 23.7 $ - 262
Change in Plan Assets During Year _ . : C
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 § 2434 3§ 2254 § 50 § 6.2
Actual return / (Joss} on plan assets 28.6 375 B | 5 04
Contributions to plan assets 404 0.4 L5 03
Benefits paid ‘ (20.6) {19.9). - 2.0 C(23)
Medicare reimbursements — — — 0.4
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 '$ 2918 § 2434 % 48 3 5.0
Funded Status of Plan 3 {4200 % (80.5) $. . (189 § (21.2)
Amounts Recogmzed in the Balance Sheets at ' ' R

December 31 : ' e .
Current liabilities $ 04 $ 04 8 0.6) % (0.4)
Nencurrent liabilities (41.6) . {80.1) (18.3) . (20.8).
Net asset / (liability) at December 31 5 42.0) 3 (80.5) § (18.9) § (21.2)
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets and

Regulatory Llabliltles, pre-tax _
Componems ! S ol _
Prior service cost / (credit) 5 168 § 204 § 09 3§ 11
Net actuarial loss / {gain) - 1254 T1309 - © {7.6) . {(6.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, regulatory

assets and regulatory liabilities, pre-tax 5 1422 § 1513 % 6.7) § (5.3)
Recorded as:
Regulatory asset 8 800 § 346 § = 05§ . 06
Regulatory liability — — (6.1) (5.1)
Accumulated other comprebensive income 62.2 66.7: . {LD) - (1.3)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, regulatory

assets and regulatory liabilities, pre-tax $§ 1422 § 1513 § 67 % (5.8)
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The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $320.9 mitlion and $314.¢ million at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The net periodic benefit cost (income) of the pension and postretirement benefit plans at December 31 were:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) Pension Postretirement
§ in milliens 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Service cost - T8 48 $ 36. 8 328 0.1-% — 8
Interest cost 17.7 18.1 16.7 1.2 1.5 1.4
Expected return on assets {a) 22.4) (22.5) . (24D (1 %]} {0:4) (0.4)
Amortization of unrecognized: .
Actirarial (gain) / loss ’ 72 44 2.6 L) - (0.7) (0.9)
Prior service cost 3.7 3.4 2.4 0.1 0.1 —
Net periodic benefit cost / (income) T - ' _
before adjustments § 110§ 70 3 08 % — 8 05 § 0.1

{(a)For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets, under GAAP, the market-related value of
assets (MRVA) is used. GAAP requires that the difference between actual plan asset returns and estimated plan
asset returns be amortized into the MRVA equally over a period not to exceed five years. We use a
methodology under which we include the difference between actual and estimated asset returns in the MRVA
equally over a three year period. The MRV A used in the calculation of expected return on pension plan assets
was approximately $274 million in 2010, $275 million in 200¢ and $293 million in 2008.

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities

Pension Postretirement
% in millions 2010 2009 2010 2009
Net actuarial {gain) / loss $ 19§ 53 % (19" % 03
Prior service cost / (credit) —_ 7.2 1.1
Reversal of amortization item: S Cor .
Net actuarial (gain) / loss (7.2) (4.4) 1.1 0.7
Prior service cost / (credit) . 3.7 - (3.4) ©n .- (0.1

Transition (asset) / obligation —
Total recognized in Accumulated other

comprehensive income, Regulatory

assets and Regulatory liabilities $ 9.0y § 47 § 0.9) % 2.0
Total recognized in net periodic benefit

cost and Accumulated other

comprehensive income, Regulatory

assets and Regulatory liabilities $ 20 § 117 § 09) § 2.5
Estimated amounts that will be amortized from Accumulated other comprehensive income, Regulatory assets and
Regulatory liabilities into net periodic benefit costs during 2011 are:

$ in millions _ ___ Pension Postretirement
Net actuarial (gain} / loss $ .91 % R (8 |
Prior service cost / {credit) 2.2 0.9)

Qur expected retum on plan asset assumptions, used to determine benefit obligations, are based on historical long-
term rates of return on investments, which use the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with higher
volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest rates, as
well as asset diversification and portfolio rebalancing, are evaluated when long-term capital market assumptions are
determined. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to verify reasonableness and appropriateness.

For 2011, we have decreased our expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption from 8.50% to 8.00% for
pension plan assets. We are maintaining our expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption at approximaiely
6.00% for postretirement benefit plan assets. These expected returns are based primarily on portfolio investment
allocation. There can be no assurance of our ability to generate these rates of return in the future.

Our overall discount rate was evaluated in relation to the December 31, 2010 Hewitt Top Quartile Yield Curve
which represents a portfolio of top-quartile AA-rated bonds used to settle pension obligations. Peer data and
historical returns were also reviewed to verify the reasonableness and appropriateness of our discount rate used in
the calculation of benefit obligations and expense.
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 were:

Pension Postretivement
Benefit Obligation Assumptions 2010 2009 2016 2009
Discount rate for obligations - g T 531%.. 5.75% 4.96% - 5.35%
Rate of compensation increases 3.94% 4.44% N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost (income) for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were:

Net Periodic Benefit Pension Postretirement
Cost / (facome) Assumptions 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Discountrate = . ' : 5.75% 6.25% - 6.00% 5.35% "6.25% - 6.00%
Expected rate of returnt on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of compensation increases . * 4.44% 544% . - 544% N/A - N/A N/A
The assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
Expense Benefit Obligations

Health Care Cost Assumptions 2010 . 2009 2010 2009
Pre - age 65 ’ : '
Current health care cost trend

rate _ 9.50% - 9.50% 8.50% 9.50%
Year trend reaches ultimate : 2015 - 2014 2018 - 2015
Post - age 65 o B T
Current health care cost trend

rate 9.00% 9.00% - 8.00% 9.00%
Year trend reaches ultimate . 2014 - 2013 S 2017 - 2014
Etimate health care cost trend oo LT

rate S 5.00% 5.60%. 5.00% -5.00%

The assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-
percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the net periodic
postretirement benefit cost and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:

Effect of Change in Health Care Cost Trend Rate

One-percent One-percent
$ in millions increase decrease
Service cost plus interest cost : 5 ek s =
Benefit obligation b 09 §% (0.8)

The following benefit payments, which reflect future service, are expected to be paid as follows:
Estimated Future Benefit Payments and Medicare Part D Reimbursements

% in milkions Pensioun Postretirement
2011 © Lo T 8 213 8 25
2012 b 231 § 24
2013 T $. 231 $ 24
2014 S 236 $§ 23
2015 ' . . 5 C 240 8 21
2016 - 2020 $ 1229 % 838
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We expect to make contributions of $0.4 million to our SERP in 2011 to cover benefit payments. Additionally, we
are considering making discretionary contributions of up to $40.0 million to our defined benefit pension plan during
2011. We also expect to contribute $2.5 million to our other postretirement benefit plans in 2011 to cover benefit
payments.
The Pension Protection Act (the Act) of 2006 contained new requirements for our single employer defined benefit
pension plan. In addition to establishing a 100% funding target for plan years beginning after December 31, 2008,
the Act also limits some benefits if the funded status of pension plans drops below certain thresholds. Among other
restrictions under the Act, if the funded status of a plan falls below a predetermined ratio of 80%, lump-sum
payments to new retirees are limited to 50% of amounts that otherwise would have been paid and new benefit
improvements may not go into effect. For the 2010 plan year, the funded status of our defined benefit pension plan
as calculated under the requirements of the Act was 99.4% and is estimated to be 99.4% until the 2011 status is
certified in September 2011 for the 2011 plan year. The Worker, Retiree, and Employer Recovery Act of 2008
(WRERA), which was signed into law on December 23, 2008, grants plan sponsors certain relief from funding
requirements and benefit restrictions of the Act.
Plan Assets
Plan assets are invested using a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equity securities, debt securities
and other investments are used to preserve asset values, diversify risk and achieve our target investment return
benchmark. Investment strategies and asset allocations are based on careful consideration of plan liabilities, the
plan’s funded status and our financial condition. Investment performance and asset allocation are measured and
monitored on an ongoing basis.
Plan assets are managed in a balanced portfolio comprised of two major components: an equity portion and a fixed
income portion. The expected role of Plan equity investments is to maximize the long-term real growth of Plan
assets, while the role of fixed income investments is to generate current income, provide for more stable periodic
returns and provide some prolection against a prolonged decline in the market value of Plan equity investments.
Long-term strategic asset allocation guidelines are determined by management and take into account the Plan’s
long-term objectives as well as its short-term constraints. The target allocations for plan assets are 30-80% for equity
securities, 30-65% for fixed income securities, 0-10% for cash and 0-25% for alternative investments. Equity
securities include U.S. and international equity, while fixed income securities include long-duration and high-yield
bond funds and emerging market debt funds. Other types of investments include investments in hedge funds and
private equity funds that follow several different strategies.
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2010 by asset category are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2010
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant
- Asset Category Market Value at for Identical Observable Unebservable
§ in millions 12/31/10 Agsets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1} (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity Securities (a) . . T ' : EEE
Small/Mid Cap Equity by 152§ — 8 152 $ —
Large Cap Equity S 494 — o494 e
DPL Inc. Common Stock . 23.8 23.8 = —
International Equity 315 — N5 L
Total Equity Securities $ 1199 § 238 $ 9.1 § —
Debt Securities (b) S
Emerging Markets Debt -~ . 3 52°% - '3 52780 —
Fixed Tncome 39.0 — - 3%0
High Yield Bond. N 82 - — 82
Long Duration Fund 589 — 58.9 —
Total Debt Securities $ 11t3 $ — $~ - 113§ - P—
Cash and Cash Equivalents {c¢} o et h - S "
Cash 3 04 3 04 § — % —
Other Investments {d) .
Limited Partnership Interest $ - 28 8 — § — 85 - 2.8
Common Collective Fund 57.4 — — 57.4
Total Other Investments S o602 8 — % — 3 60.2
Total Pension Plan Assets 5 2918 § 242 § 2074 $ 60.2

(a) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity
securities of foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net
asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the
fund except for the DPL common stock which is valued using the closing price on the New York Stock
Exchange.

{b) This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments, U.S. dollar-denominated debt
securities of emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment
grade. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the
underlying investments is used to value the fund.

(c) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value.

(d)This category represents a private equity fund that specializes in management buyouts and a hedge fund of funds
made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different hedge strategies. The fair value
of the private equity fund is determined by the General Partner based on the performance of the individual
companies. The fair value of the hedge fund is valued using the net asset value method in which an average of
the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2009 by asset category are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2009
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant
Asset Category Market Value at for Identical Observable Unobservable
$ in millipns 12/31/09 Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Equity Securities {a) = : ' . - '
Small/Mid Cap Equity 3 45 § — % 45 3 —
Large Cap Equity , : 359 S = - 359 T =
DPL Inc. Common Stock 255 255 —- —
Internationat Equity : S 192 — 192 —

Total Equity Securities h) 851 8§ 255 § 596 § —
Debt Securities (b) , .
Emerging Markeis Debt $ 129. § ' — 8 129 § 0 o=
High Yield Bond _ 13.8 — 13.8 -
Long Duration Fund ' 774 0 — 774 T R

Total Debt Securities $ 1041 § — 3 1041 $ —
Cash and Cash Equivalents (¢) N _ )
Cash . $ 05 $ 58 . - s -
Other Investments (d) : - _ o , S
Limited Parinership Interest $ 3. % — § — 8 3.1
Common Collective Fund g 50.6 o L — . — - 50.6

Total Other Investments $ 537 % —  § -— 8§ 53.7
Total Pension Plan Assets $ 2434 § 260 § 1637 § 53.7

{(a)This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity
securities of foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net
asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the
fund except for the DPL common stock which is valued using the closing price on the New York Stock
Exchange.

{b) This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments, U.S. dollar-denominated debt
securities of emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment
grade. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the
underlying investinents is used to value the fund.

{c) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value,

{d)This category represents a private equity fund that specializes in management buyouts and a hedge fund of funds
made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different hedge strategies. The fair value
of the private equity fund is determined by the General Partner based on the performance of the individual
companies. The fair value of the hedge fund is valued vsing the net asset value method in which an average of
the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.
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The change in the fair value for the pension assets valued using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) was due to
the following:

Fair Value Measurements of Pension Assets Using Significant Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
Limited Common
Partnership Collective
§ in millions Interest Fund
Beginning balance at December 31, 2008 R 31 8 . 331
Actual return on plan assets:
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date e 0.1 1.3
Relating to assets sold during the period - —
. Purchases, sales; and settlements ) ; ) 0.1y 16.2
Transfers in and / or out of Level 3 — —
Ending balance at December 31, 2009~ _ $ 31 § " 50.6
“-Actaal return on plan assets: e ' D
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date $ 01 3 0.8
Relating to assets sold during the period - : o=
Purchases, sales, and settlements (0.4) 6.0
Transfers in and / or out of Level 3 L -
Ending balance at December 31, 2010 3 28 3 57.4

The fair values of our other postretirement benefit plan assets at December 31, 2010 by asset category are as
follows:
Fair Value Measurements for Postretirement Plan Assets at December 3%, 2010

Market Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Asset Category Value at Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
$ in millions 12/31/10 Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
) (Level 1) {Level 2} (Level3)
JP Morgan Core Bond Fund () $ 48 $ - — % 48 % =

{a) This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices
for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

The fair values of our other postretirement benefit plan assets at December 31, 2009 by asset category are as
follows:
Fair Value Measurements for Postretirement Plan Assets at December 31, 2009

Market Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Asset Category Value at Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
$ in millions 12/31/09 Identical Assels Inputs Inputs
’ (Level 1) (Level 2) ) (Level3)
JP Morgan Core Bond Fund () - § 50 §$ — w5008 i

{a)This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices
for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.
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8. Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of our financial instrurtents are based on published sources for pricing when possible. We rely on
valvation models only when no other method is available to us. The fair value of our financial instruments represents
estimates of possible value that may or may not be realized in the future. The table below presents the fair value and
cost of our non-derivative instruments at December 31, 2010 and 2009. See also Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for the fair values of our derivative instruments.

At December 31, At December 31,
2010 2009
% in millions Cost Fair Value Cost ¥air Value
DPL | | '
Assets . _
Money Market Funds $ 16 8 16 % 41 '8 41
Equity Securities 3.3 4.4 2.6 28
Debt Securities ' 52 ey B3 - 53 ’ R T
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2
 Total Master Trust Assets $ 09 § 118 % 123 § 126
Short-term Investments - . i o
VRDNs $ 542 §. 542 '$ o= 5 “—
Short-term Investments -
Bonds 15.1 15.1 — —
" Total Short-term Investments  § 693§+ 693§ - § —
Total Assets 3 802 § 1.1 § 123 % 12.6
Liabilities o
" Debt - . $ 13241 $ 13075 §° 1.3241 % 1.317.6
DP&L Co : ' , :
Assets )
Money Market Funds $ 16 § S L6 8 41 3 4.1
Equity Securities (a) 17.5 - 302 16.7 31
Debt Securities 52 5.5 5.3 55
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2
Total Master Trust Assets $ 246 § . 376 & 0 24§ 40.9
Liabilities - ' _— o : '
Debt $ 8841 $ 8506 % 8843 § 8445

(@) DPL stock held in the DP&L Master Trust is eliminated in consolidation.
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Debt
The fair value of debt is based on current public market prices for disclosure purposes only. Unrealized gains or
losses are not recognized in the financial statements as debt is presented at amortized cost in the financial
statements. The debt amounts include the current portion payable in the next twelve months and have maturities that
range from 2011 to 2040.
Master Trust Assets
DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets for the benefit of employees participating in employce benefit plans
and these assets are not used for general operating purposes. These assets are primarily comprised of open-ended
mutual funds and DPL common stock. The DPL common stock held by the DP&L Master Trust is eliminated in
consolidation and is not reflected in DPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The DPL common stock is valued using
current public market prices, while the open-ended mutual funds are valued using the net asset value per unit. These
investments are recorded at fair value within Other assets on the balance sheets and classified as available for sale.
Any unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AOCI until the securities are sold.
DPL had $0.9 million ($0.6 million after tax) in unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master
Trust assets in AQOCI at December 31, 2010 and $0.3 million ($0.2 million after tax) in unrealized gains and
immaterial unrealized losses in AQCI at December 31, 2009.
DP&L had $13.0 million ($8.5 million after tax) in unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master
Trust assets in AQCI at December 31, 2010 and $14.5 million ($9.5 million after tax) in unrealized gains and
immaterial unrealized losses in AQCI at December 31, 2009.
Approximately $1.0 million in unrealized gains are expected to be transferred to earnings in the next twelve months.
Short-term Investments
DPL utilizes VRDNS as part of its short-term investment strategy. The VRDNs are of high credit quality and are
secured by irrevocable letters of credit from major financial institutions. VRDN investments have variable rates tied
to short-term interest rates. Interest rates are reset every seven days and these VRDNSs can be tendered for sale upon
notice back to the financial institution, Although DPE’s VRDN investments have original maturities over one year,
they are frequently re-priced and trade at par. We account for these VRDNs as available-for-sale securities and
record them as short-term investments at fair value, which approximates cost, since they are highly liquid and are
readily available to support DPL’s current operating needs.
DPL also holds investment-grade fixed income corporate bonds that are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-
maturity securities are those securities that we have the intent and ability to hold until maturity. The held-to-maturity
securities are carried at amortized cost which is determined based on specific identification. The bonds are classified
as short-term since they will mature within the next twelve months.
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Net Asset Value (NAV) per Unit
The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency for those assets whose fair value is estimated

using the NAV per unit as of December 31, 2010. These assets are part of the Master Trust and exclude DPL
common stock which is valued using quoted market prices and not the NAV per unit. Fair values estimated using the
NAYV per unit are considered Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy, unless they cannot be redeemed at the
NAV per unit on the reporting date. Investments that have restrictions on the redemption of the investments are
Level 3 inputs. As of December 31, 2010, PPL did not have any investments for sale at a price different from the
NAYV per unit.

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit
Fair Value at

December 31, Unfunded Redemption Redemption
§ in mitlions 2010 Commitments Frequency Notice Period
Money Market Fund (a) _ $ 16 % . —  Immediate.  None
Equity Securities (b) = T ¥ . —  Immediate None *
Debt Securities {¢) ' - P .55 -—  Immediate 'None
Multi-Strategy Fund (8} '~ - 03 — " Immediate None*
Total T o R 118 § L O

(@) This category includes investments in high-quality, short-term securities. Investments in this category can be
redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

(b) This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 index and the Morgan Staniey
Capital International (MSCID U.S. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investments in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

{c) This category includes investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. investmeni grade bonds.
Inrvestments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per unit,

(d) This category includes investments in stocks, bonds and shori-term investmenis in a mix of actively managed
funds. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net assef value per unit.
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Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit

Fair Value at

December 31, Unfunded Redemption Redemption
¥ in millions 2009 Commitments Frequency Notice Period
Money Market Fund (a) ‘ $ 41 8 —  TImmediate -~ - None
Equity Secarities (b) : 28 —  Immediate None
Debt Sceuritics {¢) 55 — Immediate . None
Multi-Strategy Fund (d) : 02 - -~ TImmediste None
Totat = ° ’ . $ - 12.6. $ — ’ - ;

{a) This category includes investments in high-quality, shori-term securities. Investmenis in this category can be
redeemed immediately at the current net assef value per unit.

(b) This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 index and the Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) U.S. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investmenis in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current net assef value per unit.

{c) This category includes invesiments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. investment grade bonds. Investments in
this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

(d} This category includes investments in stocks, bonds and short-term investments in a mix of actively managed
Junds. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately ai the current net asset value per unit.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit

price}) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These inputs are then categorized as

Level I (quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities); Level 2 {observable inputs such as quoted

prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in markets that are not active); or Level 3 (unobservable

inputs).

Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with

counterparty risk. We include our own credit risk and our counterparty’s credit risk in cur calculation of fair value

using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a large rating agency.

We did not have any transfers of the fair values of our financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, The fair value of assets and liabilities

at December 31, 2010 and 2009 measured on a recurring basis and the respective category within the fair value
hierarchy for DPL was determined as follows:
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DPL
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value on
Balance Sheet
Fair Value at  Based on Quoted Other Collateral and at
December 31, Prices im Active Observable Unobservable Counterparty  December 31,
$ in millions 2010* Markets Inputs Inputs Netting 2010
Assets ' T o Vo
Master Trust Assets
Money Market Funds - $ 1.6 $ — 8 16 % — 5 — 1.6
Equity Securities 4.4 —_ 4.4 — — 44
Debt Securities 5.5 — 5.5 — — “ 55
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 — 0.3 — — 0.3
Total Master Trust L o L . '
 Assets 5 118 $ — $ 118 § — 3 —% 11.8
Derivative Assets : ' - w S
FTRs 3 03 % -— § 03 3% - § — 8 0.3
Heating Oil Futures 1.6 1.6 — — {1.8) —
Interest Rate Hedge 20.7 — 20.7 — — 20.7
Forward NYMEX :
Coal Contracts 375 —-— 375 — {21.9) 156
Forward Power
Contracts 0.2 — 0.2 — {0.2) —
Total Derivative Assets * $ 60.3 § 16-%. 537 § - § (23.7) . 366
Short-term ’ : L : ’
Investments - . S ) .
VRDNs $ 542 § — $: 542 § 1. — % — % 54.2
Short-term
Investments -
Bonds 15.1 — 15.1 — — 15.1
Total Short-lerm _ : _
investinents $ 693 § ~ % 693 $ — § — 8§ - 693
Total Assets $ 1414 § 16 § 1398 § —. 38 (23.7) § 117.7
Liabilities : ' Wl e
Derivative Liabilities _
Interest Rate Hedge  § 66 § —. '3 66 $ — 8 -8 6.6
Forward Power
Contracts 3.1 — 3.1 — (1.1) 2.0
Total Denivative s - - - .
Liabilities $ 97 § —. % 97 % — 5 - {1.) § 86
Total Liabilities $ 97 % e N S — 8 (1.1} § ~-8.6-
*Includes credit valuation adjustments for counterparty risk.
DPL
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value on
Balance Sheet
Fair Value at  Based on Quoted Other Collateral and at
December 31,  Prices in Active  Observable Unobservable Counterparty  December 31,
§ in millions 2009* Markets Tuputs Inputs Neiting 2009
Assets E T o
Master Trust Assets
Money Market Funds $ - 41 % CLr— 8 41 % — % — 40
Equity Securities 28 — 2.8 - — 28
Debt Securities 5.5 —_ 5.5 — - 5.5
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.2 — 0.2 — — 0.2
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~ Total Master Trust

126

126

Assets N $ . 126%°  — 3 $ — &

" Derivative Assets T Lo : . .
FTRs b 08 § — § 038 % $ — § 0.8
Forward NYMEX = Coo PR o

Coal Contracts 5.5 - 55 (1.4) 4.1
Forward Power
Contracts 0.7 —- 0.7 (0.7) —
- "Total Derivativé Assets $ 70 $ — 5. 70 S $ ens - 49,
Total Assets 3 196§ - = §. 196 § 3 2.1) % 17.5 .
Liabilities ' ' o - . e
Derivative Liabilities _
Heating Oil Futures ~ $ 1.2 $ L1208 — 8 ' a2 s -
Forward Power
Contracts 3.0 — 3.0 0.7) 23
Forward NYMEX ‘ S 5 E . _
_Coal Contracts . . 12 e 1.2 — 12
Total Derivative
Liabilities b 54 § 1.2 % 42 § $ 1.9y $ 35
Total Liabilities b 54 % 12 8 42 3 3 (19 § 33

*Includes credit valuation adjustments for counterparty risk.
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2010 and 2009 measured on a recurring basis and the
respective category within the fair value hierarchy for DP&L was determined as follows:

DP&1.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on 8 Recurring Basis

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value on
Balance Sheei
Fair Value at  Based on Quoted Other Collateral and at
December 31,  Prices im Active  Observable Unebservable Counterparty  December 31,
3 in millions 2010* Markets Inputs Inputs Netting 2010
Assets ' '

Master Trust Assets o
Money Market Funds - $ 16 § — % 16 $ — 3 — 5 1.6
Equity Securities (a) 30.2 258 44 — — 30.2
Debt Securities ’ 55 - —_ 53 — —_ 5.5
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 — 03 — — 0.3

Total Master Trust ' : R : S :
Assets $ 376§ 258 8 118 § ¥ — $ 37.6

Derivative Assets o - o :
FTRs $ 03 $ — 8 03 — 8 — 3 03
Heating Oil Futures 1.6 1.6 — -— 18y ﬁ
Forward NYMEX

Coal Contracts 375 — 375 — (21.9) 156
Forward Power . . . }
Contracts - 0.2 —: 3.2 — (0.2) T —
Total Derivative Assets  §$ 396 § 16 § 380 % -— % (23.7) $ 159
Total Assets $ 772§ 274 % 498 §$ -— 3 237 § 53.5
Liabilities

Derivative Liabilities e
Heating Oil Futures  $ — 5 — 3 — 3 — § — 3 -
Forward Power . : : '

. Contracts 3.1 e 3.1 — 1.1y 20
Forward NYMEX
Coal Contracts — — — — — —
. Total Derivative o L ' _
Liabilities $ 31 % e 31- 8§ L8 SR IN 2.0
" Total Liabilities $ 31 § — § 31 3 — § (1 8 2.0

*Includes credit valuation adjustments for counterparty risk.
(a) DPL stock in the Master Trust is eliminated in consolidation.

DP&L
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value on
Based on
Quoted Collateral Balance Sheet
Fair Value at Prices in Other and at
December 31, Active Observable Unchservable  Counterparty  December 31,
$ in millions 2009* Markets Inputs ] Tuputs Netting 2009
Assets - : : o ) IR
Master Trust Assets
" Money Market Funds  § 41 $ — % 41 8 — §i— 8 41
Equity Securities (a) 31 28.3 2.8 — — 31.1
Debt Securities 55 . 55 T L 5.5
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.2 — 02 — — 0.2
Total Master Frust ‘ o : : .

 Assets $ 409 3 283 8 126 S —% — $ 409
" Derivative Assets ' ) ' B '
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FTRs

Forward NYMEX - -

' Coal Contracts

Forward Power
Contracts

Total Derivative Assets-

Total Assets
Liabilities
Derivative Liabilities

Heating Oil Futures -

Forward Power
Contracts
Forward NYMEX
- Coal Contracts
Total Derivative
Liabilities
Total Liabilities

ot

$ 08 § —$ 08§ 58— 3 0.8
55 — 55 a4y

0.7 - 0.7 0.7) —

70 § — % . 70°$ $ @ns 49

479 $ 283° 5 196 § $ Q1§ . 453

$ 12 % 12 % — 3% 3 1.2) $ = -
3.0 — 3.0 (0.7 23

12 oy e 1.2 e B

$ 54 8 1.2 $ 42 8 $ (19) $ 3.5
$ 54 § 12 § 42 3 $ (19 3 3.5

*Includes credit valuation adjustments for counterparty risk.
(a) DPL stock in the Master Trust is eliminated in consolidation.
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We use the market approach to value our financial instruments. Level 1 inputs are used for DPL commeoen stock held
by the Master Trust and for derivative contracts such as heating oil futures and natural gas futures. The fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions.
Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as financial transmission rights (where the quoted prices are from a
relatively inactive market), forward power contracts and forward NYMEX-quality coal contracts (which are traded
on the OTC market but which are valued using prices on the NYMEX for similar contracts on the OTC market).
VRDNs and bonds are considered I.evel 2 because they are priced using recent transactions for similar assets. Other
Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are in the Master Trust, which are valued using the end of day
NAY per unit, and interest rate hedges, which use observable inputs to populate a pricing model.

Approximately 99% of the inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices.
Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our ARQOs which are estimated by discounting expected cash
outflows to their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash cutflows are based on the approximate
future disposal cost as determined by market information, historical information or other management estimates.
These inputs to the fair value of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy. There
were $1.4 million and $2.7 miflion of gross additions to our existing landfill and asbestos AROs during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. In addition, it was determined that a river structure would be retired
earlier than previously estimated. This resulted in a partial reduction to the ARO liability of $0.8 million in 2010.
Cash Eqguivalents

DPL had $29.9 million and $45.3 million in money market funds classified as cash and cash equivalents in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The money market funds have guoted
prices that are generally equivalent to par.

9. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business, DPL and DP&L enter into various financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes in market prices for commodities
and interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these
risks are governed by our risk management policies for forward and futures contracts. Our net positions are
continually assessed within our structured hedging programs to determine whether new or offsetting transactions are
required. The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have adequate
resources to meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our risk
management processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possible, to mark positions to market. All of our
derivative instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges or marked to
market each reporting period.

At December 31, 2010, DPL and DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments:

Net Purchases/
Accounting Purchases Sales (Sales)
{in {in
Commodity Treatment Unit thousands) thousands)  _ (in thousands)
FTRs(1) - Mark to Market MWh~ -~ 90 . — . " 9.0
Heating Oil Futures (1) Mark to Market  Gallons 6,216.0 — 6,216.0
Forward Power Contracts {1) Cash Flow - - S e
: ©7 . Hedge MWh 580.8 . (572.9) 79
Forward Power Coniracts (1) Mark to Market MWh 195.6 (108.5) 87.1
NYMEX-quality Coal - ' , ’ ' S
Contracts* (1) - ' - Mark to Market Tons 4,006.8 e - 4,006.8
Interest Rate Swaps (2) Cash Flow
: Hedge UsD 360,000.0 — 360,000.0

*Includes our partners’ share for the jointly-owned plants that DP&L operates.
(1) Reflected in both DPL’s and DP&L’s financial statements
{2) Reflected in only DPL’s financial statements
At December 31, 2009, both DPL and DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments:
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Net Purchase/
Accounting Purchases Sales (Sale)
(in (in
Commodity Treatment Unit thousands) thousands) ) (in thousands)
FTRs L Mark to Market ~ MWH 93 - — .93
Heating Oil Futures Mark to Market  Gallons 3,8220 — 38220
Forward Power Contracts Cash Flow _ . . :
- Hedge MWH - 846 (1,7692) - - (1,684.6)

NYMEX-quality Coal Contracts*  Mark to Market  Tons 3,844.0 (1,286.5) 2,557.5

*Includes our partner’s share for the jointly-owned plants that DP&L operates.
Cash Flow Hedges
As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The fair
value of cash flow hedges as determined by current public market prices will continue to fluctuate with changes in
market prices up to contract expiration. The effective portion of the hedging transaction is recognized in AOCI and
transferred to eamings using specific identification of each contract when the forecasted hedged transaction takes
place or when the forecasted hedged transaction is probable of not occurring. The ineffective portion of the cash
flow hedge is recognized in eamings in the current period. All risk components were taken into account to determine
the hedge effectiveness of the cash flow hedges.
We enter into forward power contracts to manage commodity price risk exposure related to our generation of
electricity. We do not hedge all commodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts
from AQCI into earnings in those periods in which the contracts settle.
We also enter into interest rate derivative contracts to manage interest rate exposure related to anticipated
borrowings of fixed-rate debt. Our anticipated fixed-rate debt offerings have a high probability of occurrence as the
proceeds will be used to fund existing debt maturities and projected capital expenditures. We do not hedge all
interest rate exposure. As of December 31, 2010, we have entered into interest rate hedging relationships with
aggregate notional amounts of $200 million and $160 million related to planned future borrowing activities in
calendar years 2011 and 2013, respectively. We reclassify gains and losses on interest rate derivative hedges related
to our debt financings from AQCI into eamnings in those periods in which hedged interest payments occur.
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The following table provides information for DPL concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash flow
hedges:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Interest Interest Power and Interest
$ in millions (net of tax) Power Rate Hedpe Power Rate Hedge Capacity Rate Hedge

Beginning accumulated
derivative gain / (loss) in
AOCI - '

Net gains / (losses) associated
with current period hedging. - -
transactions o '

Net gains reclassified to
camings : AR - s
Interest Expense = 25 — (2.5) — (2.5)
Revenues ' - {(3.5) — 4 - — {4.0) D —

Ending accumulated derivative S . . - '
gain / (loss) in AOCI s (188 214 3 (48 147§ (08 172

Net gains / (losses) associated C coe - _ o
with the ineffective portion
of the hedging transaction:

Interest expense $ — 3 —
Revenues 3. — 3 s

Portion expected to be '
reclassified to earnings in L L
the next twelve months* $ 28 s 225

Maximum length of time that =~ ' ,
we are hedging our exposure
to variability in future cash
flows related to forecasted
transactions {in months) . 36 - 33

o

(19 s~ 147§ .(0,2) § 1728 (1.0)'$ 19.7°

3.1 927 220 — 48 R

*The actual amounts that we reclassify from AOCI to carnings related to power can differ from the estimate above

due to market price changes.
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The following table provides information for DP&L concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash

flow hedges:
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2089 2008

Interest Interest Power and Interest
$ in millions (net of tax) Power Rate Hedge Power Rate Hedge Capacity Rate Hedge
Beginning accumulated - ' : ‘ R
. derivative gain / (loss) in
AOC
Net gains / (losses) associated
with current period hedging : S . e _
transactions ' 3t = 22 = 48 - —
Net gains reclassified to o - R g
eamnings o -
Interest Expense — (2.5) — 23 — (2.3)
Revenues . : (3.5) L (34) — {4.0) o
Ending accumulated derivative - _ _ : - o T e _ _
gain / (loss) in AOCI $§ (1% s . 122 § (14 % 147 § {02y % 172
Net gains / (losses) associated T B ;
with the ineffective portion
of the hedging transaction: .
Interest expense 3 —
Revenues > —
Portion expected to be o
reclassified to earnings in :
the next twelve months* $ 2.8 $ —
Maximum length of time that .
we are hedging our exposure
to variability in future cash
flows related to forecasted ‘ .
- transactions (in months) 36 p—

o

49 s 147 § 028 172 _(1-0) $ 197

wwe

*The actual amounts that we reclassify from AQOCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above

due to market price changes.
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The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s derivative instruments designated
as hedging instruments at December 31, 2010,

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments

at December 31, 2010
DPL
Fair Value on

$ in millions Fair Value(l) Netting(2) Balance Sheet Location Balance Sheet
Short-term Derivative Positions i s R
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability oo Other current
Position ; $ {28) § 210 liabilities 3 - (L.8)
Interest Rate Hedges in a Liability Other custent
Position . (6.6) —  liabilities (6.6
Total short-term cash flow hedges $ 94 § 1.0 $ (8.4
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracis in an Asset Other deferred
Position $ 02 % (0.2) assets 3 —
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability - ) Other deferred i ,
Position . 02) © 0.1 credits (0.1)
Interest Rate Hedges in an Asset Position Other deferred

4 20.7 — credits 20.7
Total long-term cash flow hedges $ 207 § (0.1 3 20.6
Total cash flow hedges 3 113 % 0.9 3 12.2

(1) Includes credit valuation adjustment.

(2) Includes counterparty and collateral netting.

The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DP&L’s derivative instruments
designated as hedging instruments at December 31, 2010.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Pesignated as Hedging Instruments

at December 31, 2010

DP&L

Fair Value on
$ in millions Fair Value(l1) Netting(2) Balance Sheet Location Balance Sheet
Short-term Derivative Positions 2 o C )
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability j _ Other current - - s
Position i : $ 28 3 1.0 liabilities 3 (.8
‘Total short-term cash fiow hedges - $ 2.8) § 1.0 B 8 - (L®)
Long-term Derivative Positions _ o Y
Forward Power Contracts In an Asset : . i QOther deferred - :
Position - $ - 02 3 (0.2} assets s —
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Other deferred
Position (0.2) 0.1 credits (0.1)
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Total long-term cash flow hedges $ — § (0.1)
Total cash flow hedges 3 2.8) § 0.9

(1) Includes credit valuation adjustment.
(2) Includes counterparty and collateral netting.
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The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s and DP&L’s derivative
instruments designated as hedging instruments at December 31, 2009.
Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
at December 31, 2009

Fair Value on
¥ in mitlions Fair Value(1) Netting{2) Balance Sheet Location  Balance Sheet

Short-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset ' _ ’ D o o
Position . $ - 02 .% - (0.7 Otherprepayments = § C =

_ - and current assets -
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability o o " Other current - -
Position 2y 0.7 lisbilites 2.1
Total cash flow hedges : $ 21 $ e _ L N I -8 )|

(1} Includes credit valuation adjustment
{2} Includes counterparty and collateral netting.
Mark to Market Accounting
Certain derivative contracts are entered into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do not
qualify for hedge accounting or the normal purchases and sales exceptions under FASC Topic 815. Accordingly,
such contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the consolidated
statements of results of operations in the period in which the change occurred. This is commonly referred to as
“MTM accounting.” Contracts we enter into as part of our risk management program may be settled financially, by
physical delivery or net settled with the counterparty. We mark to market FTRs, heating oil futures, forward
NYMEX-quality coal contracts, natural gas futures and certain forward power contracts.
Certain qualifying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts, as
provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that bave been designated as normal purchases or normal sales under
GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the consolidated statements of results of
operations on an accrual basis.
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery in future rates should be
deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that is probable of being returned to customers should be deferred as a
regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and are
related to the retail portion of DP&L.'s load requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased power
recovery rider approved by the PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Ohio retail customers® portion of
the heating oil futures and the NYMEX-quality coal contracts are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the
contracts settle. If these unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery throngh our
rates, they will be reclassified into earnings in the period such determination is made.

122

{C39875:}



Table of Contents

The following tables show the amount and classification within the consolidated statements of results of operations
or balance sheets of the gains and losses on DPL’s and DP&1.’s derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2010

NYMEX Heating
$ in millions Coal Oil ___FIRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain / (loss) "§ 335 § .28 § 06) § 01 . § 358
Realized gain / (loss) 32 {1.6) (1.5) {0.1) —

Total ' ‘ ‘ $ 367 $ 12-%8 @21 $ — 8 35.8
Recorded on Balance Sheet:

Partners” share of gain / (loss) $ 201 $ — 3 — % — $- 201
Regulatory (asset) / liability 4.6 1.1 — — 57
Recorded in Income Statement: gain /

(loss) _
Purchased power - %8 =% — $  (2D'$ 8 @1
Fuel 12.0 0.1 — — 12.1
O&M : . RS — o — o .

Totai b 367 % 1.2 § 21 $ — $ 358

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2009
NYMEX Heating
§ in millions Coal Oil FIRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain / (loss) R 41 8§ 51 % 03 8. 02) % 9.8
Realized gain / (loss) ‘ 1.1 (3.1) (0.4) — (2.4)

Total® ' $ 52 § 20§ 04 $ 02) $ 74
Recorded on Balance Sheet:

Partners’ share of gain / (loss) $ - 18 §. — § — $- — % 1.8
Regulatory (asset) / liability 1.5 (0.5) — — 1.0
Recorded in Income Statement: gain /

(loss)

Purchased power ' : - § o § — % .04 % (02 S 0.2

Fuel 19 23 — — 4.2

O&M : — 0.2 — = 0.2

Total $ 52 % 20 § 04 % 02) § 7.4
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The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s and DP&L’s derivative
instruments not designated as hedging instruments at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

at December 31, 2010
Fair Value on
§ in millions Fair Value(1) Netting(2) Balance Sheet Location Balance Sheet
Short-term Derivative Positions ' . : T
FTRs in an Asset position Other prepayments
3 03 § —  and current assets $ 0.3
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability : . Other current
position . 0.D — liabilities’ {0.1)
NYMEX-Quality Coal Forwards inan Other prepayments
Asset position 14.0 (7.4) and current assets 6.6
Heating Oil Futares in an Asset posmon ’ ' Other current -
0.5 (0.5) liabllities —
Total short-term derivative MTM ,
positions $ - - 147 8 (7.9) 3 : 6.8
Long-term Derivative Pusmons -
NYMEX-Quality Coal Forwards in an Other deferred
Asset position $ 235 § (14.5) assets $ 9.0
Heatmg Oil Futures in an Asset posmon. QOther deferred '
L1 (1.1) credits - —
Totn] long-term derivative MTM _
positions 3 246 § (15.6) 3 2.0
Total MTM Position $ 393 § (23.5) $ 15.8

(1) Includes credit valuation adjustment

(2) Includes counterparty and collateral netting,

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

at December 31, 2009
Fair Value on
$ in millions Fair Value(1) Netting(2) Balance Sheet Location Balance Sheet
Shert-term: Derivative Positions . o L o
FTRs in an Asset position Other prepayments
$ 08 $ — and current assets $ 08
NYMEX-Quality Coal Forwards in an : Other prepayments - - o
" Asset position ' 2.4 — and current assets .24
NYMEX-Quality Coal Forwards in a Other current
Liability position (1 2) — liabilities (1.2)
o o Other current '
Heating Oil Futures in a Liability position (I 2 1.2 liabllities —
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Other current
position _ (0.2) — liabilities (0.2)
Total short-term derivative MTM
positions $ 06 % 1.2 § 1.8
Long-term Derivative Positions . o
NYMEX-Quality Coal Forwards in an - $ 29 ¢ * (1.2)" Other deferred 5 1.7
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Asset position

Total long-term derivative MTM
positions ' .

s -
w
i

Total MTM Position

(1) Includes credit valuation adjustment
(2) Includes counterparty and collateral netling.

Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreements that contain provisions that
require our debt to maintain an investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. If our debt were to fall
below investment grade, we would be in violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative
instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization of
the MTM loss. The aggregate fair value of all commodity derivative instruments that are in a MTM loss position at
December 31, 2010 is $3.1 million. This amount is offset by $1.0 million in a broker margin account which offsets
our loss positions on the NYMEX Clearport traded forward power contracts. This liability position is further offset
by the asset position of counterparties with master netting agreements of $0.2 million. If our debt were to fall below
investment grade, we may have to post collateral for the remaining $1.9 million.
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10. Share-Based Compensation

In April 2006, DPL’s shareholders approved The DPL Inc. Equity and Performance Incentive Plan (the EPIP) which
became immediately effective and will remain in effect for a term of ten years, unless terminated sooner in
accordance with its terms. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors will designate the employees and
directors eligible to participate in the EPIP and the times and types of awards to be granted. Under the EPIP, the
Compensation Committee may grant equity-based compensation in the form of stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares and units, and other stock-based awards. Awards
may be subject to the achievement of certain management objectives. In addition, the EPIP provides, upon
recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer or Chairman of the Board, for a grant of a special equity award to
recognize outstanding performance. A total of 4,500,000 shares of DPL common stock were reserved for issuance
under the EPIP.

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense recorded at DPL and DP&L:
For the years ended

December 31,

$ in millions . 2010 2009 2008
Restricted stock units . — 3 = % 0.1)
Performance shares 21 1.8 0.9
Restricted shaves - ' o L7 S0T7 03
Non-employee directors’ RSUs 0.4 0.3 0.5
Management performance shares T X 0.7 - 0.3
Share-based compensation included in Operation and

maintenance expense . 47 3719
Income tax expense / (benefit) T e (1.6) - {1.3) T 0.7)

Total share-based compensation, net of tax 5 3.1 § 24 % 1.2

Share-based awards issued in DPL’s common stock will be distributed from treasury stock. DPL has sufficient
treasury stock to satisfy all outstanding share-based awards.
Determining Fair Value
Valuation and Amortization Method — We estimate the fair value of stock options and RSUs using a Black-Scholes-
Merton model; performance shares are valued using a Monte Carlo simulation; restricted shares are valued at the
closing market price on the day of grant and the Directors® RSUs are valued at the closing market price on the day
prior to the grant date. We amortize the fair value of all awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
periods, which are generally the vesting periods,
Expected Volatility — Our expected volatility assumptions are based on the historical volatility of DPL common
stock. The volatility range captures the high and fow volatility values for each award granted based on its specific
terms.
Expected Life — The expected life assumption represents the estimated period of time from the grant date until the
exercise date and reflects historical employee exercise patterns.
Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the award is based on the
corresponding yield curve in effect at the time of the valuation for U.S. Treasury bonds having the same term as the
expected life of the award, i.e., a five year bond rate is used for valuing an award with a five year expected life.
Expected Dividend Yield — The expected dividend yield is based on DPL’s current dividend rate, adjusted as
necessary to capture anticipated dividend changes and the 12 month average DPL common stock price.
Expected Forfeitures — The forfeiture rate used to calculate compensation expense is based on DPL’s historical
experience, adjusted as necessary to reflect special circumstances.
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Stock Options

In 2000, DPL’s Board of Directors adopted and DPL’s shareholders approved The DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan.

With the approval of the EPIP in April 2006, no new awards will be granted under The DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan
but shares relating to awards that are forfeited or terminated under The DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan may be granted

under the EPIP. As of December 31, 2010, there were no unvested stock options.
Summarized stock option activity was as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Options: ' . : e :

Outstanding at begmmng of year _ 417,500 836,500 946,500
Granted ' S—_ — —
Exercised (66,000) (419,000) (110,000)
Forfeited : N C v

Outstanding at year-end 351,500 417,500 836,500

Exercisable at year-end* : 351,500 417,500 . 836,500

Weighted average option prices per share: B S

QOutstanding at beginning of year $ 2716 % 2464 § 24,09
Granted ) - 3 — 3 —
Exercised $ 21.00 § 2153 § 18.56
Forfeited : 8 — 3 C o= 8 —

Outstanding at vear-end $ 28.04 § 2716 §  24.64

Exercisable at year-end 3 2804 § 2716 $° 2464

*251,000 of these stock options expired on January 1, 2011,

The following table reflects information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2010:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Range of Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise
Prices Qutstanding Life (in Years) Price Exercisable Price

$14.95 - $21.00 75,000 038 20.97 T75000 S 2097
$21.01 - $29.63 276,500 [ 29.42 276,500 $ 29.42

The following table reflects information about stock option activity during the period:
For the years ended

December 31,

§ in millions 2010 ] 2009 2008
Welghted-average grant date fair value of optlons granted dunng the co ' L

period © .8 —- 8 B p—
Intrinsic value of options exemlsed durmg the penod b 05 $ 22 % 1.0
Proceeds from stock options exercised during the period - $ 14 % 90§ 22
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of stock options exercised b 01 S 0.7 $ 0.3
Fair value of shares that vested during the period $ — $ — 3 - —
Unrecognized compensation expense § — 8 — S —

Weighted average period to recognize compensation expense (in years) : B =
No options were granted during 2010, 2009 or 2008,
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Restricted Stock Units (RSUs)

RSUs were granted to certain key employees prior to 2001. As of December 31, 2010, there were no RSUs
outstanding.

Weighted-Avg.
Number of Grant Date
$ in millions RSUs Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2010 - : 3311 § 4.1
Granted in 2610 . — —
Vested in 2010 L (3.311) - M AY
Forfeited in 2010 — -
Non-vested at December 31, 2010 S — § U

Summarized RSU activity was as follows:
For the years ended

December 31,
2010 2009 2008
RSUs: R ﬁ . _ _ ) -

Outstanding at beginning of vea 3,311 10,120 22976

Granted : : _ S — —

Dividends — — —

Exercised ' . (3,311) (6,809) (11,253)

Forfeited — — (1,603)
Outstanding at period end - . — 3,311 10,120

Exercisable at period end o — —
Compensation expense is recognized each quarter based on the change in the market price of DPL common stock.
As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, liabilities recorded for cutstanding RSUs were zero, $0.1 million and
$0.2 million, respectively, which are included in Other deferred credits on the balance sheets.

Performance Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors adopted a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) under which DPL wil{ grant a
targeted number of performance shares of common stock to executives, Grants under the LTIP will be awarded
based on a Total Shareholder Return Relative to Peers performance. No performance shares will be earned in a
performance period if the three-year Total Shareholder Return Relative to Peers is below the threshold of the 40m
percentile. Further, the LTIP awards will be capped at 200% of the target number of performance shares, if the Total
Shareholder Return Relative to Peers is at or above the threshold of the 90w percentile. The Total Shareholder
Return Relative to Peers is considered a market condition in accordance with the accounting guidance for share-
based compensation. There is a three year requisite service period for each portion of the performance shares.

The schedule of non-vested performance share activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 follows:
Namber of Weighted-Avg,

Performance Grant Date
$ in millions ) Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2010 190349. % 43
Granted in 2010 161,534 29
Vested in 2010 - : {110,734) (16)
Forfeited in 2010 (29,651) (0.7)
Non-vested at Decernber 31,2010 211,498 § 49
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For the years ended

December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Performance shares: T - : ' o
Outstanding at beginning of year 237,704 156,300 142,108
Granted ' 161,534 :124,588 93,298
Exercised (91,253) e —
_Expired — {36,445) (37,426)
Forfeited . (29,651) (6,739) (41,680)
Outstanding at period end’ 278,334 237,704 156,300
Exercisable at period end 66,836 47,355 36,445

The following table reflects information about performance share activity during the period:
For the vears ended
December 31,

§ in millions 2010 2009 2008
Weighted-average grant date fair value of performance P ' :
_ shares granted during the period
Intrinsic value of performance shares exercised during
the period i 3 25 3% — § —
Proceeds from performance shares exercised during the S '
period E
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of performance shares
exercised $ — 3
Fair value of performance shares that vested during th v
period .
Unrecognized compensation expense
Weighted average period to recognize compensation _ :
expense (in years} .. , o S ' S 1.7 .77 16
The following table shows the assumptions used in the Monte Carlo Simulation to calculate the fair value of the
performance shares granted during the period:

$ 29 § 28 % 22

— 3 -

1.6
2.1

0.8
1.6

1.6
2.4

Y
8
v

For the years ended

December 31,

. 2010 2009 2008

Expected volatility 22.8% - - 15.0% -
24.3% 23.3% 15.7% .

Weighted-average expected volatility 24.3% 22.8% 15.1%
Expected life (vears) ' 3.0 30 3.0
Expected dividends - - 4.5% 5.4% - 5.6% 3.5% - 4.1%
Weighted-average expected dividends =~ 4.5%. 5.6% A%
Risk-free interest rate 1.4% 0.3%-1.5% 22%-3.2%
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Restricted Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors have granted shares of DPL restricted shares to various executives. The .
restricted shares are registered in the executive’s name, carry full voting privileges, receive dividends as declared
and paid on all DPL common stock and vest after a specified service period.

In July 2008, the Board of Directors granted restricted stock awards to a select group of management employees.
The management restricted stock awards have a three-year requisite service period, carry full voting privileges and
receive dividends as declared and paid on all DPL common stock.

On September 17, 2009, the Board of Directors approved a two-part equity compensation award under the EPIP for
certain of DPL’s executive officers. The first part is a restricted share grant and the second part is a matching
restricted share grant. These restricted shares generally vest after five years if the participant remains continuously
employed with DPL or a DPL subsidiary and if the year over year average basic EPS has increased by at least 1%
per year over the five year vesting period. Under the matching restricted share grant, participants will have a three-
year period from the date of plan implementation during which they may purchase DPL common stock equal in
value 1o up to two times their base salary, DPL will match the shares purchased with another grant of restricted
stock (matching restricted share grant). The percentage match by DPL is detailed in the table below. The matching
restricted share grant will generally vest over a three year period if the participant continues to hold the originally
purchased shares and remains continuously employed with DPL or a subsidiary. The restricted shares are registered
in the executive’s name, carry fall voting privileges and receive dividends as declared and paid on all DPL common
stock.

The matching criteria are:
Value (Cost Basis) of

Shares Purchased as a Company % Match of
%a of 2009 Base Ssalary Shares Purchased
<25% C 25%
25% to <50% 50%
50% to <100% 75% .
100% to 200% 125%
The matching percentage is applied on a cumulative basis and the resulting restricted shares grant is adjusted at the
end of each quarter.
Restricted shares can only be awarded in DPL common stock.
Number of Weighted-Avg.
Restricted Grant Date
§ in millions Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2010 - , 218,197 $ 5.8

Granted in 2010 42977 1.1

Vested in 2010 s ' - (20,803) 0.6)

Forfeited in 2010 (20,980) (0.6)

Non-vested at Décember 31, 2010 219,391, § ] 5.7
For the years ended
December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Restricted shares: E : . ' .

Outstanding at beginning of year _ 218,197 69,147 42,200
Granted L 42,977 159050 = 39347
Exercised (20,803) (10,000) (1,000)
Forfeited A ST (20,980) — - {11,400),

Outstanding at period end _ o 219391 218,197 69,147

Exercisable at periodend - .- o ' _— e A T
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The following table reflects information about restricted share activity during the period:

For the years ended
December 31,

$ in millions ) 2010 2009 2008
Weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted -~ ' : P

shares granted during the period 8 S 42 8 .11
Intrinsic value of restricted shares exercised durmg the

period $ 04 3 03 §% —
Proceeds from restricted shares exercised during the ’ L '

period $ — % - — 3 T
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of restricted shares

exercised $ 01 S — 3 —
Fair value of restricted shares that vested during the o - -

period D SRR 06 $ 03 $ o
Unrecognized compensation expense $ 34 5% 43 % 1.3
Weighted average period to recognize compensatlon ’ ' , ) . )

expense (in years) S 2T 34 o 2T

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Units

Under the EPIP, as part of their annual compensation for service to DPL and DP&L, each non-employee Director
receives a retainer in RSUs on the date of the annual meeting of shareholders. The RSUs will become non-
forfeitable on April 15 of the following year. All of the RSUs become non-forfeitable in the event of death,
disability, or change in control; but if the Director resigns or retires prior to the April 15 vesting date, the vested
shares will be distributed on a pro rata basis. The RSUs accrue quarterly dividends in the form of additional RSUs.
Upon vesting, the RSUs will become exercisable and will be distributed in DPL common stock, unless the Director
chooses to defer receipt of the shares until a later date. The RSUs are valued at the closing stock price on the day

prior to the grant and the compensation expense is recognized evenly over the vesting period.
Number of Weighted-Avg.

Director Grant Date
§ in millions RSUs Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2010 W 20,712 8 .- 04
Granted in 2010 15,752 04
Dividends accrued in 2010 - TLo k2484 0.1
Vested, exercised and issued in 2010 (2,618) 0.1)
Vested, exercised and deferred.in 2010 - - *(20,010) (0.4)
Forfeited in 2010 — —
Non-vested at December 31,2010 . < 16320 % 0.4
For the years ended
December 31,
‘ ) 2010 2009 2008
Restricted stock units: : oo TE S A :
Qutstanding at begmnmg of year . 20,712 - 15,546 13,573
Granted. . : o 15,752 20,016 . 17,022
Dividends accrued 2,484 1,737 931
Vested, exercised and issued ' ' (2,618) T (2,066) {7,910)
Vested, exercised and deferred (20,010) (14,521) (6,921)
- Forfeited . ax S — w0 (L 149)
Outstanding at period end 16,320 20,712 15,546
-‘Exercigable at period end . : T — ' e
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The following table reflects information about non-employee director RSU activity during the period:
For the years ended
December 31,
$ in millions 2010 2009 2008
Weighted-average grant date fair value of non-employee ] S
director RSUs granted during the period 8 05 %
Intrinsic value of non-employee director RSUs exerc1sed during
the period $ 05 %
Proceeds from non-employee director RSUs exercised during AU
the period B — ' - % - —
5
3
$

05§ 0.5

04 S 0.4

Excess tax benefit from proceeds of non-employee director
RS8Us exercised 3 —
Fair value of non—employee director RSUS that vested dunng . .
the period : $ 0.6
Unrecognized compensation expense s 0.1
Weighted average penod to recogmze oompensatron expense N _ S
(in years} - ) R | X R | N 0.3
Management Performance Shares
Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors granted compensation awards for select management employees. The grants
have a three year requisite service period and certain performance conditions during the performance period. The
management performance shares can only be awarded in DPL common stock.

0.5
0.1

0.5
a.1

(-

Number of Weighted-Avg.
Mgt. Performance Grant Date
§ in millions Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2010 - : 84241 $ 21
Granted in 2010 o _ 37.480 09
Vested in 2010 : : - ’ (31,081) T (0.9)
Forfeited in 2010 (17,597) {0.4)
Non-vested at December 31, 2010 : 73,043 % 1.7
For the vears ended
December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Management Performance Shares: : . o
Outstanding at beginning of year 84,241 39,144 —
Granted . . "+ 37480 48719 39,144
Exercised — — —
Forfeited : - - {(17,597) 3622y . —
Qutstanding at period end _ _ 104,124 84,241 39 144
Exercisable at period end B ' . 31,081 = —_

The following table shows the assumptions used in the Monte Carlo Simulation 1o calculate the fair value of the

management performance shares granted during the period:
For the years ended

December 31,
. 2010 2009 2008
Expected volatility - C ' Co243% . 228% 0 0 149%
Weighted-average expected volatlllty _ 24.3% . 22.83% 14.9%
Expected life (vears) T 3.0 3.0 3.0
Expected dividends 4.5% 5.6% 3.9%
Weighted-average expected dividends L S 4.5% 5.6% . O 39%
Risk-free interest rate 1.4% 1.5% 2.9%
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The following table reflects information about management performance share activity during the period:
For the years ended
December 31,
§ in millious 2010 2009 2003
Weighted-average grant date fair value of management perfomance - T
shares granted during the period $ 09 % 100§ 1.1
Intrinsic value of management performance shares exercised during
the period s — % — 3 —
Proceeds from management performance shares exercised during the .
period S — 3
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of management perfomlance sharcs
exercised $ — 8 — 3 —
8
3

Fair value of management performance shares that vested during the :
period : : '$ 09

Unrecognized compensation expense $ 0.9

Weighted average penod to recognize compensation expense {in -
years) . O 1.7 . 1.6 240

11. Redeemable Preferred Stock

DP&L has $100 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, of which 228,508 were outstanding as of

December 31, 2010. DP&L also has $25 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, none of which was

outstanding as of December 31, 2010. The table below details the preferred shares outstanding at December 31,

2010:

o3 69

1.0 0.8

Redemption Shares Par Value at  Par Value at
Outstanding
Preferred Price at at December 31, December 31,
Stock December 31,  December 31, 2010 2009
($in ($in
Rate 20140 2010 millions) milliens)
DP&I. Series A  3.75% % 102.50° 93280 $§ . 93 § 93
DP&L Series B 3.75% % 103.00 69,398 7.0 70
DP&L Series C W 390% § - 10100 - 65,830 . - 6.6 6.6
Total 228,508 % 229 % 229

The DP&L preferred stock may be redeemed at DP&L’s option as determined by its Board of Directors at the per-
share redemption prices indicated above, plus cumulative accrued dividends. In addition, DP&L’s Amended
Articles of Incorporation contain provisions that permit preferred stockholders to elect members of the Board of
Directors in the event that curnulative dividends on the preferred stock are in arrears in an aggregate amount
equivalent to at least four full quarterly dividends. Since this potential redemption-triggering event is not solely
within the control of DP&L, the preferred stock is presented on the Balance Sheets as “Redeemable Preferred
Stock” in a manner consistent with temporary equity.
As long as any DP&L preferred stock is outstanding, DP&L*s Amended Articles of Incorporation also contain
provisions restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such
dividend, the aggregate of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31, 1946 exceeds the net income
of DP&L. available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31, 1946, plus $1.2 million. This
dividend restriction has historically not impacted DP&L’s ability to pay cash dividends and, as of December 31,
2010, DP&L’s retained earnings of $616.9 million were all available for common stock dividends payable to DPL.
We do not expect this restriction to have an effect on the payment of cash dividends in the future. DPL records
dividends on preferred stock of DP&L within Interest expense on the Statements of Results of Operations.
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12. Common Shareholders ' Equity
DPL has 250,000,000 authorized common shares, of which 116,924,844 are outstanding at December 31, 2010.
On October 27, 2010, the DPL Board of Directors approved a new Stock Repurchase Program under which DPL
may repurchase up to $200 million of its common stock from time to time in the open market, through private
transactions or otherwise. This 2010 Stock Repurchase Program is scheduled to run through December 31, 2013 but
may be modified or terminated at any time without notice. Under this 2010 Stock Repurchase Program, DPL
repurchased 2,04 million shares at an average per share price of $25.75 during the fourth quarter of 2010. At
December 31, 2010, the amount stil] available that could be used to repurchase stock under this program is
approximately $147.5 million.
Warrants
On October 28, 2009, the DPL Board of Directors approved a Stock Repurchase Program under which DPL may
use proceeds from the exercise of DPL warrants by warrant holders to repurchase other outstanding DPL warrants
or its common stock from time to time in the open market, through private transactions or otherwise. This 2009
Stock Repurchase Program is schedule to run through June 30, 2012, which is three months after the end of the
warrant exercise period. Under this 2009 Stock Repurchase Program, DPL repurchased a total of 145,915 shares
during the three months ended March 31, 2010 at an average per share price of $26.71, effectively utilizing the
entire $3.9 million that was available to repurchase stock at December 31, 2009. However, additional funds could be
available to repurchase stock if the 1.7 million warrants outstanding at December 31, 2010 are exercised for cash in
the future.
In February 2000, DPL entered into a series of recapitalization transactions which included the issuance of 31.6
million warrants for an aggregate purchase price of $50 million. The warrants are exercisable, in whole or in part,
for common shares at any time during the twelve-year period commencing on March 13, 2000. Each warrant is
exercisable for one common share, subject to anti-dilution adjustments (e.g., stock split, stock dividend) at an
exercise price of $21.00 per common share.
In addition, in the event of a declaration, issuance or consummation of any dividend, spin-off or other distribution or
similar transaction by DPL of the capital stock of any of its subsidiaries, additional warrants of such subsidiary will
be issued to the warrant holder so that after the transaction, the warrant holder will have the same interest in the fully
diluted number of common shares of such subsidiary the warrant holder had in DPL immediately prior to such
transaction.
Pursuant to the warrant agreement, DPL has authorized common shares sufficient to provide for the exercise in full
of all outstanding warrants. At December 31, 2010, DPL had 1.7 million outstanding warrants which are exercisable
in the future.
Dividend Reinvestment Plan
On March {, 2009, DPL introduced a new direct stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan. The plan provides
both registered shareholders and new investors with the ability to purchase shares and also to reinvest their
dividends. This plan is administered by Computershare Trust Company, N.A., and not by DPL.
Shareholder Rights Plan
In September 2001, DPL’s Board of Directors renewed its Shareholder Rights Plan, attaching one right to each
common share outstanding at the close of business on December 13, 2001. The rights separate from the common
shares and become exercisable at the exercise price of $130 per right in the event of certain attempted business
combinations. In October 2010, DPL’s Board of Directors voted to amend the Sharcholder Rights Plan to accelerate
the expiration date. DPL expects the Shareholder Rights Plan to expire during the first quarter of 2011.
ESOP
During October 1992, our Board of Directors approved the formation of a Company-sponsored ESOP to fund
matching contributions to DP&L.’s 401(k) retirement savings plan and certain other payments to eligible full-time
employees. This leveraged ESOP is funded by an exempt loan, which is secured by the ESOP shares. As debt
service payments are made on the loan, shares are released on a pro rata basis. ESOP shares used to fund matching
contributions to DP&L’s 401(k) vest after three years of service; contributions after 2010 will vest after two years
of service. Other compensation shares awarded vest immediately.
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In general, participants are eligible for lump sum payments upon termination of their employment and the
submission and subsequent approval of an application for benefits. Earlier distributions can occur for a Qualified
Domestic Relations Order or for death. Otherwise, distribution must occur within 60 days after the plan year in
which the later of one of the following events occur: 65w birthday, 10 anniversary of participation, or termination
of employment. Participants are allowed to take distributions during employment if older than 59z and/or for a
hardship as defined in the Plan document. Additionally, participants may elect on a quarterly basis to diversify their
vested ESOP shares into DP&L’s 4¢1(k) retirement savings plan. Distributions are made in cash unless the
participant requests the distribution be made in stock. A repurchase obligation exists for vested shares held by the
ESOP if they cannot be sold in the open market. The fair value of shares subject to the repurchase obligation at
December 31, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $54.1 millicn and $57.6 million, respectively.
In 1992, the Plan entered into a $90 million loan agreement with DPL in order to purchase shares of DPL common
stock in the open market. The term loan agreement provided for principal and interest on the loan to be paid prior to
October 9, 2007, with the right to extend the loan for an additional ten years. In 2007, the maturity date was
extended to October 7, 2017. Effective January [, 2009, the interest on the loan was amended to a fixed rate of
2.06%, payable annually. Dividends received by the ESOP are used to repay the principal and interest on the ESOP
loan to DPL. Dividends on the allocated shares are charged to retained eamings and the share value of these
dividends is allocated to participants.
The ESOP used the full amount of the loan to purchase 4.7 million shares of DPL common stock in the open
market. As a result of the 1997 stock split, the ESOP held 7.1 million shares of DPL common stock, The cost of
shares held by the ESOP and not yet released is reported as a reduction of Common sharcholders’ equity. At
December 31, 2010, Common shareholders’ equity reflects the cost of 2.5 million unreleased shares held in suspense
by the DPL Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Trust. The fair value of the 2.5 million ESOP shares held in suspense at
December 31, 2010 was $65.3 million. When shares are committed to be released from the ESOP, compensation
expense is recorded based on the fair value of the shares committed to be released, with a corresponding credit to
our equity. Compensation expense associated with the ESOP, which is based on the fair value of the shares
committed to be released for allocation, amounted to $6.7 million in 2010, $4.0 million in 2009 and $1.5 million in
2008,
For purposes of EPS computations and in accordance with GA AP, we treat ESOP shares as outstanding if they have
been allocated to participants, released or have been committed to be released. As of December 31, 2018, the ESOP
has 4.5 million shares allocated to participants with an additional 0.1 million shares which have been released or
committed to be released but unallocated to participants. ESOP cumulative shares outstanding for the calculation of
EPS were 4.6 million in 2010, 4.2 million in 2009 and 4.0 million in 2008.
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13. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity (net assets) of a business entity during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. It includes all changes in equity during a
period except those resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. Comprehensive income (loss)
has two components: Net income (loss) and Other comprehensive income (loss).

The following table provides the tax effects allocated to each component of Other comprehensive income (loss) for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

DPL DP&L
Amount Tax Amount Tax
before (expense) / Amount before (expense) / Amount

$ in millions tax benefit after tax tax benefit after tax
2008: ' '
Unrealized gains / (losses) on

financial instruments $ (0.8) $ 03 § 05 3% (15.0) § 52 % (9.8)
Deferred gains / (losses)on - R s : _

cash flow hedges {1.3) {04 . (L7 - (1.3) ~(0.4) (1.7)
Unrealized gains / (losses) on

pension and postretirement

benefits . (33.1) 11.6 {21.5) (33.4) 11.7 (21.7)
Other comprehensive income . : : : : R T

(fossy .~ . - ' 5 {35.2) § 15 % (237 § 49.7) 3 16.5 ' $ {33.2)
2009: . o L .
Unrealized gains / (losses) on

financial instruments $ 08 § 0.3) § 05 3% 42 % (15) $ 27
Deferred gams / (losses) on : . .

cash flow hedges C (4.3) 0.6 (3.7 ' {43) 06 - 3.7
Unrealized gains / (losses) on

pension and postretirement

benefits ’ (4.1) 1.4 (2.7) (4.1} 1.4 2.7
Other comprehensive income ' B
- {loss) . (768 1.7 § (59 % 4.2y 8 05 83 . (37
2010: : '
Unrealized gains / {losses) on

financial instruments $ 0.6 § 02) 8 04 % (1.6) $ 06 S (1.0)
Deferred gains / (losses) on S - _—

cash flow hedges _ 119 46 - - 64 3.1} 03 - (2.3)
Unrealized gains / (fosses) on

pension and postretirement

benefits 4.3 (1.0) 33 4.3 (1.0) 3.3
Other comprehensive income Lo ) o s i

(loss) $ 159 8§ (58)'% 10.1 S ©4H s  @On s (0.5
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The following table provides the detail of each component of Other comprehensive income (loss) reclassified to Net
income during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

DPL

$ in millions

2010 2009 2008

No unrealized gains or losses on financial instruments were’

* transferred o income in 2010, 2009 or 2008, '

Deferred gains/{losses) on cash flow hedges net of income
tax (expenses)/benefits of $2.0 million, ($1.8) million and
($2.2) million, respectively.

Unrealized losses on pension and postretirement benefits net

of incoime tax benefits of $1.3 million, $1 | miltion and
$0.7 million, respectively. :

DP&L

§ in millions

(6.0) 59 65

e en (13)
s (34§ 38 § 5.2

Unrealized gains/{losses) on financial instruments net of . .

income tax (cxpenses)/beneﬁts of zero, ($0. 4) million and

($1.4) million, respectively, -

Deferred gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges net of income
tax (expenses)/benefits of $2.0 million, ($1.8) million and
($2.2) million, respectively.

Unrealized losses on pension and postretirement benefits net

of income tax benefits of $1.3 million, $1.1 million and
$0.7 million, respectively, :

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)

2010 2009 2008
$ 0.1 $ 07§ 27
©0) 5.9 6.5

2.4) 2.0 (1.3}
) 85 $ 45 § 7.9

AOCl is included on our balance sheets within the Common shareholders’ equity sections. The following table
provides the components that constitute the balance sheet amounts in AOCT at December 31, 2014 and 2009:

DPL
§ in millions 2010 2009
Finanéial instruments, net oftax ~~ ' $ 0.6 § 0.2
Cash flow hedges, net of tax 19.6 13.3
Pension and postretirement benefits, net of tax -{39.1) {42.5)
Total $ (18.9) $ (29.0)
DP&L
§ in millions 2010 2009
Financial instruments, net of tax : $ 84 % 95
Cash flow hedges, net of tax 10.5 13.3
Pension and postretirement benefits, net of tax 39.1) (42.5)
Total $ (20.2) § (19.7)
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14. EPS

Basic EPS is based on the weighted-average number of DPL common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is based on the weighted-average number of DPL: common and common-equivalent shares outstanding during
the year, excepl in periods where the inchusion of such common-equivalent shares is anti-dilutive. Excluded from
outstanding shares for these weighted-average computations are shares held by DP&L.’s Master Trust Plan for
deferred compensation and unreleased shares held by DPL’s ESOP,

The common-equivalent shares excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS, because they were anti-dilutive, were
not material for all the periods ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008. These shares may be dilutive in the
future.

The following illustrates the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS
computations:

2010 2009 2008
§ and shares in millions
except Per Per Per
per share amounts Income  Shares Share  Income  Shares Share  Income  Shares Share
BasicEPS  ~ $290.3 1156 $ 2.51 $229.1 . 1129 § 203 $2445 1102 § 222
Effect of Dilutive . . L
Securities: _ : _ _ R
Warrants . 0.3 11 5.0
Stock options, : B ’ 5 :
performance and | - : : - . .
restricted shares. 0.2 _ 02 .02
Diluted EPS $2903 1161 $ 2.50 $229.1 1142 $ 201 $2445 1154 § 2.12

15. Insurance Recovery
On May 16, 2007, DPL filed a claim with Energy Insurance Mutuat (EIM) to recoup legal costs associated with our
litigation against certain former executives. On February 15, 2010, after having engaged in both mediation and
arbitration, DPL and EIM entered into a settlement agreement resolving all coverage issues and finalizing all
obligations in connection with the claim. The proceeds from the settlement amounted to $3 .4 million, net of
associated expenses, and were recorded as a reduction to operation and maintenance expense during the year ended
December 31, 2010.
16. Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Contingencies
DPL — Guarantees
In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DPLE
and DPLER, providing financial or performance assurance to third parties. These agreements are entered into
primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed to DPLE and DPLER on a stand-alone
basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish DPLE’s and DPLER’s intended
commercial purposes.
At December 31, 2010, DPL had $57.8 million of guarantees to third parties for future financial or performance
assurance under such agreements, on behalf of DPLE and DPLER. The guaraniee arrangements entered into by
DPL with these third partics cover all present and future obligations of DPLE and DPLER to such beneficiaries and
are terminable at any time by DPL upon written notice to the beneficiaries. The carrying amount of obligations for
commercial transactions covered by these guarantees and recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets was $1.7
million and $0.6 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
To date, neither DPL nor DP&L have incurred any losses related to the guarantees of DPLE’s and DPLER’s
obligations and we believe it is remote that either DPL or DP&L would be required to perform or incur any losses
in the future associaled with any of the above guarantees of DPLE’s and DPLER’s obligations.
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DP&L — Equity Ownership Interest .

DP&L owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost
method of accounting under GAAP. As of December 31, 2010, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of
4.9%, or $62.3 million, of a $1,272.2 million debt obligation that matures in 2026. This would only happen if this
electric generation company defaulted on its debt payments. As of December 31, 2010, we have no knowledge of
such a default.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of our

operations. At December 31, 2010, these include:
Payment Year

3 in millions . Total 2011 2012-2013 2014-2015 Thereafter
Long-term debt $ 13244 $ . 2974 § 4700 § — $ 5570
Interest payments 677.9 64.7 96.1 33.9 463.2
Pension and postretirement . ' Lo ——

payments © . 2585 23.8 510 oo 520 131.7
Capital leases 0.2 0.1 01 — —
Operating leases . - 0.9 04 037 02 =
Coal contracts (a) 1,409.0 415.2 501.3 177.6 314.9
Limestone contracts (a) 429 5.6 “117 e 124 . 132
Purchase orders and other

contractual obligations 141.5 71.1 56.0 11.7 2.7

Total contractual obligations $ 38553 §. 8783 % 11865 $:- - 3078 § 14827

DP&L . : . B o
Long-term debt ' $ 8844 3§ — 3 4700 - § — 5 4144

Interest payments 424.3 39.5 729 C 307 2817
Pension and postretirement o i _ Lo o

payments L : 258.5 . 238 510 52.0 131.7
Capital leases 0.2 0.1 0.1 — —
Operating leases 09 0.4 3 L. 02 —
Coal contracts (a) _ 1,405.0 415.2 301.3 1776 3149
Limestone contracts {a) 429 5.6 11.7 o124 o132
Purchase orders and other

contractual obligations 142.7 72.2 56.1 11.7 2.7

Total contractual obligations $ 31634 $ 556.8 $ - 1,1634 -§ .- 2846 -3 '1,1586

(a) Total at DP &L-operated units
Long-term debt:
DPL’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2010, consists of DP&L’s first mortgage bonds and tax-exempt
pellution control bonds and DPL’s unsecured senior notes. These long-term debt amounts include current
maturities but exclude unamortized debt discounts.
DP&L’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2010, consists of first mortgage bonds and tax-exempt pollution
control bonds. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but exclude unarnortized debt discounts.
See Note 5 and Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Interest payments:
Interest payments are associated with the long-term debt described above. The interest payments relating to
variable-rate debt are projected using the interest rate prevailing at December 31, 2010,
Pension and posiretirement payments:
As of December 31, 2010, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had estimated future benefit payments
as outlined in Note 7 of Notes to Consoiidated Financial Statements. These estimated future benefit payments are
projected through 2020.

138

{C39875: }



Table of Contents

Capital leases:

As of December 31, 2010, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had one immaterial capital lease that

expires in 2013.

Operating feases:

As of December 31, 2010, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had several immaterial operating leases

with various terms and expiration dates.

Coal contracts:

DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L., has entered into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal

requirements for the generating plants it operates. Some contract prices are subject to periodic adjustrent and

have features that limit price escalation in any given year.

Limestone contracts:

DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone

used in the operation of FGD equipment at its generating facilities.

Purchase orders and other contractual obligations:

As of December 31, 2010, DPL and DP&L had various other contractual obligations including non-cancelable

contracts to purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates.

Reserve for uncertain tax positions:

Due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with our unrecognized tax benefits

of $19.4 million, we are unable to make a reliable estimate of the periods of cash settlement with the respective

tax authorities and have not included such amounts in the contractual obligations table above.
Contingencies
In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other matters
asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements, as
prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. However, there can be no
assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various legal proceedings, claims, tax
examinations, and other matters, including the matters discussed below, and to comply with applicable laws and
regulations, will not exceed the amounts reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements. As such, costs, if any,
that may be incurred in excess of those amounts provided as of December 31, 2010, cannot be reasonably
determined.
Environmental Matters .
DPL., DP&L and our subsidiaries’ facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of environmental regulations
and laws by federal, state and local authorities. As well as imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws
and regulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief
and other sanctions. In the normal course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at
these facilities to comply, or to determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for losses that are
probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated. We have reserves of approximately $4.0 million for
environmental matters. We evaluate the potential liability related to probable losses quarterly and may revise our
estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material effect on our results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.
We have several pending environmental matters associated with our power plants. Some of these matters could have
material adverse impacts on the operation of the power plants; especially the plants that do not have SCR and FGD
equipment installed to further control certain emissions. Currently, Hutchings and Beckjord are our only coal-fired
power plants that do not have this equipment installed. DP&L owns 100% of the Hutchings plant and a 50% interest
in Beckjord Unit 6.
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Regulation Matters Related to Air Quality

Clean Air Act Compliance

In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the law, the USEPA sets
limits on how much of a pollutant can be in the air anywhere in the United States. The CAA allows individual states
{o have stronger pollution controls, but states are not allowed to have weaker pollution controls than those set for the
whole country. The CAA has a material effect on our operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to
certain programs under the CAA.

On October 27, 2003, the USEPA. published final rules regarding the equipment replacement provision (ERP) of the
routine maintenance, repair and replacement (RMRR) exclusion of the CAA. Activities at power plants that fall
within the scope of the RMRR exclusion do not trigger new source review (NSR) requirements, including the
imposition of stricter emission limits. On December 24, 2003, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C.
Circuit stayed the effective date of the rule pending its decision on the merits of the lawsuits filed by numerous
states and environmental crganizations challenging the final rules. On June 6, 2003, the USEPA issued its final
response on the reconsideration of the ERP exclusion. The USEPA clarified its position, but did not change any
aspect of the 2003 final rules. This decision was appealed and the D.C. Circuit vacated the final rules on March 17,
2006. The scope of the RMRR exclusion remains uncertain due to this action by the D.C. Circuit, as well as multiple
litigations not directly involving us where courts are defining the scope of the exception with respect to the specific
facts and circumstances of the particular power plants and activities before the courts. While we believe that we
have not engaged in any activities with respect 1o our existing power planis that would trigger the NSR
requirements, if NSR requirements were imposed on any of DP&L’s existing power plants, the results could have a
material adverse impact to us.

The USEPA issued a proposed rute on QOctober 20, 2005 concerning the test for measuring whether modifications to
electric generating units should trigger application of NSR standards under the CAA. A supplemental rule was also
proposed on May 8, 2007 to include additional options for determining if there is an emissions increase when an
existing electric generating unit makes a physical or operational change. The rule was challenged by environmental
organizations and has not been finalized. While we cannot predict the outcome of this rulemaking, any finalized
rutes could materially affect our operations.

Interstate Air Quality Rule

On December 17, 2003, the USEPA proposed the Interstate Air Quality Rule (IAQR) designed to reduce and
permanently cap SO2 and NOx emissions from eleciric utilities. The proposed TAQR focused on states, including
Ohio, whose power plant emissions are believed to be significantly contributing to fine particle and ozone pollution
in other downwind states in the eastern United States. On June 10, 2004, the USEPA issued a supplemental proposal
to the TAQR, now renamed the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). The final rules were signed on March 10, 2005
and were published on May 12, 2005. CAIR created an interstate trading program for annuai NOx emission
allowances and made modifications to an existing trading program for SOz. On August 24, 2005, the USEPA
proposed additional revisions to the CAIR. On July 11, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
Circuit issued a decision to vacate the USEPA’s CAIR and its associated Federal Implementation Plan and
remanded to the USEPA with instructions to issue new regulations that conformed with the procedural and
substantive requirements of the CAA. The Court’s decision, in part, invalidated the new NOx annual emission
allowance trading program and the modifications to the SOz emission trading program established by the March 10,
2005 rules, and created uncertainty regarding future NOx and SOz emission reduction requirements and their timing.
The USEPA and a group representing utilities filed a request on September 24, 2008 for a rehearing before the entire
Court. On December 23, 2008, the 1I.S. Court of Appeals issued an order on reconsideration that permits CAIR to
remain in effect until the USEPA issues new regulations that would conform to the CAA requirements and the
Court’s July 11, 2008 decision.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, DP&L. began a program for selling excess emission allowances, including annual NOx
emission allowances and SOz emission allowances that were the subject of CAIR trading programs. In subsequent
quarters, DP&L recognized gains from the sale of excess emission allowances to third parties. The Court’s CAIR
decision affected the trading market for excess allowances and impacted DF&L’s program for selling additional
excess allowances in 2008. In January 2009, we resumed selling excess allowances due to the revival of the
emissions trading market, On July 6, 2010, the USEPA proposed the Clean Air Transport Rule (CATR) which will
effectively replace CAIR. We have reviewed this proposal and submitted comments to the USEPA on September
30, 2010. We are unable to determine the overall financial impact that these rules could have on our operations in
the future.
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In 2007, the Ohio EPA revised their State Implementation Plan (SIP) to incorporate a CAIR program consistent with
the JAQR. The Ohio EPA bhad received partial approval from the USEPA and had been awaiting full program
approval from the USEPA when the U.S. Court of Appeals issued its July 11, 2008 decision. As a result of the
December 23, 2008 order, the Ohio EPA proposed revised rules on May 11, 2009, which were finalized on July 15,
2009. On September 25, 2009, the USEPA issued a full SIP approval for the Ohio CAIR program. We do not expect
that full SIP approval of the Ohio CAIR program will have a significant impact on operations.
Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants
On January 30, 2004, the USEPA published its proposal to restrict mercury and other air toxins from coal-fired and
oil-fired utility plants. The USEPA “de-listed” mercury as a hazardous air pollutant from coal-fired and oil-fired
utility plants and, instead, proposed a cap-and-trade approach to regulate the total amount of mercury emissions
allowed from such sources. The final Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) was signed March 15, 2005 and was
published on May 18, 2005. On March 29, 2005, nine states sued the USEPA, opposing the cap-and-trade regulatory
approach taken by the USEPA. In 2007, the Ohic EPA adopted rules implementing the CAMR program. On
February 8, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circait struck down the USEPA
regulations, finding that the USEPA had not complied with statutory requirements applicable to “de-listing™ a
hazardous air pollutant and that a cap-and-trade approach was not authorized by law for “listed™ hazardous air
pollutants. A request for rehearing before the entire Court of Appeals was denied and a petition for review before the
U.S. Supreme Court was filed on October 17, 2008. On February 23, 2009, the U.S. Supreme Court denied the
petition. The USEPA is expected to propose Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards for coal-
and cil-fired eleciric generating units during the quarter ending March 31, 2011 and finalize during the quarter
ending December 31, 2011. Upon publication in the federal register following finalization, affected electric
generating units (EGUs) will have three years to come into compliance with the new requirements. DP&L is unable
to determine the impact of the promulgation of new MACT standards on its financial condition or results of
operations; however, a MACT standard could have a material adverse effect on our operations. We cannot predict
the final costs we may incur 1o comply with proposed new regulations to conirol mercury or other hazardous air
pollutants.
On April 29, 2010, the USEPA issued a proposed rule that would reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants from new
and existing industrial, commercial and institutional boilers, and process heaters at major and area source facilities.
This regulation may affect five auxiliary boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L’s generation facilities. The
proposed regulations contain emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements. The compliance
schedule will be three years from the date when these rules, if finalized, become effective. We currently cannot
determine whether or not these rules will be finalized nor can we predict the effect of compliance costs, if any, on
DP&L.’s operations. Such costs, however, are not expected to be material.
On May 3, 2010, the USEPA finalized the “National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants” (NESHAP)
for compression ignition (CI) reciprocating internal combustion engines (RICE). The units affected at DP&L are 18
diesel electric generating engines and eight emergency “black start” engines. The existing CI RICE units must
comply by May 3, 2013. The regulations contain emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements.
Compliance costs on DP&L’s operations are not expected to be material.
National Ambient Air Quality Standards
On January 5, 2005, the USEPA published its final non-attainment designations for the National Ambient Air
Quality Standard (NAAQS) for Fine Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM 2.5). These designations included counties and
partial counties in which DP&L operates and/or owns generating facilities. On March 4, 2005, DP&L and other
Ohio electric utilities and electric generators filed a petition for review in the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals,
challenging the final rule creating these designations. On November 30, 2005, the court ordered the USEPA to
decide on all petitions for reconsideration by January 20, 2006. On January 20, 2006, the USEPA denied the
petitions for reconsideration. On July 7, 2009, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals upheld the USEPA non-attainment
designations for the areas impacting DP&L’s generation plants, however, on October 8, 2009 the USEPA issued
new designations based on 2008 monitoring data that showed all areas in attainment to the standard with the
exception of several counties in northeastern Ohio. The USEPA is expected to propose revisions to the PM 2.5
standard during the first quarter of 2011 as part of its routine five-year rule review cycle. We cannot predict the
impact the revisions to the PM 2.5 standard will have on DP&L’s financial condition or results of operations.

141

{C39875: }



Table of Contents

On May 5, 2004, the USEPA issued its proposed regional haze rule, which addresses how states should determine
the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for sources covered under the regional haze rule. Final rules were
published Tuly 6, 2005, providing states with several options for determining whether sources in the state should be
subject to BART. In the final rule, the USEPA made the determination that CAIR achieves greater progress than
BART and may be used by states as a BART substitute. Numerous units owned and operated by us will be impacted
by BART. We cannot determine the extent of the impact until Ohio determines how BART will be implemented.
On September 16, 2009, the USEPA. announced that it would reconsider the 2008 national ground level ozone
standard. A more stringent ambient ozone standard may lead to stricter NOx emission standards in the future.

DP &L cannot determine the effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations.

Effective April 12, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for nitrogen dioxide. This
change may affect certain emission sources in heavy traffic areas like the I-75 corridor between Cincinnati and
Dayton after 2016. Several of our facilities or co-owned facilities are within this area. DP&L. cannot determine the
effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations.

Effective August 23, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for SOz replacing the current
24-hour standard and annual standard with a one hour standard. DP&L cannot determine the effect of this potential
change, if any, on its operations. No effects are anticipated before 2014.

Climate Change

In response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision that the USEPA has the authority to regulate CO2 emissions from
motor vehicles, the USEPA made a finding that CO2 and certain other GHGs are pollutants under the CAA.
Subsequently, under the CAA, USEPA determined that CO2 and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten the
health and welfare of future generations by contributing 1o climate change. This finding became effective in January
2010, Numerous affected parties have petitioned the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision. On April 1,
2010, USEPA signed the “Light-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Ernission Standards and Corporate Average Fuel
Economy Standards” rule. Under USEPA’s view, this is the final action that renders carbon dioxide and other GHGs
“regulated air pollutants” under the CAA. As aresult of this action, it is expected that in 2011 various permitting
programs will apply to other combustion sources, such as coal-fired power plants. We cannot predict the effect of
this change, if any, on DP&L’s operations.

Legislation proposed in 2009 to target a reduction in the emission of GHGs from large sources was not enacted.
Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO:z emissions at generating
stations we own and co-own is approximately 16 million tons annually. Proposed GHG legislation finalized at a
future date could have a significant effect on DP&L’s operations and costs, which could adversely affect our net
income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty associated with such legislation, we
cannot predict the final outcome or the financial impact that this legislation will have on DP&L.

On September 22, 2009, the USEPA issued a final rule for mandatory reporting of GHGs from large sources that
emit 25,000 metric tons per year or more of COz, including electric generating units. The first report is due in March
2011 for 2010 emissions. This reporting rule will guide development of policies and programs to reduce emissions.
DP&L does not anticipate that this reporting rule wili result in any significant cost or other impact on current
operations.

Litigation, Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality

Litigation Involving Co-Owned Planis

In 2004, eight states and the City of New York filed a lawsuit in Federal District Court for the Southern District of
New York against American Electric Power Company, Inc. (AEP), one of AEP’s subsidiaries, Cinergy Corp. (a
subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy)) and four other electric power companies. A similar lawsuit
was filed against these companies in the same court by Open Space Institute, Inc., Open Space Conservancy, Inc.
and The Audubon Society of New Hampshire. The lawsuits allege that the companies’ emissions of COz contribute
to global warming and constitute a public or private nuisance. The lawsuits seek injunctive relief in the form of
specific emission reduction commitments. In 2005, the Federal District Court dismissed the lawsuits, holding that
the lawsuits raised political questions that should not be decided by the cotrts. The plaintiffs appealed. Finding that
the plaintiffs have standing to sue and can assert federal common law nuisance claims, the United States Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit on September 21, 2009 vacated the dismissal of the Federal District Court and
remanded the lawsuits back to the Federal District Court for further proceedings. In response to a petition by the
company defendants, the U.S. Supreme Court an Pecember 6, 2010 granted a hearing on the matter. Although we
are not named as a party to these lawsuits, DP&L is a co-owner of coal-fired plants with Duke Energy and AEP (or
their subsidiaries) that could be affected by the outcome of these lawsuits. The outcome of these lawsuits could also

{C39875: }



encourage these or other plaintiffs to file similar lawsuits against other electric power companies, including DP&L..
We are unable to predict the impact that these lawsuits might have on DP&L.
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On September 21, 2004, the Sierra Club filed a lawsuit against DP&L and the other owners of the J.M. Stuart
generating station in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Ohio for alleged violations of the CAA and
the station’s operating permit. On August 7, 2008, a consent decree was filed in the U.S. District Court in full
settlement of these CAA claims. Under the terms of the consent decree, DP&L and the other owners of the J.M.
Stuart generating station agreed to: (i} certain emission targets related to NOx, SOz and particulate maiter; (ii) make
energy efficiency and renewable energy commitments that are conditioned on receiving PUCO approval for the
recovery of costs; (i) forfeit 5,500 SOz allowances; and (iv) provide funding to a third party non-profit organization
to establish a solar water heater rebate program. DP&L and the other owners of the station also entered into an
attorneys’ fee agreement to pay a portion of the Sierra Club’s attorney and expert witness fees. The parties to the
lawsuit filed a joint motion on October 22, 2008, seeking an order by the U.S. District Court approving the consent
decree with funding for the third party non-profit organization set at $300,000. On October 23, 2008, the U.S.
District Court approved the consent decree. On October 21, 2009, the Sierra Club filed with the U.S. District Court a
motion for enforcement of the consent decree based on the Sierra Club’s interpretation of the consent decree that
would require certain NOx emissions that DP&L has been excluding from its computations to be included for
purposes of complying with the emission targets and reporting requirements of the consent decree. DP&L believed
that it was properly computing and reporting NOx emissions under the consent decree, but participated in settlement
discussions with the Sierra Club. A proposed settlement was agreed to by both parties, approved by the Judge and
then filed into the official record on July 13, 2010. The settlement amends the Consent Decree and sets forth a more
detailed and clear methodology to compute NOx emissions during start-up and shut-down periods. There were no
cash payments under the terms of this settlement. The revision is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L’s
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future.
Notices of Violation Invelving Co-Chwned Plants
In November 1999, the USEPA filed civil complaints and NOVs against operators and owners of certain generation
facilities for alleged violations of the CAA. Generation units operated by Duke Energy (Beckjord Unit 6) and CSP
(Conesville Unit 4) and co-owned by DP&L were referenced in these actions. Numerous northeast states have filed
complaints or have indicated that they will be joining the USEPA’s action against Duke Energy and CSP. Although
DP &L was not identified in the NOV', civil complaints or state actions, the results of such proceedings could
materially affect DP&L’s co-owned plants.
In June 2000, the USEPA. issued a NOV to the DP&L-operated J.M. Stuart generating station {co-owned by DP&L,
Duke Energy, and CSP) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations consistent with NOVs
and complaints that the USEPA had recently brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the Midwest. The
NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio SIP; or
(2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each violation. To
date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this matter.
In December 2007, the Ohio EPA issued a NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station {co-owned by
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOVs alleged deficiencies in the continuous
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no further
actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA.
On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received a NOV and a Finding of
Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio State Implementation Program (SIP)
and permits for the Station in areas including SOz, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV with
similar allegations was issued on November 4, 2010. DP&L is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and
could be affected by the eventual resolution of these matters. Duke Energy Ohio Ine. is expected to act on behalf of
itself and the co-owners with respect to these matters. DP&L is unable to predict the cutcome of these matters.
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Qther Issues Involving Co-Owned Plants

In 2006, DP&L detected a malfunction with its emission monitoring systern at the DP&L-operated Killen
generating station {co-owned by DP&L and Duke Energy) and ultimately determined its SOz and NOx emissions
data were under reported. DP&L has petitioned the USEPA to accept an alternative methodology for calculating
actual emissions for 2005 and the first quarter of 2006. DP&L has sufficient allowances in its general account to
cover the understatement. Management does not believe the ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material
impact on results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Notices of Violation Involving Whollv-Owned Plants

In 2007, the Ohio EPA and the USEPA issued NOVs to DP&L for alleged violations of the CAA at the O.H.
Hutchings Station. The NOVs” alleged deficiencies relate to stack opacity and particulate emissions. Discussions are
under way with the USEPA, the U.S. Department of Justice and Ohio EPA. DP&L has provided data to those
agencies regarding its maintenance expenses and operating results. On December 15, 2008, DP&L received a
request from the USEPA for additional documentation with respect to those issues and other CAA issues including
issues relating to capital expenses and any changes in capacity or output of the units at the O.H. Hutchings Station.
During 2009, DR&L continued to submit various other operational and performance data to the USEPA in
compliance with its request. DP&L is currently unable to determine the timing, costs or method by which the issues
may be resolved and continues to work with the USEPA on this issue.

On November 18, 2009, the USEPA issued a NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR violations of the CAA at the O.H.
Hutchings Station relating to capital projects performed in 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not
believe that the two projects described in the NOV were modifications subject to NSR. DP&L is unable to
determine the timing, costs or method by which these issues may be resolved and continues to work with the
USEPA on this issue.

Regulation Matters Related to Water Quality

Clean Water Act — Regulation of Water Intake

On July 9, 2004, the USEPA issued final rules pursuant to the Clean Water Act governing existing facilities that
have cooling water intake structures. The rules require an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. A number of parties appealed the rules to the Federal Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit in New York and the Court issued an opinion on January 25, 2007 remanding several
aspects of the rule to the USEPA for reconsideration. Several parties petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court for review
of the lower court decision. On April 14, 2008, the Supreme Court elected to review the lower court decision on the
issue of whether the USEPA can compare costs with benefits in determining the best technology available for
minimizing adverse environmental impact at cooling water intake structures. Briefs were submitted to the Court in
the summer of 2008 and oral arguments were held in December 2008. In April 2009, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled
that the USEPA did have the authority to compare costs with benefits in determining best technology available. The
USEPA is developing proposed regulations and anticipates proposing requirements by March 2011 with final rules
in place by mid-2012.

Clean Water Act — Regulation of Water Discharge

On May 4, 2004, the Ohic EPA issued a final National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit (the Permit)
for J.M. Stuart Station that continued our authority to discharge water from the station into the Ohio River. During
the three-year term of the Permit, we conducted a thermal discharge study to evaluate the technical feasibility and
economic reasonableness of water cooling methods other than cooling towers. In December 2006, we submitted an
application for the renewal of the Permit that was due o expire on June 30, 2007. In July 2007, we received a draft
permit proposing to continue our authority to discharge water from the station into the Ohio River. On February 3,
2008, we received a letter from the Ohio EPA indicating that they intended to impose a compliance schedule as part
of the final Permit, that requires us to implement one of two diffuser options for the discharge of water from the
station into the Ohio River as identified in the thermal discharge study. Subsequently, representatives from DP&L
and the Ohio EPA agreed to allow DP&L. to restrict public access to the water discharge area as an alternative to
installing one of the diffuser options. Ohio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on November 12,
2008. In December 2008, the USEPA requested that the Ohio EPA provide additional information regarding the
thermal discharge in the draft permit. In June 2009, DP&L provided information to the USEPA in response to their
request to the Ohio EPA. In September 2010, the USEPA formally objected to a revised Permit provided by Ohio
EPA due to questions regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. In December 2010, DP&L requested a
public hearing on the objection, which USEPA has agreed to conduct. If a public hearing is held, it is anticipated
that it would be scheduled in the second half of 2011. We are attempting to resolve this issue with both the USEPA
and Ohio EPA. The timing for issuance of a final permit is uncertain.
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In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it will be revising technology-based regulations governing water
discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information via an
industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. Subsequent to the
information collection effort, it is anticipated that the USEPA will release a proposed rule by mid-2012 with a final
regulation in place by early 2014. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its
operations.
Regulation Matters Related to Land Use and Solid Waste Disposal
Regulation of Waste Disposal
In September 2002, DP&L and other parties veceived a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP for
the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. Tn August 2005, DP&L and other
parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study
{RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In Qctober 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter inviting it
to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with respect to that
notice or PRP status, However, on August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order requiring that
access to DP&L’s service center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be given to the
USEPA and the existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site’s contamination as well as to
assess whether certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater
to the landfill site. DP&L. has granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of monitoring wells
occurred in late 2009 and early 2010. DP&L believes the chemicals used at its service center building site were
appropriately disposed of and have not contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. On
May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP group, Hobart Corporation, Kelsey-Hayes Company and NCR
Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against
DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that DP&L and the other defendants contributed to the
contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and seeking reimbursement of the PRP group’s costs
associated with the investigation and remediation of the site. DP&L filed a motion to dismiss the complaint and
intends to vigorously defend against any claim that it has any (inancial responsibility to remediate conditions at the
fandfill site. On February 10, 2011, the Court dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that
chemicals used by DP&L at its service center contributed to the landfill site’s contamination. The Court, however,
did not dismiss claims alleging financial responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from
DP&L that were allegedly directly delivered by truck to the landfill. While DP&L is unable to predict the outcome
of these matters, if DP&L were required to contribute 10 the clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse
effect on us.
In December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP for
the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does not
demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of
this matter, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect
on us.
On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (ANPRM) announcing that it
is reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls
{PCB). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is seeking information from potentially
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material effect on DP&L. At present, DP&L is
unable to predict the impact this initiative will have on its operations.
Regulation of Ash Ponds
During 2008, a major spill cccurred at an ash pond owned by the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) as a result of a
dike failure. The spill generated a significant amount of national news coverage, and support for tighter regulations
for the storage and handling of coal combustion products. DP&L has ash ponds at the Killen, O.H. Hutchings and
JM. Stuart Stations which it operates, and also at generating stations operated by others but in which DP&L has an
ownership interest.
During March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash
pond facilities across the country, including those at Killen and J.M. Stuart Stations. Subsequently, the USEPA
collected similar information for O.H. Hutchings Station. In October 2009, the USEPA conducted an inspection of
the J.M. Stuart Station ash ponds. In March 2010, the USEPA issued a final report from the inspection including
recommendations relative to the J.M. Stuart Station ash ponds. In May 2010, DP&L responded to the USEPA final
inspection report with our plans to address the recommendations.
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Similarly, in August 2010, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the O.H. Hutchings Station ash ponds. The draft
report relating to the inspection was received in November 2010 and DP&L provided comments on the draft report
in December 2010. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome this inspection will have on its operations.

In addition, as a result of the TV A ash pond spill, there has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion
byproducts under the Resource Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a
proposed rule seeking comments on two options under consideration for the regulation of coal combustion products
including regulating the material as a hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA
Subtitle D. DP&L is unable to predict the financial impact of this regulation, but if coal combustion byproducts are
regulated as hazardous waste, it is expected to have a material adverse impact on operations.

Legal and Other Matters

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit against a coal supplier seeking damages incurred due to the supplier’s
failure to supply approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two jointly owned plants under a coal supply agreement,
of which approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L’s share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to meet its needs.
The supplier has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptey proceedings in which DP&L is participating
as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this matter. DP&L has not
recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit.

On May 16, 2007, DPL filed a claim with Energy Insurance Mutual (EIM}) to recoup legal costs associated with our
litigation against certain former executives. On February 15, 2010, after having engaged in both mediation and
arbitration, DPL and EIM entered into a settlement agreement resolving all coverage issues and finalizing all
obligations in connection with the clain, under which DPL received $3.4 million (net of associated expenses).

As a member of PJM, DP&L is also subject to charges and costs associated with PIM operations as approved by the
FERC. FERC Orders issued in 2007 and thereafier regarding the allocation of costs of large transmission facilities
within PIM, could result in additional costs being allocated to DP&L of approximately $12 million or more
annually by 2012. DP&L filed a notice of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals, D.C. Circuit which was consolidated
with other appeals taken by other interested parties of the same FERC Orders and the consolidated cases were
assigned to the 7w Cirenit. On August 6, 2009, the 7w Circuit ruled that the FERC had failed to provide a reasoned
basis for the allocation method it had approved. Rehearings were filed by other interested litigants and denied by the
Court, which then remanded the matter to the FERC for further proceedings. On January 21, 2010, the FERC issued
a procedural order on remand establishing a paper hearing process under which PJM will make an informational
filing in late February, Subsequently PJM and other parties, including DP&L, filed initial comments, testimony, and
recommendations and reply comments. FERC did not establish a deadline for its issuance of a substantive order and
the matter is still pending. DP&L cannot predict the timing or the likely outcome of the proceeding. Until such time
as FERC may act to approve a change in methodology, PIM will continue to apply the allocation methodology that
had been approved by FERC in 2007. Although we continue to maintain that these costs should be borne by the
beneficiaries of these projects and that DP&L is not one of these beneficiaries, any new credits or additional costs
resulting from the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will be reflected in DP&L’s TCRR rider which already
includes these costs.

In connection with DP&L and other utilities joining PYM, in 2006 the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective December 1, 2004 through March 31, 2006,
subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&L was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but
received a net benefit from these transitional payments. A hearing was held and an initial decision was issued in
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supports DP&L’s and
other utilities’ position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system during the
timeframe stated above. DP&L, along with other transmission owners in PJM and the Midwest Independent System
Operator (MISO) made a compliance filing at FERC on August 19, 2010 that fully demonstrated all payment
obligations to and from all parties within PIM and the MISO. The FERC has made no ruling regarding the
compliance filing and some parties have requested rehearing by FERC of its May 21, 2010 order. Tt is expected that
any order on the compliance filing and any order regarding the rehearing request will be appealed for Court review.
Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered inio a significant number of bi-lateral settlement agreements
with certain parties to resolve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by the final decision. Further, in
October 2010, DP&L entered into another settlement agreement 1o settle a portion of SECA amounts still owed to
DP&L. With respect to unsettled claims, DP&L management believes it has deferred as a regulatory liability the
appropriate amounts that are subject to refund (see SECA net revenue subject to refund within Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financiai Statements) and therefore the results of this proceeding are not expected to have a material
adverse effect on DP&L’s results of operations.
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NERC is a FERC-certified electric reliability organization responsible for developing and enforcing mandatory
reliability standards including Critical Infrastructure Protection (CIP) reliability standards, across eight reliability
regions. In June 2009, ReliabilityFirst Corporation (RFC), with responsibilities assigned to it by NERC over the
reliability region that includes DP&I., commenced a routine audit of DP&L’s operations. The audit, which was for
the period June 18, 2007 to June 25, 2009, evaluated DP&L.’s compliance with 42 requirements in 18 NERC-
reliability standards. DP&L is currently subject to a compliance audit at a minimurmn of once every three years as
provided by the NERC Rules of Procedure. This audit was concluded in June 2009 and its findings revealed that
DP&L had some Possible Alleged Violations (PAVs) associated with five NERC Reliability requirements of
various Standards. In response to the report, DP&L filed mitigation plans with RFC/NERC to address the PAVs.
These mitigation plans were accepted by RFC/NERC. In July 2010, DP&L negotiated a settlement with NERC
wherein DP&L agreed to pay an immaterial amount in exchange for a resolution of all issues and obligations
relating to the aforementioned PAVs. The settlement was approved on January 21, 2011 by the FERC.
17. Business Segments
During 2010, DPL began operating through two segments consisting of the operations of two of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, DP&L (Utility segment) and DPLER (Competitive Retail segment). Initiatives taken by state
legislative bodies combined with changes in the market price of electricity have significantly impacted the manner
in which electric utilities in certain parts of the United States, including Ohio, have traditionally conducted business.
This has resulted in, among other things, a more competitive electricity marketplace. Accordingty, DPL increased
its resources to participate in the more competitive retail electric service market. DPL believes that these reportable
segments are consistent with how our management views its business and makes decisions on how to allocate
resources and evaluate performance. Segment financial information for the periods 2009 and 2008 has been
presented to conform to the 2010 disclosures, as required by GAAP.
The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L’s electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which
generate and seli electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers. Electricity for the
segment’s 24-county service area is primarily generated at eight coal-fired power plants and is distributed to more
than 500,000 retail customers who are located in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. DP&L also sells
electricity to DPLER and any excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale market. DP&L’s transmission
and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state regulators while rates for its generation
business are deemed competitive under Ohio law.
The Competitive Retail segment is comprised of DPLER’s competitive retail electric service business which sells
retail electric energy under contract primarily to commercial and industrial customers who have selected DPLER as
their alternative electric supplier. The Competitive Retail segment sells electricity to approximately 9,000 customers
currently located throughout Ohio. Due to increased competition in Ghic, during 2010 we increased the number of
employees and resources assigned to manage DPLER and increased its marketing to customers. The Competitive
Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L. During 2010, we
implemented a new wholesale agreement between DP&L and DPLER, Under this agreement, intercompany sales
from DP&L to DPLER were based on the market prices for wholesale power. In periods prior to 2010, DPLER’s
purchases from DP&L were transacted at prices that approximated DPLER’s sales prices to its end-use retail
customers. The Competitive Retail segment has no transmission or generation assets.
Included within Other are cther businesses that do not meet the GAAP requirements for disclosure as reportable
segments as well as certain corporate costs which include interest expense on DPL’s debt.
Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin. The accounting policies of the reportable
segiments are the same as those described in Note 1 — Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
Intersegment sales and profits are eliminated in consolidation.
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The following table presents financial information for each of DPL’s reportable business segments:

Adjustments
Competitive and PPL

$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2010 ' S : o R
Revenues from external customers 1,5520 % 2770 % 541 % — $ 1,883.1
Intersegment revenues 2385 — 45 - (243.0) L=

Total revenues 1,7905 § 2770 % 586 % (243.0) § 1,883.1
Purchased power 3835 2385 39 {238.5) 3874
(Gross margin 1,035.1 38.5 42,7 (4.5) 1,111.8
Depreciation and amortization 130.7 0.2 85 — 1394
Interest expense © 371 o 335 — C 0.6
Income tax expense {benefit) 1352 10.5 2.7 — 143.0
Net income {loss) 2777 . 188 - {3.5) ST 290.3
Total assets 34754 35.7 3022 - Co— 0 73,8133
Capital expenditures 148.2 —_ 32 — 1514
Year Ended December 31, 2609
Revenues from external customers - 1,4856 § 655 $° 378 § — § 1,5889
Intersegment revenues 64.8 — 3.8 (68.6) —

Total revenues i,5504 § 655 % 416 § (68:6) §- 15889
Purchased power 2592 - 64.8 1.0 64.8). 260.2
Gross margin _ 967.6 0.7 33.7 367 998.3
Depreciation and amortization 135.5 0.1 9.9 — 1455
Interest expense 38.5 — 44.5 — 83.0
Income tax expense (benefit) 1245 {0.8) {112) —_— 1125
Net income (loss) 2589 2.7 L4 5.7 229.1
Total assets 3,457.4 6.6 177.7 — 3,641.7
Capital expenditures 144.0 -— 13 — - 1453
Year Ended December 31, 2008 : S Do :
Revenues from external customers 14223 § 1508 § 285 % — $ 16016
Intersegment revennes 1506 . — 6.4 L)

Total revenues 1,5729 % 1508 $ 349 % (157.0) § 16016
Purchased power 379.9 150.6 0.1 (153.3) 377.3
Gross margin 961.6 0.2 23.1 (3.7 9812
Depreciation and amortization 127.8 0.2 9.7 — 1377
Interest expense ' U365 — 54.2 — . 90.7
Income tax expense (benefit) 120.2 0.6 (17.9) — 102.9
Net income (loss) ' 2858 1.9 - (37.6) (56).. 2445
Total assets 33977 13.5 2258 e © 3,6370.
Capital expenditures 2254 — 24 — 2278
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18. Subsequent Events

Contingent Redemption of DPL-Capital Trust IT Securities

On January 26, 2011, DPL signed an agreement with a third party to acquire $122.1 million of outstanding DPL
Capital Trust H 8.125% trust preferred securities. The sale to DPL is contingent upon the third party’s ability to
acquire the trust preferred securifies.

In the event the third party is successful in acquiring the trust preferred securities, it has agreed to sell the trust
preferred securities to DPL for a price of $134.3 million, plus any interest accrued through the date of closing. The
closing is expected to occur on or before February 25, 2011. If this transaction closes, DPL expects to record a net
loss on the reacquisition of the securities in the amount of approximately $15.3 million ($10.2 million net of tax) in
the first quarter of 2011. Interest savings from the redemption of these securities are expected to be approximately
$8.4 million ($5.6 million net of tax) for the remainder of 2011. DPL expects to finance this transaction using a
combination of cash on hand and proceeds from the intended sale of some of its short-term investments.

In the event the third party is not able to acquire these securities, DPL will have no obligation to purchase these
securities and will continue to carry these trust preferred securities as a long-term obligation on its Consolidated
Balance Sheets,

19. Selected Quarterly Information (Unaudiied)

DPL
For the three months ended
$ in millions except per share amount Mairch 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
and common stock market price 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2609 2010 2009
Revenues - : T § 45128 4150 § 4455 § 3612 §.5169 $ 4073 ' § 4695 $ 4054
Operating income $ 1260 $ 1270 $ 1093 $ 819 § 1446 § 1165 § 1245 § 1028
Net income L © % 7103 692 % 614 %5 421 % 864 % 679 % 715 % 499
Eamings per share of common S S
stock: o . ‘ ‘ e
Basic $ 061 3% 062 3% 053 % 038 8 0758 060 % 062 § 043
Diluted : $ 061 83 0618 053 § 037 § 0.74 § 0359 $ 0.62 $ 043
Dividends declared and paid per . . . . - ; -
share ‘ . $0.3025° $0.2850 $0.3025 $0._2850 ‘$0.3025 $072850 $0.3025 $0:2850
Common stock market S T ; L
price . - : -High $ 28.47 § 2328 § 28.18 § 2346 § 2665 % 2653 % 27.51 § 28.68
-Low $ 2651 § 1927 § 2380 $ 21.18 § 2395 § 2279 § 2533 § 2516
DP&L
For the three months ended
March 31, June 348, September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues $ 438.0 § 403.6 § 4239 $ 3519 § 4870 $ 3982 § 4416 § 396.7
Operating income $ 1184 $ 1248 § 970 35 789 $ 1319 § 1152 § 1029 § 103.0
Net income _ $ 721 % 770 %8 594 % 468'S 832 % 740 $ 6303 6I1
Earnings on common stock $ 719§ 768 8 592 % 466 $ 830 § 738 § 627 § 608
Dividends paid on common stock =~ ' : R T
. o parent E ] 'S 90.0 § 1750 § 600 $ 450 8 — § 50.0 $ 1500 % 550
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
DPL Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of DPL Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related Consolidated Statements of Results of Operations, Shareholders’
Equity and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010. In connection with
our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have audited the consolidated financial statement schedule,
“Schedule I — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.” We also have audited the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in fnternal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, the financial statement schedule,
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, inciuded in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements, the
financial statement schedule, and an opinion on the Company’s internat control over financial reporting based on our
audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemients in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatemenis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. Also
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
fs{ KPMG LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 17, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholder
The Dayton Power and Light Company:
We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheets of The Dayton Power and Light Company (DP&L) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related Statements of Results of Operations, Shareholder’s Equity and Cash
Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010. In connection with our audits of the
financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule, “Schedule I — Valuation and
Qualifying Accounts.” These financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of
DP&L.’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and the financial
statement schedule based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
" (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overali
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of DP&L as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

February 17, 2011
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Item 9 — Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A — Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) are responsible for establishing and
maintaining our disclosure controls and procedures. These controls and procedures were designed to ensure that
material information relating to us and our subsidiaries are communicated to the CEO and CFO. We evaluated these
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report with the participation of our
CEQ and CFO. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure contrels and procedures
are effective: (i) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms; and (it) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we submit under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal period
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting,
The following report is our report on internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Firancial Reporting
We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term
is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of management,
including the CEO and CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on an evaluation under the framework in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework, we concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2010,
Qur internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, has been audited by KPMG LLP, the
independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements contained herein, as stated in
their report which is included herein.
Item 9B — Other Information
None.
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PART 111
Item 10 — Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item with respect to Directors and Executive Officers of
DPL wili be set forth under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Executive Officers” in DPL’s proxy statement
{the Proxy Statement)} to be furnished to shareholders in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our Board of
Directors for use at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2011 and is incorporated
herein by reference.
The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item for DPL with respect to Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance, the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee financial expert and the registrant’s
code of ethics will be set forth under in the “Corporate Governance™ section in the Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11 — Executive Compensation
The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item for DPL will be set forth under the captions
“Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A)” and “Compensation Committee
Report on Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12 — Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters
The information required to be furnished pursnant to this item for DPL will be set forth under the captions “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners,” “Security Ownership of Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information reguired 1o be furnished pursuant to this item for DPL will be set forth under the caption “Related
Person Transactions™ and “Independence” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 14 — Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item for DPL will be set forth under the caption “Audit
and Non-Audit Fees” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. ;

Accountant Fees and Services

The following table presents the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered to DPL and DP&L by
KPMG LLP for 2010 and 2009. Other than as set forth below, no professional services were rendered or fees billed
by KPMG LLP during 2010 and 2009,

KPMG LLP 2010 Fees Billed 2009 Fees Billed
Audit Fees (1) ' -8 1269200 § - 1,394,680
Audit-Related Fees (2} . 40,000 46,000
Tax Fees (3) o 930 7,870
All Other Fees (4) 15,000 —
Total . s e ; s 1,325,130 - '$ 1,448,550

{1)Audit fees relate to professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements and the
reviews of our quarterly financial statements.

(2)Audit-related fees relate to services rendered to us for assurance and related services.

(3)Tax fees consisted principally of tax compliance services. Tax compliance services are services rendered based
upon facts already in existence or transactions that have already occurred to document, compute, and obtain
government approval for amounts to be included in tax filings.

{4)Other fees relate to services rendered under an agreed upon procedure engagement related to environmental
studies.
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PART IV
Ttem 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Pagc No.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements
DPL - Consolidated Statements of Results of Operations for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31, 2010 74
DPL - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three vears in the period ended

December 31, 2010 75
DPL - Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 76
DPL - Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31, 2010 78
DP&L - Consolidated Statements of Results of Operations for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31. 2010 79
DP&L - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three vears in the period ended

December 31. 2010 80
DP&L - Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 81
DP&L - Consolidated Statement of Shareholder’s Equity for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31, 2010 ‘ %3
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 84
DPL - Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 150
DP&L - Report of Independent Registered Public. Accounting Firm 151

2. Financial Statement Schedule

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010:

Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 167
The information required to be submitted in Schedules I, III, TV and V is omitted as not applicable or not required
under rules of Regulation §-X.
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3.Exhibits

DPL and DP&L. exhibits are incorporated by reference as described unless otherwise filed as set forth herein.
The exhibits filed as part of DPL’s and DP&L’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, respectively, are:

Exhibit

Location(1)

DPL Inc. DP&L Number
X 3(a)
X 3(b)
X 3(c)
X 3(d)
X X 4(a)
X X 4(b)
X X 4(c)
X X 4d)
X X 4(e)

Amended Articles of Incorporation of
DPL Inc., as of September 25, 2001

Amended Regulations of DPL Inc., as
of April 27, 2007

Amended Articles of Incorporation of
The Dayton Power and Light
Company, as of Jannary 4, 1991
Regulations of The Dayton Power and
Light Company, as of April 9, 1981

Composite Indenture dated as of
October 1, 1935, between The Dayton
Power and Light Company and Irving
Trust Company, Trustee with all
amendments through the Twenty-
Ninth Supplemental Indenture
Forty-First Supplemental Indenture
dated as of February 1, 1999, between
The Dayton Power and Light
Company and The Bank of New York,
Trustee
Forty-Second Supplemental Indenture
dated as of September 1, 2003,
between The Dayton Power and Light
Company and The Bank of New York,
Trustee
Forty-Third Supplemental Indenture
dated as of August 1, 2005, between
The Dayton Power and Light
Company and The Bank of New York,
Trustee .
Rights Agreement dated September
25,2001 between DPL Inc. and
Equiserve Trust Company, N.A.
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Exhibit 3 to Report on Form 10-K/A
for the year ended December 31,
2001 (File No. 1-9052)

Exhibit 3(b) to Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31,
2007 (File No. 1-9052)

Exhibit 3(b) to Repott on Form 10-
K/A for the year ended December
31, 1991 (File No. 1-2385)

Exhibit 3(a) to Report on Form 8-K
filed on May 3, 2004 (File No. 1-
2385)

Exhibit 4(z) to Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31,
1985 (File No. 1-2385)

Exhibit 4(m) to Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31,
1998 (File No. 1-2385)

Exhibit 4(r) to Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31,
2003 (File No. 1-9052)

Exhibit 4.4 1o Report on Form 8-K
filed August 24, 2005 (File No. 1-
2385)

Exhibit 4 to Report on Form 8-K
filed September 28, 2001 (File No.
1-9052)
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Exhibit

DPL Inc. DP&L Number Exhibit Location(1)

X 4(f) Securities Purchase Agreement dated  Exhibit 99(b) to Schedule TO-I filed
as of February 1, 2000 by and among  February 4, 2000 (File No. 1-9052)
DPL Inc., and DPL Capital Trust I,
Dayton Ventures LLC and Dayton
Ventures, Inc. and certain exhibits
thereto

X 4(g) Amendment to Securities Purchase Exhibit 4(g) to Report on Form 10-
Agreement dated as of February 24, K for the year ended December 31,
2000 among DPL Inc., DPL Capital 2005 (File No. 1-9052)
Trust I, Dayton Ventures LLC and
Dayton Ventures, Inc.

X 4(h) Form of Warrant to Purchase Common  Exhibit 4(h} to Report on Form 10-
Shares of DPL Inc. K for the year ended December 31,

2005 (File No. 1-9052)

X 40 Securityholders and Registration Exhibit 4(i} to Report on Form 10-K
Rights Agreement dated as of March for the year ended December 31,
13, 2000 among DPL Inc., DPL 2005 (File No. 1-9052)
Capital TrustT, Dayton Ventures LLC
and Dayton Ventures, Inc.

X 44) Amendment to Securityholders and Exhibit 4(j) to Report on Form 10-K
Registration Rights Agreement, dated  for the year ended December 31,
August 24, 2001 among DPL Inc., 2005 (File No. 1-9052)
DPL Capital Trust I, Dayton Ventures
LLC and Dayton Ventures, Inc.

X 4(k) Amendment to Securityholders and Exhibit 4(k) to Report on Form 10-
Registration Rights Agreement, dated K for the year ended December 31,
December 6, 2004 among DPL Inc., 2003 (File No. 1-9052)
DPL Capital Trust I, Dayton Ventures
LLC and Dayton Ventures, Inc.

X 4(1) Amendment to Securityholders and Exhibit 4(j) to Report on Form 10-K
Registration Rights Agreement, dated  for the year ended December 31,
as of January 12, 2005 among DPL 2005 (File No. 1-9052)
Inc., DPL Capital Trust I, Dayton
Ventures LLLC and Dayton Ventures,
Inc

X 4(m) Indenture dated as of March 1, 2000 Exhibit 4(b} to Registration

between DPL Inc. and Bank One Trust

Company, National Association
157

Statement No. 333-37972
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DPL Inc. DP&L Number Exhibit Location(l)

X 4(n) Exchange and Registration Rights Exhibit 4(a) to Registration
Agreement dated as of August 24, Statement No. 333-74568
2001 between DPL Inc., Morgan
Stanley & Co. Incorporated, Bank One
Capital Markets, Inc., Fleet Securities,
Inc. and NatCity Investments, Inc.

X 4(0) Officer’s Certificate of DPL Inc. Exhibit 4(c) to Registration
establishing exchange notes, dated Statement No. 333-74568
August 31,2001

X 4(p) Indenture dated as of August 31, 2001  Exhibit 4(a) to Registration
between DPL Inc. and The Bank of Statement No. 333-74630
New York, Trustee

X 4(q) First Supplemental Indenture dated as  Exhibit 4(b) to Registration
of August 31, 2001 between DPL Inc.  Statement No. 333-74630
and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee

X 4(r) Amended and Restated Trust Exhibit 4(c) to Registration
Agreement dated as of August 31, Statement No. 333-74630 !
2001 among DPL Inc., The Bank of
New York, The Bank of New York
(Delaware), the administrative trustees
named therein, and several Holders as
defined therein

X 4(s) Forty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture  Exhibit 4(s) to Report on Form 10-K

dated as of September 1, 2006 for the year ended December 31,
between the Bank of New York, 2009 (File No. 1-2385)
Trustee and The Dayton Power and
Light Company

X 4(0) Exchange and Registration Rights Exhibit 4(d) to Registration
Agreement dated as of August 24, Statement No. 333-74630
2001 among DPL Inc., DPL Capital
Trust II and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated

X X 4(u) Forty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture Exhibit 4(x) to Report on Form 10-

dated as of December 1, 2008 between
The Bank of New York Mellon,
Trustee and The Dayton Power and
Light Company
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K for the year ended December 31,
2008 (File No. 1-2385)
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Exhibit

DPL Ing¢. DP&L Number Exhibit Location(1)

X X 10¢a)* The Dayton Power and Light Exhibit 10(a) to Report on Form 10-
Company Directors” Deferred Stock K for the year ended December 31,
Compensation Plan, as amended 2000 (File No. 1-9052)
through December 31, 2000

X X 10(b)* The Dayton Power and Light Exhibit 10(b) to Report on Form 10-
Company 1991 Amended Directors’ K for the year ended December 31,
Deferred Compensation Plan, as 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
amended and restated through
December 31, 2007

X X 10{c)y* The Dayton Power and Light Exhibit 10(c) to Report on Form 10-
Company Management Stock K for the year ended December 31,
Incentive Plan as amended and 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
restated through December 31, 2007

X X 10(d)* The Dayton Power and Light Exhibit 10(d) to Report on Form 10-
Company Key Employees Deferred K. for the year ended December 31,
Compensation Plan, as amended 2000 (File No. 1-9052)
through December 31, 2000

X X 10(e)* Amendment No. 1 to The Dayton Exhibit 10(g) to Report on Form 10-
Power and Light Company Key K for the year ended December 31,
Employees Deferred Compensation 2005 (File No. 1-9052)
Plan, as amended through December
31, 2000, dated as of December 7,
2004

X X 10(f)* The Dayton Power and Light Exhibit 10(f) to Report on Form 10-
Company Supplemental Executive K for the year ended December 31,
Retirement Plan, as amended February 2009 (File No. 1-9052)
1, 2000

X X 10(g)* Amendment No. 1 to The Daytion Exhibit 10(i) to Report on Form 10-
Power and Light Company K for the year ended December 31,
Supplemental Executive Retirement 2005 (File No. 1-9052)
Plan, as amended through February 1,
2000 and dated as of December 7,
2004

X 10(h)* DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan Exhibit 10(f) to Report cn Form 10-

K for the year ended December 31,
2000 (File No. 1-9052)
X 10()* 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of Exhibit 10(aa) to Report on Form

DPL Inc.

159

10-X for the year ended December
31, 2003 (File No. 1-9052)
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Exhihit

DPL Inc. DP&L Number Exhibit Location{1)

X X 10(* Suinmary of Executive Medical Exhibit 10(m} to Report on Form
Insurance Plan 10-K for the year ended December

31, 2005 (File No. 1-9052)

X 10(k)* DPL Inc. Executive Incentive Exhibit 10(1) to Report on Form 10-
Compensation Plan, as amended and K for the year ended December 31,
restated through December 31, 2007 2007 (File No. 1-9052)

X Lo(1)* DPL Inc. 2006 Equity and Exhibit 10(m) to Report on Form
Performance [ncentive Plan as 10-K for the vear ended December
amended and restated through 31, 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
December 31, 2007

X 10(m)* Form of DPL Inc. Amended and Exhibit 10(n) to Report on Form 10-
Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan - K for the year ended December 31,
Performance Shares Agreement 2007 (File No. 1-9052)

X 10(n)* DPL Inc. Severance Pay and Change  Exhibit 10(o) to Report on Form 10-
of Control Plan, as amended and K for the year ended December 31,
restated through December 31, 2007 2007 (File No. 1-9052)

X 10{0)* DPL Inc. Supplemental Executive Exhibit 10(p} to Report on Form 10-
Defined Contribution Retirement Plan, K for the year ended December 31,
as amended and restated through 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
December 31, 2007

X 10(p)* DPL Inc. 2006 Deferred Exhibit 10(q) to Report on Form 10-
Compensation Plan For Executives, as K for the year ended December 31,
amended and restated through 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
December 31, 2007

X 10(g)* DPL Inc. Pension Restoration Plan, as  Exhibit 10(r) to Report on Form 10-
amended and restated through K for the year ended December 31,
December 31, 2007 2007 (File No. 1-9052)

X X 10(r)* Participation Agreement dated August  Exhibit 10(s) to Report on Form 10-
2, 2007 among DPL Inc., The Dayton K for the year ended December 31,
Power and Light Company and Teresa 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
F. Marrinan

X X 10 (s)* Participation Agreement dated March  Exhibit 10(t) to Report on Form 10-

27, 2007 among DPL Inc., The Dayton
Power and Light Company and Scott
J. Kelly
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K for the year ended December 31,
2007 (File No. 1-9052)
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Exhibit

DPL Inc. DE&L Number Exhibit Location{1}

X X 10(t)* Participation Agreement and Waiver  Exhibit 10{u) to Report on Form 10-
dated February 27, 2006 among DPL. K for the year ended December 31,
Inc., The Dayton Power and Light 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
Company and Gary G. Stephenson

X X 10 (u)* Participation Agreement dated January Exhibit 10(x) to Report on Form 10-
13, 2007 among DPL Inc., The Dayton K for the year ended December 31,
Power and Light Company and Daniel 2007 (File No. 1-9052)
J. McCabe

X 10(v)¥ Management Stock Option Agreement Exhibit 10{cc) to Report on Form
dated as of January 1, 2001 between 10-K for the vear ended December
DPL Inc. and Arthur G. Meyer 31, 2005 (File No. 1-9052)

X X 10(w)* Participation Agreement and Waiver Exhibit 10{w) to Report on Form
dated March 6, 2006 among DPL Inc., 10-K for the year ended December
The Dayton Power and Light 31, 2009 (File No. 1-9052)
Company and Arthur G. Meyer, dated
March 6, 2006

X X 10(x)* Participation Agreement dated Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed
September 8, 2006 among DPL Inc., September 8, 2006 (File No. 1-9052)
The Dayton Power and Light
Company and Paul M. Barbas

X X 10(y)* Participation Agreement dated June Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed July
30, 2006 among DPL Inc., The Dayton 3, 2006 (File No, 1-9052)
Power and Light Company and
Frederick J. Boyle

X 10(z)* Letier Agreement between DPL Inc. Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed June

and Glenn E. Harder, dated June 20,
2006
161

21, 2006 (File No. 1-9052)
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DPL Ine. DP&L

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit

Location(1)

X X

10(aa)

10(bb)

10{cc)*

10(dd)y*

10{ee)*

10(i0)*

10(gg)*

10(hh)*

10(iiy*

Credit Agreement, dated as of November
21, 2006 among The Dayton Power and
Light Company, KeyBank National
Association and certain lending institutions,
and Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement,
dated as of April 9, 2009

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 21,
2009 by and among The Dayton Power and
Light Company and the lenders party thereto
and PNC Bank, National Association

Form of DPL Inc. Amended and Restated
Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock
Units Agreement

DPL Inc. 2006 Deferred Compensation Plan
for Non-Employee Directors, as amended
and restated through December 31, 2007

Separation Agreement dated as of
September 17, 2010, by and between DPL
Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light
Company and Douglas C. Taylor
Restricted Stock Agreement dated May 6,
2008 by and between DPL Tnc. and Paul M.
Barbas

Form of DPL Inc. Restricted Stock
Agreement

Form of DPL Inc. 2009 Carcer Grant and
Matching Restricted Stock Agreement

Participation Agreement dated May 18,
2009, among DPL Inc., The Dayton Power
and Light Company and Joseph W. Mulpas
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Exhibit 10(aa) to Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 (File No.
1-2385)

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 3-K
filed October 8, 2009 (File
No. 1-2385)

Exhibit 10(uu) to Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007 (File No.
1-9052)

Exhibit 10(v v) to Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007 (File No.
1-9052)

Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010 (File No.
1-9052)

Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K
filed May &, 2008 (File No. 1-
9052)

Exhibit 10(d) to Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2009 (File No.
1-9052)

Exhibit 10(b} to Report on
Form 10-Q} for the quarter
ended September 30, 2009
(File No. 1-9052)

Exhibit 10(c) to Report on
Form 10-QQ for the quarter
ended June 30, 2009 (File No.
1-9052)
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Exhibit

Exhibit

Location(1)

DPL Inc. DP&L Number
X X 10()*
X X 10(kk)*
X X 10{11)*
X X 10(mm)*
X X 21
X 23(a)
X 31(a)
X 31(b)
X 31(c)
X 31(d)
X 32(a)
X 32(b)

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 20,
2010, among the Dayton Power and
Light Company, Bank of America, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent and an L/C
Issuer, PNC Capital Markets, 11.C and
U.S. Bank, National Association, as Co-
Syndication Agents, and the other lenders
party to the Credit Agreement
Participation Agreement dated May 14,
2010, among DPL Inc., The Dayton
Power and Light Company and Bryce W.
Nickel
Participation Agreement dated May 14,
2010, among DPL Inc., The Dayton
Power and Light Company and Kevin W.
Crawford
Participation Agreement dated February
3, 2011, among DPL Inc., The Dayton
Power and Light Company and Craig L.
Jackson
List of Subsidiaries of DPL Inc. and The
Dayton Power and Light Company
Consent of KPMG LLP
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed
April 22, 2010 {File No. 1-2385)

Exhibit 10(b) to Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2010 (File No. 1-9052)
Exhibit 10(c} to Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2010 (File No. 1-9052)

Filed herewith as Exhibit 10(mm)

Filed herewith as Exhibit 21

Filed herewith as Exhibit 23(a)
Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(a)
Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(b)
Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(c)
Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(d)

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(a)

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(b}
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Exhibit
DPL Inc. DP&]L Number Exhibit Location{1)
X 32(c) Certification of Chief Executive Officer  Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(c)
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
X 32(d) Certification of Chief Financial Officer Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(d)
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0of 2002
X X 101.INS XBRL Instance Furnished herewith as Exhibit
101.INS
X X 101.8CH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Furnished herewith as Exhibit
101.SCH
X X 101.CAL XBRI. Taxonomy Extension Calculation  Furnished herewith as Exhibit
Linkbase 101.CAL
X X 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Furnished herewith as Exhibit
Linkbase 101.DEF
X X 101.LAB XBRI. Taxonomy Extension Label Furnished herewith as Exhibit
Linkbase 101.LAB
X X 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Fumished herewith as Exhibit

Linkbase

* Management contract or compensatory plan
Ezxhibits referencing File No. 1-9052 have been filed by DPL Inc. and those referencing File No. 1-2385 have been
filed by The Dayton Power and Light Company.
Pursuant to paragraph (b} (4) (iii) (A) of tem 601 of Regulation S-K, we have not filed as an exhibit to this Form

10-K certain instruments with respect to long-term debt if the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does
not exceed 10% of the total assets of us and our subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, but we hereby agree to furnish
to the SEC on request any such instruments.
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101.PRE
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DPL Inc. and The
Dayton Power and Light Company has duly caused this report to be signed on their behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

DPL Inc.
February 17,2011 By:

/s/ Paul M. Barbas

Paul M. Barbas

President and Chief Executive Officer

{principal executive officer)

The Dayton Power and Light Company
February 17, 2011 By:

/s/ Paul M. Barbas

Paul M. Barbas
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of DPL Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light Company and in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

/s/ P.M. Barbas Director, President and Chief February 16, 2011
(P.M. Barbas) Executive Officer (principal
executive officer)
/s/ R.D. Biggs Director February 16, 2011
(R. D. Biggs)
/s/ P.R. Bishop Director and Vice-Chairman February 16, 2011
(P. R. Bishop)

s/ F F. Gallaher

(F.F. Gallaher)
/s/ B.S. Graham

(B. S. Graham)
/s/ G.E. Harder

(G.E. Harder)
/s/ P.B. Morris

(P.B. Mortris)
/s/ N.J. Sifferlen

(N.J. Sifferlen)
/s/ E.J. Boyle

(F.J. Boyle)

/s/ I.W. Mulpas

(J.W. Mulpas)

Director
Director
Director and Chairman
Director
Director

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer
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Schedule I1
DPL Inc.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended December 31, 2008 - 2010
$ in thousands

Balance at
Beginning Deductioas Balance at
Description of Period Additions (1) End of Period
2010:; o : ' : ’ '
Deducted from accounts receivabie - Provision
for uncollectible accounts $ 1,101 § 4,148 § 4378 § 871
Deducted from deferred tax assets - Valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets 3 11955 § 1,124 § — 13,079
2009
Deducted from accounts receivable - Prov1swn o L o R
for uncollectible accounts : -$ 1,084 % - 5168 -8 5151 % 1,101
Deducted from deferred tax assets - Valuatlon ' L ; ‘ _
_ allowance for deferred tax assets $ 10685 % 1270 § . — 3 11,955
2008: s S ) :
Deducted from accounts receivable - Provision
for uncollectible accounts $ 1,518 $ 4277 § 4711 % 1,084
Deducted from deferred tax assets - Valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets $ 12429 § 1,482 % 3226 % 10,685
(1} Amounts written off, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off.
The Dayton Power and Light Company
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended December 31, 2008 - 2010
$ in thousands
Balance at
Beginning Deductions Balance at
Description of Period Additions (1) End of Period
2010: - ' ‘ el RET )
Deducted from accounts receivable - Provision
for uncollectible accounts $ 1,101 $ 4,100 % 4,369 ' $ 832
Deducted from deferred tax assets - Valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
2009: 7
Deducted from accounts receivable - Prov1smn SRR oL TR S
'for uncollectible accounts S8 . 1,084 % 5,168 % 5151 % ‘1,101
Deducted from deferred tax assets - Valuation - . ' : . s
allowance for deferred tax assets $ —. % — % s == 8% —
Dcducted from accounts receivable - Provision
for uncollectible accounts $ 1,513 § 4277 § 4711 § 1,084
Deducted from deferred tax assets - Valuation
aliowance for deferred tax assets $ 348 % — § 348§ —

(1) Amounis wristen off, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off.
167
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(x) QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2012
OR
{ ) TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission Registrant, State of Incorporation, LR.S. Emplover
File Number Address and Telephone Number ldentification No.
1-9052 DPL INC. 31-1163136
{An Chio Corporation)

1065 Woodman Drive
Dayton, Ghio 45432
937-224-6000
1-2385 THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 31-025847¢
{An Ohio Corporation)
1065 Woodman Drive
Dayton, Ohio 45432
937-224-6000
Indicate by check mark whether each registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter peried that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
DPL Inc. Yes[] No [X]
The Dayton Power and Light Company Yes[] No [X]
(The Dayton Power and Light Company is a voluntary filer that has filed all
applicable reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
in the preceding 12 months. On September 10, 2012, DPL Inc.’s Registration
Statement on form S-4 was declared effective, and thus DPL Inc. is now required to
file reports pursuant to Section 15(d}; however, DPL Inc. has not been subject to
such filing requirement for the past 90 days.)
Indicate by check mark whether each registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).
DPL Inc. Yes [X] No[]
The Dayton Power and Light Company Yes [X] No ]

T

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller
reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Smaller
accelerated Accelerated Non- reporting
accelerated
filer filer filer company
DPL Inc. [] [] [X] []
The Dayton Power and Light [] [] [X] []
Company
Indicate by check mark whether each registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
DPL Inc. Yes|[] No [X]
The Dayton Power and Light Company Yes[] No [X]

All of the outstanding common stock of DPL Inc. is indirectly owned by The AES Corporation. All of the common
stock of The Dayton Power and Light Company is owned by DPL Inc.
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As of September 30, 2012, each registrant had the following shares of common stock outstanding:

Registrant Description Shares Quistanding
DPL Inc. Common Stock, no par value 1
The Dayton Power and Light Commuon Stock, $0.01 par value 41,172,173

Company
Documents incorporated by reference: None
This combined Form 10-Q is separately filed by DPL Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light Company. Information
contained herein relating to any individual registrant is filed by such registrant on its own behalf. Each registrant
makes no representation as to information retating to a registrant other than itself.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
The following select abbreviations or acronyms are used in this Form 10-Q:
Abbreviation or Acronym Definition
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AES o, The AES Corporation, a global power company, the ultimate parent company of

DPL
AMI e Advanced Metering Infrastructure
AOCT.i e Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
ARD Asset Retirement Obligation
ASU e Accounting Standards Update
CFTC e Commodity Futures Trading Cormmission
CAA e Clean Air Act
CAIR ..o Clean Air Interstate Rule
CBAPR ..ottt Cross-State Air Pollution Rule
CSPeir e Columbus Southern Power Company, a subsidiary of American Electric Power

Company, Inc. (*AEP”). Columbus Southern Power Company merged into
the Ohio Power Company, another subsidiary of AEP, effective December

31,2011

O e e e Carbon Dioxide

CCEM o vrrecrvvrensnsscseresarassessasnsons Customer Conservation and Energy Management

CRES ..o Competitive Retail Electric Service

DPLi ottt DPL Inc.

DPLE .ottt DPL Energy, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of DPL ihat owns and operates
peaking generation facilities from which it makes wholesale sales

DPLER ot DPL Energy Resources, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of DPL which sells
competitive electric energy and other energy services

DP&L The Dayton Power and Light Company, the principal subsidiary of DPL and a

.......................................................... public utility which sells electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and

governmental customers in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company
(CG&E)

EIR it Environmental Investment Rider

Earnings Per Share

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Electric Security Plans, filed with the PUCO, pursuant to Ohio law

A Stipulation and Recommendation filed by DP&L with the PUCO on
February 24, 2009 regarding DP&L.’s ESP filing pursuant to SB 221, The
Stipulation was signed by the Staff of the PUCQ, the Office of the Ohio
Consumers” Counsel and various intervening parties. The PUCCQ approved
the Stipulation on June 24, 2009.

FASB i s s Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASC ..ot FASB Accounting Standards Codification

FASC 805, evssnne e FASB Accounting Standards Codification 803, “Business Combinations”
5

GLOSSARY OF TERMS {cont.)

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

FERC oo e Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

FGD et sessinsrenseassereans Flue Gas Desulfurization

Form 10-K...coviiviiiinciinccnens DPL’s and DP&L’s combined Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2011, which was filed on March 28, 2012

FTRS e eeanens Financial Transmission Rights

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principies in the United States of America

GHG L. Greenhouse Gas

IFRS Lt International Financial Reporting Standards

KWH e s Kilowatt hours

MUC Squared .......ccoomveerenrrrecnrninereereenns MC Squared Energy Services, LLC, a retail electricity supplier wholly owned by
DPLER which was purchased on February 28, 2011

METZET oot The merger of DPL and Dolphin Sub, Inc. (a wholly owned subsidiary of AES)
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Merger agreement.........covveeerereenens

............ Miami Valley Insurance Company, a wholly owned insurance subsidiary of

in accordance with the terms of the Merger agreement. At the Merger date,
Dolphin Sub, Inc. was merged into DPL, leaving DPL as the surviving
company. As aresult of the Merger, DPL became a wholly owned subsidiary
of AES.

The Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 19, 2011 among DPL, The AES
Corporation (“AES™), and Dolphin Sub, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
AES, whereby AES agreed to acquire DPL for $30 per share in a cash
transaction valued al approximately $3.5 billion plus the assumption of $1.2
billion of existing debt. Upon closing, DPL became a wholly owned
subsidiary of AES.

November 28, 2011, the date of the closing of the merger of DPL and Dolphin
Sub, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of AES.

Market Rate Option, a plan available to be filed with the PUCO pursuant to Ohio
law

Mark to Market

DPL that provides insurance services to DPL and its subsidiaries and, in some
cases, insurance services to pariner companies related to jointly owned
facilities operated by DP&L

North American Electric Reliability Corporation

Charges that are assessed to all customers regardless of whom the customer
selects to supply its retail electric service

Notice of Violation

Nitrogen Oxide

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

............ New York Mercantile Exchange
OQAQDA ..ot

Ohio Air Quality Development Authority
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
Over-The-Counter
Ohio Valley Electric Corporation, an electric generating company in which
DP&L holds a 4.9% equity interest
6

GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.)
Definition
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PIM Interconnection, LLC, a regional transmission organization

DPL prior to November 28, 2011, the date AES acquired DPL

Potentially Responsible Party

Public Utilities Commissicn of Ohio

Restricted Stock Units

Regional Transmission Organization

Reliability Pricing Model

Ohio Senate Bitl 221, an Ohio electric energy bill that was signed by the
Governor on May 1, 2008 and went into effect July 31, 2008. This law
required all Ohio distribution utilities to file either an ESP or MRO to be in
effect January 1, 2009, The law also contains, among other things, annual
targets relating to advanced energy portfolio standards, renewable energy,
demand reduction and energy efficiency standards.

Selective Catalytic Reduction

Securities and Exchange Commission

Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Sulfur Dioxide

Sulfur Trioxide

Standard Service Offer which represents the regulated rates, authorized by the



PUCO, charged to DP&L retail customers within DP&L’s service territory

SUCCESSOT ... vvteereerrreerensenereeseesreree e DPL after its acquisition by AES
TCRR -t Transmission Cost Recovery Rider
USEPA .. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
UBF et st Universal Service Fund
VRDN L Variable Rate Demand Note
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This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. On November 28, 2011, DPL became a wholly owned
subsidiary of AES, a global power company. Throughout this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and “ours” are
used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates otherwise.
Discussions or arcas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L. will clearly be noted in the section.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report includes certain “forward-looking statements™ that involve many risks and uncertainties. Forward-
locking statements express an expectation or belief and contain a projection, plan or assumption with regard to,
among other things, our future revenues, income, €xpenses or capital structure. Such statements of future events or
performance are not guarantees of future performance and involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties. The
words “could,” “may,” “predict,” “anticipate,” “would,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “project,”
“objective,” “intend,” “continue,” “should,” “plan,” and similar expressions, or the negatives thereof, are intended to
identify forward-looking statements unless the context requires otherwise. These forward-looking statements are
based on management’s present expectations and beliefs about future events. As with any projection or forecast,
these statements are inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances. We are under no obligation
to, and expressly disclaim any obligation to, update or alter the forward-looking statements whether as a result of
such changes, new information, subsequent events or otherwise. If we do update one or more forward-looking
statements, no inference should be made that we will make additional updates with respect to those or other forward-
looking statements.

LAY

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in such forward-looking
statements and that should be considered in evaluating our outlook include, but are not limited to, the following:

. abnormal or severe weather and catastrophic weather-related damage;

. unusual maintenance or repair requirements;

. changes in fuel costs and purchased power, coal, environmental emissions, natural gas and other
commodity prices;

. volatility and changes in markets for electricity and other energy-related commodities;

. performance of our suppliers;

. increased competition and detegulation in the electric utility industry;

. increased competition in the retail generation market;

. changes in interest rates;

. state, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiatives that affect cost and investment recavery,
emission levels, rate structures or tax laws;

. changes in environmental laws and regulations to which DPL and its subsidiaries are subject;

. the development and operation of RTOs, including PJM to which DPL?s operating subsidiary (DP&L) has
given control of its transmission functions;

. changes in our purchasing processes, pricing, delays, contractor and supplier performance and availability;

. significant delays associated with large construction projects;

. growth in our service territory and changes in demand and demographic patterns;

. changes in accounting rules and the effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by accounting
standard-setting bodies;

. financial market conditions;

. the outcomes of litigation and regulatory investigations, proceedings or inquiries;

. costs related to the Merger and the effects of any disruption from the Merger that may make it more

difficult to maintain relationships with employees, customers, other business partners or government
entities; and
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. general economic conditions.

All such factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affect actual resolts, and many are
beyond our control, See “Risk Factors” for a more detailed discussion of the foregoing and certain other factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in such forward-looking statements and that
should be considered in evaluating our outlook.
You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC’s public reference room located at 100 F Street N.E,,
Washington, D.C. 20549, USA. Please call the SEC at (8¢0) SEC-0330 for further information on the public
reference room. Our SEC filings are also available 1o the public from the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov.

COMPANY WEBSITES
DPL’s public internet site is http://www.dplinc.com. DP&L’s public internet site is http://www.dpandl.com. The
information on these websites is not incorporated by reference into this report.

9

Part I - Financial Information
This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. Throughout this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our”
and “ours” are used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates
otherwise. Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section.
[tem 1 — Financial Statements

10
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DPL INC.
11
DPL INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ in millions except per share amounis Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Revenues $ 4717 | § 4976 8 1,287.7 { § 1,411.5
Cost of revenues:
Fuel 2.7 129.0 279.0 3209
Purchased power 90.7 108.3 265.8 3427
Amortization of intangibles 24.2 - 71.2 -
Total cost of revenues 227.6 2373 616.0 663.6
Gross margin 244.1 260.3 671.7 747.9
Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance 106.6 92.0 3121 298.2
Depreciation and amortization 331 358 95.6 106.0
General taxes 15.7 19.6 58.7 64,2
Goodwill impairment 1,850.0 - 1,850.0 -
Total operating expenses 2,005.4 147.4 2,316.4 468.4
Operating income / (loss) {1,761.3) 112.9 (1,644.7) 279.5
Other income / (expense), net:
Investment income 1.9 0.1 2.2 0.3
Interest expense 31.1) (16.8) (93.1) (51.3)
Charge for early redemption of debt - - - (15.3)
Other expense {0.2) (0.5) (L4 (1.2)
Total other income / {expense), net (29.4) (17.2) (92.3) (67.5)
Earnings / (loss) before income tax (1,790.7) 95.7 1,737.0) 212.0
Income tax expense 20.2 28.6 40.3 69.7
Net income / (loss) $  (1,8109) | $ 67.1 $ (1,777 | 8 142.3
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http://www.dplinc.com
http://www.dpandl.com

Average number of common shares outstanding (millions):

Basic N/A

Diluted N/A
Earnings per share of common stock:

Basic N/A

Diluted N/A
Dividends paid per share of common stock N/A

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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115.0
1155

0.58
0.58
0.3325

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

114.4
115.0

1.24
1.24
0.5975

DPL INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (L.OSS)
Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2012

2011

20312

2011

$ in millions Successor

Predecessor

Successor

Predecessor

Net income / (loss) $ (1,810.9)

$

67.1

b3

(1,777.3)

$

1423

Available-for-sale securities activity:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities, net of income tax benefit /
(expense) of $(0.1) and $0.2, respectively,
for the three month period and $(0.3) and
80.2, respectively for the nine month period 0.2

(0.3)

0.5

(0.3)

Total change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities 0.2

(0.3)

0.5

(0.3)

Derivative activity:
Change in derivative fair value net of
income tax benefit / (expense) of $(0.3) and
$25.9, respectively, for the three month
period and $3.4 and $30.2, respectively, for
the nine month petiod 0.3
Reclassification of earnings, net of income
tax benefit / (expense) of $0.0 and $(1.0),
respectively, for the three month period and
$0.7 and 3(1.3), respectively, for the nine
month period -

(48.1)

1.5

(5.5)

(0.8)

(59.5)

4.1

Total change in fair value of derivatives 0.3

{46.6)

(6.3)

(55.4)

Pension and postretirement activity:
Reclassification to earnings, net of income
tax benefit / (expense) of $0.0 and $0.1,
respectively, for the three month period and
$0.0 and $0.7, respectively, for the nine
month period -

0.9

0.1)

2.5

Total change in unfunded pension
obligation -

0.9

{0.1)

2.5

Other comprehensive income / (loss) 0.5

(46.0)

(5.9)

(53.2)

Net comprehensive income / (1oss) $  (1.810.4

21.1

$

(1,783.2)

85.1

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
These interim statements are wnaudited.
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DPL INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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Nine Months Ended



September 30,

2012 2011
$ in millions Successor Predecessor
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income / (loss) 1,777.3) 1423
Adjustments to reconcile Net income to Net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 95.6 106.0
Amortization of intangibles 71.2 -
Amortization of debt market value adjustments (14.2) -
Deferred income taxes (10.5) 70.5
Charge for early redemption of debt - 153
Goodwill impairment 1,850.0 -
Recognition of deferred SECA revenue (17.8) -
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (10.2) 21.1
Inventories 29.5 (%.hH
Prepaid taxes 0.6 (27.0)
Taxes applicable to subsequent years 59.9 477
Deferred regulatory costs, net 2.7 7.9
Accounts payable (16.7) (13.4)
Accrued taxes payable (49.4) (58.2)
Acctued interest payable 25.2 3.1
Pension, retiree and other benefits 24.4 317
Unamortized investment tax credit (0.2) (2.1)
Insurance and claims costs (1.3) 4.1
Other (11.8) 3.6
Net cash provided by operating activities 249.7 273.9
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (163.1) (141.3)
Purchase of MC Squared - (8.3)
Increase in restricted cash (0.4) (9.1)
Purchases of short-term investments and securities - (1.7)
Sales of short-term investments and securities - 70.9
Other - 1.5
Net cash from investing activitics (163.5) (88.0)
14
DPL INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont.)
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012 2011
$ in millions Sucecessor Predecessor
Net cash from financing activities:
Dividends paid on common stock (45.0} (113.8)
Contributions to additional paid-in capital from parent 0.3 -
Payment to former warrant holders (9.0) -
Deferred finance costs (0.3 -
Issuance of long-term debt - 300.0
Retirement of long-term debt (0.1) (297.4)
Early redemption of Capital Trust IT debt - (122.0)
Premium paid for early redemption of debt - (12.2)
Payment of MC Squared debt - (13.5)
Withdrawals from revolving credit facilities - 50.0
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Repayment of borrowing from revolving credit facilities - (50.0)
Exercise of stock options - 1.6
Exercise of warrants - 147
Tax impact related to exercise of stock options - 0.3
Net cash from financing activities (54.1) (242.3)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Net change 321 (56.4)
Balance at beginning of period 173.5 124.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2056 | § 67.6
Supplemental cash flow infermation:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized 78.1 $ 49.4
Income taxes paid, net 44390 | § 25.5
Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Accruals for capital expenditures 125 | § 14.8
Long-term liability incurred for purchase of plant assets - b 18.7
See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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DFPL INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, December 31,
2011
$ in millions Successor
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2056 § 173.5
Restricted cash 22.6 22,2
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3) 233.0 219.1
Inventories (Note 3) 96.3 125.8
Taxes applicable to subsequent years 16.6 76.5
Regulatory assets, current (Note 4} 21.8 20.8
Other prepayments and current assels 26.4 30.4
Total current assets 622.3 668.3
Property, plant & equipment:
Property, plant & equipment 2,629.1 2,360.3
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (173.8) (7.5)
2,455.3 2,352.8
Construction work in process 100.1 152.3
Total net property, plant & equipment 2,555.4 2,535.1
Other noncurrent assets:
Regulatory assets, non-current (Note 4) 181.3 1932
Goodwill 726.3 2,5763
Intangible assets, net of amortization 75.0 142.4
Other deferred assets 33.9 51.9
Total other noncurrent assets 1,016.5 2.963.8
Total assets 4,194.2 h) 6,137.2
See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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DPL INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
At At
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September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
$ in millions Successor
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion - long-term debt (Note 6) $ 04 5 04
Accounts payable 78.6 111.1
Accrued taxes 38.9 63.2
Accrued interest 55,7 30.2
Customer security deposits 15.9 15.9
Regulatory liabilities, current (Note 4) - 0.5
Dividends payable 25.0 -
Insurance and claims costs 12.9 14.2
Other current liabilities 68.9 68.4
Total current liabilities 346.3 303.9
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 6} 2,614.5 2,628.9
Deferred taxes (Note 7) 523.3 542.4
Taxes payable 24.5 96.9
Regulatory liabilities, non-current (Note4) 117.5 118.6
Pension, retiree and other benefits 55.7 47.5
Derivative liability 41.1 46.1
Unarnortized investment tax credit 34 36
Other deferred credits 73.3 100.2
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,453.3 3,584.2
Redeemable preferred stock of subsidiary 18.4 18.4
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Commeon shareholder's equity:
Common stock:
1,500 shares authorized; 1 share issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
Other paid-in capital 2,235.9 2,2373
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (6.3) (0.4)
Retained deficit (1,853.4) (6.2)
Total common shareholder's equity 376.2 2,230.7
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 5 4,194.2 § 6,137.2

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
These interim statemnents are unaudited
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

1. Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

DPL is a diversified regional energy company organized in 1985 under the laws of Ohio. DPL’s two reportable
segments are the Utility segment, comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment,
comprised of its DPLER operations, which include the operations of DPLER’s wholly owned subsidiary MC
Squared. Refer to Note 14 for more information relating to these reportable segments.

On November 28, 2011, DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became a wholly owned subsidiary of
AES. See Note 2.

DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio. DP&L is engaged in the generation,
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers in
a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. Electricity for DP&L's 24 county service area is primarily generated
at eight coal-fired power plants and is distributed to more than 500,000 retail customers. Principal industries served
include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic manufacturing and defense.
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DP&L's sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather patterns of the area. DP&L sells any
excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market.
DPLER sells competitive retail electric service, under contract, to residential, commercial and industrial customers.
DPLER’s operations include those of its wholly owned subsidiary, MC Squared, which was acquired on February
28,2011. DPLER has approximately 175,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and linois. DPLER
does not own any transmission or generation assets, and all of DPLERs electric energy was purchased from DP&L
or PJM to meet its sales obligations. DPLER’s sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather
patterns of the areas it serves.
DPL’s other significant subsidiaries include DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, our captive insurance company that provides insurance
services to us and our subsidiaries. All of DPL’s subsidiaries are wholly owned.
DPL also has a wholly owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust II, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital
securities to investors.
DFP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory liabilities
when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.
DPL and its subsidiaries employed 1,501 people as of September 30, 2012, of which 1,443 employees were
employed by DP&L. Approximately 52% of all employees are under a collective bargaining agreement which
expires on October 31, 2014.
Financial Statement Presentation
DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of DPL and its wholly owned
subsidiaries except for DPL Capital Trust I which is not consolidated, consistent with the provisions of GAAP.
DP&L’s undivided ownership interests in certain coal-fired generating plants are included in the financial
statements at amottized cost, which was adjusted to fair value at the Merger date for DPL Inc. Operating revenues
and expenses of these generating plants are included on a pro rata basis in the corresponding lines in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Operations. See Note 5 for more information.
Certain excise taxes collected from customers have been reclassified out of operating expenses in the 2011
presentation to conform to AES? presentation of these items. These taxes are presented net within revenue. Certain
immaterial amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current reporting presentation.
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All material intercompany accounis and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP for interim financial statements, the
instructions of Form 10-Q and Regulation 8-X. Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally
included in the annual financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been omitted from this interim
report. Therefore, our interim financial statements in this report should be read along with the annual financial
statements included in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

In the opinion of our management, the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements presented in this report
contain all adjustments necessary to fairly state cur financial condition as of September 3@, 2012; our results of
operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and our cash flows for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and 201 1. Unless otherwise noted, all adjustments are normal and recurring in nature, Due to
various factors, including but not limited to, seasonal weather varjations, the timing of outages of electric
generating units, changes in economic conditions involving commeodity prices and competition, and other factors,
interim resulis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 may not be indicative of our results that
will be realized for the fuil year ending December 31, 2012.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GA AP requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant items
subject to such estimates and judgments include: the carrying value of property, plant and equipment; unbilled
revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the valuation of
allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves recorded for
income tax exposures; litization; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; assets and liabilities related to employee
benefits; goodwill; and intangibles.
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On November 23, 2011, AES completed the Merger with DPL. As a result of the Merger, DPL is an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of AES. DPL’s basis of accounting incorporates the application of FASC 805, “Business
Combinations™ (FASC 805) as of the date of the Merger. FASC 8035 requires the acquirer to recognize and measure
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value as of the Merger date. DPL’s Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying footnotes have been segregated to present pre-merger activity
as the “Predecessor” Company and post-merger activity as the “Successor” Company. Purchase accounting impacts,
including goodwill recognition, have been “pushed down” to DPL, resulting in the assets and liabilities of DPL
being recorded at their respective fair values as of November 28, 2011. The purchase price allocation was finalized
in the third quarter of 2012.
As a result of the push down accounting, DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations subsequent to
the Merger include amortization expense relating to purchase accounting adjustments and depreciation of fixed
assets based upen their fair value. Therefore, the DPL financial data prior to the Merger will not generally be
comparable to its financial data subsequent to the Merger.
In connection with the Merger, DPL remeasured the carrying amount of all of its assets and liabilities to fair value,
which resulted in the recognition of approximately $2,576.3 million of goodwill (see Note 2), assigned to DPL’s
two reporting units, DPLER and the DP&L Reporting Unit, which includes DP&L and other entities. FASC 350,
“Intangibles — Goodwill and Other,” requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level at
least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present, In evaluating the potential impairment of
goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating cash flows, capital expenditures, growth
rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long term forecasts, macroeconomic prejections, and current
market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and
management’s judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair value of a reporting unit is determined using a
discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill
outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience situations, including but not limited to:
deterioration in general economic conditions; changes to our operating or regulatory environment; increased
competitive environment; increase in fuel costs particularly when we are unable to pass its effect to customers;
negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer, particularly when we are unable to replace it on
gqually favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These types of events and the resulting
analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantially affect our results of operations for
those periods. In the third quarter of 2012, we recorded an impairment charge of $1,850.0 million against the
goodwill at DPL’s DP&L Reporting Unit. See Note 15 for more information,
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As part of the purchase accounting, values were assigned to various intangible assets, including customer
relationships, customer contracts and the value of our ESP.

Sale of Receivables

In the first quarter of 2012, DPLER began selling receivables from DPLER customers in Duke Energy’s territory to
Duke Energy. These sales are at face value for cash at the billed amounts for DPLER customers” use of energy.
There is no recourse or any other continuing involvement associated with the sold receivables. Total receivables sold
during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 were $6.1 million and $11.3 million, respectively.
Property, Plant and Equipment

We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held plants as an asset in property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. For regulated transmission and distribution property,
cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for funds used during
construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to finance regulated
construction projects. For non-regulated property, cost also includes capitalized interest. Capitalization of AFUDC
and interest ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by regulators. AFUDC and capitalized
interest was $0.9 million and $1.1 million during the three months and $3.4 million and $3.5 million during the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For unregulated generation property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and
interest capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized
interest.
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For substantially all depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less
any salvage value is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Property is evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
not be recoverable.
Intangibles
Intangibles include emission allowances, renewable energy credits, customer relationships, customer contracts and
the value of our ESP. Emission allowances are carried on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis for purchased emission
allowances, In addition, we recorded emission allowances at their fair value as of the Merger date. Net gains ot
losses on the sale of excess emission allowances, representing the difference between the sales proceeds and the cost
of emission allowances, are recorded as a component of our fuel costs and are reflected in Operating income when
realized. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, DPL had no gains from the sale of emission
allowances. Beginning in January 2010, part of the gains on emission aliowances were used to reduce the overall
fuel rider charged to our S50 retail customers.
Customer relationships recognized as part of the purchase accounting associated with the Merger are amortized over
ten to seventeen years and customer contracts are amortized over the average length of the contracts. The ESP is
amortized over one year on a straight-line basis. Emission allowances are amortized as they are used in our
operations on a FIFO basis, Renewable energy credits are amortized as they are used or retired,
Prior to the Merger date, emission allowances and renewable energy credits were carried as inventory. Emission
allowances and renewable energy credits are now carried as intangibles in accordance with AES’ policy. The
amounts for 2011 have been reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
Accounting for Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities
DPL collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. Prior to the Merger date,
certain excise and other taxes were recorded gross, Effective on the Merger date, these taxes are accounted for on a
net basis and recorded as a reduction in revenues for presentation in accordance with AES policy. The amounts for
the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were $13.8 million and $14.3 million, respectively. The
amounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were $38.5 million and $39.9 million,
respectively, The 2011 amounts were reclassified to conform to this presentation,
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Share-Based Compensation

We measure the cost of employee services received and paid with equity instruments based on the fair-value of such
equity instrument on the grant date. This cost is recognized in results of operations over the period that employees
are required to provide service. Liability awards are initially recorded based on the fair-value of equity instruments
and are to be re-measured for the change in stock price at each subsequent reporting date until the liability is
ultimately settled. The fair-value for employee share options and other similar instruments at the grant date are
estimated using option-pricing models and any excess tax benefits are recognized as an addition to paid-in capital.
The reduction in income taxes payable from the excess tax benefits is presented in the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows within Cash flows from financing activities. As a result of the Merger (see Note 2),
vesting of all DPL share-based awards was accelerated as of the Merger date, and none are in existence at
September 30, 2012,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities™ {ASU
2011-11) effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. We expect to
adopt this ASU on January 1, 2013. This standard updates FASC Topic 210, “Balance Sheet.” ASU 2011-11 updates
the disclosures for financial instruments and derivatives to provide more transparent information around the
offsetting of assets and liabilities. Entities are required to disclose both gross and net information about both
instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and/or subject to an agreement
similar to a master netting agreement. We do not expect these new rules to have a material impact on our overall
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairments

in July 2012, the FASRB issued ASU 2012-02 “Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment” (ASU
2012-02) effective for interim and annual impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15,
2012. We expect to adopt this ASU on January 1, 2013. This standard updates FASC Topic 350, “Intangibles-
Goodwill and Other.” ASU 2312-02 permits an entity first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is
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necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with FASC Subtopic 350-30. After adoption, we
do not expect these new rules to have a material impact on our overall results of operations, financial position ot
cash flows.
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
Fair Value Disclosures
In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 “Fair Value Measurements” (ASU 201 1-04) effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 13, 2011. We adopted this ASU on January 1, 2012, This
standard updates FASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements.” ASU 2011-04 essentially converges US GAAP guidance
on fair value with the IFRS guidance. The ASU requires more disclosures around Level 3 inputs. It also increases
reporting for financial instruments disclosed at fair value but not recorded at fair value and provides clarification of
blockage factors and other premiums and discounts, These new rules did not have a material effect on our overall
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
Comprehensive Income
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05 “Presentation of Comprehensive Income™ (ASU 2011-05) effective
for interim and annual reporting perieds beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this ASU on January 1,
2012. This standard updates FASC 220, “Comprehensive Income.” ASU 2011-05 essentially converges US GAAP
guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income with the IFRS guidance. The ASU requires the presentation
of comprehensive income in one continuous financial statement or two separate but consecutive statements. Any
reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive income to net income are required to be presented on the face
of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. These new rules did not have a material effect on our overall results of
operations, financtal position or cash flows.
Goodwill Impairment
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 “Testing Goodwill for Impairment” (ASU 2011-08) effective
for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this ASU on January 1,
2012. This standard updates FASC 330, “Intangibles-Goodwiil and Other.” ASU 2011-08 allows an entity to first
test Goodwill using qualitative factors to determine if it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
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reporting unit has been impaired; if so, then the two-step impairment test is performed. We will incorporate these
new requirements in our future goodwill impairment testing.
Derivative gross vs. net presentation — Following the acquisition of DPL in November 2011 by AES, DPL began
presenting its derivative positions on a gross basis in accordance with AES policy. This change has been reflected in
the 2011 balance sheet contained in these statements.
2. Business Combination
On November 28, 201 1, AES completed its acquisition of DPL. AES paid cash consideration of approximately
$3,483.6 million. The allocation of the purchase price was based on the estimated fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. In addition, Dolphin Subsidiary 11, Inc. {a wholly owned subsidiary of AES) issued $1,250.0
million of debt, which, as a result of the merger of DPL and Dolphin Subsidiary I1, Inc. was assumed by DPL. The
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition were recorded at estimated amounts based on the purchase
price allocation. We finalized the allocation of the purchase price in the third quarter of 2012.
From November 28, 2011 through September 30, 2012, we recognized the following changes to our preliminary
purchase price allocation:

Decrease / (increase)

to preliminary goodwill
Change before
deferred income Deferred income

$ in millions tax effect - tax effect
Property, plant and et}uipmentm $ (70.7) % 25.5
DPLER intangibles (19.1) 6.7
Out of market coal contract ¥ (34.2) 12.0
Deferred tax liabilities ™ - (20.7)
Regulatory assets 15.4 -
Taxes payable 13.1 (16.0)
Other 1.0 =

$ (945 $ 7.5
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Net (increase) in goodwill 8 87.0

@ related to refined information associated with certain contractual
arrangements, growth and ancillary revenue assumptions.
@ related to refined market and contractual information.
™ related to a change in certain assumptions related to an out of
market coal contract.
™ related to an assessment of our overall deferred tax liabilities on
regulated property, plant and equipment,
™ related to the increase in deferred taxes discussed in (4} above.
 telated 1o the final DPL Inc. standalone federal tax return.
These purchase price adjustments increased the provisionally recognized goodwill by $87.0 million and have been
reflected retrospectively as of December 31, 2011 in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets,
The effect on net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 of $8.7 million was recorded in the second
and third quarters. The effect on net income for the period November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 was not
material.
23
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Estimated preliminary and final fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the Merger date are as
follows:

Preliminary
Final purchase purchase price
$ in millions _price allocation allocation
Cash $ 1164 § 116.4
Restricted cash 18.5 18.5
Accounts recejvable 277.6 2776
Inventory 1237 123.7
Other current assets 37.3 37.3
Property, plant and equipment 2,477.8 2,548.5
Intangible assets subject to amortization 147.2 166.3
Intangible assets - indefinite-lived 5.0 5.0
Regulatory assets 217.1 201.1
QOther non-current assets 583 58.3
Current liabilities 413.1; (408.2)
Debt (1,255.1) (1,255.1)
Deferred taxes {531.2) {558.2)
Regulatory liabilities {F17.0} (117.0}
Other non-current liabilities {216.8) (201.5)
Redeemable preferred stock (18.4) (18.4)
WNet identifiable assets acquired 907.3 994.3
Goodwill 2,576.3 2,489.3
Net assets acquired $ 34836 §$ 3,483.6
3. Supplemental Financial Information
At At
September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Successor

Accounts receivable, net:

Unbilled revenue $ 62.0 3§ 72.4

Customer receivables 131.8 113.2

Amounts due from partners in jointly-owned plants 16.5 29.2

Coal sales 4.5 1.0

Other 19.4 4.4

Provision for uncollectible accounts (1.2) (1.1)

Total accounts receivable, net L) 2330 § 219.1
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Inventories, at average cost:

Fuel, limestone and emission atlowances $ 536 84.2

Plant materials and supplies 40.7 358

Other 2.0 1.8

Total inventories, at average cost $ 963 3 125.8
24

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss}

AQCI is included on our balance sheets within the Common sharcholders' equity sections. The following table
provides the components that constitute the balance sheet amounts in AOCI at September 30, 2012 and December
31,2011 :

At At
September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Successor

Financial Instruments $ 05 % -
Cash flow hedges (6.8) (0.5)
Pension and postretirement benefits - 0.1
Total h) 63y 3 0.4

4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
In accordance with GA AP, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded in the Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheets for our regulated electric transmission and distribution businesses. Regulatory assets are the deferral of costs
expected to be recovered in future customer rates and regulatory liabilities represent current recovery of expected
future costs or gains probable of being reflected in future rates.
We evaluate our regulatory assets each period and believe that recovery of these assets is probable. We have
received or requested a return on certain regulatory assets for which we are currently recovering or seeking
recovery through rates. We record a return after it has been authorized in an order by a regulator.
Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on the term in which recovery is
expected.
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The following table presents DPL’s regulatory assets and liabilities:

Type of Amortization At September At December
$ in millions Recovery (a) through 30,2012 31,2011
Suceessor
Current regulatory assets:
TCRR, transmission, ancillary and
other PJM-related costs F Ongoing $ 63 3 47
Power plant emission fees C Ongoing (0.3) 4.8
Fuel and purchased power recovery
cosls C Ongoing 15.8 11.3
Total regulatory assets - current $ 218 % 20.8
Non-current regulatory assets:
Deferred recoverabie income taxes B/C Ongoing $ 370 % 39.5
Pension benefits C Ongoing 87.1 92.1
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt C Ongoing 12.2 13.0
Regional transmission organization
costs D 2014 3.0 4.1
Deferred storm costs - 2008 D 18.7 17.9
CCEM smart grid and advanced
metering infrastructure costs D 6.6 6.6
CCEM energy efficiency program
costs F Ongoing 5.9 g3
Consumer education campaign D 3.0 3.0
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Retail settlement system costs D 3.1 31

Other costs 4.7 5.1
Total regulatory assets - non-current $ 1813 3§ 193.2
Current regulatory liabilities:
Other $ - 5 0.5
Total regulatory liabilities - current $ - 8 0.5

Non-current regulatory labilities:
Estimated costs of removal - regulated

property $ i11.6 § 112.4
Postretirement benefits 5.6 6.2
Other 0.3 -
Total regulatory liabilities - non-
current $ 1175 § 118.6
( a) B — Balance has an affsetting
liability resulting in no effect on rate
base.

C — Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return.
D — Recovery not yet determined, but is probable of occurring in future vate proceedings.
F — Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of return.

Regulatory Assets
TCRR, transmission, ancillary and other PIM-related costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary
service and other PJM-related charges that have been incwrred as a member of PJM. On an annual basis, retail rates
are adjusted to true-up costs with recovery in rates.
Power plant emission fees represent costs paid to the State of Ohio since 2002. As part of the fuel factor settlement
agreement in November 2011, these costs are being recovered through the fuel factor.
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Fuel and purchased power recovery costs represent prudently incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative, emission
and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the operation of
the fuel and purchased power recovery rider, The fuel and purchased power recovery rider fluctuates based on actual
costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of each seasonal quarter. DP&L implemented the fuel and
purchased power recovery rider on January 1, 2010. As part of the PUCO approval process, an outside auditor is
hired to review fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. We received the audit report for 2011 on April 27, 2012.
The auditor has recommended that the PUCO consider reducing DP&L’s recovery of fuel costs by approximately
$3.3 million from certain transactions. On October 4, 2012, we filed testimony on this issue and a hearing is
scheduled in November 2012 before a hearing examiner, A decision is expected in the fourth quarter of 2012. As of
September 30, 2012, we believe the entire amount is recoverable.

Deferred recoverable income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of flow
through items as the result of tax benefits previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow through
benefit given to regulated customers that will be collected from them in future years. Since currently existing
temporary differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse in subsequent
periods, these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over time.

Pension benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “Compensation —~ Retirement Benefits™ costs of our regulated
operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an assct for a plan’s
overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of other
comprehensive income {OCT), the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion that
would otherwise be charged as a loss to OCI.

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior periods.
These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issves in accordance with FERC and PUCO rules.
Regional transmission organization costs represent costs incurred to join an RTO. The recovery of these costs will
be requested in a future FERC rate case. In accordance with FERC precedence, we are amortizing these costs overa
10-year period that began in 2004 when we joined the PIM RTO.
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Deferred storm costs — 2008 relate 1o costs incurred to repair the damage cansed by hurricane force winds in
September 2008, as well as other major 2008 storms. On January 14, 2009, the PUCO granted DP&L the authority
to defer these costs with a return unti! such time that DP&L seeks recovery in a future rate proceeding.
CCEM smart grid and AMI costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution system
upgrades and implementation of AMI. On October 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw its case pertaining to the
Smart Grid and AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal in an order issued on January 5, 2011, The
PUCO also indicated that it expects DP&L to continue to monitor other utilities” Smart Grid and AMI programs and
to explore the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI programs and that DP&L will, when
appropriate, file new Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the future. We plan to file to recover these deferred
costs in a future regulatory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCQO precedent, we believe these costs are probable of
future recovery in rates.
CCEM energy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various new customer
programs addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an energy efficiency rider (EER}
that began July 1, 2009 and is subject to a two-year true-up for any over/under recovery of costs. On April 29, 2011,
DP&L filed to true-up the EER which was approved by the PUCO on October 18, 2011. DP&L plans to make its
next true-up filing on or before April 30, 2013.
Consumer education campaign represents costs for consumer education advertising regarding electric deregulation.
DP&L will be seeking recovery of these costs as part of our next distribution rate case filing at the PUCO. The
timing of such a filing has not yet been determined,
Retail seftlement system costs represent costs to implement a retail settlement system that reconciles the energy a
CRES supplier delivers to its customers and what its customers actually use. Based on case precedent in other
utilitics” cases, the costs are recoverable through a future DP&L rate proceeding,.
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Other costs primarily include RPM capacity, other PJM and rate case costs and alternative energy costs that are or
will be recovered over various periods.

Regulatory Liabilities

Estimated costs of removal — regulated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for costs
that are expected to be incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution property from service
when the property is retired.

Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “Compensation - Retirement Benefits” gains related to
our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We recognize
an asset for a plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component
of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not recognized as a component
of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion that would otherwise be
reflected as a gain to OCL

Pending Regulatory Activity

On August 10, 2012, DP&L filed with the PUCO for an accounting order for permission to defer operation and
maintenance costs as a result of damage caused by storms occurring during the final weekend of June 2012, The
deferral request is for distribution expense incurred for these storms. The deferral would earn a return equal to the
carrying cost of debt (5.86%) until these costs are recovered from customers. On October 19, 2012, DP&L amended
its filing to change the method of calculating the deferral. If PUCO approval is received, DP&L will defer
approximately $5.8 million of costs associated with these storms,

5. Ownership of Coal-fired Facilities

DP&L has undivided ownership interests in seven coal-fired electric generating facilities and numerous
transmission facilitics with certain other Ohio utilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating
stalions, are allocated (o the owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses, investments in fuel
inventory, plant materials and operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance
with their respective ownership interests. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L had $31.0 million of construction
work in process at such jointly-owned facilities. DP&L’s share of the operating cost of such facilities is included
within the corresponding line in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Results of Operations and DP&L’s
share of the investment in the facilities is included within Total net praperty, plant and equipment in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Each joint owner provides their own financing for their share of the operations and
capital expenditures of the jointly owned station.
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DP&L’s undivided ownership interest in such facilities as well as our wholly owned coal-fired Hutchings station at
September 30, 2012 is as follows:

DP&L Investment
DP&L Share (adjusted to fair value at Merger date)
SCR and
FGD
Construction Equipment
Summer  Gross Plant  Accumulated  Work in Installed
Production  in Service  Depreciation Process and in
Jointly-owned production Ownership Capacity ($in ($in ($in Service
stations: {%) (MW) millions) millions) millions) _(Yes/No)
Beckjord Unit 6 50.0 207 § 1% 18 - No
Conesville Unit 4 16.5 129 42 4 8 Yes
East Bend Station 31.0 186 11 6 1 Yes
Killen Station 67.0 402 316 15 4 Yes
Miami Fort Units 7 and 8 36.0 368 217 9 3 Yes
Stuart Station 350 808 206 16 12 Yes
Zimmer Station 28.1 365 182 27 3 Yes
Transmission (at varying
percentages) n/a 35 2 -
Total 2,465 § 1,010 $ 80 8 31
Wholly-owned production
station:
Hutchings Station 100.0 365 § - 3 - % - No

Currently, our coal-fired generation units at Hutchings and Beckjord do not have SCR and FGI emission-control
equipment installed, DP&L. owns 100% of the Hutchings station and has a 50% interest in Beckjord Unit 6. On July
15, 2011, Duke Energy, a co-owner at the Beckjord Unit 6 facility, filed their Long-term Forecast Report with the
PUCO. The plan indicated that Duke Energy plans to cease production at the Beckjord station, including our jointly
owned Unit 6, in December 2014. This was followed by a notification by Duke Energy to PJM, dated February 1,
2012, of a planned April 1, 2015 deactivation of this unit. DP&L does not object to Duke’s decision. Beckjord Unit
6 was valued at zero at the Merger date.
We are considering options for the Hutchings station, but have not yet made a final decision. DP&L, has informed
PIM that Hutchings Unit 4 has incurred damage 1o a rotor and will be deactivated and unavailable for service until at
least June 1, 2014, if not indeterminately. In addition, DP&L has notified PJM that Hutchings Units 1 and 2 will be
deactivated by June 1, 2015. The decision to deactivate Units 1 and 2 has been made because these two units are not
equipped with the advanced environmental control technologies needed to comply with the MACT standard, which
was renamed MATS (Mercury Air Toxics Standard) when the rule was issued final on December 16, 2011, and the
cost of compliance with the MATS standard or conversion to natural gas for these units would likely exceed the
expected return. DP&L is still studying the option of converting two or more of Hutchings Units 3-6 to natural gas
in order to comply with environmental requirements.
DPL revalued DP&L.’s investment in the above plants at the estimated fair value for each plant at the Merger date.
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6. Debt Obligations :
All debt outstanding at the Merger date was revalued at the estimated fair value.
Long-term debt
At September 30, At December 31,

$ in millions 2012 2011

First mortgage bonds maturing in October 2013 - 5.125% 5 4894 § 503.6
Pollution control series maturing in Januvary 2028 - 4.70% 36.1 36.1
Pollution control series maturing in January 2034 - 4.80% 179.6 179.6
Pollution control series maturing in September 2036 - 4.80% 96.2 96.2

Pollution control series maturing in November 2040
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- variable rates: 0.04% - 0.26% and 0.06% - 0.32% (a) 100.0 100.0

U.S. Government note maturing in February 2061 - 4.20% 18.4 18.5
Capital lease obligation 0.2 0.4
Total long-term debt at subsidiary 919.9 934.4
Bank Term Loan

- variable rates: 2.22% - 2.30% and 1.48% - 4.25% (b) 425.0 4250
Senior unsecured bonds maturing October 2016 - 6.50% 450.0 450.0
Senior unsecured bonds maturing October 2021 - 7.25% 800.0 800.0
Note to DPL Capital Trust II maturing in September 2031 - 8.125% 19.6 19.5
Total long-term debt $ 26145 & 2,628.9

Current portion - long-term debt
At September 30, At December 31,

$ in millions 2012 2011
U.S. Government note maturing in February 2061 - 4.20% b 0.1 §$ 0.1
Capital lease obligation 0.3 0.3
Total current portion - long-term debt - DPL $ 04 3 0.4
(a} Range of interest rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and the twelve moniths ended December 3{, 201 1,
respectively.

(b} Range of interest rates for the niine months ended September 30, 2012 and from the draw-dowr of the loon in August 201
through December 31, 2011, respectively.
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At September 30, 2012, maturities of long-term debt, including capital lease ebligations,
are summarized as follows:
$ in millions

Due within one year $ 04
Due within two years 895.3
Due within three years 0.1
Dhue within four years 0.1
Die within five years 450.1
Thereafter 1,252.9

Total maturities 2,598.9
Unamortized adjustments to market value from purchase accounting 16.0

Total long-term debt $ 2,614.9

Premiums or discounts recognized at the Merger date are amortized over the life of the debt using the effective
interest method.

On Decerber 4, 2008, the OAQDA issued $100.0 million of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the QAQDA and issued
corresponding First Mortgage Bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on
each series of the bonds when due is backed by a standby letter of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, This
letter of credit facility, which expires in December 2013, is irrevocable and has no subjective acceleration clauses.
Fees associated with this letter of credit facility were not material during the three and nine months ended September
30,2012 and 2011.

On April 20, 2010, DP&L entered into a $200,0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement is for a three year term expiring on April 20, 2013 and provides DP&L with the ability
to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this
credit facility at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were
not material during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011. This facility also contains a
$50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against
this facility.

On February 23, 2011, DPL purchased $122,0 million principal amount of DPL Capital Trust IT 8.125% capital
securities in a privately negotiated transaction. As part of this transaction, DPL paid a premium of $12.2 million, or
10%%. Debt issuance costs and unamortized debt discount totaling $3.1 million associated with this debt were
expensed in February 2011 in conjunction with this transaction.
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On March 1, 2011, DP&L completed the purchase of $18.7 million of electric transmission and distribution assets
from the federal government that are located at the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base. DP&L financed the
acquisition of these assets with a note payable to the federal government that is payable monthly over 50 years and
bears interest at 4.2% per annum.
On August 24, 2011, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement is for a four year term expiring on August 24, 2015 and provides DP&L with the ability
to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no ocutstanding borrowings under this
credit facility at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were
not material during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 201 1. This facility also contains a
$50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against
this facility.
On August 24, 2011, DPL entered into a $125.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement is for a three year term expiring on August 24, 2014. The size of the facility was
reduced from $125.0 million to $75.0 million as part of an amendment dated October 19, 2012 that was negotiated
between DPL and the syndicated bank group. DPL had no outstanding borrowings under this credit
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facility at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were not
material during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, This facility may also be used to issue letters
of credit up to the $75.0 million limit. As of September 30, 2012, DPL had no outstanding letters of credit against
this facility.

On August 24, 2011, DPL entered into a $425.0 million unsecured term loan agreement with a syndicated bank
group. This agreement is for a three year term expiring on August 24, 2014. On October 19, 2012, DPL and the
syndicated bank group approved an amendment, which reduced the size of the facility from $125.0 million to $75
million and modified certain covenants in the facility, DPL has borrowed the entire $425.0 million available under
the facility at September 30, 2012. Fees associated with this term loan were not material during the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2012,

DPL.’s unsecured revolving credit agreement and DPL’s unsecured term loan cach have two financial covenants,
one of which was changed as part of amendments, dated October 19, 2012, to the facilities negotiated between DPL
and the syndicated bank groups. The first financial covenant, originally a Total Debt to Capitalization ratio, was
changed, effective September 30, 2012, to a Total Debt to EBITDA ratio, The Total Debt to EBITDA ratio is
calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing total debt at the end of the current quarter by consolidated
EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters.

The second financial covenant is an EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio. The EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio is
calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for the same
period.

The amendments, dated October 19, 2012, to the facilities negotiated between DPL and the syndicated bank groups,
restrict dividend payments from DPL to AES and adjust the cost of borrowing under the facilities.

In connection with the closing of the Merger (see Note 2}, DPL assumed $1,250.0 million of debt that Delphin
Subsidiary 11, Inc., a subsidiary of AES, issued on Octobet 3, 2011 to partially finance the Merger. The $1,250.0
million was issued in two tranches. The first tranche was $450.0 million of five year senior unsecured notes issued
with a 6.50% coupon maturing on October 15, 2016. The second tranche was $800.0 million of ten year senior
unsecured notes issued with a 7.25% coupon maturing on October 15, 2021.

Substantially all property, plant and equipment of DP&L is subject to the lien of the mortgage securing DP&L’s
First and Refunding Mortgage, dated October 1, 1935, with the Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee.

7. Income Taxes

The following table details the effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
DPL (1.2)% 29.9% (2.3)% 32.9%

Income tax expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 was calculated using the
estimated annual effective income tax rates of (2.2)% and 33.2% for 2012 and 2011, respectively. For the three and

{C39873: }



nine months ended September 30, 2011, management estimated the annual effective tax rate based upon its forecast
of annual pre-tax income.
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, management estimated the annual effective tax rate based
upon actual pre-tax income for the period.
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For the three months ended September 30, 2012, DPL’s current period effective rate is greater than the estimated
annual effective rate due to certain current period tax adjustments. These current period adjustments include a
revision to the estimated annual effective rate resulting in a reduction in tax expense of $16.7 million as well as a
reduction in tax expense of $0.9 million due to the effect of estimate-to-actual income tax provision adjustments
related to non-deductible merger costs as well as non-deductible officers compensation.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, DPL’s current period effective rate is less than the estimated annual
effective rate due to certain current period tax adjustments. These current period adjustments include an increase in
deferred state income tax expense of $3.6 million and an increase in other estimated tax liabilities of $0.2 million.
These increases to tax expense are partially offset by a reduction in tax expense of $0.9 million due to the effect of
estimate-to-actual income tax provision adjustments related to non-deductible merger costs as well as non-
deductible officers compensation

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the decrease in DPL’s effective tax rate compared to the
same petiod in 2011 primarily reflects decreased pre-tax earnings related to the goodwill impairment during the
third quarter of 2012.

Deferred tax liabilities for DPL decreased by approximately $25.4 million during the three months ended September
30, 2012 primarily related to purchase accounting adjustments and decreased $19.1 million during the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 primarily related to purchase accounting adjustments, amortization and depreciation.
The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second
quarter of 201( and has continued through the current quarter. At this fime, we do not expect the results of this
examination to have a material effect on our financial statements.

8. Pension and Postretirement Benefits

DP&L sponsors a defined benefit pension plan for the vast majority of its employees.

We generally fund pension plan benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retitement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and, in addition, make voluntary contributions from
time to titne. There were no contributions made during the nine months ended September 30, 2012. DP&L made a
discretionary contribution of $40.0 miliion to the defined benefit plan during the nine months ended September 30,
2011.

The amounts presented in the following tables for pension include both the collective bargaining plan formula, the
traditional management plan formula, the cash balance plan formula and the SERP in the aggregate, The amounts
presented for postretirement include both health and life insurance.

The net periodic benefit cost/{income) of the pension and postretirement benefit plans for the three months ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011 was:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) Pension Postretirement
Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Service cost $ 1.5 % 08 $ - 5 -
Interest cost 4.3 4.1 0.2 0.2
Expected return on assets (@) &7 (6.2) (0.1) (0.1}
Amortization of unrecognized:
Actuarial loss / {gain) 1.3 1.7 0.1) (0.5)
Prior service cost 0.4 0.5 - 0.1
Net periodic benefit cost / (income)
before adjustments 1.8 0.9 - (0.3)
Settlement cost () 0.2 - - -
Net periodic benefit cost / (income) $ 20 3 09 § - $ (0.3)
34

(a) For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets, wnder GAAP, the market-relared value of assets (MRVA) is used.
GAAP requires that the difference between actual plan asset returns and estimated plan asser refurns be included in the MRVA equally aver

{C39873: }



a period not to exceed five years. We use a methodology under which we include the difference between actual and estimated asset returns

i the MRV A equally over a three year period. The MRVA used in the calculation of expected return on pension plan assefs for the 2012

and 2011 net periodic benefit cost was approximately $336.0 million ond $316.0 million, respectively.
(b) The settlement cost relates fo a former officer who has elected to receive a fump sum distribution in 2012 from the Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan.

The net periodic benefit cost/(income) of the pension and postretirement benefit plans for the nine months ended

September 30, 2012 and 2011 was:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) Pension Postretirement
Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Service cost $ 46 % 37§ 61 $ 0.1
Interest cost 12.9 12.7 0.6 0.7
Expected return on assets (a) (17.0) (18.4) (0.2) 0.2y
Amortization of unrecognized:
Actuarial loss / (gain} 3.7 6.2 (0.5) (0.9)
Prior service cost 1.1 1.6 - 0.1
Net periodic benefit cost / {(income)
before adjustments 5.3 5.8 " (0.2)
Settlement cost () 0.2 - - -
Net periodic benefit cost / (income) $ 55 % 58 % - 8 (0.2)

(a)

For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets,

under GAAP, the market-related value of assets (MRVA) ts used GAAP
requires that the difference between actual plan asset returns and estimated
plan asset returns be included in the MRVA equally over o period nof to
exceed five years. We use a methodology under which we include the
difference benween actual and estimated asset returns in the MRVA equally
aver @ three year period. The MRVA used in the calcwlation of expected
return on pension plan assets for the 2012 and 2011 net periodic benefit
cost was approximately $336.0 million and 3316.0 million, respectively.

(b)

The settlement cost rélates to u former officer who has elected to
receive a lump sum distribution in 2012 from the Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan.
Benefit payments, which reflect future service, are expected to be paid as follows:

Estimated Future Benefit Payments and Medicare Part D Reimbursements

$ in millions Pension Postretirement

2012 h 5.8 $ 0.6
2013 22,7 2.3
2014 232 22
2015 23.8 2.0
2016 24.0 1.9
2017 - 2021 1244 7.5
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9. Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of our financial instruments are based on published sources for pricing when possible. We rely on
valuation models only when no other methods exist. The value of our financial instruments represents our best
estimates of the fair value, which may not be the value realized in the future.
The table below presents the fair value and cost of our non-derivative instruments at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011. See also Note 10 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the fair values

of our derivative instruments,

Successor
At September 30, At December 31,
2012 2011

$ in millions Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Assets

Money Market Funds $ 02 3 0.2 $ 02 $ 0.2

Equity Securities 39 5.2 39 44

Debt Securities 5.0 5.5 5.0 5.5
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Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2

Total Assets $ 94 § 1.2 § 04 3 10.3
Liabilities

Debt $ 26149 § 2,7694 3§ 2,6293 § 2,710.6
Debt

The carrying value of DPL’s debt was adjusted to fair value at the Merger date. Unrealized gains or losses are not
recognized in the financial statements because debt is presented at the value established at the Merger date, less
amortized premium or discount. The debt amounts include the current portion payable in the next twelve months and
have maturities that range from 2013 to 2061.
Master Trust Assets
DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit of employees participating in
employee benefit plans. These assets are primarily comprised of open-ended mutual funds which are valued using
the net asset value per unit. These investments are recorded at fair value within Other deferred assets on the balance
sheets and classified as available for sale. Any unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AOCI untii the securities
are sold.
DP&L had $0.8 million ($0.5 million after tax) of unrealized gains and immaterial losses on the Master Trust assets
in AQCI at September 30, 2012 and immaterial unrealized gains and losses in AOCT at December 31, 2011.
Due to the liquidation of the DPL Inc. common stock held in the Master Trust, there is sufficient cash to cover the
next twelve months of benefits pavable to employees covered under the benefit plans. Therefore, no unrealized gains
or losses are expected to be transferred to earnings since we will not need to sell any investments in the next twelve
months.
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Net Asset Vzlue (NAV) per Unit
The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency for those assets whose fair value is estimated
using the NAV per unit as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. These assets are part of the Master Trust.
Fair values estimated using the NAV per unit are considered Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy, unless
they cannot be redeemed at the NAV per unit on the reporting date. Investments that have restrictions on the
redemption of the investments are Level 3 inputs. As of September 30, 2012, DPL did not have any investments for
sale at a price different from the NAV per unit.

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit (Successor)

Fair Value at Fair Value at
September 30, December 31, Unfunded
$ in millions 2012 2011 Commitments
Equity Securities (a) $ 52 % 44 § -
Debt Securities (b) 5.5 5.5 -
Multi-Strategy Fund (c) 0.3 0.2 -
Total $ 1.0 § 10.1 b -

() This category includes invesiments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 Index and the Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) U.S. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net
asset value per unit.

(b)This category includes investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. invesiment grade bonds. Investmenis in this category
can he redeemed inumediately ar the current net asset value per unit.

(C)This category includes a mix of actively managed funds holding investments in stocks, bonds and shori-term invesimenis in a
mix of actively managed funds. hvesiments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price} in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservahle inputs when measuring fair value. These inputs are then calegorized as
Level 1 (quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities); Level 2 (observable inputs such as quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in markets that are not active); or Level 3 (unobservable
inputs).
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Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with
counterparty risk. We include our own credit risk and our counterparty’s credit risk in our calculation of fair value
using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a large rating agency.

We transferred a money market account to Level | from Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy, as it was determined
that this fund is a cash equivalent where quoted prices are generally equal to par value.
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 measured on a recurring basis
and the respective category within the fair value hierarchy for DPL was determined as follows:
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis (Successor)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Fair Value at Quoted Prices Other
September 30, in Active Observable Unobservable
§$ in millions 2012 Markets Inputs Inputs
Assets
Master Trust Assets
Money Market Funds $ 02 $ 02 % - 3 -
Equity Securities 5.2 - 5.2 -
Debt Securities 5.5 - 5.5 -
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 - 0.3 -
Total Master Trust Assets 11.2 0.2 11.0 -
Derivative Assets
FTRs 0.1 - - 0.1
Heating Qil Futures 0.4 0.4 - -
Forward Power Contracts 16.8 - 16.8 -
Total Derivative Assets 17.3 0.4 16.8 0.1
Total Assets b 285 8 06 $ 278 $ 0.1
Liabilities
Derivative Liabilities
Interest Rate Hedge $ 357y § - 3 {35.7) § -
FTRs {0.1) - - (0.
Forward NYMEX Coal Contracts (1.1) - (1.1} -
Forward Power Contracts (21.0) - (21.0) -
Total Derivative Liabilities (57.9) - (57.8) (0.1)
Long-term Debt (2,769.4) - (2,750.4) (19.0)
Total Liabilities $ (2,8273) $§ - $ (2,808.2) $ (19.1)
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis (Successor)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Fair Value as of  Quoted Prices Other
December 31, in Active Observable Unobservable
$ in millions 2011 Markets Inputs Inputs
Assets
Master Trust Assets
Money Market Funds $ 02 § - $ 02 3 -
Equity Securitics 4.4 - 4.4 -
Debt Securities 3.5 - 55 -
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.2 - 0.2 -
Total Master Trust Assets 10.3 - 10.3 -
Derivative Assets
FTRs 0.1 - 0.1 -
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Heating Oil Futures 1.8 1.8 -
Forward Power Contracts 17.3 - 17.3 -

Total Derivative Assets 19.2 1.8 17.4 -
Total Assets $ 29.5 §$ 1.3 $ 277 % -
Liabilities
Derivative Liabilities
Interest Rate Hedge 3 (325) % - % (325) 3 -
Forward NYMEX Coal Contracts (14.5) - (14.5) -
Forward Power Contracts (13.3) - (13.3) -
Total Derivative Liabilities {60.3) - (60.3) -
Total Liabilities $ (603) $ -8 60.3) $ -

We use the market approach to value our financial instruments. Level 1 inputs are used for derivative contracts such
as heating oil futures and for money market accounts that are considered cash equivalents. The fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions.
Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as forward power contracts and forward NYMEX-quality coal
contracts (which are traded on the OTC market but which are valued using prices on the NYMEX for similar
contracts on the OTC market). Other Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are in the Master Trust,
which are valued using the end of day NAV per unit; and interest rate hedges, which use observable inputs 1o
populate a pricing model, Financial transmission rights are considered a Level 3 input, beginning April 1, 2012,
because the monthly anctions are considered inactive.
Our Level 3 inputs are immaterial to our derivative balances as a whole and as such no further disclosures are
presented.
Our debt is fair valued for disclosure purposes only and most of the fair values are determined using quoted market
prices in inactive markets. These fair value inputs are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Our long-term
leases and the WPAFB loan are not publicly traded. Fair value is assumed to equal carrying value. These fair value
inputs are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as there are no observable inputs. Additional Level 3
disclosures were not presented since debt is not recorded at fair value.
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Approximately 99% of the inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices.
Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements
We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our AROs which are estimated by discounting expected cash
outflows 1o their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash outflows are based on the approximate
future disposal cost as determined by market information, historical information or other management estimates.
These inputs to the fair value of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy.
Additions to AROs were not material during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 201 1.
Cash Equivalents
DPL had $125.0 million and $125.0 million in money market funds classified as cash and cash equivalents in its
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. The money
market funds have quoted prices that are generally equivalent to par and are considered Level 1.
19. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes in market prices for commodities and
interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these risks
are governed by our risk management policies for forward and futures contracts. Our net positions are continually
assessed within our structured hedging programs to determine whether new or offsetting transactions are required.
The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have adequate resources to
meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our risk management
processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possible, to mark positions to market. All of our derivative
instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges or marked to market each
reporting period.
At September 30, 2012, DPL had the following outstanding derivative instruments:
Net Purchases/
Purchases Sales (Sales)

Commodity Accounting Treatment Unit (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands)

FTRs Mark to Market MWh 10] - 1.1
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Heating Oil Futures Mark 10 Market Gallons 1,932.0 - 1,932.0
Forward Power Contracts Cash Flow Hedge MWh 886.2 {3,194.1) (2,307 9)
Forward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 2,688.0 (4,877.6) (2,189.6)
NYMEX-quality Coal Contracts* Mark to Market Tons 46.5 - 46.5
Interest Rate Swaps Cash Flow Hedge UsD $ 160,0000 % - 3 160,000.0

*Includes our partners' share for the jointly-owned plants that DP&L operates.

At December 31, 2011, DPL had the following outstanding derivative instruments:
Net Purchases/

Purchases Sales (Sales)
Commodity Accounting Treatmeni Unit (in thousands) {in thousands)  _(in thousands)

ETRs Mark to Market MWh 7.1 ©.7) 04
Heating Oi] Futures Mark to Market Gallons 27720 - 27720
Forward Power Contracts Cash Flow Hedge MWh 886.2 (341.6) 5446
Forward Power Coniracts Mark to Market MWh 1,769.4 (1,739.5) 299
NYMEX-quality Coal Contracts* Mark to Market Tons 2,0150 - 20150
Interest Rate Swaps Cash Flow Hedge UsD $ 160,000.0 § - 5 160,000.0
*Includes our partners' share for the jointly-owned plants that DP&L operates.
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Cash Flow Hedges
As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The fair
value of cash flow hedges as determined by observable market prices available as of the balance sheet dates and will
continue to fluctuate with changes in market prices up to contract expiration. The effective portion of the hedging
transaction is recognized in AOCI and transferred to earnings using specific identification of each contract when the
forecasted hedged transaction takes place or when the forecasted hedged transaction is probable of not occurring.
The ineffective portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in earnings in the current period. All risk components
were taken into account to determine the hedge effectiveness of the cash flow hedges.
We enter into forward power contracts 1o manage commodity price risk exposure related to our generation of
electricity, We do not hedge all commodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts
from AOCI into earnings in those periods in which the contracts settle.
We also enter into interest rate derivative contracts to manage interest rate exposure related to anticipated
borrowings of fixed-rate debt. Our anticipated fixed-rate debt offerings have a high probability of occurrence as the
proceeds will be used to fund existing debt maturities and projected capital expenditures. We do not hedge all
interest rate exposure, During 2011, interest rate hedging relationships with a notional amount of $200.0 million
settled resulting in DPL making a cash payment of $48.1 million ($31.3 million net of tax). As part of the Merger
discussed in Note 2, DPL entered into a $425.0 million unsecured term loan agreement with a syndicated bank
group on August 24, 2011, in part, to pay the approximately $297.4 million principal amount of DPL’s 6.875% debt
that was due in September 261 I. The remainder was drawn for other corporate purposes. This agreement is for a
three year term expiring on August 24, 2014. As a result, some of the forecasted transactions originally being
hedged are probable of not occurring and therefore approximately $5.1 million ($3.3 million net of tax) has been
reclassified to earnings during the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011. Because the interest rate
swap had already cash settled as of the Merger date, this hedge had no future value and was not valued as a part of
the purchase accounting (See Note 2 for more information). We reclassify gains and losses on interest rate derivative
hedges related to debt financings from AOCI into earnings in those periods in which hedged interest payments
occur.,

42

The following 1able provides information for DPL concerning gains or losses recognized in AQCI for the cash flow
hedges for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011:

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Successor Predecessor
Interest Interest
$ in millions (net of tax) Power Rate Hedge Power Rate Hedge
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Beginning accumulated derivative gain

/ (loss) in AQCI $ 24 3 “.7
Net gains / (losses) associated with

current period hedging transactions 2.2) 25
Net gains reclassified to earnings
Interest Expense -
Revenues (0.1} -
Purchased Power 0.1 -

(1.5)
1.8

0.1

Ending accumulated derivative gain /
(loss) in AOCI $ (46) $ (2.2}

0.4

Net gains / (losses) associated with the ineffective portion of the hedging
transaction
Interest Expense $ $

Revenues $ - 3 -
Purchased Power $ $

Portion expected to be reclassified to

earnings in the next twelve months* b 79 3 -
Maximum length of time that we are

hedging our exposure to variability in

future cash flows related to forecasted

transactions (in months) 27 12

L ]

o 9 e
1

*The actual amounts that we reclassify from AQCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market

price changes.
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The following table provides information for DPL, concerning gains or losses recognized in AQCI for the cash flow

hedges for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011:

Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Successor Predecessor
Interest Interest
$ in millions {(net of tax) Power Rate Hedge Power Rate Hedge
Beginning accumulated derivative gain
/ (loss} in AQCI L) 03 $ 08 |3 (1.8) % 21.4
Net gains / {losses) associated with
current period hedging transactions (3.8) a.mn 0.8 (59.0)
Net gains reclassified to earnings
Interest Expense - 0.3 - 1.5
Revenues (0.1) - 0.8 -
Purchased Power (1.0) - 0.6 -
Ending accumulated derivative gain /
(loss) in AQCI S 4.6y 3 22y | $ 04 % (36.1)
Net gains / (losses) associated with the ineffective portion of the hedging
transaction
Interest Expense b - % 12) |3 - % 5.1
Revenues $ - 8 - 1% - 3 -
Purchased Power $ - 8 - 1% - 8 -
Portion expected to be reclassified to
garnings in the next twelve months* $ 7.9 3 -

Maximum length of time that we are

hedging our exposure to variability in

future cash flows related to forecasted

transactions (in months) 27 12

*The actual amounts that we reclassify from AOCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market
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price changes.
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The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s derivative instruments
designated as hedging instruments at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
At September 30, 2012 (Successor)

$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position A 0.4  Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (7.3)  Other current liabilities
Total Short-term Cash Flow Hedges (6.9}
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 0.7  Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (3.0)  Other deferred credits
Interest Rate Hedges in a Liability Position (38,7} Other deferred credits
Total Long-term Cash Flow Hedges (38.0)
Total Cash Flow Hedges $ (44.9)

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
at December 31, 2011 (Successor)

$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 3 1.5  Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (0.2)  Other current liabilities
Total Short-term Cash Flow Hedges 1.3
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 01 Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (2.6)  Other deferred credits
Interest Rate Hedges in a Liability Position (32.5)  Other deferved credits
Total Long-term Cash Flow Hedges (35.0)
Total Cash Flow Hedges $ (33.7)

Mark to Market Accounting
Certain derivative contracts are entered into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do not
qualify for hedge accounting or the normal purchase and sales exceptions under FASC Topic §15. Accordingly,
such contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Results of Operations in the period in which the change occurred, This is commonly
referred to as “MTM accounting.” Clontracts we enter into as part of our risk management program may be settled
financially, by physicat delivery or net settled with the counterparty. We currently mark to market Financial
Transmission Rights (FTRs), heating oil futures, forward NYMEX-quality coal contracts and certain forward power
contracts.
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Certain qualifying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts, as
provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales under
GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statements
of Results of Operations on an accrual basis,

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery in future rates should be
deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that is probable of being returned to customers should be deferred as a
regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and are
related to the retail portion of DP&L’s load requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased power
recovery rider apptoved by the PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Chio retail customers’ portion of
the heating oil futures and the NYMEX-quality coal contracts are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the
contracts settle. If these unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery through our
rates, they will be reclassified into earnings in the period such determination is made.
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The following tables show the amount and classification within the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Results
of Operations or Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets of the gains and losses on DPL’s derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

For the three months ended September 30, 2012 (Successor)

NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Qil FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain/ (loss) § 155 % - § 61 % 29 % 12.7
Realized gain / (loss) (12.8) 0.5 6.1 0.1 (12.1)
Total $ 27 % 0.5 § 0.2 S 238 % 0.6
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partnets' share of gain / (loss) $ 47 § - 8 - § - % 4.7
Regulatory (asset) / liability 1.2 (0.1) - - 1.1
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - (2.4) (2.4)
Purchased Power - - 0.2 (0.4) (0.2)
Fuel 3.2) 0.5 - - 2.n
O&M - 0.1 - - 0.1
Total 5 27 8 0.5 § 02 § 28 % 0.6
For the three months ended September 30, 2011 (Predecessor)
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Qil FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain / (loss) $ (279) $ (16) $ 0.1y $ 03 % (29.9)
Realized gain / (loss) 43 0.5 - 1.2 6.0
Total b (23.6) % (L.l) § 0 % 09 3 (23.9)
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners' share of gain / (loss) $ (13.8y $ - - 3 - % (13.8)
Regulatory (asset) / liability (4.0} {0.6) - - (4.6)
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - (1.6) (1.6)
Purchased Power - - {0.1) 2.5 24
Fuel {5.8) {0.5) - - (6.3)
Q&M - - - - -
Total $ (236) § (1. % 0.1y % 09 8§ (23.9)
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 (Successor)
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating (il FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain/ (loss) § 134 % a5 s 1) % (0.6) % 11.2
Realized gain / {loss) (27.2) 1.9 0.5 (4.2) (25.0)
Total $ (13.8) $ 04 5 ¢4 S 4.8) § (17.8)
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners' share of gain / (loss) h) 35 % - 3 - % -5 3.5
Regulatory (asset) / liability 0.9 (0.6) - - 0.3
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - (1.7} (1.7)
Purchased Power - - 0.4 (3.1) 2.7)
Fuel (18.2) 0.8 - - (17.4)
0&M - 0.2 - - 0.2
Total $ (13.8) § 04 S 64 § (4.8) S (17.8)
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 (Predecessor)
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total
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Change in unrealized gain / (loss) $ (41.6) $ - (1 3 06 $ (41.1)
Realized gain / (loss) 8.1 1.5 (0.6) (0.8) 8.2
Total $ (335) $ 13 0.7) § 02§ (329
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners' share of gain / (loss) $ (21.2) % - - 3 - % (21.2)
Regulatory (asset) / liability {5.9) 0.1 - - (3.8)
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - {6.3) (6.3)
Purchased Power - - (0.7) 6.1 54
Fuel (6.4) 1.3 - - 5.1
Q&M - 0.1 - - 0.1
Total $ (33.5) §% 1.5 0.7 3 (02) § (32.9)
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The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s derivative instruments not

designated as hedging instruments at September 30, 2012:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
At September 30, 2012 (Successor)

$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
FTRs in an Asset Position s 0.1  Other prepayments and current assets
FTRs in a Liability Position (0.1)  Other current liabilities
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 12.0  Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (8.3)  Other current liabilities
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability
Position (1.1)  Other cumrent ljabilities
Heating Oil Futures in an Asset Position 0.3  Other prepayments and current assets
Total Short-term Derivative MTM Positions .9
L.ong-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 3.7  Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (2.4y  Other deferred credits
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability
Position - Other deferred credits
Heating Oil Futures in an Asset Position 0,1  Other defetred assets
Total Long-term Derivative MTM Positions 14
Net MTM Paosition $ 4.3
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The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s derivative instruments not

designated as hedging instruments at December 31, 2011:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
at December 31, 2011 (Successor)

$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location

Short-term Derivative Positions

FTRs in an Asset Position $ 0.1 Other current liabilities

Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 9.9 Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (6.5)  Other current liabilities
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability

Position (8.3)  Other current liabilities

Heating Oil Futures in an Asset Position 1.8 Other prepayments and current assets
Total Short-term Derivative MTM Positions (3.0)

Long-term Derivative Positions

Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 5.8  Other deferred assets

Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (4.0} Other deferred credits
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability Other deferred credits

Position (6.2)

{C39873: )



Total Long-term Derivative MTM Positions {4.4)
Net MTM Position $ (7.4
Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreements that contain provisions that
require our debt to maintain an investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. Even though our debt has
fallen below investment grade, our counterparties to the derivative instruments have not requested immediate
payment or demanded immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization of the MTM loss,
The aggregate fair value of DPL’s commeodity derivative instruments that are in a MTM loss position at September
30, 2012 is $22.2 million. This amount is offset by $12.6 million of collateral posted directly with third parties and
in a broker margin account which offsets our loss positions on the forward contracts. This liability position is further
offset by the asset position of counterparties with master netting agreements of $4.4 million. If our counterparties
were to call for collateral, we could have to post collateral for the remaining $5.2 million.
11. Common Shareholder’s Equity
Effective on the Merger date, DPL adopted Amended Articles of Incorporation providing for 1,500 authorized
common shares, of which one share is outstanding at September 30, 2012,
On October 28, 2009, the DPL Board of Directors approved a Stock Repurchase Program that permitted DPL to
use proceeds from the exercise of DPL warrants by warrant holders to repurchase other outstanding DPL warrants
or its common stock from time to time in the open market, through private transactions or otherwise. This 2009
Stock Repurchase Program was scheduled to run through June 30, 2012, but was suspended in connection with the
Merger with The AES Corporation, discussed in Note 2. In June 2011, ¢.7 miflion warrants were exercised with
proceeds of $14.7 million. Since the Stock Repurchase Program was suspended, the proceeds from the June 2011
exercise of warrants were not used to repurchase stock.
As aresult of the Merger involving DPL and AES, the outstanding shares of DP1. common stock were converted
into the right to receive merger consideration of $30.00 per share. When the remaining warrants were exercised in
March 2012, DPL paid the warrant holders an amount equal to $9.00 per warrant, which was

49

the difference between the merger consideration of $30.00 per share of DPL common stock and the exercise price

of $21.00 per share, This amount was trecorded as a $9.0 million liability at the Merger date. At December 31,

2011, DPL had 1.0 million outstanding warrants which were exercised in March 2012. At September 30, 2012,

there are no remaining warrants outstanding.

ESOP

In October 1992, our Board of Directors approved the formation of a Company-sponsored ESOP to fund matching

contributions to DP&L’s 401(k) retirement savings plan and certain other payments to eligible full-time employees.

ESOP shares used to fund matching contributions to DP&L’s 401(k) vested after two, three or five years of service

in accordance with the match formula effective for the respective plan match year; other compensation shares

awarded vested immediately.

Dwring December 2011, the ESOP Plan was terminated and participant balances were transferred to one of the two

DP&L sponsored defined contribution 401(k) plans. On December 5, 2011, the ESOP Trust paid the total

outstanding principal and interest of $68.2 million on the loan with DPL, using the merger proceeds from

unallocated DPL cominon stock held within the ESOP suspense account.

12. Earnings per Share

Basic EPS is based on the weighted-average number of DPL common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted

EPS is based on the weighted-average number of DPL common and common-equivalent shares outstanding during

the year, except in periods where the inclusion of such common-equivalent shares is anti-dilutive. Excluded from

outstanding shares for these weighted-average computations during 2011 were shares held by DP&L’s Master Trust

Plan for deferred compensation and unreleased shares held by DPL’s ESOP.

The common-equivalent shares excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS, because they were anti-dilutive, were
- not material for the three and nine months ended September 30, 201 1. Effective with the Merger with AES, DPL is

an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of AES and carnings per share information is no longer required.
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The fellowing illustrates the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS

computations:

Successor Predecessor
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
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September 30, 2012 September 30, 201 1
$ and shares in millions
except Per Per
per share amounts Income Shares Share Income Shares Share
Basic EPS N/A N/A N/A $ 67.1 1150 § 0.6
Effect of Dilutive
Securities:
Warrants N/A 0.3
Stock options, performance
and restricted shares N/A 0.2
Diluted EPS N/A N/A N/A b 67.1 115.5 $ 0.6
Successor Predecessor
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
$ and shares in millions
except Per Per
pet share amounts Income Shares Share Income Shares Share
Basic EPS N/A N/A N/A $ 142.3 1144 $ 1.2
Effect of Dilutive
Securities:
Warrants N/A 0.4
Stock options, performance ‘
and restricted shares N/A 0.2
Diluted EPS N/A N/A N/A 5 1423 1150 $ 1.2

13. Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Contingencies
DPL Inc. — Guaraniees
In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with its wholly owned subsidiaries, DPLE and
DPLER and its wholly owned subsidiary, MC Squared, providing financial or performance assurance to third
parties. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed
1o these subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish these
subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes.
At September 30, 2012, DPL had $24.4 million of guarantees to third parties for future financial or performance
assurance under such agreements, including $24.1 million of guarantees, on behalf of DPLE and DPLER and $0.3
million of guarantees on behalf of MC Squared. The guarantee arrangements entered into by DPL with these third
parties cover select present and future obligations of DPLE, DPLER and MC Squared to such beneficiaries and are
terminable by PPL upon written notice within a certain time to the beneficiaries. The carrying amount of
obligations for commercial transactions covered by these guarantees and recorded in our Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets was $1.0 million at September 30, 2012.
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To date, DPL has not incurred any losses related to the guarantees of DPLE’s, DPLER’s and MC Squared’s
obligations and we believe it is remote that DIPL would be required to perform or incur any losses in the future
associated with any of the above guarantees of DPLE’s, DPLER’s and MC Squared’s obligations.

Equity Ownership Interest

DP&L owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost
method of accounting under GAAP. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of
4.9%, or $78.8 million, of a $1,607.8 million debt obligation that features maturities from 2013 to 2040, This
would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on its debt payments. As of September 30, 2012,
we have no knowledge of such a default.

Commercial Commitments and Contractual Obligations

There have been no material changes, outside the ordinary course of business, to our commercial commitments and
to the information disclosed in the contractual obligations table in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011.

Contingencies
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In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other matters
asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided in cur Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements, as prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. However,
there can be no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various legal
proceedings, claims, tax examinations and other matters discussed below, and to comply with applicable laws and
regulations, will not exceed the amounts reflected in our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. As such,
costs, if any, that may be incurred in excess of those amounts provided as of September 30, 2012, cannot be
reasonably determined.
Environmental Matters
DPL, DP&L and our subsidiaries’ facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local
environmental regulations and laws. As well as imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and
regulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and
other sanctions. In the normal course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at these
facilities to comply, or to determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for losses that are
probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions of GAAP. We have
estimated liabilities of approximately $4.0 million for environmental matters. We evaluate the potential liability
related to probable losses quarterly and may revise our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential
liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
We have several pending environmental matters associated with our power plants. Some of these matters could have
material adverse impacts on our business and on the operation of the power plants; especially the plants that do not
have SCR and FGD equipment instatled to further control certain emissions. Currently, Hutchings and Beckjord are
our only coal-fired power plants that do not have this equipment installed. DP&L owns 100% of the Hutchings
station and a 50% interest in Beckjord Unit 6,
On July 15, 2011, Duke Energy, a co-owner at the Beckjord Unit 6 facility, filed their Long-term Forecast Report
with the PUCO. The plan indicated that Duke Energy plans to cease production at the Beckjord Station, including
our jointly owned Unit 6, in December 2014. This was followed by a notification by Duke Energy to PIM, dated
February 1, 2012, of a planned April 1, 20135 deactivation of this unit. Beckjord Unit 6 was valued at zero at the
Merger date.
We are considering options for the Hutchings station, but have not yet made a final decision. DP&L has informed
PIM that Hutchings Unit 4 has incurred damage to a rotor and will be deactivated and unavailable for service until at
least June 1, 2014, if not indeterminately, In addition, DP&L has notified PJM that Hutchings Units 1 and 2 will be
deactivated by June 1, 2015, Hutchings was valued at zero at the Merger date.
DPL revalued DP&L’s investment in the above plants at the estimated fair value for each plant at the Merger date.
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Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality

Clean Air Act Compliance

In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA
sets limits on, among other things, how much of certain designated pollutants can be in the ambient air anywhere in
the United States. The CAA allows individual states to have stronger pollution controls than those set under the
CAA, but states are not allowed to have weaker pollution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA
has a material effect on our operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the
CAA.

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

The USEPA promulgated the “Clean Air Interstate Rule” (CAIR) on March 10, 2005, which required allowance
sutrender for SO, and NOx emissions from existing power plants located in 28 eastern states and the District of
Columbia. CAIR contemplated two implementation phases. The first phase was to begin in 2009 and 2010 for NOx
and SO, respectively. A second phase with additional allowance surrender obligations for both air emissions was to
begin in 2015, To implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to establish emission
allowance based “cap-and-trade” programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal court, and on July 11,
2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an opinion striking down much of CAIR and
remanding it to the USEPA.

In response to the D.C. Circuit's opinion, on July 7, 2011, the USEPA issued a final rule titled “Federal
Implementation Plans to Reduce Interstate Transport of Fine Particulate Matter and Ozone in 27 States,” which is
now referred to as the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR). Starting in 2012, CSAPR would have required
significant reductions in SO, and NOX emissions from covered sources, such as power plants. Once fully
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implemented in 2014, the rule would require additional SO; emission reductions of 73% and additional NOx
reductions of 54% from 2005 levels. Many states, utilities and other affected parties filed petitions for review,
challenging the CSAPR before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. A large subset of the
Petitioners also sought a stay of the CSAPR. On December 30, 2011, the D.C. Circuit granted a stay of the CSAPR
and directed the USEPA to continue administering CAIR. On August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C.
Circuit Court vacated CSAPR, ruling that USEPA overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring states to make
reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA and failed to provide states an initial opportunity to adopt their
own measures for achieving federal compliance. As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR will
continue to serve as the governing program until USEPA takes further action or the U.S. Congress intervenes.
Assuming that USEPA constructs a replacement interstate transport rule addressing the D.C. Circuit Court’s ruling,
it will likely take three years or more before companies would be required to comply with a replacement rule. At this
time, it is not possible to predict the details of such a replacement transport rule or what impacts it may have on our
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, On October 3, 2012, USEPA, several states and
cities, as well as environmental and health organizations, filed petitions with the D.C. Circuit Court requesting a
rehearing by all of the judges of the D.C. Circuit Court of the case pursuant to which the three-judge panel ruled that
CSAPR be vacated. As of November 6, 2012, the D.C. Circuit Court had not ruled on USEPA’s petition for
rehearing, We cannot predict whether the D.C. Circuit Court will grant a rehearing or, if a rehearing is granted,
whether CSAPR will be ultimately reinstated and implemented in its current form or a modified form. If CSAPR
were to be reinstated in its current form, we do not expect any material capital costs for DP&L’s plants, assuming
Beckjord 6 and Hutchings generating stations will not operate on coal in 2015 due to implementation of the Mercury
and Alr Toxics Standards. Because we cannot predict the final outcome of the CSAPR rulemaking, we cannot
predict its financial impact on DP&L?’s operations.

Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants

On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published propesed Maximum Achievable Contro! Technology (MACT) standards for
coal- and oil-fired electric generating units, The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury and a
number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator sighed the final rule, now called MATS (Mercury and Air
Toxics Standards), on December 16, 2011, and the rule was published in the Federal Register on February 16, 2012.
Affected electric generating units (EGUs) will have to come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16,
2015, but may be granted an additional year contingent on Ohio EPA approval. DP&L is evaluating the costs that
may be incurred to comply with the new requirement; however, MATS is expected to have a material adverse effect
on our uncentrolled units.
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On April 29, 2010, the USEPA issued a proposed rule that would reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants from new
and existing industrial, commercial and institutional boilers, and process heaters at major and area source facilities.
The final rule was published in the Federal Register on March 21, 2011. This regulation affects seven auxiliary
boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L’s generation facilities. The regulations contain emissions limitations,
operating limitations and other requirements. In December 2011, the USEPA proposed additional changes to this
rule and solicited comments, Compliance costs are not expected to be material o0 DP&L's operations,

On May 3, 2010, the USEPA finalized the “National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants™ for
compression ignition (CI) reciprocating internal combustion engines (RICE). The units affected at DP&L are 18
diesel electric generating engines and eight emergency “black start” engines. The existing CI RICE units must
comply by May 3, 2013. The regulations contain emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements,
Compliance costs for DP&L’s operations are not expected to be material,

Carbon and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision that the USEPA has the authority to regulate CO; emissions fiom
motor vehicles, the USEPA made a finding that CO, and certain other GHGs are pollutants under the CAA.
Subsequently, under the CAA, USEPA determined that CO, and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten the
health and welfare of future generations by contributing to climate change. This finding became effective in January
2010. Numerous affected parties have petitioned the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision. On April 1,
2010, USEPA signed the “Light-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Emission Standards and Corporate Average Fuel
Economy Standards™ rule. Under USEPA’s view, this is the final action that renders CO, and other GHGs
“regulated air pollutants” under the CAA.

Under USEPA regulations finalized in May 2010 (referred to as the “Tailoring Rule”), the USEPA began regulating
GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011. The Tailoring Rule sets forth criteria for
determining which facilities are required to obtain permits for their GHG emissions pursuant to the CAA Prevention
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of Significant Deterioration and Title V operating permit programs. Under the Tailoring Rule, permitting
requirements are being phased in through successive steps that may expand the scope of covered sources over time.
The USEPA has issued guidance on what the best available control technology entails for the control of GHGs and
individual states are required to determine what controls are required for facilities on a case-by-case basis. The
ultimate impact of the Tailoring Rule 1o DP&L cannot be determined at this time, but the cost of compliance could
be material.
On April 13, 2012, the USEPA published its proposed GHG standards for new electric generating units (EGUs)
under CAA subsection 111(b), which would require certain new EGUs to meet a standard of 1,000 pounds of CO,
per megawatt-hour, a standard based on the emissions limitations achievable through natural gas combined cycle
generation. The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to install carbon capture and storage or
other expensive CO, etmission control technology to meet the standard. Furthermore, the USEPA may propose and
promulgate guidelines for states to address GHG standards for existing EGUs under CAA subsection 111¢d}. These
latter rules may focus on energy efficiency improvements at power plants. We cannot predict the effect of these
standards, if any, on DP&L’s operations.
Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO, emissions at generating
stations we own and co-own is approximately 16 million tons annually. Further GHG legisiation or regulation
finalized at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L.’s operations and costs, which could adversely
affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty associated with such
legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial impact that such legislation or
regulation may have on DP&L.
On September 22, 2009, the USEPA issued a final rule for mandatory reperting of GHGs from large sources that
emit 25,000 metric tons per year or mere of GHGs, including EGUs. DP&L has submitted to USEPA GHG
emission reports for 2011 and 2010. While this reporting rule will guide development of policies and programs to
reduce emissions, DP&L does not anticipate that the reporting rule will itself result in any significant cost or other
effect on current operations.
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Litigation, Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality

Litigation fnvolving Co-Owned Plants

On June 20, 2011, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA’s regulation of GHGs under the CAA displaced
any right that plaintiffs may have had to seek similar regulation through federal common law litigation in the court
systemn. Although we are not named as a party to these lawsuits, DP&L is a co-owner of coal-fired plants with Duke
Energy and AEP (or their subsidiaries) that could have been affected by the outcome of these lawsuits or similar
suits that may have been filed against other electric power companies, including DP&L. Because the issue was not
squarely before it, the U.S. Supreme Court did not rule against the portion of plaintiffs’ original suits that sought
relief under state law,

As aresult of a 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Court for
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the J.M. Stuart generating station are subject to certain
specified emission targets related to NOx, SO, and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes
commitments for energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during malfunctions. Continued
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&IL’s results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future,

Notices of Violgtion Involving Co-Owned Plants

In November 1999, the USEPA filed civil complaints and NOVs against operators and owners of certain generation
facilities for alleged violations of the CAA. Generation units operated by Duke Energy (Beckjord Unit 6) and CSP
(Conesville Unit 4) and co-owned by DP&L were referenced in these actions. Although DP&YL. was not identified
in the NOVs, civil complaints or state actions, the results of such proceedings could materially affect DP&L’s co-
owned plants.

In June 2000, the USEPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated J.M. Stuart generating station (co-owned by
DP&L, Duke Energy, and CSP) for alleged viclations of the CAA, The NOV contained allegations that Stuart
station engaged in projects between 1978 and 2000 without New Source Review and Prevention of Significant
Deterioration permits that resulted in significant increases in particulate matter, 8O,, and NOx. These allegations are
consistent with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coai-fired utilities in the
Midwest. The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the
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Ohio SIP; or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each
violation. To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this matter.
In December 2007, the Ohio EPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station {co-owned by
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV alleged deficiencies in the continuous
monitoring of opacity, We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no further
actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA.
On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding of
Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio State Implementation Program (SIP)
and permits for the station in areas including 8O, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV with
similar allegations was issued on November 4, 2010. Also in 2010, USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer for excess
emissions. DP&LL is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the eventual resolution
of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with respect to these matters.
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters.
Notices of Violation Involving Wholly Owned Plants
In 2007, the Ohio EPA and the USEPA issued NOVs to DP&L for alleged violations of the CAA at the Hutchings
station. The NOVs" alleged deficiencies relate to stack opagity and particutate emissions. Discussions are under way
with the USEPA, the U.S. Department of Justice and Ohio EPA, On November 18, 2009, the USEPA issued an
NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR violations of the CAA at the Hutchings station relating to capital projects
performed in 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not believe that the projects described in the NOV were
modifications subject to NSR. DP&L is engaged in discussions with the USEPA and the U.S. Department of Justice
to resolve these matters, but DP&L is unable to determine the timing, costs or method by which these issues may be
resolved. The Ohio EPA is kept apprised of these discussions.
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Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality, Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds
Clean Watey Act — Regulation of Water Intake )

On July 9, 2004, the USEPA issued final rules pursuant to the Clean Water Act governing existing facilities that
have cooling water intake structures. The rules require an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. A number of parties appealed the rules. In April 2009, the U.S.
Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA did have the authority to compare costs with benefits in determining best
technology available, The USEPA released new propesed regulations on March 28, 201 1, published in the Federal
Register on April 20, 2011, We submitted comments to the proposed regulations on August 17,2011 It is
anticipated that the final rules will be promulgated in mid-2013. We do not yet know the effect these proposed rules
will have an our operatjons.

Clean Water Act — Regulation of Waler Discharge

In December 2006, we submitted an application for the renewal of the Stuart station NPDES Permit that was due to
expire on June 30, 2007. In July 2007, we received a draft permit proposing to continue our authority to discharge
water from the station into the Ohio River. On February 5, 2008, we received a letter from the Ohio EPA indicating
that they intended to impose a compliance schedule as part of the final Permit, that requires us to implement one of
two diffuser options for the discharge of water from the station into the Ohio River as identified in a thermal
discharge study completed during the previous permit term. Subsequentty, DP&L and the Ohio EPA reached an
agreement to allow DP&L to restrict public access to the water discharge area as an alternative to installing one of
the diffuser options. Ohio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on November 12, 2008. In December
2008, the USEPA requested that the Ohio EPA provide additional information regarding the thermal discharge in the
draft permit. In June 2009, DP&L provided information to the USEPA in response to their request to the Ohio EPA.
In September 2010, the USEPA formally objected to a revised permit provided by Ohio EPA due to questions
regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. In December 2010, DP&L requested a public hearing on the
objection, which was held on March 23, 2011. We participated in and presented our position on the issue at the
hearing and in written comments submitted on April 28, 201 1. In a letter to the Ohio EPA dated September 28,
2011, the USEPA reaffirmed its ebjection to the revised permit as previously drafted by the Ohio EPA. This
reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohio EPA does not re-draft the permit to address the USEPA’s objection, then the
authority for issuing the permit will pass 1o the USEPA. The Ohio EPA issued another draft permit in December
2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012, The draft permit would require DP&L, over the 54 months
following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a
level unachievable by the station under its current design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the
cooling water system. DP&L submitted comments to the draft permit and is considering fegal options, On May 17,
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2012, we met with Ohio EPA to discuss this matter, In late August 2012, Ohio EPA provided DP&L with a revised
draft permit which included some modifications based on our previous comments. We are reviewing this revised
draft. Depending on the outcome of the process, the effects could be material on DP&L’s operations.
In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it will be revising technology-based regulations governing water
discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information via an
industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. It is anticipated that the
USEPA will release a proposed rule by late 2012 with a final regulation in place by mid-2014. At present, DP&L is
unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its operations.
In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill at the J.M. Stuart
station. The NOV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow into downstream creeks, In addition,
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a Cease and Desist order followed by a notice suspending the previously
issued Corps permit authorizing work associated with the landfill. DP&L has installed sedimentation ponds as part
of the runoff control measures to address this issue and is working with the various agencies to resolve their
concerns including entering into settlement discussions with USEPA, although they have not issued any formal
Notice of Violation. This may affect the landfill’s construction schedule and delay its operational date. DP&L has
accroed an immaterial amount for anticipated penalties related to this issue.
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Regulation of Waste Disposal

In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP for
the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site, In August 2005, DP&L and other
parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study
{RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In October 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter inviting it
to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with respect to that
notice or PRP status. However, on August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order requiring that
access to DP&L’s service center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be given to the
USEPA and the existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site’s contamination as well as to
assess whether certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater
to the landfill site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of monitoring wells
occurred in late 2009 and early 2010, On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP group, Hobart
Corporation, Kelsey-Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that DP&L and the
other defendants contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and seeking
reimbursement of the PRP group’s costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site. On February
10, 2011, the Court dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used by DP&L at its
service center contributed to the landfill site’s contamination. The Court, however, did not dismiss claims alleging
financial responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that were allegedly
directly delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present DP&L employees, is
ongoing. In June 2012, DP&L filed a motion for summary judgment on grounds that the remaining claims for
contribution are barred by a statute of limitations. The plaintiffs opposed that motion and, additionally, have filed a
motion seeking Court leave to amend their complaint to add more than 20 new defendants to the case and to
recharacterize and re-allege claims against DP&L that the Court dismissed in its February 10, 2011 order. On
October 26, 2012, DP&L received another request to access DP&L’s service center building site to assess whether
certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater to the landfill
site. While DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L were required to contribute to the
clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect on its operations.

In December 2003, DPP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP for
the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to PP&L docs not
demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of
this matter, if DP&L. were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect
on its operations.

On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking announcing that it is
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCRBs). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is evaluating information from potentially
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material adverse effect on DP&L. The USEPA
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has indicated that a proposed rule will be released in late 2012 or early 2013. At present, DP&L is unable to predict
the impact this initiative will have on its operations.
Regudation of Ash Ponds
In March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond
facilities across the country, including those at Killen and J.M. Stuart stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected
similar information for the Hutchings station.
In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Hutchings station ash ponds. In June 2011, the USEPA
issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchings station ash ponds.
DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L’s proposed plan or the
effect on operations that might arise under a different plan.
In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen station ash ponds. In June 2012, the USEPA issued
a draft report from the inspection that noted no significant issues with the ash ponds. DP&L provided comments on
the draft report and DP&L is unable to predict the outcome this inspection will have on its operations.
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There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion byproducts under the Resource Conservation
Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking comments on two options
under censideration for the regulation of coal combustion byproducts including regulating the material as a
hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. The USEPA anticipates
issuing a final rule on this topic in late 2012 or early 2013. DP&L is unable to predict the financial effect of this
regulation, but if coal combustion byproducts are regulated as hazardous waste, it is expected to have a material
adverse effect on operations.

Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Plants

On September 9, 2011, DP&L received a notice of violation from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned J.M.
Stuart generating station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted by the USEPA and Chio EPA in
2009. The notice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the Clean Water Act
NPDES permit program and the station’s storm water pollution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L
respond with the actions it has subsequently taken or plans to take 1o remedy the USEPA’s findings and ensure that
further violations will not occur. Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe
that the notice will not result in any material effect on DP&L’s results of operations, financial condition or cash
flow,

Legal and Other Matters

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for Southern District of Ohio against
Appalachian Fuels, LLC (“Appalachian™) seeking damapes incurred due to Appalachian’s failure to supply
approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly owned plants under a coal supply agreement, of which
approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L’s share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to meet its needs.
Appalachian has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankrupicy proceedings in which PP&L is participating
as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this matter. DP&L has not
recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit.

In connection with DP&L and other utilities joining PIM in 2006, the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective December 1, 2004 through March 31, 2006,
subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&L was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but
received a net benefit from these transitional payments. A hearing was held and an initial decision was issued in
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substanttally supports DP&L’s and
other utilities’ position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system during the
timeframe stated above. Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered into a significant number of bilateral
settlement agreements with certain parties to resolve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by the final
decision. On July 5, 2012, a Stipulation was executed and filed with the FERC that resolves SECA claims against
BP Energy Company (“BP*) and DP&L, AEP (and its subsidiaries) and Exelon Corporation (and its subsidiaries).
On October 1, 2012, DP&L received the $14.6 million (including interest income of $1.8 million) from BP and
recorded the settlement in the third quarter; there is no remaining balance in other deferred credits related to SECA.
Lawsuits were filed in connection with the Merger seeking, among other things, one or more of the following: to
enjoin consummation of the Merger until certain conditions were met, to rescind the Merger or for rescissory
damages, or to commence a sale process and/or obtain an alternative transaction or to recover an unspecified amount
of other damages and costs, including attorneys’ fees and expenses, or a constructive trust or an accounting from the
individual defendants for benefits they allegedly obtained as a result of their alleged breach of duty. All of these
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lawsuits, except one, were resolved and/or dismissed prior to the March 28, 2012 filing of our Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, and were discussed in that and previous reports we filed. The Jast of these
lawsuits was dismissed on March 29, 2012.
14. Business Segments
DPL operates through two segments consisting of the operations of two of its wholly owned subsidiaries, DP&L
(Utility segment) and DPLER, including the results of DPLER’s wholly owned subsidiary, MC Squared
{Competitive Retail segment), This js how we view our business and make decisions on how to allocate resources
and evaluate performance.
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The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L’s electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which
generate and sell electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers. Electricity for the
segment’s 24 county service area is primarily generated at eight coal-fired power plants and is distributed to more
than 500,000 retail customers who are located in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. DP&L also sells
electricity to DPLER and any excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale market. DP&L’s transmission
and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state regulators while rates for its generation
business are deemed competitive under Ohio law.

The Competitive Retail segment is comprised of the DPLER and MC Squared competitive retail electric service
businesses which sell retail electric energy under contract to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental
customers who have selecied DPLER or MC Squared as their alternative electric supplier. The Competitive Retail
segment sells electricity to approximately 175,000 customers located througheut Chio and in [llinois. This number
includes 101,000 customers in Northern 1llinois of MC Squared, a Chicago-based retail electricity supplier, which
was acquired by DPLER in February 2011. Due to increased competition in Chio, since 2010 we have increased the
number of employees and resources assigned to manage the Competitive Retail segment and increased its marketing
to customers. The Competitive Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its sales obligations was purchased
from DP&L and PIM. Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER are based on fixed-price contracts for each
DPLER customer; the price approximates market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each customer’s
contract, The Competitive Retail segment has no transmission or generation assets. The eperations of the
Competitive Retail segment are not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation by federal or state regulators.

Included within the “Qther” column are other businesses that do not meet the GAAP requirements for disclosure as
reportable segments as well as certain corporate costs which include interest expense on DPL’s debt.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those described in Note 1 - Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
Intersegment sales and profits are eliminated in consolidation.

In the third quarter of 2012, DP&L recognized a fixed asset impairment related to generating plants of 380.8 million
for reasons similar to those discussed in Note 15 Goodwill impairment. As a result of acquisition accounting, DPL
revalued its fixed assets at fair value as of the Merger date. In accordance with FASC 360, no impairment was
required at the DPL consolidated level. As such the DP&L impairment was eliminated in consolidation as reflected
in the tables below.
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The following table presents financial information for each of DPL’s reportable business segments:
Successor

Adjustments
Competitive and DPL

$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated
For the three months ended September 30, 2012

Revenues from external customers $ 3134 § 1455 § 12.8 $ -3 471.7
Intersegment revenues 113.4 - 0.9 (114.3) -
Total revenues 426.8 145.5 13.7 (114.3) 471.7
Fuel 108.1 - 4.6 - 112.7
Purchased power 79.9 123.4 0.9 (113.5) 90.7
Amortization of intangibles - - 24.2 - 24.2
Gross margin h 2388 § 221 % (16.0) $ (0.8} 3 2441
Depreciation and amortization $ 365 % 02 % 36) % - % 33.1
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Goodwill impairment (Note 15) - - 1,850.0 - 1,850.0
Fixed asset impairment 80.8 - - (80.8) -
Interest expense 10.0 0.2 21.¢ (0.1 31.1
Income tax expense (bencfit) 6.5 59 7.8 - 20.2
Net income (loss) (11.2) 10.0 (1,809.7) - (1,810.9)
Cash capital expenditures 52.2 - 0.4 - 52.6
At September 30, 2012
Total assets $ 3.386.6 § 932 % 7144 % - 3% 4,194.2
Predecessor
For the three months ended September 30, 2011
Revenues from external customers $ 3623 % 1186 § 167 $ - 3 497.6
Intersegment revenues 90.2 - 1.1 (91.3) -
Total revenues 4525 118.6 17.8 (91.3) 497.6
Fuel 124.0 - 5.0 - 129.0
Purchased power 95.6 101.4 1.5 (802} 108.3
Gross margin $ 2329 § 172 § 113 $ {Ll) § 260.3
Depreciation and amortization b 338 § 0.1 8% 19 § - % 35.8
Interest expense 9.3 0.1 7.6 (0.2} 16.8
Income tax expense (benefit) 26.8 4.2 (2.4) - 28.6
Net income (loss) 63.9 7.8 (6.2) 1.6 67.1
Cash capital expenditures 49.1 - 0.3 - 49.9
At December 31, 2011
Total assets 3 3,5383 % 69.9 $ 2,5290 % - 5 6,137.2
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Successor
Adjustments
Competitive and DPL
$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012
Revenues from external customers $ 3879 % 3675 $ 323 % - 5 1,287.7
Intersegment revenues 285.1 - 2.6 (287.7) -
Total revenues 1,173.0 367.5 34.9 (287.7) 1,287.7
Fuel 2723 - 6.7 - 279.0
Purchased power 234.1 315.6 13 (285.2) 265.8
Amortization of intangibles - - 71.2 - 71.2
Gross margin 3 666.6 § 519 % {443) § (2.5) % 671.7
Depreciation and amortization $ 1073 % 03 $ (12.0y $ - & 95.6
Goodwill impairment (Note 15) - - 1,850.0 - 1,850.0
Fixed asset impairment 80.8 - - (80.8) -
Interest expense 29.0 04 o04.1 (0.4) 93.1
Income tax expense {benefit) 394 15.8 (14.9) - 403
Net income {loss) 58.3 17.5 (1,853.1) - (1,777.3)
Cash capital expenditures 161.7 0.5 0.9 - 163.1
At September 30, 2012
Total assets $ 33866 % 932 § 7144 % - § 4,194.2
Predecessor
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011
Revenues from external customers $ 1,0529 $ 3146 $ 440 § - 3 1,411.5
Intersegment revenues 246.3 - 3.1 (249.4) -
Total revenues 1,299.2 314.6 47.1 (249.4) 14115
Fuel 3117 - 9.2 - 3209
Purchased power 317.8 268.6 2.6 (246.3) 342.7
Gross margin $ 669.7 §$ 46.0 § 353 % 3.1 8 7479

{C39873; )



Depreciation and amortization $ 1003 § 02 % 55 % - 3 106.0

Interest expense 28.7 0.2 227 {0.3) 513

Income tax expense {benefit) 69.3 14.1 (13.7) - 69.7

Net income (loss) 147.4 19.6 (24.7) - 142.3

Cash capital expenditures 139.9 - 1.4 - 1413

At December 31, 2011

Total assets ) 35383 § 699 § 2,529.0 % - % 6,137.2
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15. Goodwill Impairment
In connection with the acquisition of DPL by AES, DPL allocated the purchase price to goodwill for twa Reporting
Units, the DP&L Reporting Unit, which includes DP&L and other entities, and DPLER. Of the total goodwill,
approximately $2.4 billion was allocated to the DP&L Reporting Unit and the remainder was allocated to DPLER.
On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed for approval an ESP with the PUCQO. Within the ESP filing, DP&L has agreed to
request a separation of its generation assets from its transmission and distribution assets in recognition that a
restructuring of DP&L’s operations will be necessary, in compliance with Ohio law. Also, during 2012, North
American natural gas prices fell significantly from the previous year exerting downward pressure on wholesale
electricity prices in the Ohio power market. Falling power prices compressed wholesale margins at DP&L.
Furthermore, these lower power prices have led to increased switching from DP&L to other CRES providers,
including DPLER, who are offering retail prices lower than DP&L’s current standard service offer. Also, several
municipalitics in DP&L’s service territory have passed ordinances allowing them to become government
aggregators and some municipalities have contracted with CRES providers to provide generation service to the
customers located within the municipal boundaries, further contributing to the switching trend. CRES providers
have also become more active in DP&L’s service tetritory, In September 2012, management revised its cash flow
forecasts based on these new developments and forecasted lower profitability and operating cash flows than
previously prepared forecasts. These new developments have reduced DP&L’s forecasted profitability, operating
cash flows, liquidity and may impact DPL and DP&L’s ability to access the capital markets and maintain their
current credit ratings in the future. Collectively, in the third quarter of 2012, these events were considered an interim
impairment indicator for DPL’s goodwill at the DP&L Reporting Unit. There were no interim impairment indicators
identified for the goodwill at DPLER.
We performed an interim impairment test on the $2.4 billion of goodwill at the DP&L Reporting Unit level. In the
preliminary Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test, the fair value of the Reporting Unit was determined under the
income approach using a discounted cash flow valuation model. The material assumptions included within the
discounted cash flow valuation model were customer switching and aggregation trends, capacity price curves,
energy price curves, amount of the nonbypassable charge, commodity price curves, dispatching, transition period for
the conversion to a wholesale competitive bidding structure, amount of the standard service offer charge, valuation
of regulatory assets and liabilities, discount rates and deferred income taxes. Further refinement to these assumptions
as part of the completion of the preliminary Step 1 and Step 2 tests could have a significant impact on the enterprise
value and the implied fair value of goodwill. The Reporting Unit failed the preliminary Step 1 and a preliminary
Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test was performed. For the three months ended September 30, 2012, we have
recognized a goodwill impairment expense of $1,850.0 million, which represents our best estimate of the
impairment loss based on the latest information available and the results of the preliminary Step 1 and Step 2 tests.
We estimate the final goodwill impairment expense will be in the range of $1.7 billion to $2.0 billion. In the fourth
quarter of 2012, we expect to conclude the interim impairment test of goodwili and finalize the estimation of the
impairment charge. We were not able to finalize the Step 1 and Step 2 tests by the filing date of this Form 10-Q due
to the significant amount of work required to calculate the implied fair value of goodwill for a complex, regulated
utility such as DP&L and the other entities in the DP&L Reporting Unit and due to the timing of the identification
of the interim impairment indicator. Actual goodwill impairment loss could be significantly different from the
estimated impairment loss recognized.
The goodwill associated with the DPL acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes. Accordingly, there is no cash
tax or financial statement tax benefit related to the impairment. The Company’s effective tax rates were impacted by
the pretax impairment, however. The Company’s effective tax rates were (1.2)% and (2.3)% for the three months
and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively.

62

win [P = ENERRES D R e R i e = P

(G39873: }



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Dayton Power and Light Company
63

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues $ 4268 $ 4525 % 1,173.0 % 1,299.2
Cost of revenues:
Fuel 108.1 124.0 2723 311.7
Purchased power 79.9 95.6 234.1 317.8
Total cost of revenues 188.0 219.6 506.4 629.5
Gross margin 2388 232.9 666.6 669.7
Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance 103.6 80.2 298.8 266.7
Depreciation and amortization 36.5 33.8 1073 100.3
General taxes 14.3 18.9 4.1 57.6
Fixed asset impairment 80.8 - 80.8 -
Total operating expenses 235.2 132.9 541.0 424.0
Operating income 3.6 100.0 125.6 245.1
Other income / (expense), net:
Investment income 1.9 0.4 2.1 1.3
Interest expense (10.0) {9.3) (29.0) (28.7)
QOther expense {0.2) (0.4) ~(LO) (1.2)
Total other income / (expense), net (8.3) {9.3) 27.9) (28.4)
Earnings / (loss) before income tax 4.7} 90.7 97.7 216.7
Income tax expense 6.5 26.8 39.4 69.3
Net income / (loss) (11.2) 63.9 58.3 147.4
Dividends on preferred stock 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.6
Earnings / (loss) on commoa stock 3 (11.4) 3§ 637 8 577 % 146.8
See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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THE DAYTON POWER ANDVLIGHT COMPANY
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Net income / (loss) b3 (11.2) § 639 § 583 § 147 .4
Availabie-for-sale securities activity:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities, net of income tax benefit /
(expense) of $(0.1) and $0.1, respectively,
for the three month period and $(0.3) and
$(1.3), respectively, for the nine month
period 0.2 {0.4) 0.5 2.3
Total change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities 0.2 (0.4 0.5 23
Derjvative activity:
Change in derivative fair value, net of 2.5 1.8 4.0) 0.7
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income tax benefit / (expense) of $1.3 and

$0.0, respectively, for the three month

period and $2.2 and $0.8, respectively, for

the nine month period

Reclassification of earnings, net of income

tax benefit / (expense) of $0.1 and $0.9,

respectively for the three month period and

$0.7 and $0.3, respectively for the nine

month period 0.7 (0.5) (3.1) _(0.5)
Total change in fair value of derivatives (3.2) 13 (7.1) 0.2

Pension and postretirement activity:

Reclassification to earnings, net of income

tax benefit / (expense) of $(0.6) and $(0.1),

respectively, for the three month period and

$(1.7) and 30.7, respectively for the nine

month period i.0 1.0 3.0 26
Total change in unfunded pension '
obligation 1.0 1.0 3.0 2.6
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (2.0) 1.9 (3.6) 5.1
Net comprehensive income / (loss) $ (13.2) % 658 3% 547 % 152.5

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Nine Months Ended

September 30,
§ in millions 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 583 % 147 4
Adjustments to reconcile Net income to Net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 107.3 100.3
Deferred income taxes 3.4 56.1
Fixed asset impairment 80.8 -
Recognition of deferred SECA revenue (17.8) -
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 13.0 264
Inventories 28.1 (9.0)
Prepaid taxes 0.8 (11.5)
Taxes applicable to subsequent years 56.2 47.1
Deferred regulatory costs, net 2.4 7.9
Accounts payable (16.3) (14.9)
Accrued taxes payable (35.2) (58.5)
Accrued interest payable 7.4 7.4
Pension, retiree, and other benefits 24.4 (317}
Unamortized investment tax credit (1.9) (2.1}
Other 4.3 29.3
Net cash provided by operating activities 299.8 294.2
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (161.7) (139.9)
Increase in restricted cash (5.2) (7.4)
Other - 1.4
Net cash from investing activities _(166.9) (145.9)
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont.)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Net cash from financing activities:
Dividends paid on common stock to parent (145.0) (180.0)
Dividends paid on preferred stock (0.6} (0.6)
Retirement of long-term debt (0.1} -
Withdrawals from revolving credit facilities - 50.0
Repayment of borrowing from revolving credit facilities - (50.0)
Net cash from financing activities (145.7) {180.6}
Cash and cash equivalents:
Net change (12.8) (32.3)
Balance at beginning of period 32,2 54.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 194 § 21.7
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $ 226 S 222
Income taxes paid, net $ 30.3 S 13.9
Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Accruals for capital expenditures $ 125  $ 14.8
Long-term liability incurred for purchase of plant assets $ - 3 18.7
See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
At At
September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 194 % 322
Restricted cash 19.5 14.3
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3) 171.8 178.5
Inventories (Note 3} 95.1 1231
Taxes applicable to subsequent years 15.7 71.9
Regulatory assets, current (Note 4) 18.9 17.7
Other prepayments and current assets 17.3 23.2
Total current assets 357.7 460.9
Property, plant & equipment:
Property, plant & equipment 5,216.4 52779
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,500.0) (2,568.9)
2,716.4 2,709.0
Construction work in process 99.0 150.7
Total net property, plant & equipment 2,8154 2,859.7
Other noncurrent assets:
Regulatory assets, non-current {Note 4} 181.3 177.8
Intangible assets, net of amortization 11.4 6.3
Other deferred assets 20.3 334
Total other noncurrent assets 213.5 217.7
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Total assets $ 33866 % 3,538.3

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

At At
September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion - long-term debt (Note 6) $ 04 $ 0.4
Accounts payable 74.1 106.0
Accrued taxes 108.7 72.8
Accrued interest 15.6 7.9
Customer security deposits 15.9 15.8
Other current liabilities 60.5 46.1
Total current liabilities 275.2 249.0
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 6} 902.8 903.0
Deferred taxes (Note 7) 644.0 637.7
Taxes payable 25.5 93.9
Regulatory liabilities, non-current (Note 4) 117.5 118.6
Pension, retiree and other benefits 55.7 47.5
Unamortized investment tax credit 23.0 29.9
Derivative liability 5.2 11.8
Other deferred credits 43.5 66.1
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,822.2 1,908.5
Redeemable preferred stock 229 22.9
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Commeon shareholder's equity:
Common stock, at par value of $0.01 per share: 0.4 0.4
Other paid-in capital 802.5 803.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (38.3) (34.7)
Retained earnings 501.7 589.1
Total common shareholder's equity 1,266.3 1,357.9
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity $ 3,366 § 3,538.3

See Notes to Condensed Financial Statements.
These interim statements are unaudited.
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Notes to Condensed Financial Statements (Unaudited)
1. Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business
DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio, DP&L is engaged in the generation,
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers in
a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. Electricity for DP&L's 24 county service area is primarily generated
at eight coat-fired power plants and is distributed to more than 500,000 retail customers. Principal industries served
include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic manufacturing and defense. DP&L is a wholly owned subsidiary
of DPY..
On November 28, 2011, DP&L’s parent company DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of AES. See Note 2 for more information.
DP&L's sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather patterns of the arca. DP&L sells any
excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market.
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DP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory liabilities
when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.
DP&L employed 1,443 people as of September 30, 2012. Approximately 54% of all employees are under a
collective bargaining agreement which expires on October 31, 2014.
Financial Statement Presentation
DP&L does not have any subsidiaries. DP&L has undivided ownership interests in seven electric generating
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. Operating revenues and expenses of these generating plants are
included on a pro rata basis in the corresponding lines in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations. See
Note 3 for more information,
Certain excise taxes collected from customers have been reclassified out of operating expense and recorded as a
reduction in revenues in the 2011 presentation to conforim to AES’ presentation of these iterns. These taxes are
presented net within revenue. Certain immaterial amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to
the current reporting presentation.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP for interim financial statements, the
instructions of Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X. Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally
included in the annual financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been omitted from this interim
report. Therefore, our interitm financial statements in this report should be read along with the annual financial
statements included in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011,
In the opinion of our management, the Condensed Financial Statements presented in this report contain all
adjustments necessary to fairly state our financial condition as of September 30, 2012, our results of operations for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and our cash flows for the nine months ended September 30,
2012. Unless otherwise noted, all adjustments are normal and recurring in nature. Due to various factors, including
but not limited to, seasonal weather variations, the timing of outages of electric generating units, changes in
economic conditions involving commeadity prices and competition, and other factors, interim results for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2012 may not be indicative of our results that will be realized for the full
year ending December 31, 2012.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant items
subject to such estimates and judgments include: the carrying value of property, plant and equipment; unbilled
revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the
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valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves
recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; and assets and liabilities related
to employee benefits.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held plants as an asset in property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. For regulated fransmission and distribution property,
cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for funds used during
construction (AFUDC), AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to finance regulated
construction projects. For non-regulated property, cost also includes capitalized interest. Capitalization of AFUDC
and interest ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by regulators. AFUDC and capitalized
interest was $0.9 million and $1.1 million for the three months and $3.4 million and $3.5 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For unregulated generation property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and
interest capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized
interest.

For substantially all depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less
any salvage value is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Property is evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

Intangibles
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Intangibles consist of emission allowances and renewable energy credits. Emission allowances are carried on a first-

in, first-out (FIFO) basis for purchased emission allowances. Net gains or losses on the sale of excess emission

allowances, representing the difference between the sales proceeds and the cost of emission allowances, are recorded
as a component of our fuel costs and are reflected in Operating income when realized. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and 201 1, DP&L had no gains from the sale of emission allowances, Emission allowances are

, amortized as they are used in our operations. Renewable energy credits are amortized as they are used or retired.
Prior to the Merger date, emission allowances and renewable energy credits were carried as inventory. Emission

allowances and renewable energy credits are now carried as intangibles in accordance with AES” policy. The

amounts for 2011 have been reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
Accounting for Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authaorities

DP&L collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. Prior to the Merger
date, certain excise and other taxes were recorded on a gross basis. Effective on the Merger date, these taxes are
accounted for on a net basis and are recorded as a reduction in Revenues for presentation in accordance with AES
policy. The amounts for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were $13.8 million and $14.3 million,
respectively. The amounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were $38.5 million and $39.9

million, respectively. The 2011 amounts were reclassified to conform to this presentation.
Share-Based Compensation

We measured the cost of employee services received and paid with equity instruments based on the fair-value of

such equity instrument on the grant date. This cost was recognized in results of operations over the period that
employees were required to provide service. Liability awards were initialty recorded based on the fair-value of

equity instruments and were re-measured for the change in stock price at each subsequent reporting date until the
liability was ultimately settled. The fair-value for employee share options and other similar instruments at the grant
date were estimated using option-pricing models and any excess tax benefits were recognized as an addition to paid-

in capital. The reduction in income taxes payable from the excess tax benefits was presented in the Condensed
Statements of Cash Flows within Cash flows from financing activities. As a result of the Merger (see Note 2),
vesting of all DPL share-based awards was accelerated as of the Merger date, and none are in existence al

September 30, 2012.
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Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, DP&L enters into transactions with other subsidiaries of DPL. The following table

provides a summary of these transactions:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012
DP&L Revenues:
Sales to DPLER (o) . 933 % 302 § 2631 3 246.3
Sales to MC Squared (b) 5 198 § - 5 201§ -
DP&L Operations and Maintenance Expenses:
Premiums paid for insurance
services provided by MVIC (¢) $ 0N 3 08 § (L9 §$ 2.4
Expense recoveries for services
provided to DPLER (d) $ 1.2 3 1.1 § 27 3 2.8
(a) DP&L sells power (o DPLER to satisfy the electric requirements of
DPLERs retail customers. The revenue dollars associated with safes to
DPLER are recorded as wholesale revenues in DP&L’s Financial
Steterments. The increase in DP&L's sales to DPLER during the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2011, is primarily due to customers electing to
switch their generation service from DP&L to DPLER.
(b) DP&L sells power to MC Squared to satisfy the electric requirements of DPLER 's retail customers. The revenue dollars associated

with safes to DPLER are recorded as wholesale revenues in DP&L’s Financiol Statements. The increase in DP&L’s sales fo MC
Squared during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to the three and nine months ended September 30,

2011, is due to these soles beginning in September 2012

() MVIC, a wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary of DPL, provides insurance coverage to DP&L and other DPL subsidiaries for
workers' compensation, general liability, property damages and directors’ and officers’ Hability. These amounts represent insurance
preniums paid by DP&L to MVIC.

(d) In the normal course of business DP&L incurs and records expenses on behalf of DPLER. Such expenses include but are not limited

to employee-related expenses, accounting, information techiology, payroll, legal and other administrative expenses. DP&L
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subsequently charges these expenses to DPLER at DP&L’s cost and credits the expense in which they were initially recorded.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

In December 2011, the FASE issued ASU 2011-11 “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities”
(ASU 2011-11) effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
We expect to adopt this ASU on January 1, 2013, This standard updates FASC 210, "Balance Sheet.”
ASU 2011-11 updates the disclosures for financial instruments and derivatives to provide more
transparent information around the offsetting of assets and liabilities. Entities are required to disclose both
gross and net information about both instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the statement of
financial position and/or subject to an agreement similar to a master netting agreement. We do not expect
these new rules to have a material impact on our cverall results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.
Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairments
In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 “Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment” (ASU
2012-02) effective for interim and annuai impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15,
2012. We expect to adopt this ASU on January 1, 2013. This standard updates FASC Topic 350, “Intangibles-
Goodwill and Other.” ASU 2012-02 permits an entity first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is
necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with FASC Subtopic 350-30. We do not expect
these new rules to have a material impact on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
Fair Value Disclosures
In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 “Fair Value Mecasurements” (ASU 2011-04) effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this ASU on January 1, 2012. This
standard updates FASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements.” ASU 2011-04 essentially converges US GAAP
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puidance on fair vatue with the IFRS guidance, The ASU requires more disclosures around Level 3 inputs, It also
increases reporting for financial instruments disclosed at fair value but not recorded at fair value and provides
clarification of blockage factors and other premiums and discounts. These new rules did not have a material effect
on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05 “Presentation of Comprehensive ITncome™ (ASU 2011-03} effective
for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this ASU on January 1,
2012. This standard updates FASC 220, “Comprehensive Income.” ASU 2011-05 essentially converges US GAAP
guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income with the IFRS guidance. The ASU requires the presentation
of comprehensive income in one continuous financial statement or two separate but consecutive statements. Any
reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive income to net income are required to be presented on the face
of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. These new rules did not have a material effect on our overall results of
operations, financial position or cash flows,

Derivative gross vs. net presentation — Following the acquisition of DPL in November 2011 by AES, DP&L began
presenting its derivative positions on a gross basis in accordance with AES policy. This change has been reflected in
the 2011 balance sheet contained in these statements.

2. Business Combination

On November 28, 2011, all of the outstanding common stock of DP&L’s parent company, DPL, was acquired by
AES. In accordance with FASC 805, the assets and liabilities of DPL were valued at their fair value at the Merger
date. These adjustments were “pushed down” to DPL’s records. These adjustments were not pushed down to DP&L
which will continue to use its historic costs for its assets and liabilities.

3. Supplemental Financial Information

At At
September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Accounts receivable, net:
Unbilled revenue $ 34.2 s 49.5
Customer receivables 89.3 85.8
Amounts due from partners in jointly-owned plants 16.5 202
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Coal sales 4.5 1.0

Other 28.4 13.9
Provision for uncollectible accounts (1.1} (0.9)
Total accounts receivable, net 5 171.8 $ 178.5
Inventories, at average cost:
Fuel, limestone and emission allowances h) 53.7 $ 82.8
Plant materials and supplies 39.5 386
Other 1.9 1.7
Total inventories, at average cost b 95.1 $ 123.1
73

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)

AOCI is included on our balance sheets within the Common shareholders’ equity sections. The following table
provides the components that constitute the balance sheet amounts in AQCI at September 30, 2012 and December
31,2011

At At
September 30, December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Financial Instruments $ 1.1 S 0.6
Cash flow hedges 2.0 9.0
Pension and postretirement benefits (41.4) (44.3)
Total $ (38.3) 3 (34.7)

4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
In accordance with GA AP, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded in the Condensed Balance Sheets for our
regulated electric tfransmission and distribution businesses. Regulatory assets are the deferral of costs expected to be
recovered in future customer rates and regulatory liabilities represent current recovery of expected future costs or
gains probable of recovery being reflected in future rates.
We evaluate our regulatory assets each period and beligve recovery of these assets is probable. We have received
or requested a return on certain regulatory assets for which we are currently recovering or seeking recovery
through rates. We record a return after it has been authorized in an order by a regulator.
Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on the term in which recovery is
expected,
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Regulatory assets and liabilities for DP&L are as follows:

Type of Amortization At September At December

$ in millions Recovery (a) through 30,2012 31,2011
Current regulatory assets:

TCRR, transmission, ancillary and

other PYM-related costs F Ongoing $ 63 % 47

Power plant emission fees C Ongoing (0.3) 4.8

Fuel and purchased power recovery

costs C Ongoing 12.9 8.2

Total regulatory assets - current $ 189 § 17.7

Non-current regulatory assets:

Deferred recoverable income taxes B/C Ongoing $ 370 % 24.1

Pension benefits C Ongoing 87.1 92.1

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt C Ongoing 12.2 13.0

Regional transmission organization

costs D 2014 3.0 4.1

Deferred storm costs - 2008 D 18.7 17.9

CCEM smart grid and advanced

metering infrastructure costs D 6.6 6.6

CCEM energy efficiency program F Ongoing 5.9 8.8
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costs

Consumer education campaign D 3.0 3.0
Retail settlement system costs D 31 31
Other costs 4.7 5.1

Total regulatory assets - non-current $ 181.3 § 177.8

Non-current regulatory liabilities:
Estimated costs of removal - regulated

property $ 1116 § 1124
Postretirement benefits 5.6 6.2
Other 0.3 -

Total regulatory liabilities - non-

current $ 1175 3% 118.6

(2) B — Ralance has an offsetting
i inkility resulting in no effect on rate
ase.

C — Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return.
D — Recovery not yet determined, but is probable of occurring in future rate proceedings.
F — Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of return,

Regulatory Assets

TCRR, transmission, anciliary and other PJM-related costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary
service and other PJM-related charges that have been incurred as a member of PIM. On an annual basis, retail rates
are adjusted to true-up costs with recovery in rates.
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Power plant emission fees represent costs paid to the State of Ohio since 2002. As part of the fuel factor settlement
agreement in November 2011, these costs are being recovered through the fuel factor.

Fuel and purchased power recovery costs represent prudently incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative, emission
and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the operation of
the fuel and purchased power recovery rider. The fuel and purchased power recovery rider fluctuates based on actual
costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of each seasonal quarter. DP&L implemented the fuel and
purchased power recovery rider on January 1, 2010. As part of the PUCO approval process, an outside auditor is
hired to review fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. The auditor has recommended that the PUCO consider
reducing DP&L’s recovery of fuel costs by approximately $3.3 million from certain transactions. On October 4,
2012, we filed testimony on this issue and a hearing is scheduled in November 2012 before a hearing examiner, A
decision is expected in the fourth quarter of 2012. As of September 30, 2012, we believe the entire amount is
recoverable. .

Deferred recoverable income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of flow
through items as the result of amounts previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow through benefit
given to regulated customers that will be collected from them in future years. Since currently existing temporary
differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse in subsequent periods,
these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over time.

Pension benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “Compensation — Retirement Benefits” costs of our regulated
operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an asset for a plan’s
overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of other
comprehensive income (QOCT), the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion that
would otherwise be charged as a loss to OCI,

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior periods.
These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issues in accordance with FERC and PUCO rules.
Regional transmission organization costs represent costs incurred to jein an RTO. The recovery of these costs will
be requested in a future FERC rate case.

Deferred storm costs — 2008 relate to costs incurred to repair the damage caused by hurricane force winds in
September 2008, as well as other major 2008 storms. On January 14, 2009, the PUCO granted DP&L the authority
to defer these costs with a return until such time that DP&L seeks recovery in a future rate proceeding.
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CCEM smart grid and AMI costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution system
upgrades and implementation of AML. On October 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw its case pertaining to the
Smart Grid and AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal in an order issued on January 5, 2011. The
PUCO alse indicated that it expects DP&L to continue to monitor other utilities’ Smart Grid and AMI programs and
to explore the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI programs and that DP&L will, when
appropriate, file new Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the future. We plan to file to recover these deferred
costs in a future regulaiory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCO precedent, we believe these costs are probabie of
future recovery in rates,
CCEM energy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various new customer
programs addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an energy efficiency rider (EER)
that began July 1, 2009 and is subject to a two-year true-up for any over/under recovery of costs. On April 29, 2011,
DP&L filed to true-up the EER which was approved by the PUCO on October 18, 2011. DP&L plans to make its
next true-up filing on or before April 30, 2013.
Consumer education campaign represents costs for consumer education advertising regarding electric deregutation
and its related rate case, DP&L will be seeking recovery of these costs as part of our next distribution rate case
filing at the PUCO. The timing of such a filing has not yet been determined.
Retail settlement system costs represent costs fo implement a retail settlement system that recongiles the energy a
CRES supplier delivers to its customers and what its customers actually use. Based on case precedent in other
utilities’ cases, the costs are recoverable through a future DP&L rate proceeding.
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Other costs primarily include RPM capacity, other PJM and rate case costs and alternative energy costs that are or
will be recovered over various periods.

Reguiatory Liabilities

Estimated costs of removal — regulated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for costs
that are expected to be incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution property from service
when the property is retired.

Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “Compensation — Retirement Benefits” gains related to
our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We recognize
an asset for a plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component
of QCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not recognized as a component
of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion that would otherwise be
reflected as a gain to OCL

On August 10, 2012, DP&L filed with the PUCO for an accounting order for permission to defer operation and
maintenance costs as a result of damage caused by storms occurring during the final weekend of June 2012. The
deferral request is for distribution expense incurred for these storms. The deferral would earn a return equal to the
carrying cost of debt (5.86%) until these costs are recovered from customers, On October 19, 2012, DP&IL. amended
its filing to change the method of calculating the deferral. If PUCO approval is received, DP&L will defer
approximately $5.8 million of costs associated with these storms.

5. Ownership of Coal-fired Facilities

DP &1, has undivided ownership interests in seven coal-fired electric generating facilities and numerous
transmission facilities with certain other Ohio utilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the gencrating
stations, are allocated to the owners based on their energy usage, The remaining expenses, investments in fuel
inventory, plant materials and operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance
with their respective ownership interests. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L had $31.0 million of construction
work in process at such jointly-owned facilities, DP&L’s share of the operating cost of such facilities is included
within the corresponding line in the Condensed Statements of Results of Operations and DP&L’s share of the
investment in the facilities is included within Total net property, plant and equipment in the Condensed Balance
Sheets. Each joint owner provides their own financing for their share of the operations and capital expenditures of
the jointly owned station.
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DP&L.’s undivided ownership interest in such facilities as well as our wholly owned coal-fired Hutchings station at
September 30, 2012, is as follows:

DP&L Share DP&L Tnvestment
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SCR and

FGD
Construction Equipment
Summer  Gross Plant  Accumulated  Work in Instatled
Production  in Service  Depreciation Process and in
Jointly-owned preduction Ownership Capacity (3in ($in (Bin Service
stations: {%o) (MW} millions)  millions) millions} (Yes/No)
Beckjord Unit 6 50.0 207 $ 76 § 62 % - No
Conesville Unit 4 16.5 129 25 - - Yes
East Bend Station 31.0 186 208 135 1 Yes
Killen Station 67.0 402 628 308 4 Yes
Miami Fort Units 7 and 8 36.0 368 304 146 3 Yes
Stuart Station 35.0 808 740 290 12 Yes
Zimmer Station 28.1 365 1,097 639 3 Yes
Transmission (at varying,
percentages) 92 59 -
Total 2,465 $ 3,230 $ 1,639 $ 23
Whelly-owned production
station:
Hutchings Station 100.0 365 3% - % - % - No

On July 15,2011, Duke Energy, a co-owner at the Beckjord Unit 6 facility, filed their Long-term Forecast Report
with the PUCO. The plan indicated that Duke Energy plans to cease production at the Beckjord station, including
our jointly owned Unit 6, in December 2014. This was followed by a netification by Duke Energy to PJM, dated
February 1, 2012, of a planned April 1, 2015 deactivation of this unit. DP&L does not object to Duke’s decision.
We are depreciating Unit 6 through December 2014 and do not believe that any additional accruals or impairment
charges are needed as a result of this decision.

We are considering options for the Hutchings station, but have not yet made a final decision. DP&L has informed
PJM that Hutchings Unit 4 has incurred damage to a rotor and will be deactivated and unavailable for service until at
least June 1, 2014, if not indeterminately. In addition, DP&L has notified PJM that Hutchings Units 1 and 2 will be
deactivated by June 1, 2015. We do not believe that any accruals are needed related to the Hutchings station. The
decision to deactivate Units 1 and 2 has been made because these two units are not equipped with the advanced
environmental control technologies needed to comply with the MACT standard, which was renamed MATS
{Mercury Air Toxics Standard) when the rule was issued final on December 16, 2011, and the cost of compliance
with the MATS standard or conversion to natural gas for these units would likely exceed the expected return. DP&L
is still studying the option of converting two or more of Hutchings Units 3-6 to natural gas in order to comply with
environmental requirements,
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6. Debt Obligations
Long-term debt is as follows:
Long-term debt

At September 30, At December 31,
$ in millions 2012 2011
First mortgage bonds maturing in October 2013 - 5.125% $ 4760 $ 470.0
Pellution control series maturing in January 2028 - 4.70% 353 353
Pallution control series maturing in Janvary 2034 - 4.80% 179.1 179.1
Pollution control series maturing in September 2036 - 4.80% 100.0 100.0
Pollution control series maturing in November 2040
- variable rates: (.04% - 0.26% and 0.06% - 0.32% (a) 100.0 100.0
U.S. Government note maturing in February 2061 - 4.20% 18.4 18.5
Capital lease obligation 0.2 04
Unamortized debt discount (0.2) {0.3)
Total long-term debt 3 9028 ¢ 903.0

(a) Range of interest rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, respectively.
Current portion - long-term debt
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At September 30, At December 31,

§ in millions 2012 2011

U.S. Government note maturing in February 2061 - 420% $ 01 3 0.1
Capital lease obligation 0.3 0.3
Total current portion - long-term debt - DPL $ 0.4 § 0.4

At September 30, 2012, maturities of long-term debt, including capital lease obligations,
are summarized as follows:
$ in millions

Due within one year $ 0.4
Due within two years 470.3
Due within three years 0.1
Due within four years 0.1
Due within five years 0.1
Thereatter 432.4

Total long-term debt s 903.4

On December 4, 2008, the OAQDA issued $100.0 million of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the OAQDA and issued
corresponding First Mortgage Bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on
each series of the bonds when due is backed by a standby letter of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, This
letter of credit facility, which expires in December 2013, is irrevocable and has no subjective acceleration clauses.
Fees associated with this letter of credit facility were not material during the three and nine months ended September
30,2012 and 2011.
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On April 20, 2010, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement is for a three year term expiring on April 20, 2013 and provides DP &L with the ability
to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this
credit facility at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were
not material during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011. This facility also contains a
$50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against
this facility.

On March 1, 2011, DP&L completed the purchase of $18.7 million of electric transmission and distribution assets
from the federal government that are located at the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base. DP&L financed the
acquisition of these assets with a note payable to the federal government that is payable monthly over 50 years and
bears interest at 4.2% per annum.

On August 24, 2011, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement is for a four year term expiring on August 24, 2015 and provides DP&L with the ability
to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this
credit facility at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were
not material during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011. This facility also contains a
$50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L. had no outstanding letters of credit against
this facility.

Substantially all property, plant and equipment of DP&L is subject to the lien of the mortgage securing PP&L’s
First and Refunding Mortgage, dated October 1, 1935, with the Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee.

7. Income Taxes

The following table details the effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 | 2011 2012 | 2011
DP&I, (138.3)% 29.6% 40.3% 32.0%

Income tax expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 was calculated using the
estimated annual effective income tax rates of 30.7% and 33.1% for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, management estimated the annual effective tax rate based
upon its forecast of annual pre-tax income. For the three and nine months ended September 3¢, 2012, management
estimated the annual effective tax rate based on actual pre-tax income for the period.
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For the three months ended September 30, 2012, DP&L’s current period effective rate is less than the estimated
annual effective rate due to certain current period tax adjustments. These current period adjustments include a
revision to the estimated annual effective rate resulting in a reduction of tax expense of $1.3 million offset by an
increase in tax expense of $9.3 million due to fixed asset related deferred tax true-ups as well as the effect of
estimate-to-actual income tax provision adjustments primarily related to lost Domestic Manufacturing Deductions.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, DP&L’s current period effective rate is greater than the estimated
annual effective rate due to certain current period tax adjustments. These current period adjustments include an
increase in other estimated tax liabilities of $0.3 million as well as an increase in tax expense of $9.3 million due to
fixed asset related true-ups as well as the effect of estimate-to-actual income tax provision adjustments primarily
related to lost Domestic Manufacturing Deductions.
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the decrease in DP&L’s effective tax rate compared to the
same period in 2011 primarily reflects decreased pre-tax book income related to an impairment on certain fixed
assets during the third quarter of 2012.
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Deferred tax liabilities for DP&L increased by approximately $4.8 million and $6.3 million, respectively, during the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2012. These increases were primarily related to depreciation offset by
various purchase accounting adjustments.

The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second
quarter of 2010 that has continued through the current quarter. At this time, we do not expect the results of this
examination to have a material effect on our financial statements.

8. Pension and Postretirement Benefits

DP&L sponsors a defined benefit pension plan for the vast majority of its employees.

We generally fund pension plan benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and, in addition, make voluntary contributions from
time to time. There were no contributions made during the nine months ended September 30, 2012. DP&L made a
discretionary contribution of $40.0 million to the defined benefit plan during the nine months ended September 30,
2011.

The amounts presented in the following tables for pension include the collective bargaining plan formula, the
traditional management plan formula, the cash balance plan formula and the SERP in the aggregate. The amounts
presented for postretirement include both health and life insurance.

The net periodic benefit cost (income) of the pension and postretirement benefit plans for the three months ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011 was:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) Pension Postretirement
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Service cost $ 1.5 8§ 0.8 § - 8 -
Interest cost 4.3 4.1 0.2 0.2
Expected return on assets (q) 5.7 (6.2) (0.1) (0.1)
Amortization of unrecognized:
Actuarial loss / (gain) 2.4 1.7 (0.2) (0.5)
Prior service cost 0.7 0.5 0.1 0.1
Net periedic benefit cost / {(income)
before adjustments 3.2 0.9 - (0.3)
Settlement cost (b) 0.5 - - .
Net periodic benefit cost / {income) $ 37 § 09 § - 5 (0.3)
(a} For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan asseis,

under GAAP, the market-related value of assets (MRVA) is used. GAAP

requires that the difference between actual plan assef returns gnd estimated

plan asset returns be included in the MRVA equally over a period not 1o

exceed five years, We use a methodolagy under which we include the

difference between actual and estimated asset refurns in the MRVA equally

aver a three year period. The MRVA used in the calculation of expected

retiirn on pension plan assets for the 2012 and 2011 ret periodic benefit

cost was approximately 3335.6 million and 3316.0 million, respectively.

(b The settiement cost relates to a former officer who has elected to receive a lump sum distribution in 2012 from the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan.

{C39873:}



81

The net periodic benefit cost (income) of the pension and postretirement benefit plans for the nine months ended

Septermber 30, 2012 and 2011 was:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) Pension Postretirement
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Service cost $ 46 % 37 % 01 3 0.1
Interest cost 12.9 12.7 0.6 0.7
Expected return on assels (aj (17.0) (18.4} (0.2) 0.2}
Amortization of unrecognized:
Actuarial loss / (gain) 71 6.2 0.7 {0.9)
Prior service cost 2.2 1.6 0.1 0.1
Net periodic benefit cost / (income)
before adjustments 9.8 58 0.1 (0.2)
Settlement cost (b) 0.5 - - -
Net periodic benefit cost / (income}) $ 10,3 3 58 % w1y 3 (0.2)

@

For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets, under GAAP,
the marker-related value of assets (MRVA) is used. GAAP requires that the difference
between actual plan asset returns and estimated plan asset returns be included in the
MRVA equally aver a period rot to exceed five years. We use a methodology under
which we include the difference between actual and estimated asset retirns in the
MRVA equally over a three year period. The MRVA used in the calculation of
expected return on pension plan assets for the 2012 and 2011 ret periodic benefit
cost was approximately $335.0 million and $316.0 million, respectively.

(b) The settlement cost relates fo a former officer who has elected to receive a lump sum distribution in 2012 from the Supplemental Executive

Retivement Plan.

Benefit payments, which reflect Tuture service, are expected to be paid as follows:
Estimated Foture Benefit Payments and Medicare Part D Reimbursements

$ in millions Pension Postretirement

2012 $ 5.8 $ 0.6
2013 22.7 2.3
2014 23.2 22
2015 23.8 2.0
2016 24.0 1.9
2017 - 2021 124.4 7.5

9. Fair Value Measarements

The fair values of our financial instruments are based on published sources for pricing when possible, We rely on
valuation models only when no other method is available to us. The value of our financial instruments represents our
best estimates of fair value, which may not be the value realized in the future. The table below presents the fair value
and cost of our non-derivative instruments at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. See also Note 10 for the
fair values of our derivative instruments.

At September 30, At December 31,

2012 2011
$ in millions Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Assets
Money Market Funds $ 0.2 $ 0.2 § 02 % 0.2
Equity Securitics 3.9 52 39 44
Debt Securities 5.0 5.5 30 5.5
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2
Total Assets $ 94 § 11.2 § 94 § 10.3
Liabilities
Debt $ 9203.2 § 9345 § 9034 § 934.5
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Debt
The fair value of debt is based on current public market prices for disclosure purposes only. Unrealized gains or
losses are not recognized in the financial statements because debt is presented at amortized cost in the financial
statements, The debt amounts include the current portion payable in the next twelve months and have maturities that
range from 2013 to 2061.
Master Trust Assets
DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit of employees participating in
employee benefit plans and these assets are not used for genera! operating purposes. These assets are primarily
comprised of open-ended mutual funds which are valued using the net asset value per unit. These investments are
recorded at fair value within Other assets on the balance sheets and classified as available for sale. Any unrealized
gains or losses are recorded in AQCI until the securities are sold.
DP&L had $1.7 million ($1.1 million after tax) in unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master
Trust assets in AOCI at September 3¢, 2012 and $1.0 million {$0.7 million after tax} in unrealized gains and
immaterial unrealized losses in AQCI at December 31, 2011.
BDue to the liquidation of the DPL common stock held in the Master Trust, there is sufficient cash to cover the next
twelve months of benefits payable to employees covered under the benefit plans. Therefore, no unrealized gains or
losses are expected to be transferred to earnings since we will not need to sell any investments in the next twelve
months,
Net Asset Value (NAV) per Unit
The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency for those assets whose fair value is esiimated
using the NAV per unit as of September 30, 2012. These assets are part of the Master Trust. Fair values estimated
using the NAV per unit are considered Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy, unless they cannot be
redeemed at the NAV per unit on the reporting date. Investments that have restrictions on the redemption of the
investments are Level 3 inputs. At September 30, 2012, DP&L did not have any investments for sale at a price
different from the NAV per unit.

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit

Fair Value at Fair Value at

September 30, December 31, Unfunded
$ in millions 2012 2011 Commitments
Equity Securities (a) S 52 3% 4.4 £ -
Debt Securities (b) 5.5 55 -
Multi-Strategy Fund (¢} 0.3 0.2 -
Total $ 1.0 § 10.1 i -

() This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 index and the Morgan
Stanley Capital International (MSCI) U.S. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investinents in this category can be
redeemed timmediately af the current net asset value per unit.

(b)This category inchides investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. invesiment grade bands.
Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net assel value per unit.

(¢)This category includes a mix of actively managed funds holding investments in stocks, bonds and short-
term investments in a mix of actively managed funds. Investments in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize
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the use of abservable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These inputs
are then categorized as Level 1 (quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities); Level 2
(observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in markets that are not
active); or Level 3 (unobservable inputs).

Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with
counterparty risk. We include our own credit risk and our counterparty’s credit risk in our calculation of fair value
using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a large rating agency.

We transferred a money market account to Level 1 from Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as it was determined
that this fund is a cash equivalent where quoted prices are generally equal to par value.
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 measured on a recurring basis
and the respective category within the fair value hierarchy for DP&L was determined as follows:
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recarring Basis

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Fair Value at Quoted Prices Other
September 30, in Active Observable Unobservable
$ in millions 2012 Markets Inputs Inputs
Assets
Master Trust Assets
Money Market Funds $ 02 8§ 02 8 - 8 -
Equity Securities 32 - 52 -
Debt Securities 55 - 5.5 -
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.3 - 03 -
Total Master Trust Assets 1.2 0.2 11.0 -
Derivative Assets
FTRs 0.1 - - 0.1
Heating Qi Futures 04 0.4 - -
Forward Power Contracts 5.0 - 5.0 -
Total Derivative Assets 5.5 0.4 5.0 0.1
Total Assets h 16.7 § 06 $ 160 $ 0.1
Liabilities
Derivative Liabilities
FTRs A (¢.1) s - 5 - § ©.1)
Forward NYMEX Coal Contracts (1.1 - (1.1} -
Forward Power Contracts (18.6) - (18.6) -
Total Derivative Liabilities {19.8) - (19.7) (0.1)
Long-term Debt (934.5) - {915.5) (19.0)
Total Liabilities $ (9543) $ - $ {935.2) § (19.1)
85
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Fair Value as of  Quoted Prices Other
December 31, in Active Observable Unobservable
3 in millions 2011 Markets Inputs Inputs
Assets
Master Trust Assets
Money Market Funds $ 02 8§ - b 02 § -
Equity Securities 44 - 44 -
Debt Securities 3.3 - 3.5 -
Multi-Strategy Fund 0.2 - 0.2 -
Total Master Trust Assets 10.3 - 10.3 -
Derivative Assets
FTRs 0.1 - 0.1 -
Heating Oil Futures 1.8 1.8 - -
Forward Power Contracts 4.1 - 17.3 -
Total Derivative Assets 6.0 1.8 17.4 -
Total Assets h) 163 § 1.8 § 277 % -
Liabilities
Derivative Liabilities
Forward NYMEX Coal Contracts $ (14.5) % - $ (145) % -
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Forward Power Contracts (5.0 - (13.3) -
Total Derivative Liabilities (19.5) - (27.8) -
Total Liabilities 3 (19.5) $ - $ 278y § -
We use the market approach to value our financial instruments. Level T inputs are used for derivative contracts such
as heating oil futures and for money market accounts that are considered cash equivalents. The fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions.
Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as forward power contracts and forward NYMEX-quality coal
contracts (which are traded on the OTC market but which are valued using prices on the NYMEX for similar
contracts on the OTC market). Other Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are in the Master Trust,
which are valued using the end of day NAV per unit; and interest rate hedges, which use observable inputs to
populate a pricing model. Financial transmission rights are considered a Level 3 input beginning April 1, 2012
because the monthly auctions are considered inactive.
Our Level 3 inputs are immaterial to our derivative balances as a whole and as such no further disclosures are
presented.
Our debt is fair valued for disclosure purposes only and most of the fair values are determined using quoted market
prices in inactive markets. These fair value inputs are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Our long-term
leases and the WPAFB loan are not publicly traded. Fair value is assumed to equal carrying value. These fair value
inputs are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as there are no observable inputs. Additional Level 3
disclosures were not presented since debt is not recorded at fair value.
Approximately 99% of the inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices for
DP&L.
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Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements
We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our AROs which are estimated by discounting expected cash
outflows to their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash outflows are based on the approximate
future disposal cost as determined by market information, historical information or other management estimates.
These inputs to the fair vatue of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy.
Additions to AROs were not material during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

10. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business, DP&L enters into various financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes in market prices for commodities and
interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these risks
are governed by our risk management policies for forward and futures contracts. Our net positions are continually
assessed within our structured hedging programs to determine whether new or offsetting transactions are required.
The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have adequate resources to
meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our risk management
processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possible, to mark positions to market. All of our derivative
instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges or marked to market each
reporting period.

At September 30, 2012, DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments;

Net Purchases/
Purchases Sales {Sales)
Commodity Accounting Treatment Unit (in thousands) {in thousands) (in thousands)
FTRs Mark to Market MWh 1.1 - L
Heating Oil Futures Mark 1o Market Gallons 1,932.0 - 19320
Forward Power Contracts Cash Flow Hedge MWh 8862 (3,194.1) (2,307.9)
Forward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 2,366.9 (3,9556) (1,588.7)
NYMEX-quality Coal Contracts* Mark to Market Tons 46.5 - 46.5
*Includes our partners' share for the jointly-owned plants that DP&L operates.
At December 31, 2011, DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments:
Net Purchases/
Purchases Sales {Sales)
Commodity Accounting Treatment Unit (in thousands) (i thousands) (in thousands)
FTRs Mark to Market MWh 71 .7 64
Heating (il Futures Mark to Market Gallons 2.9772.0 - 27720
Forward Power Contracts Cash Flow Hedpe MWh 886.2 (341.6}) 544.6
Forward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 5251 {525.1} -
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NYMEX-quality Coal Contracts* Mark to Market Tons 2,050 - 20150
*Includes our partners' share for the jointly-owned plants that DP&L operates.
Cash Flow Hedges
As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The fair
value of cash flow hedges as determined by observable market prices available as of the balance sheet dates and will
contimye to fluctuate with changes in market prices up to contract expiration. The
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effective portion of the hedging transaction is recognized in AOCI and transferred to earnings using specific
identification of each contract when the forecasted hedged transaction takes place or when the forecasted hedged
transaction is probable of not occurring. The ineffective portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in earnings in
the current period. Al! risk components were taken into account to determine the hedge effectiveness of the cash
flow hedges.
We enter into forward power contracts to manage commaodity price risk exposure related to our generation of
electricity. We do not hedge all commodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts
from AQCI into earnings in those periods in which the contracts settle.
The following table provides information for DP&L concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash
flow hedges for the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 201 1:

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Interest Interest
$ in millions (net of tax} Power Rate Hedge Power Rate Hedge
Beginning accumulated derivative gain
/ (loss} in AQCI $ G4 3 86 | $ (1.5 § 1.0
Net gains / (losses) associated with
current period hedging transactions 2.5) (0.6) 1.8 -
Net gains reclassified to carnings
Interest Expense - - - (0.6)
Revenues - - 0.1 -
Purchased Power {0.1) - - -
Ending accumulated derivative gain /
{loss) in AOCI $ _(6.0) 5 8.0 |5 04 3 10.4

Net gains / (losses) associated with the ineffective portion of the hedging
transaction
Interest Expense 3 $

Revenues $ - § -
Purchased Power b $

Portion expected to be reclassified to

earnings in the next twelve months* $ 6.9 % 2.4)
Maximum length of time that we are

hedging our exposure to variability in

future cash flows related to forecasted

transactions {(in months) 27 -
*The actual amounts that we reclassify from AOCI to carnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market
price changes.
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The following table provides information for DP&L. concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash
flow hedges for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011:

Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Interest Interest
$ in millions (net of tax) Power Rate Hedge Power Rate Hedge

{C39873:)



Beginning accumnulated derivative gain
/ (loss) in AOCI $ 07 3% 98 | § (1.8) 5 12.3
Net gains / (losses) associated with
current period hedging transactions (4.0) - 0.8 -
Net gains reclassified to earnings
Interest Expense - (1.8 - {1.9)
Revenues 0.1 - 0.8 -

Purchased Power (1.4 - 0.6 -

Ending accumulated derivative gain /
(loss) in AOCI $ 6.0 $ 80 15 04 % 10.4

Net gains / (losses) associated with the ineffective portion of the hedging
transaction

Interest Expense $ - ¥

Revenues $ - % -
Purchased Power 5 - 8

Portion expected to be reclassified to

earnings in the next twelve months* b 69 3 2.4)
Maximum length of time that we are

hedging our exposure to variability in

future cash flows related to forecasted

transactions (in months) 27 -
*The actual amounts that we reclassify from AOCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market
price changes.

39

The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DP&L’s derivative instruments
designated as hedging instruments at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
at September 30, 2012

$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position b 0.4  Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (7.3}  Other current liabilities
Total Short-term Cash Flow Hedges (6.9)
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 0.7 Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (3.0)  Other deferred credits
Total Long-tenn Cash Flow Hedges z.3)
Total Cash Flow Hedges $ (9.2)

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
at December 31, 2011

$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position ] 1.5 Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (0.2)  Other current liabilities
Total Short-term Cash Flow Hedges 1.3
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 0.1 Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (2.6)  Other deferred credits
Total Long-term Cash Flow Hedges (2.5)
Total Cash Flow Hedges $ (1.2)

Mark te Market Accounting

Certain derivative contracts are entered into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do not
qualify for hedge accounting or the normal purchases and sales exceptions under FASC 815, Accordingly, such
contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the statements of results of
operations in the period in which the change occurred. This is commonly referred to as “MTM accounting.”
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Contracts we enter into as part of our risk management program may be settled financially, by physical delivery or
net settled with the counterparty. We mark to market FTRs, heating oil futures, forward NYMEX-quality coal

contracts and certain forward power contracts.

Certain qualifying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts, as
provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales under
GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the statements of results of operations on

an accrual basis.
Regulntory Assets and Liabilities
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In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery in future rates should be

deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that is probable of being returned to customers should be deferred as a
regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and are
related to the retail portion of DP&L’s load requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased power
recovery rider approved by the PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Ohio retail customers” portion of
the heating oil futures and the NYMEX-quality coal contracts are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the
contracts settle. If these unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery through our

rates, they will be reclassified into earnings in the period such determination is made.

The following tables show the amount and classification within the statements of results of operations or balance
sheets of the gains and losses on DP&L’s derivatives not designated as hedging instruments for the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2012 and 201 1:
For the three months ended September 30, 2012

NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Qil FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain / (loss) § 155 % - 8 0.1 (5.5 § 10.1
Realized gain / (loss) (12.8) 0.5 0.1 4.2 (8.0)
Total $ 27 % 05 8 0.2 (1.3 2.1
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners' share of gain / (loss) 3 47 % - 8 - - 8 4.7
Regulatory (asset) / liability 1.2 0.1 - - 1.1
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - 0.3 0.3
Purchased Power - - 0.2 (1.6) (1.4)
Fuel 3.2) 0.5 - - 2.7
O&M - 0.1 - - 0.1
Total b 27 8 0.5 % 0.2 (1.3) $ 21
9l
For the three months ended September 30, 2011
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain / (loss) § (279 § (16) $ 0.1} 03 % (29.3)
Realized gain / (loss) 4.3 0.5 - (0.3) 4.5
Total 3 (23.6) $ {.) § (0.1) - 5 (24.8)
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners' share of gain / (loss) $ {13.8) 3 - % - - % (13.8)
Regulatory (asset) / liability 4.0) (0.6) - - (4.6)
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - (0.1) (0.1}
Purchased Power - - (0.1) 0.1 -
Fuel (5.8) (0.5) - - (6.3)
O&M - - - - -
Total $ {236) $ (1.1 3 {0.1) - % (24.8)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012
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NYMEX

$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain / (loss) $ 134 § 15 % 01y 3 {4.6) 3 7.2
Realized gain / (loss) 27.2) 1.9 0.5 4.2 (20.6)
Total 5 (13.8) $§ 04 § 04 % (0.4 % (13.4)
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners' share of gain / (loss) b 35 % - 3 - 8 - 8 3.5
Regulatory (asset) / liability 0.9 (0.6) - - 0.3
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - 2.0 2.0
Purchased Power - - 0.4 2.4 (2.0}
Fuel (18.2) 0.3 - - (17.4)
0&M - 0.2 - - 0.2
Total b (13.3) $ 04 $ 04 § (0.4) % (13.4)
92
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total
Change in unrealized gain/ (loss) 3 (416) $ - 3 0.1 $ - 8 417
Realized gain / (loss) 8.1 1.5 (0.6) {0.8) 8.2
Total 5 (33.5) $ 1.5 § 07) % (©.8) $ {33.5)
Recorded on Balance Sheet:
Partners’ share of gain / (loss) $ 21.2) % - % - 5 - 5 (21.2)
Regulatory (asset)/ liability (5.9 0.1 - - (5.8)
Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
Revenue - - - (¢.2) 0.2)
Purchased Power - - (0.7) (0.6) (1.3)
Fuel (6.4) 1.3 - - (5.1)
0&M - 0.1 - - 0.]
Total b3 (33.3) § 1.5 % 0.7y $ 0.8 % {33.5)

The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DP&L’s derivative instruments not

designated as hedging instruments at September 30, 2012:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

at September 30, 2012
$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
FTRs in an Asset Position $ 0.1 Other prepayments and current assets
FTRs in a Liability Position (0.1)  Other current liabilities
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 3.0  Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (6.1)  Other current liabilities
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability
Position (1.1  Other cument liabilities
Heating Oil Fuiures in an Asset Position 9.3  Other prepayments and current assets
Total Short-term Derivative MTM Positions 3.9
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 0.9  Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (2.2)  Other deferred credits
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability
Position - Other deferred credits
Heating il Futures in an Asset Position 0.1  Other deferred assets
Total Long-term Derivative MTM Positions (12
Net MTM Position $ (5.1
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The following table shows the fair value and balance sheet classification of DP&L’s derivative instruments not
designated as hedging instruments at December 31, 2011:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments Not Designaied as Hedging Instruments

at December 31, 2011
$ in millions Fair Value Balance Sheet Location
Short-term Derivative Positions
FTRs in an Asset Position $ 0.1  Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 1.0 Other prepayments and current assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (0.9)  Other current liabilities
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability
Position (83)  Other current liabilities
Heating Qil Futares in an Asset Position 1.8  Other prepayments and current assets
Total Short-termn Derivative MTM Positions {6.3
Long-term Derivative Positions
Forward Power Contracts in an Asset Position 1.5 Other deferred assets
Forward Power Contracts in a Liability Position (1.3)  Other deferred credits
NYMEX-quality Coal Forwards in a Liability Other deferred credits
Position (6.2)
Total Long-term Derivative MTM Positions 6.0)
Net MTM Position $ (12.3)

Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreements that contain provisions that
require our debt to maintain an investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. If our debt were to fall
below investment grade, we would be in violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative
instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization of
the MTM loss. The changes in our credit ratings in April 2011 have not triggered the provisions discussed above;
however, there is a possibility of further downgrades related to the Merger with AES that could trigger such
provisions,
The aggregate fair value of DP&L’s commaodity derivative instruments that are in a MTM loss position at
September 30, 2012 is $19.8 million. This amount is offset by $10.2 million of collateral posted directly with third
parties and in a broker margin account which offsets our loss positions on the forward contracts. This liability
position is further offset by the asset position of counterparties with master netling agreements of $4.4 million. If our
counterparties were to call for collateral, DP&L could be required to post collateral for the remaining $5.2 million.
11. Shareholder’s Equity
DP&L has 250,000,000 authorized common shares, of which 41,172,173 are cutstanding at September 30, 2012.
All common shares are held by DP&L’s parent, DPL.
As part of the PUCO’s approval of the Merger, DP&L agreed to maintain a capital structure that includes an equity
ratio of at least 50 percent and not to have a negative retained earnings balance.
At the October 29, 2012 meeting of DP&L’s Board of Directors, the following dividends were approved;
. Preferred Stock - payable December 3, 2012 to stockholders of record at the close of business on

November 15, 2012 totaling $0.2 million.
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. Comimon Stock - $75.0 million payable at any time through December 31, 2012 to the stockholder of
record at the close of business on October 31, 2012.

L

12. Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Contingencies

DP&L — Equity Ownership Interest

DP&L owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost

method of accounting under GAAP. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of

4,9%, or $78.8 million, of a $1,607.8 million debt obligation that features maturities from 2013 to 2040. This

would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on its debt payments. As of September 30, 2012,

we have no knowledge of such a default.

Commercial Commitments and Contractual Obligations

There have been no material changes, outside the ordinary course of business, to our commercial commitments and

to the information disclosed in the contractual obligations table in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2011,
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Contingencies
In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other matters
asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided in our Condensed Financial Statements, as
prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. However, there can be no
assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various legal proceedings, claims, tax
examinations and other matters discussed below, and to comply with applicable laws and regulations, will not
exceed the amounts reflected in our Condensed Financial Statements. As such, costs, if any, that may be incurred in
excess of those amounts provided as of September 30, 2012, cannot be reasonably determined.
Envirocnmental Matters
DP&L’s facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental regulations
and laws. As well as imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the
imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the
normal course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at these facilities to comply, or to
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for losses that are probable of occurring and can
be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions of GAAP. We have estimated liabilities of approximately
$4.0 million for environmental matters. We evaluate the potential liability related to probable losses quarterly and
may revise our estimates, Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
We have several pending environmental matters associated with our power plants. Some of these matters could have
material adverse impacts on our business and on the operation of the power plants; especially the plants that do not
have SCR and FGD equipment installed to further control certain emissions. Currently, Hutchings and Beckjord are
our only coal-fired power plants that do not have this equipment installed. DP&L owns 100% of the Hutchings
station and a 50% interest in Beckjord Unit 6.
On July 15, 2011, Duke Energy, a co-owner at the Beckjord Unit 6 facility, filed their Long-term Forecast Report
with the PUCO. The plan indicated that Duke Energy plans to cease production at the Beckjord station, including
our jointly owned Unit 6, in December 2014. This was followed by a notification by Duke Energy to PIM, dated
February 1, 2012, of a planned April 1, 2015 deactivation of this unit. We are depreciating Unit 6 through December
2014 and do not believe that any additional accruals or impairment charges are needed as a result of this decision.
We are considering options for the Hutchings station, but have not yet made a final decision. DP&L has informed
PJM that Hutchings Unit 4 has incurred damage to a rotor and will be deactivated and unavailable for service until at
least June 1, 2014, if ever. In addition, DP&L has notified PJM that Hutchings Units 1 and 2 will be deactivated by
June 1, 2015. We do not believe that any accruals are needed related to the Hutchings station.
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Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality

Clean Air Act Compliance

In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA
sets limits on, among other things, how much of certain designated pollutants can be in the ambient air anywhere in
the United States. The CAA allows individual states to have stronger pollution controls than those set under the
CAA, but states are not allowed to have weaker pollution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA
has a material effect on our operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the
CAA.

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

The USEPA promulgated the “Clean Air Interstate Rule” (CAIR) on March 10, 2005, which required allowance
surrender for SO, and NOx emissions from existing power plants located in 28 eastern states and the District of
Columbia. CAIR contemplated two implementation phases. The first phase was to begin in 2009 and 2010 for NOx
and SO,, respectively. A second phase with additional allowance surrender obligations for both air emissions was to
begin in 2015. To implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to establish emission
allowance based “cap-and-trade” programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal court, and on July 11,
2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issved an opinion striking down much of CAIR and
remanding it to the USEPA,

In response to the D.C. Circuit's opinion, on July 7, 2011, the USEPA issued a final rule titled “Federal
Implementation Plans to Reduce Interstate Transport of Fine Particulate Matter and Ozone in 27 States,” which is
now referred to as the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR). Starting in 2012, CSAPR would have required
significant reductions in 8O, and NOx emissions from covered sources, such as power plants. Once fully
implemented in 2014, the rule would require additional SQ; emission reductions of 73% and additional NOx
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reductions of 54% from 2005 levels. Many states, utilities and other affected parties filed petitions for review,
challenging the CSAPR before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. A large subset of the
Petitioners also sought a stay of the CSAPR. On December 30, 2011, the D.C. Circuit granted a stay of the CSAPR
and directed the USEPA to continue administering CAIR. On August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C.
Circuit Court vacated CSAPR, ruling that USEPA overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring states to make
reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA and failed to provide states an initial opportunity to adopt their
own measures for achieving federal compliance. As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR will
continue to serve as the governing program until USEPA takes further action or the U.S. Congress intervenes.
Assuming that USEPA constructs a replacement interstate transport rule addressing the D.C. Circuit Court’s ruling,
it will likely take three years or more before companies would be required to comply with a replacement rule. At this
time, it is not possible to predict the details of such a replacement transport rule or what impacts it may have on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. On October 3, 2012, USEPA, several states and cities, as
well as environmental and health organizations, filed petitions with the D.C. Circuit Court requesting a rehearing by
all of the judges of the D.C. Circuit Court of the case pursuant to which the three-judge panel ruled that CSAPR be
vacated. As of November 6, 2012, the D).C. Circuit Court had not ruled on USEPA’s petition for rehearing. We
cannot predict whether the D.C. Circuit Court will grant a rehearing or, if a rehearing is granted, whether CSAPR
will be ultimately reinstated and implemented in its current form or a medified form. If CSAPR were to be
reinstated in its current form, we do not expect any material capital costs for DP&L’s plants, assuming Beckjord 6
and Hutchings generating stations will not operate on coal in 2015 due to implementation of the Mercury and Air
Toxics Standards. Because we cannot predict the final outcome of the CSAPR rulemaking, we cannot predict its
financial impact on DP&L.’s operations.

Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants

On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published proposed Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards for
coal- and oil-fired electric generating units. The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury and a
number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator signed the final rule, now called MATS (Mercury and Air
Toxics Standards), on December 16, 2011, and the rule was published in the Federal Register on February 16, 2012.
Affected electric generating units (EGUs) will have to come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16,
2015, but may be granted an additional year contingent on Ohio EPA approval. DP&L is evaluating the costs that
may be incurred to comply with the new requirement; however, MATS is expected to have a material adverse effect
on our uncontrolied units.
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On April 29, 2010, the USEPA issued a proposed rule that would reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants from new
and existing industrial, commercial and institutional boilers, and process heaters at major and area source facilities.
The final rule was published in the Federal Register on March 21, 2011. This regulation affects seven auxiliary
boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L’s generation facilities. The regulations contain emissions limitations,
operating limitations and other requirements. In December 2011, the USEPA proposed additional changes to this
rule and solicited comments. Compliance costs are not expected to be material to DP&L’s operations.

On May 3, 2010, the USEPA finalized the “National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants”™ for
compression ignition (CI) reciprocating internal combustion engines (RICE). The units affected at DP&L. are 18
diesel electric generating engines and eight emergency “black start” engines. The existing CI RICE units must
comply by May 3, 2013. The regulations contain emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements.
Compliance costs for DP&L’s operations are not expected to be material.

Carbon and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision that the USEPA has the authority to regulate CO; emissions from
motor vehicles, the USEPA made a finding that CO; and certain other GHGs are pollutants under the CAA,
Subsequently, under the CAA, USEPA determined that CO, and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten the
health and welfare of future generations by contributing to climate change. This finding became effective in January
2010. Numerous affected parties have petitioned the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision. On April 1,
2010, USEPA signed the “Light-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Emission Standards and Corporate Average Fuel
Economy Standards” rule. Under USEPA’s view, this is the final action that renders CO, and other GHGs
“regulated air pollutants” under the CAA.

Under USEPA regulations finalized in May 2010 (referred to as the “Tailoring Rule™), the USEPA began regulating
GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011, The Tailoring Rule sets forth criteria for
determining which facilities are required to obtain permits for their GHG emissions pursuant to the CAA Prevention
of Significant Deterioration and Title V operating permit programs, Under the Tailoring Rule, permitting
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requirements are being phased in through successive steps that may expand the scope of covered sources over time.
The USEPA has issued guidance on what the best available control technology entails for the control of GHGs and
individual states are required to determine what controls are required for facilities on a case-by-case basis. The
ultimate impact of the Tailoring Rule to DP&L cannot be determined at this time, but the cost of compliance could
be material,
On April 13, 2012, the USEPA published its proposed GHG standards for new electric generating units (EGUs)
under CAA subsection 111(b), which would require certain new EGUs to meet a standard of 1,000 pounds of CO,
per megawatt-hour, a standard based on the emissions limitations achievable through natural gas combined cycle
generation. The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to install carbon capture and storage or
other expensive CO, emission control technology to meet the standard. Furthermore, the USEPA may propose and
promulgate guidelines for states to address GHG standards for existing EGUs under CAA subsection 111{d}. These
latter rules may focus on energy efficiency improvements at power plants. We cannot predict the effect of these
standards, if any, on DP&L’s operations.
Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO, emissions at generating
stations we own and co-own is approximately 16 million tons annually. Further GHG legislation or regulation
finalized at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L’s operations and costs, which could adversely
affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty associated with such
legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial impact that such legislation or
regulation may have on DP&L,
On September 22, 2009, the USEPA issued a final rule for mandatory reporting of GHGs from large sources that
emit 25,000 metric tons per year or more of GHGs, including EGUs. DP&L has submitted to USEPA GHG
emission reports for 2011 and 2010. While this reporting rule will guide development of pelicies and programs to
reduce emissions, DP&L does not anticipate that the reporting rule will itse!f result in any significant cost or other
effect on current operations,
Litigation, Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality
Litigation Involving Co-Owned Plants
On June 20, 2011, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA’s regulation of GHGs under the CA A displaced
any right that plaintiffs may have had to seek similar regulation through federal common law litigation
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in the court system. Although we are not named as a party to these lawsuits, DP&L is a co-owner of coal-fired
plants with Duke Energy and AEP {or their subsidiaries) that could have been affected by the cutcome of these
lawsuits or similar suits that may have been filed against other electric power companies, including DP&L. Because
the issue was not squarely before it, the U.S. Supreme Court did not rule against the portion of plaintiffs’ original
suits that sought relief under state law.

As aresult of 2 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Court for
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the J.M. Stuart generating station are subject to certain
specified emission targets related to NOx, SO; and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes
commitments for energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during malfunctions. Continued
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L’s results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future.

Notices of Violation Involving Co-Owned Plants

In November 1999, the USEPA filed civil complaints and NOVs against operators and owners of certain generation
facilities for alleged violations of the CAA. Generation units operated by Duke Energy (Beckjord Unit 6} and CSP
(Conesville Unit 4) and co-owned by DP&L were referenced in these actions. Although DP&L was not identified
in the NOVs, civil complaints or state actions, the results of such proceedings could materially affect DP&L’s co-
owned plants.

In June 2000, the USEPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated J.M. Stuart generating station (co-owned by
DP&L, Duke Energy, and CSP) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations that Stuart
station engaged in projects between 1978 and 2000 without New Source Review and Prevention of Significant
Deterioration permits that resulted in significant increases in particulate matter, 8O,, and NOx. These allegations are
consistent with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the
Midwest. The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the
Ohio SIP; or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each
violation, To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this matter.
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In December 2007, the Ohio EPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station (co-owned by
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV alleged deficiencies in the continuous
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ghio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no further
actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA.
On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding of
Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio State Implementation Program (SIP}
and permits for the station in areas including $O,, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV with
similar allegations was issued on November 4, 2010. Also in 2010, USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer for excess
emissions. DP&L is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the eventual resolution
of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with respect to these matters.
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters.
Notices of Violation {nvolving Wholly Owned Plants
In 2007, the Ohio EPA and the USEPA issued NOVs to DP&L for alleged violations of the CAA at the Hutchings
station. The NOVs’ alleged deficiencies related to stack opacity and particulate emissions, Discussions are under
way with the USEPA, the U.S. Department of Justice and Ohio EPA. On November 18, 2009, the USEPA issued an
NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR violations of the CAA at the Hutchings station relating to capital projects
performed in 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not believe that the projects described in the NOV were
modifications subject to NSR. DP&L is engaged in discussions with the USEPA and the U.S, Department of Justice
to resolve these matters, but DP&L is unable to determine the timing, costs or method by which these issues may be
resolved. The Ohio EPA is kept apprised of these discussions.
Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality, Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds
Clean Water Act — Regulation of Water Intake
On July 9, 2004, the USEPA issued final rules pursuant to the Clean Water Act governing existing facilities that
have cooling water intake structures. The rules require an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. A number of parties appealed the rules. In April 2009, the U.S,
Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA did have the authority to compare costs with benefits in determining
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Federal Register on April 20, 2011. We submitted comments to the proposed regulations on August 17, 2011, It is
anticipated that the final rules will be promulgated in mid-2013. We do not yet know the impact these proposed
rules will have on our operations.

Clean Water Act — Regulation of Water Discharge

In December 2006, we submitted an application for the renewal of the Stuart station NPDES Permit that was due to
expire on June 30, 2007, In July 2007, we received a draft permit proposing to continue our authority to discharge
water from the station into the Ohio River. On February 5, 2008, we received a letter from the Ohio EPA indicating
that they intended to impose a compliance schedule as part of the final permit, that requires us to implement one of
two diffuser options for the discharge of water from the station into the Ohio River as identified in a thermal
discharge study completed during the previous permit term. Subsequently, DP&L and the Ohio EPA reached an
agreement to allow DP&L to restrict public access to the water discharge area as an alternative to installing one of
the diffuser options. Chio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on November 12, 2008. In December-
2008, the USEPA requested that the Ohio EPA provide additional information regarding the thermal discharge in the
draft permit. In June 2009, DP&L provided information to the USEPA in response to their request to the Chio EPA.
In September 2010, the USEPA formally objected to a revised permit provided by Ohio EPA due to guestions
regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. In December 2010, DP&L requested a public hearing on the
objection, which was held on March 23, 2011, We participated in and presented our position on the issue at the
hearing and in written comments submitted on April 28, 2011. In a letter to the Ohio EPA dated September 28,
2011, the USEPA reaffirmed its objection to the revised permit as previously drafted by the Ohio EPA. This
reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohio EPA does not re-draft the permit to address the USEPA’s objection, then the
authority for issuing the permit will pass to the USEPA. The OChio EPA issued another draft permit in December
2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012, The drafi permit would require DP&L, over the 54 months
following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a
level unachievable by the station under its current design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the
cooling water system. DP&L submitted comments to the draft permit and is considering legal options. On May 17,
2012, we met with Ohio EPA to discuss this matter, In late August 2012, Ohio EPA provided DP&L with a revised
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draft permit which included some modifications based on our previous comments. We are reviewing this revised
draft. Depending on the cutcome of the process, the effects could be material on DP&L’s operations.
In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it will be revising technology-based regulations governing water
discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information via an
industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. It is anticipated that the
USEPA will release a proposed rule by late 2012 with a final regulation in place by mid-2014, At present, DP&L is
unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its operations.
In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill at the J.M. Stuart
station. The NOV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow into downstream creeks. In addition,
the U.S. Armmy Corps of Engineers issued a Cease and Desist order followed by a notice suspending the previously
issued Corps permit authorizing work associated with the landfill. DP&L. has installed sedimentation ponds as part
of the runoff control measures to address this issue and is working with the various agencies to resolve their
concerns including entering into settlement discussions with USEPA, although they have not issued any formal
Neotice of Violation. This may affect the landfill’s construction schedule and delay its operational date. DP&L has
accrued an immaterial amount for anticipated penalties related to this issue.
Regulation of Waste Disposal
In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP for
the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In August 2005, DP&L and other
parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study
(RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In October 20035, DP&L received a special notice letter inviting it
to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with respect to that
notice or PRP status. However, on August 23, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order requiring that
access to DP&L’s service center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be given to the
USEPA and the existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site’s contamination as well as to
assess whether certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater
to the landfill site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of menitoring wells
occurred in late 2009 and early 2010. On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP group, Hobart
Corporation, Kelsey-Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging
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that DP&L and the other defendants contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and
seeking reimbursement of the PRP group’s costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site.

On February 10, 2011, the Court dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used by
DP&L at its service center contributed to the landfill site’s contamination, The Court, however, did not dismiss
claims alleging financial responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that were
allegedly directly delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present DP&L
employees, is ongoing. In June 2012, DP&I. filed a motion for summary judgment on grounds that the remaining
claims for contribution are barred by a statute of limitations. The plaintiffs oppose that motion and, additionally,
have filed a motion seeking Court leave to amend their complaint to add more than 20 new defendants to the case
and to recharacterize and re-allege claims against DP &L that the Court dismissed in its February 10, 2011 order. On
October 26, 2012, DP&L received another request to access DP&L’s service center building site to assess whether
certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater to the Jandfill
site. While DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L were required to contribute to the
clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect on us.

In December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP for
the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does not
demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of
this matter, if DPP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect
on us.

On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking anmouncing that it is
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCBs). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is evaluating information from potentially
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material adverse effect on DP&L. The USEPA
has indicated that a proposed rule will be released in late 2012 or early 2013, At present, DP&L is unable to predict
the impact this initiative will have on its operations.
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Regulation of Ash Ponds
In March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond
facilities across the country, including those at Killen and J.M. Stuart stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected
similar information for the Hutchings station.
In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Hutchings station ash ponds. In June 2011, the USEPA
issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchings station ash ponds.
DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L’s proposed plan or the
effect on operations that might arise under a different plan.
In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen station ash ponds. In June 2012, the USEPA issued
a draft report from the inspection that noted no significant issues with the ash ponds. DP&L provided comments on
the draft report and DP&L is unable to predict the outcome this inspection will have on its operations.
There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion byproducts under the Resource Conservation
Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking comments on two options
under consideration for the reguiation of coal combustion byproducts including regulating the material as a
hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA. Subtitle D. The USEPA anticipates
issuing a final rule on this topic in late 2012 or early 2013. DP&L is unable to predict the financial impact of this
regulation, but if coal combustion byproducts are regulated as hazardous waste, it is expected to have a material
adverse effect on DP&L’s operations.
Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Plants
On September 9, 2011, DP&L received a notice of violation from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned 1M,
Stuart station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted by the USEPA and Ohio EPA in 2009. The
notice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the Clean Water Act NPDES permit
program and the station’s storm water pollution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L respond with the
actions it has subsequently taken or plans to take to remedy the USEPA’s findings and ensure that further violations
will not occur, Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe that the notice
will not result in any material effect on DP&L’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flow.
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Legal and Other Matters

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit against a coal supplier seeking damages incurred due to the supplier’s
failure to supply approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly owned plants under a coal supply
agreement, of which approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L.’s share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to
meet its needs. The supplier has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptcy proceedings in which DP&L
is participating as an unsecured creditor, DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this matter. DP&L
has not recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit.

In connection with DP&L and other utilities joining PIM, in 2006, the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective December 1, 2004 through March 31, 2006,
subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&I. was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but
received a net benefit from these transitional payments. A hearing was held and an initial decision was issued in
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supported DP&L’s
and other utilities’ position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system
during the timeframe stated above. Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered into a significant number of
bilateral settlement agreements with certain parties to resolve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by the
final decision. On July 5, 2012, a Stipulation was executed and filed with the FERC that resolved SECA claims
against BP Energy Company (“BP”) and DP&L, AEP (and its subsidiaries) and Exelon Corporation (and its
subsidiaries.). On October 1, 2012, DP&L received the $14.6 million {including interest income of $1.8 million)
from BP and recorded the settlement in the third quarter; there is no remaining balance in Other deferred credits
relating to SECA.

Lawsuits were filed in connection with the Merger seeking, among other things, one or more of the following: to
enjoin consunmation of the Merger until certain conditions were met, to rescind the Merger or for rescissory
damages, or to commence a sale process and/or obtain an alternative transaction or to recover an unspecified amount
of other damages and costs, including attorneys’ fees and expenses, a constructive trust or an accounting from the
individual defendants for benefits they allegedly obtained as a result of their alleged breach of duty. All of these
lawsuits, except one, were resolved and/or dismissed prior to the March 28, 2012 filing of our Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, and were discussed in that and previous reports we filed. The last of these
lawsuits was dismissed on March 29, 2012.
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13. Fixed-asset Impairment
On October 5, 2012, DP&L. filed for approval an ESP with the PUCO which reflects a shift in our outlook for the
regulatory environment. Within the ESP filing, DP&L agreed to request a separation of its generation assets from its
transmission and distribution assets in recognition that a restructuring of DP&L operations will be necessary, in
compliance with Ohio law. Also, during 2012, North American natural gas prices fell significantly from the previous
year, exerting downward pressure on wholesale electricity prices in the Ohio power market. Falling power prices
have compressed wholesale margins at DP&L’s generating plants. Furthermore, these lower power prices have led
to increased customer switching from DP&L to CRES providers, who are offering retail prices lower than DP&L.’s
standard service offer. Also, several municipalities in DP&L’s service territory have passed ordinances allowing
them to become government aggregators with some having already coniracted with CRES providers, further
contributing to the switching trend. In September 2012, management revised its cash flow forecasts based on these
developments as part of its annual budgeting process and forecasted lower operating cash flows than in prior
reporting periods. Collectively, in the third quarter of 2012, these events were considered to be an impairment
indicator for the long-lived asset group as management believes that these developments represent a significant
adverse change in the business climate that could affect the value of the long-lived asset group.
The long-lived asset group subject to the impairment evaluation was determined to be each individual plant of
DP&L. This determination was based on the assessment of the plants’ ability to generate independent cash flows.
When the recoverability test of the long-lived asset group was performed, management concluded that, on an
undiscounted cash flow basis, the carrying amount of two plants, Conesville and Hutchings, were not recoverable.
To measure the amount of impairment loss, management was required to determine the fair value of the two plants.
Cash flow forecasts and the underlying assumptions for the valuation were developed by
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management. While there were numerous assumptions that impact the fair value, forward power prices, dark spreads
and the transition to a merchant mode] were the most significant,
In determining the fair value of the Conesville plant, the three valuation approaches prescribed by the fair value
measurement accounting guidance wete considered. The fair value under the income approach was considered the
most appropriate and resulted in a $25.0 million fair value. The carrying value of the Conesville plant prior to the
impairment was $97.5 mitlion. Accordingly, the Conesville plant was considered impaired and $72.5 million of
impairment expense was recognized in the third quarter of 2012.
In determining the fair value of the Hutchings plant, the three valuation approaches prescribed by the fair value
measurement accounting guidance were considered. The fair value under the income approach was considered the
most appropriate and resulted in a zero fair value. The carrying value of the Hutchings plant prior to the impairment
was $8.3 million. Accordingly, the Hutchings plant was considered impaired and $8.3 million of impairment
expense was recognized in the third quarter of 2012,
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Item 2, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. On November 28, 2011, DPL became a wholly owned
subsidiary of AES, a global power company. Throughout this repert, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and “ours” are
used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates ctherwise.
Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section.
The following discussion contains forward-looking statements and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related footnotes of DPL and the Condensed
Financial Statements and related footnotes of DP&L included in Part I — Financial Information, the risk factors in
Ttem 1A to Part I of our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011 and in Item 1A to Part II of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and our “Forward-Looking Statements” section cn page 8 of this Form 10-Q. For a
list of certain abbreviations or acronyms in this discussion, see Glossary at the beginning of this Form 10-Q.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
DPL is a diversified regional energy company organized in 1985 under the laws of Ohio. DPL’s two reportable
segments are the Utility segment, comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment,
comprised of its DPLER subsidiary. Refer to Note 14 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements for more information relating to these reportable segments.
On November 28, 2011, DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became a wholly owned subsidiary of
AES. See Note 2 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio. DP&L is engaged in the generation,
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers in
a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. Electricity for DP&L.'s 24 county service area is primarily generated
at cight coal-fired power plants and is distributed to more than 500,000 retail customers, Principal industries served
include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic manufacturing and defense.
DP&L's sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather patterns of the area. DP&L sells any
excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market.
DPLER sells competitive retail clectric service, under contract, to residential, commercial and industrial customers.
DPLER’s operations include those of its wholly owned subsidiary, MC Squared, which was acquired on February
28, 2011. DPLER has approximately 175,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and Illinois. DPLER
does not own any transmission or generation assets, and all of DPLER’s electric energy was purchased from DP&L
or PJM to meet its sales obligations. DPLER’s sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather
patterns of the areas it serves,
DPL’s other significant subsidiaries include DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, our captive insurance company that provides insurance
services to us and our subsidiaries. All of DPL’s subsidiaries are wholly owned.
DPL also has a wholly owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust 11, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital
securities to investors.
DP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory liabilities
when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.
DPL and its subsidiaries employed 1,501 people as of September 30, 2012, of which 1,443 employeces were
employed by DP&L. Approximately 52% of all employees are under a collective bargaining agreement which
expires on October 31, 2014,
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition by The AES Corporation

On November 28, 2011, DPL merged with Dolphin Sub, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of The AES Corporation,
a Delaware corporation ("AES") pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") whereby
AES acquired DPL for $30.00 per share in a cash transaction valued at approximately $3.5 billion. At closing, DPL
hecame a wholly owned subsidiary of AES,

Dolphin Subsidiary I, Inc., a subsidiary of AES, issued $1,250.0 million in long-term Senior Notes on October 3,
2011, to partially finance the Merger (see Note 2 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements).
Upon the consummation of the Merger, Dolphin Subsidiary 11, Inc. was merged into DPL and these notes became
long-term debt obligations of DPL. This debt has and will have a material effect on DPL’s cash requirements.

As aresult of the Merger, including the assumption of merger-related debt, DPL, and DP&L. were downgraded by
all three major credit rating agencies. We do not anticipate that these reduced ratings will have a significant effect on
our liquidity; however, we expect that our cost of capital will increase. See Note 6 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

DPL incurred merger transaction costs consisting primarily of banker’s fees, legal fees and change of controf costs
of approximately $53.6 million pre-tax during 2011 and an additional $1.0 million pre-tax during 2012. Other than
these costs, interest on the additional debt and other items noted above, DPL and DP&L do not expect the Merger
to have a significant effect on their financial position, results of operations or sources of liquidity during 2012,

The Merger also resulted in DPL recording $2,576.3 million in goodwill due to the push down of purchase
accounting in accordance with FASC 805, Utilities in Ohio continue to face downward pressure on operating
margins due to the evolving regulatory environment, which is moving towards a market-based competitive pricing
mechanism. At the same time, declining energy prices are also reducing operating margins across the utility
industry. These competitive forces could adversely impact the future operating performance of DPFL and may result
in impairment of its goodwill.

Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment
indicators are present. In evatuating the potential impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about
revenue, operating cash flows, capital expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and fong
term forecasts, macroeconomic projections, and current market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are
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inherent uncertainties related to these factors and management’s judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the
fair value of a reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to
evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience
situations, including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions, operating or regulatory
environment; increased competitive environment; increase in fuel costs particularly when we are unable to pass
along such costs to customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer particularly when
we are unable fo replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These types
of events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantiatly affect
our results of operations for those periods. A goodwill impairment could lead to a rating downgrade and adversely
impact the trading price of DPL’s bonds.
See Note 15 in DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding the write-off
of a portion of DPL’s goodwill during the three months ended September 30, 2012.
DPL will perform its next annual goodwill impairment evaluation in the fourth quarter of 2013.
Predecessor and Successor Financial Presentation
DPL’s financial statements and related financial and operating data include the periods before and after the Merger
with AES on November 28, 2011, and are labeled as Predecessor and Successor, respectively. In accordance with
GAAP, DPL applied push-down accounting to account for the merger. For accounting purposes only, push-down
accounting created a new cost basis assigned to assets, liabilities and equity as of the Merger date. Such adjustments
were subject to change as AES finalized its purchase price allocation during the applicable measurement period.
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DPL, DP&L and our subsidiaries’ facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of environmental regulations
and laws by federal, state and local authorities. As well as imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws
and repulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief
and other sanctions. In the normal course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at
these facilities to comply, or to determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for losses that are
probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated.

. Carbon and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions

There is an on-going concern nationally and internationally about global climate change and the
contribution of emissions of GHGs, including most significantly CO,. This concern has led to
reguiation and interest in legislation at the federal level, actions at the state level as well as
litigation relating to GHG emissions. In 2007, a U.S. Supreme Court decision upheld that the
USEPA has the authority to regulate GHG emissions under the CAA. In April 2009, the USEPA
issued a proposed endangerment finding under the CAA. The proposed finding determined that
CO; and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten the health and welfare of future generations by
contributing to climate change. This endangerment finding became effective in January 2010.
Numerous affected parties have asked the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision.
As a result of this endangerment finding and other USEPA regulations, emissions of CO, and
other GHGs from certain electric generating units and other stationary sources are subject to
regulation. Increased pressure for GHG emissions reduction is also coming from investor
organizations and the international community. Environmental advocacy groups are also focusing
considerable attention on GHG emissions from power generation facilities and their potential role
in climate change. Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s
share of GHG emissions at generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 16 million
tons annually. If we are required to implement control of CO; and other GHGs at generation
facilities, the cost to DPL and DP&L of such reductions could be material.

. Clean Water Act

In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill
at the J.M. Stuart station. The NOV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow
into downstream creeks. In addition, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a Cease and Desist
order followed by a notice suspending the previously issued Corps permit authorizing work
associated with the landfill. USEPA has indicated that they may take additional enforcement
action. DP&L has installed sedimentation ponds as part of the runoff control measures to address
this issue and is working with the various agencies to resolve their concerns including entering
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into settlement discussions with USEPA, although they have not issued any formal Notice of
Violation. This may affect the landfill’s construction schedule and deiay its operational date.
DP&L has accrued an immaterial amount for anticipated penalties related to this issue.

Electric Security Plan

SB 221 requires that all Chio distribution utilities file ¢ither an ESP or MRO to establish rates for
their SSO. Under the MRO, a periodic competitive bid process will set the retail generation price
after the utility demonstrates that it can meet certain market criteria and bid requirements. Also,
under this option, utilities that still own generation in the state are required to phase-in the MRO
over a period of not less than five years. An ESP may allow for adjustments to the SSO for costs
associated with environmental compliance; fuel and purchased power; construction of new or
investment in specified generating facilities; and the provision of standby and default service,
operating, maintenance, or other costs including taxes. As part of its ESP, a utility is permitted to
file an infrastructure improvement plan that will specify the initiatives the utility will take to
rebuild, upgrade, or replace its electric distribution system, including cost recovery mechanisms.
Both MRO and ESP options involve a “significantly excessive earnings test” (SEET) based on
the earnings of comparable companies with similar business and financial risks. According to
DP&L’s current ESP, DP&L becomes subject to the SEET in 2013 based on 2012 earnings
results and the SEET review could result in no adjustment to our SSO rates or a refund to
customers. The effect may or may not be significant.
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On March 30, 2012, DP&L filed with the PUCO for approval of its next rate plan to replace the
existing rate plan that expires on December 31, 2012. The filing requested approval of the five
year and five month MRO, which would have been effective January 1, 2013, and would have
phased in market rates over this period. The initial filing indicated that the proposed MRO rates,
if approved by the PUCO, would reduce DP&L’s revenues by approximately $3¢ million in the
first year after they are applied, based on the level of S80 sales contained in the filing. After
several months of negotiation with over 26 diverse intervening parties, on September 7, 2012,
DP&L withdrew the March 2012 filing and filed an ESP on October 5, 2012.

On October 5, 2012 DP&L filed an ESP with the PUCO. The plan requests approval of a non-
bypassable Service Stability Rider (3SR) that is designed to recover $120 million per year for five
years. This is a net rate increase of approximately $47 million per year over DP&L’s prior non-
bypassable charge. DP&L also requests approval of a switching tracker that would measure the
incremental amount of switching over a base case and defer the lost value into a regulatory asset
which would be recovered from all customers beginning Janvary 2014, The ESP states that
DP&L intends to file on or before December 31, 2013 its plan for legal separation of its
generation assets. The ESP proposes a three year, five month transition to market, whereby a
wholesale competitive bidding structure will be phased in to supply generation service to
customers located in DP&L’s service territory that have not chosen an alternative generation
supplier. DP&L’s standard offer generation revenues are projected to decrease overall as a result
of this filing by approximately $52 million for the first year, due to a portion of DP&L’s S50
load being sourced through a competitive bid and other adjustments that were made to the SSO
generation rates. As more SSO supply is sourced through a competitive bid, DP&L will continue
to experience a decrease in SSO generation revenues each year throughout the blending period.
DP&L’s retail transmission rates will increase as a retail, non-bypassable transmission charge will
be implemented; however, this revenue is offset slightly by a decrease in wholesale transmission
revenues from CRES Providers operating in DP&L’s service territory.

SB 221 Renewable and Energy Efficiency Requirements

SB 221 and the implementation rules contain targets relating to advanced energy portfolio
standards, renewable energy, demand reduction and energy efficiency standards. The standards
require that, by the year 2025, 25% of the total number of kWh of electricity sold by the utility to
retail electric consumers must come from alternative energy resources, which include “advanced
energy resources” such as distributed generation, clean coal, advanced nuclear, energy efficiency
and fuel cell technology; and “renewable energy resources” such as solar, hydro, wind,
geothermal and biomass. At least half of the 25% must be generated from renewable energy



resources, including 0.5% from solar energy, The renewable energy portfolio, energy efficiency
and demand reduction standards began in 2009 with increased percentage requirements each year
thereafter. The annual targets for energy efficiency and peak demand reductions began in 2009
with annual increases. Energy efficiency programs are expected to save 22.3% by 2025 and peak
demand reductions are expected to reach 7.75% by 2018 compared to a baseline energy usage. If
any targets are not met, compliance penalties will apply, unless the PUCO makes certain findings
that would excuse performance.

. NOx and SO, Emissions - CSAPR

The USEPA promulgated the “Clean Air Interstate Rule” (CAIR) on March 10, 2005, which
required allowance surrender for SO, and NOx emissions from existing power plants located in
28 eastern states and the District of Columbia, CAIR contemplated two implementation phases.
The first phase was to begin in 2009 and 2010 for NOx and SO,, respectively. A second phase
with additional allowance surrender obligations for both air emissions was to begin in 2015. To
implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to establish emission
allowance based “cap-and-trade” programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal court,
and on July 11, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an opinion
striking down much of CAIR and remanding it to the USEPA.
In response to the D.C. Circuit's opinion, on July 7, 2011, the USEPA issued a final rule titled “Federal
Implementation Plans to Reduce Interstate Transport of Fine Particulate Matter and Ozone in 27 States,” which is
now referred to as the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule {CSAPR}. Starting in 2012, CSAPR would have required
significant reductions in SO, and NOx emissions from covered sources, such as power plants. Once fully
implemented in 2014, the rule would require additional SO, emission reductions of 73% and additional NOx
reductions of 54% from 2005 levels. Many states, utilities and other affected parties filed petitions for review,
challenging the CSAPR before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. A large subset of the
Petitioners also sought a stay of the CSAPR, On December 30, 2011, the D.C. Circuit granted a stay of the CSAPR
and directed the USEPA to continue administering CAIR. On August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C.
Circuit Court vacated CSAPR, ruling that USEPA overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring
106

states to make reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA and failed to provide states an initial oppertunity to
adopt their own measures for achieving federal compliance. As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of
CAIR will continue to serve as the governing program until USEPA takes further action or the U.8, Congress
intervenes. Assuming that USEPA constructs a replacement interstate transport rule addressing the D.C. Circuit
Court’s ruling, it will likely take three years or more before companies would be required to comply with a
replacement rule. At this time, it is not possible to predict the details of such a replacement transport rule or what
impacts it may have on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. On October 5,
2012, USEPA, several states and cities, as well as environmental and health organizations, filed petitions with the
D.C. Circuit Court requesting a rehearing by all of the judges of the D.C. Circuit Court of the case pursuant to which
the three-judge panel ruled that CSAPR be vacated. As of November 6, 2012, the D.C. Circuit Court had not ruled
on USEPA’s petition for rehearing. We cannot predict whether the D.C. Circuit Court will grant a rehearing or, if a
rehearing is granted, whether CSAPR will be ultimately reinstated and implemented in its current form or a
modified form. If CSAPR were to be reinstated in its current form, we do not expect any material capital costs for
DP&1’s plants, assuming Beckjord 6 and Hutchings generating stations will not operate on coal in 2015 due to
implementation of the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards. Because we cannot predict the final outcome of the
CSAPR rulemaking, we cannot predict its financial impact on DP&L’s operations.

COMPETITION AND PJM PRICING

. RPM Capacity Auction Price

The PJM RPM capacity base residual auction for the 2015/2016 period cleared at a per megawatt
price of $136/day for our RTQ area. The per megawatt prices for the periods 201472015,
2013/2014, 2012/2013, and 2011/2012 were $126/day, $28/day, $16/day, and $110/day,
respectively, based on previous auctions. Future RPM auction results will be dependent not only
on the overall supply and demand of generation and load, but may also be impacted by congestion
as well as PJM’s business rules relating to bidding for demand response and energy efficiency
resources in the RPM capacity auctions. The SSO retail costs and revenues are included in the
RPM rider, Therefore, increases in customer switching causes more of the RPM capacity costs
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and revenues to be excluded from the RPM rider calculation. We cannot predict the outcome of
futyre auctions or customer switching but based on actual results attained in 2011, we estimate
that a hypothetical increase or decrease of $10 in the capacity auction price would result in an
annual impact 1o net income of approximately $5.1 million and $3.8 million for DL and DP&L,
respectively. These estimates do not, however, take into consideration the other factors that may
affect the impact of capacity revenues and costs on net income such as the levels of customer
switching, our generation capacity, the levels of wholesale revenues and our retail customer load.
These estimates are discussed further within Commodity Pricing Risk under the Market Risk

section of this Management Discussion & Analysis.
o Ohio Competitive Considerations and Proceedings

Since January 2001, DP&L’s electric customers have been permitied to choose their retail
electric generation supplier. DP&L continues to have the exclusive right to provide delivery
service in its state certified territory and the obligation to supply retail generation service to
customers that do not choose an alternative supplier. The PUCO maintains jurisdiction over

DP&L’s delivery of elcctrlcny, S50 and other retail electric services.
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Lower market prices for power have resulted in increased levels of competition to provide
transmission and generation services. This in turn has led approximately 57% of DP&L’s retail
volume 1o be switched to CRES providers. DPLER, an affiliated company and one of the
registered CRES providers, has been marketing transmission and generation services to DP&L
customers. The following table provides a summary of the number of electric customers and
velumes provided by ail CRES providers in our service territory during the three and nine months

ended September 30, 2012 and 2011:

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 364, 2012 September 30, 2011
Sales (in Sales (in
Electric Millions of Electric Millions of
Customers kWh) Customers kWh)
Successor Predecessor
Supplied by DPLER 59,241 1,671 21,990 1,567
Supplied by non-affiliated CRES providets 69,127 562 19,285 283
Total supplied in our service territory by DPLER and
other CRES providers 128,368 2,233 41,275 1,850
Distribution sales by DP&L in our service territory @ 512,191 3,795 512,424 3,874
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Sales (in Sales (in
Electric Millions of Electric Millions of
Customers kWh) Customers kWh)
Successor Predecessor
Supplied by DPLER 59,241 4,668 21,990 4,330
Supplied by non-affiliated CRES providers 69,127 1,428 19,285 566
Total supplied in our service lerritory by DPLER, and
other CRES providers 128,368 6,096 41,275 4,896
Dlstrtbutlon sales by DP&L in our service territory @ 512,191 10,694 512,424 10,772

The volumes supplied by DPLER represent approximately 44% and 40% of DP&L.’s total distribution
volumes during the three menths ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and 44% and 40%
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We cannot determine the extent
to which customer switching to CRES providers will occur in the future and the effect this will have on
our operations, but any additional switching could have a significant adverse effect on our future resuits of

operations, financial condition and cash flows.
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As of September 30, 2012, approximately 57% of DP&L’s load has switched to CRES providers with DPLER
acquiring 77% of the switched load. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, customer switching negatively
affected DPL’s gross margin by approximately $37.0 million compared to the 2011 effect of approximately $39.4
million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, customer switching negatively affected DP&L’s gross
margin by approximately $66.0 million compared to the 2011 effect of $65.7 million.

Several communities in DP&L's service area have passed ordinances allowing the communities to become
government aggregators for the purpose of offering alternative electric generation supplies to their citizens. To date,
a number of organizations have filed with the PUCO to initiate aggregation programs. If a number of the larger
organizations move forward with aggregation, it could have a material effect on our earnings,

FUEL AND RELATED COSTS

¢ Fuel and Commodity Prices

The coal market is a global market in which domestic prices are affected by international supply
disruptions and demand balance. In addition, domestic issues like government-imposed direct
costs and permitting issues are affecting mining costs and supply availability. Our approach is to
hedge the fuel costs for our anticipated electric sales, For the year ending December 31, 2012, we
have hedged substantially all our coal requirements to meet our committed sales. We may not be
able to hedge the entire exposure of our operations from commodity price volatility. If our
suppliers do not meet their contractual commitments or we are not hedged against price volatility
and we are unable to recover costs through the fuel and purchased power recovery rider, our
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could be materially affected.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - DPL
DPL’s results of operations include the results of its subsidiaries, including the consolidated results of its principal
subsidiary DP&L. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. A
separate specific discussion of the results of operations for DP&L is presented elsewhere in this report.
Income Statement Highlights — DPL

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2611 2012 2011
Successor Predecessor  Successor Predecessor
Revenues:
Retail $ 3872 | § 396.1 § 1,060.7 | § 1,102.0
Wholesale 43.5 40.7 78.2 101.8
RTO revenues 34.7 22.3 72.6 63.2
RTO capacity revenues 55 373 69.0 1423
Other revenues 2.8 2.8 8.5 8.5
Other mark-to-market {losses} (2.0) (1.6) {1.3) (6.3)
Total revenues 471.7 497.6 1,287.7 1,411.5
Cost of revenues:
Fuel costs 119.2 121.8 278.8 3127
Losses / (gains) from sale of coal 3.1 (3.9 8.4 (6.8)
Mark-to-market losses / (gains) (9.6) 11.1 (8.2) 15.0
Net fuel 112.7 129.0 279.0 3209
Purchased power 53.5 39.7 127.4 120.3
RTO charges 30.9 34.5 77.0 90.9
RTO capacity charges 5.9 35.5 62.3 138.0
Mark-to-market losses / (gains) 0.4 (1.4} (0.9) (6.5)
Net purchased power 90.7 108.3 265.8 342.7
Amortization of intangibles 24.2 - 71.2 -
Total cost of revenues 227.6 237.3 616.0 663.6
Gross margins (@) $ 2441 | § 260.3 § 671.7 | § 7479
Gross margin as a percentage of revenues 52% 52% 52% 53%
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Operating income $  (1,761.3) | $ 1129 §  (1,644.7) | $ 279.5
( a) For purposes of discussing operating resulls, we present and

discuss gross margins. This formar is useful to investors because it

allows analvsis and comparability of operating trends and

includes the same information that is used by management fo make

decisions regarding our financial performance.

(b)
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DPL — Revenues

Retail customers, especially residential and commercial customers, consume more electricity on warmer and colder
days. Therefore, our retail sales volume is impacted by the number of heating and cooling degree days cccwrring
during a year. Cooling degree days typically have a more significant impact than heating degree days since some
residential customers do not use electricity to heat their homes.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Heating degree days (a) 110 124 2,828 3,604
Cooling degree days (a/ 825 839 1,255 1,158

(@) Heating and cooling degree days are a measure of the relative heating or cooling required for a home or business. The
heating degrees in a day are calculated as the difference of the average actual daily temperature below 65 degrees
Fahrenheis, If the average temperature on March 207 was 40 degrees Fahrenheit, the heating degrees for that day would
be the 25 degree difference between 65 degrees and 40 degrees. In a similar manner, cooling degrees in a day are the
difference of the average actual daily temperature in excess of 65 degrees Fahrenheit.

Since we plan to utilize our internal generating capacity to supply our retail customers’ needs first, increases in retail
demand may decrease the volume of internal generation available to be sold in the wholesale market and vice versa.
The whelesale market covers a multi-state area and seitles on an hourly basis throughout the year. Factors impacting
our wholesale sales volume each hour of the year include: wholesale market prices; our retail demand; retail demand
elsewhere throughout the entire wholesale market area; our plants’ and other utility plants” availability to sell into
the wholesale market and weather conditions across the multi-state region, Our plan is to make wholesale sales
when market prices allow for the economic operation of our generation facilities not being utilized to meet our retail
demand or when margin opportunities exist between the wholesale sales and power purchase prices.

The following table provides a summary of changes in revenues from the prior period:

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 vs. 2011 2012 vs. 2011
Retail
Rate $ (22.0) 5 (20.4)
Volume 14.9 (19.0)
Other miscellaneous (1.8) {1.9)
Total retail change (8.9) (41.3)
Wholesale
Rate (16.0} (12.5)
Volume 18.8 (1.1
Total wholesale change 2.8 (23.6)
RTO capacity & other
RTO capacity and other revenues 19.4 63.9
Other
Unrealized MTM (0.4} 5.0
Other - -
Total other revenue (0.4) 5.0
Total revenues change $ (25.9) $ (123.8)
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For the three months ended September 30, 2012, Revenues decreased $23.9 million to $471.7 million from $497.6
million in the same period of the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of lower retail and wholesale
sales volume, a decrease in average retail rates and a decrease in RTO capacity and other RTO revenues, offset
slightly by higher retail and wholesale sales volume.

Retail revenues decreased $8.9 million primarily due to customer switching as a result of increased levels
of competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. Alse contributing to
the decrease was unfavorable weather; during the threec months there was a 2% decrease in the number of
cooling degree days to 825 days from 839 days in 2011, as well as a 12% decrease in the number of heating
degree days to 110 days from 124 days in 2011. The effect of sales procured by DPLER and MC Squared
outside our service territory, or off-system sales, caused sales volume to increase 4%, however, the rates
offered to the off-system customers are lower than the rates in our service territory causing an overall 3%
decrease in average rates. The above resulted in an unfavorable $22.0 million retail price variance offset by
a favorable $14.9 million retail sales volume variance.

Wholesale revenues increased $2.8 million primarily as a result of a 46% increase in wholesale sales
volume which was largely a result of higher generation by our power plants, offset slightly by a 27%
decrease in average wholesale prices. This resuited in a favorable $18.8 million wholesale sales volume
variance offset by an unfavorable wholesale price variance of $16.0 million.

RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the RPM
construct, decreased $19.4 million compared to the same period in 201 1. This decrease in RTO capacity
and other revenues was the result of a $31.8 million decrease in revenues realized from the PIM capacity
auction offset by a $12.4 million increase in transmission and congestion revenues from the receipt of the
SECA settlement.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Revenues decreased $123.8 million to $1,287.7 million from
$1,411.5 million in the same period of the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of lawer retail and
wholesale sales volume, lower retail and wholesale average rates and a decrease in RTO capacity and other RTO
revenues,

Retail revenues decreased $41.3 million resulting primarily from a 2% decrease in retail sales volume
compared to the prior year, The unfavorable weather conditions resulted in a 22% decrease in the number
of heating degree days to 2,828 days from 3,604 days in 2011 offset slightly by a 9% increase in the
number of cooling degree days to 1,255 days from 1,158 days in 2011. The decrease in sales volume is
affected by the lower revenues due to customer switching which has resulted from increased levels of
competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. However, the decrease
was slightly offset by the procurement of sales by DFLER and MC Squared outside our service territory as
discussed in the previous section. The decrease in sales volume was partially offset by improved economic
conditions as well. The above resulted in an unfavorable $20.4 million retail price variance and an
unfavorable $19.¢ million retail sales volume variance,
Wholesale revenues decreased $23.6 million primarily as a result of an 11% decrease in wholesale sales
volume which was largely a result of lower generation by our power plants, including a 14% decrease in
average wholesale prices. This resulted in an unfavorable $12.5 million wholesale price variance and an
unfavorable wholesale sales volume variance of $11.1 million.
RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the RPM
construct, decreased $63.9 million compared to the same period in 2011, This decrease in RTO capacity
and other revenues was primarily the result of a $73.3 million decrease in revenues realized from the PTM
capacity auction partially offset by an increase in transmission and congestion revenues.
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DPL — Cost of Revenues
For the three months ended September 30, 2012:

Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, decreased $16.3 million, or 13%,

during the quarter ended September 30, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011. This decrease was
largely due to unrealized MTM gains of $9.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 versus
$11.1 million of MTM losses during the same period in 2011, Also contributing to this decrease was a $2.6
million decrease in fuel costs driven by a 1% decrease in the volume of generation at our plants. Partialty
offsetting the decreases were $3.1 million in realized losses from DP&L’s sale of coal, compared to $3.9
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million of realized gains during the same period in 2011,

. Net purchased power decreased $17.6 million, or 16%, compared to the same period in 2011 due largely to
2 $33.2 million decrease in RTO capacity and other charges which were incurred as a member of PJM,
including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. This decrease included the
net impact of the deferral and recovery of DP&L’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges.
Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in purchased power costs of $13.8 million, or 35%,
compared to the same period in 2011, as well as a decrease in unrealized MTM gains of $1.8 million. The
increase in purchased power costs was driven by an increase in purchased power volumes of 38%, partially
offset by a decrease in purchased power prices of approximately 15%. We purchase power to satisfy retail
sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when
market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities.

. Amortization of intangibles increased $24.2 million compared to the same petiod in 2011 due to the
intangibles recorded at the Merger date.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012:

. Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, decreased $41.9 million, or 13%,
during the nine months ended September 30, 20412 compared to the same period in 2011. This decrease was
largely due to a $33.9 million decrease in fuel costs driven by an 11% decrease in the volume of generation
at our plants. Also contributing to this decrease were realized losses from DP&L’s sale of coal of $8.4
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 versus $6.8 million in realized gains during the
same period in 2011, Partially offsetting the decreases were $8.2 million in unrealized MTM gains
compared to $15.0 million of unrealized MTM losses during the same period in 2011.

. Net purchased power decreased $76.9 million, or 22%, compared to the same period in 2011 due largely to
an $89.6 million decrease in RTO capacity and other charges which were incurred as a member of PJM,
including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. This decrease included the
net impact of the deferral and recovery of DP&L’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges.
Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in purchased power costs of $7.1 million, or 6%,
compared to the same period in 2011, as well as a decrease in unrealized MTM gains of $5.6 million. The
increase in purchased power costs was driven by an increase in purchased power volumes of 33%, partially
offset by a decrease in purchased power prices of approximately 21%. We purchase power to satisfy retail
sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when
market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities.

. Amortization of intangibles increased $71.2 million compared to the same period in 2011 due to the
intangibles recorded at the Merger date.
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DPL - Operation and Maintenance
The following table provides a summary of changes in operation and maintenance expense from the prior period.

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended

September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 vs. 2011 2012 vs. 2011
Low-income payment program ' $ 5.7 ) 16.1
Energy efficiency program 4.0 8.8
Competitive retail operations 0.9 5.8
Maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines 2.5 (3.9
Generating facilities operating and maintenance expense 2.0 32
Pension related expense 1.1 (0.3)
Deferred compensation {0.5) (2.6}
Merger related costs 3.7 (8.2)
Other, net 2.6 (5.0)
Total change in operation and maintenance expense $ 14.6 $ 13.9

® There is a corresponding increase in Revenues associated

with this program resulting in no impact to Net Income.
During the three months ended September 30, 2012, Operation and maintenance expense increased $14.6 million, or
16%, compared to the same period in 201 1. This variance was primarily the result of!
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. increased assistance for low-income retail customers which is funded by the USF revenue rate rider,

. increased expenses relating to energy efficiency programs that were put in place for our customers,

. increased marketing, customer maintenance and labor costs associated with the competitive retail business
as a result of increased sales volume and number of customers,

. increase in expenses related to the maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines due to the
derecho storm in late June, partially offset by decreased non-storm related expenses,

. increased expenses for generating facilities largely due to the length and timing of planned outages at
jointly owned production units relative to the same period in 2011, and

. higher pension expenses primarily related to a one-time SERP settlement charge of $0.6M which was

recorded as a July 2012 lump-sum payment to a SERP participant triggered by settlement accounting for
the SERP as well as changes in plan assumptions, specificatly a lower discount rate and lower expected rate
of return on plan assets.

These increases were partially offset by:

higher costs in the prior year related to the Merger, and

P decreased expenses related to deferred compensation arrangements primarily due to fewer equity awards in
the current perjod.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Operation and maintenance expense increased $13.9 million, or
5%, compared to the same period in 2011. This variance was primarily the result of:

. increased assistance for low-income retail customers which is funded by the USF revenue rate rider,

. increase expenses relating to energy efficiency programs that were put in place for our customers,

. increased marketing, customer maintenance and labor costs associated with the competitive retail business
as a result of increased sales volume and number of customer, and

. increased expenses for generating facilities largely due to the length and timing of planned outages at

jointly owned production units relative to the same period in 2011.

These increases were partially offset by:

. decreased expenses related to the maintenance of overhead transmissicn and distribution lines primarily as
a result of storms, including a significant ice storm in February 2011,

. higher costs in the prior year related to the Merger,

. decreased expenses related to deferred compensation arrangements primarily related to fewer equity awards
in the current periods, and

. lower pension expenses primarily related to the elimination of certain unrecognized actuarial losses and

prior service costs as a result of purchase accounting due to the Merger, These amounts were previously
recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income and recognized in pension expense over the
remaining service life of plan participants.
On August 10, 2012, DP&L filed with the PUCQ for an accounting order for permission to defer operation and
maintenance costs as a result of damage caused by storms occurring during the final weekend of June 2012, The
deferral request is for distribution expense incurred for these storms. The deferral would earn a return equal to the
carrying cost of debt (5.86%) until these costs are recovered from customers. On October 19, 2012, DP&L amended
its filing to change the method of calculating the deferral. If PUCO approval is received, DP&L will defer
approximately $5.8 million of costs associated with these storms.
DPL — Depreciation and Amortization
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $2.7
mitlion, or 8%, and $10.4 million, or 10%, respectively, as compared to 2011. The decreases primarily reflect the
effect of the purchase accounting which resulted in estimated fair values of our plants below the carrying values at
the Merger date. This was partially offset by increased amortization expense due to amortization resulting from the
increase in the estimated value of certain intangibles acquired in the Merger.
DPL - General Taxes
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, General taxes decreased $3.9 million, or 20%, and $5.5
million, or 9%, respectively, as compared to 2011. This decrease was primarily the result of an unfavorable 2011
determination from the Ohio gross receipts tax audit as well as the release of a property tax reserve related to the
purchase accounting property revaluations partially offset by higher property tax accruals in 2012 compared to 201 1.
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Prior to the Merger date, certain excise and other taxes were recorded gross. Effective on the Merger date, these
taxes are accounted for on a net basis and are recorded as a reduction in revenues for presentation in accordance
with AES policy. The 2011 amount was reclassified to conform to this presentation.
DPL. — Interest Expense
For the thre¢ months ended September 30, 2012, lnterest expense increased $14.3 million, or 85%, as compared to
2011 due primarily to higher interest cost subsequent to the Merger as a result of the $1,250.0 million of debt that
was assumed by DPL in connection with the AES Metger.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, [nterest expense increased $41.8 million, or 81%, as compared to
2011 due primarily to higher interest cost subsequent to the Merger as a result of the $1,250.0 millien of debt that
was assumed by DPL in connection with the AES Merger.
DPL — Charge for Early Redemption of Debt
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The Charge for early redemption of debt reflects the purchase in February 2011 of $122.0 million principal of the
DPL Capital Trust II 8.125% capital securities in a privately negotiated transaction. As part of this transaction, DPL
paid a $12.2 million, or 10%, premium and wrote oftf $3.1 million of unamortized discount and issuance costs.
DPL — Income Tax Expense
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, Income tax expense decreased $8.4 million, or 29%, and
$29.4 million, or 42%, respectively, as compared to 2011 primarily due to decreased pre-tax income, partially offset
by increased state income taxes.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT — DPL
DPL’s two segments are the Utility segment, comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail
segment, comprised of its competitive retail electric service subsidiaries. These segments are discussed further
below:
Utility Segment
The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L’s electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which
generate and sell electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers. Electricity for the
segment’s 24-county service area is primarily generated at eight coal-fired power plants and is distributed to more
than 500,000 retail customers who are located in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. DP&L also sells
electricity to DPLER and any excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale market, DP&L’s transmission
and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state reguiators while rates for its generation
business are deemed competitive under Ohio law.
Compelitive Retail Segment
The Competitive Retail segment is comprised of the DPLER and MC Squared competitive retail electric service
businesses which sell retail electric energy under contract to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental
customers who have selected DPLER or MC Squared as their alternative electric supplier, The Competitive Retail
segment sells electricity to approximately 175,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and Illinois. MC
Squared, a Chicago-based retail electricity suppliet, serves more than 101,000 customers in Northern Hlinois. The
Competitive Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L and
PIM. DP&L sells power to DPLER and MC Squared under wholesale agreements. Under these agreements,
intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER and MC Squared are based on fixed-price contracts for each DPLER or
MC Squared customer. The price approximates market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each
customer’s contract. The Competitive Retail segment has no transmission or generation assets. The operations of the
Competitive Retail segment are not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation by federal or state regulators.
Other
Included within Other are other businesses that do not meet the GAAP requirements for separate disclosure as
reportable segments as well as certain corporate costs which include amortization of intangibles recognized in
conjunction with the Merger and interest expense on DPL’s debt.
Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin,
See Note 14 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of DPL’s
reportable segments.

116

The following table presents DPL’s gross margin by business segment:
Three Months Ended Increase
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$ in millions

Utility

Competitive retail

Other

Adjustments and eliminations
Total consolidated

Utility

Competitive retail

Other

Adjustinents and eliminations

Total consolidated

September 30, (Decrease)
2012 2011 2012 vs. 2011
Successor Predecessor
$ 238818 2329 % 59
22.1 17.2 4.9
(16.0) 11.3 (27.3)
(0.8) (1.1) 0.3
b 2441 | $ 2603 § (16.2)
Nine Months Ended Increase
September 30, (Decrease}
2012 2011 2012 vs. 2011
Successor Predecessor
b 666.6 | $ 669.7 § 3.1
51.9 46.0 5.9
(44.3) 353 (79.6)
(2.5) (3.1} 0.6
5 6717 | § 7479 § (76.2)

The financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Utility segment are identical in all material
respects, and for both periods presented, to those of DP&L which are included in this Form 10-Q. We do not believe
that additional discussions of the financial condition and results of operations of the Utility segment would enhance
an understanding of this business since these discussions are already included under the DP&L discussions below.
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Income Statement Highlights — Competitive Retail Segment

Three Months Ended

September 30, Increase
2012 2011 {Decrease)
§$ in millions Successor Predecessor 2012 vs, 2011
Revenues:
Retail ¥ 1472 § 1195 § 217
RTO and other (1.7) (0.9) (0.8)
Total revenues 145.5 118.6 269
Cost of revenues:
Purchased power 123.4 101.4 22.0
Gross margins (aj 22.1 17.2 4.9
Operation and maintenance expense 54 4.5 0.9
Other expenses 0.8 0.7 0.1
Total expenses 6.2 52 1.0
Earnings hefore income tax 15.9 12.0 39
Income tax expense 5.9 4.2 1.7
Net income $ 16.0 § 78 % 2.2
Gross margin as a percentage of revenues 15% 15%
(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and
discuss gross margins. This format is usefil to investors because
it allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and
includes the same information thar is used by management to
make decisions regarding our financial performarnce.
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Nine Months Ended
September 30, Increase
$ in millions 2012 2011 (Decrease)
Successor Predecessor 2012 vs, 2011
Revenues:
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Retail 5 3674 $ 319.1 % 48.3

RTO and other 0.1 (4.5) 4.6
Total revenues 3675 314.6 52.9
Cost of revenues:
Purchased power 315.0 268.6 47.0
Gross margins (@) 51.9 46.0 5.9
Operation and maintenance expense 16.4 10.6 5.8
Other expenses 2.2 1.7 0.5
Total expenses 18.6 12.3 6.3
Earnings before income tax 33.3 33.7 (0.4)
Income tax expense 15.8 14.1 1.7
Net income $ 175 § 19.6 § (2.1)
Gross margin as a percentage of revenues 14% 15%
(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and

discuss gross margins. This format is useful to invesiors because
it allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and
includes the same information that is used by management to
make decisions regarding owr financial performance.

Competitive Retail Segment — Revenue
For the three months ended September 30, 2012, the segment’s retail revenues increased $27.7 million, or 23%, as
compared to 2011. The increase was primarily due to increased retail sales volume from DP&L’s retail customers
switching their electric service to DPLER and customer switching in Illinois. Increased competition in the
competitive retail electric service business in the state of Ohio has resulted in many of DP&L’s retail customers
switching their retail electric service to DPLER or other CRES suppliers. Primarily as a result of the customer
switching discussed above, the Competitive Retail segment sold approximately 2,484 million kWh of power to
approximately 175,000 customers for the three months ending September 30, 2012 compared to approximately
1,871 million kWh of power to more than 25,000 customers during the same period of 2011.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the segment’s retail revenues increased $48.3 million, or 15%, as
compared to 2011. The increase was primarily due to a $26.9 million increase in retail revenue from MC Squared
which was purchased on February 28, 2011 combined with increased retail sales volume from DP&L’s retail
customers switching their electric service to DPLER. Increased competition in the competitive retail electric service
business in the state of Chio has resulted in many of DP&L’s retail customers switching their retail electric service
to DPLER or other CRES suppliers. Similar competition in Illinois has resulted in favorable increases in MC
Squared’s number of retail customers due to switching. The increased sales volume from switching and from MC
Squared was partially offset by unfavorable weather conditions resulting in a 22% decrease in the number of heating
degree days during the period in 2012 compared to 2011, Primarily as a result of the customer switching discussed
above, the Competitive Retail segment sold approximately 6,100 million kWh of power to approximately 175,000
customers for the nine months ending September 30, 2012 compared to approximately 5,011 million kWh of power
to more than 25,000 customers during the same period of 2011.
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Competitive Retail Segment — Purchased Power
For the three months ended September 30, 2012, the Competitive Retail segment purchased power increased $22.0
million, or 22%, as compared to 2011 due to higher purchased power volumes required to satisfy an increase in
customer base resulting from customer switching. The Competitive Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its
sales obligations was purchased from DP&L and PIM.

For the nine months ended September 3¢, 2012, the Competitive Retail segment purchased power increased $47.0
million, or 17%, as compared to 2011 due to higher purchased power volumes required to satisfy an increase in
customer base resulting from customer switching and power purchased for MC Squared customers for all nine
months in 2012 versus seven months in 2011. The Competitive Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its
sales obligations was purchased from DP&L and PIM.

Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER are based on fixed-price contracts for each DPLER customer; the price
approximates market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each customer’s contract.

Competitive Retail Segment — Operation and Maintenance

For the three months ended September 30, 2012, DPLER’s operation and maintenance expenses included employee-
related expenses, accounting, information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses. The higher
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operation and maintenance expense in 2012 as compared to 2011 is reflective of increased marketing and customer

maintenance costs associated with the increased sales volume and number of customers.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, DPLER’s operation and maintenance expenses included employee-

related expenses, accounting, information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses. The higher

operation and maintenance expense in 2012 as compared to 2011 is reflective of increased marketing and customer

maintenance costs associated with the increased sales volume and number of customers as well as the purchase of

MC Squared.

Competitive Retail Segment — Income Tax Expense

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the segment’s income tax expense increased $1.7 million

and $1.7 million, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2011 due to increased state income tax expenses.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - DP&L
Income Statement Highlights — DP&L

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues:
Retail 3 2409 § 2778 $ 6963 § 786.2
Wholesale 150.9 122.3 351.2 333.2
RTO revenues 33.5 20.7 69.2 59.2
RTO capacity revenues 4.7 31.7 58.7 120.6
Mark-to-market (gains)/losses (3.2) - (2.4) -
Total revenues 426.8 452.5 1,173.0 1,299.2
Cost of revenues:
Fuel costs 1147 116.8 272.1 3035
Gains from sale of ceal 3.1 3.9) 8.4 (6.8)
Mark-to-market (gains)/losses (9.7) 11.1 (8.2) 15.0
Net fuel 108.1 124.0 272.3 311.7
Purchased power 42,4 285 99.0 95.2
RTO charges 29.7 335 74.5 90.2
RTO capacity charges 5.7 336 583 132.5
Mark-to-market (gains)/losses 2.1 - 2.3 (0.1)
Total purchased power 79.9 95.6 234.1 317.8
Total cost of revenues 188.0 219.6 506.4 629.5
Gross margins (@) $ 2388 $ 2329 % 666.6 3 669.7
Gross margin as a percentage of
revenues 56% 51% 57% 52%
Operating Income $ 36 § 100.0 % 1256 $ 2451
(2) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and
discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
aliows analysis and comparability of operating trends and
includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance,
(b}

DP&L — Revenues

Retail customers, especially residential and commercial customers, consume more electricity on warmer and colder
days. Therefore, DP&L’s retail sales volume is impacted by the number of heating and cooling degree days
occurring during a year. Since DP&L plans to utilize its internal generating capacily to supply its retail customers’
needs first, increases in retail demand will decrease the volume of internal generation available to be sold in the
wholesale market and vice versa.

The wholesale market covers a multi-state area and settles on an hourly basis thronghout the year. Factors impacting
DP&L’s wholesale sales volume each hour of the year include: wholesale market prices, DP&L’s retail demand,
retail demand elsewhere throughout the entire wholesale market area, DP&L and non-DP&L plants” availability to
sell into the wholesale market and weather conditions across the multi-state region. DP&L’s plan is to make
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wholesale sales when market prices allow for the economic operation of its generation facilities that are not being
utilized to meet its retail demand.
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The following table provides a summary of changes in revenues from the prior period:

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 vs. 2011 2012 vs. 2011
Retail
Rate (7.7) b (16.5)
Volume 27.2) (71.3)
Other miscellaneous (2.0) 2.1y
Total retail change (36.9) (89.9)
Wholesale
Rate (20.8) (17.2)
Volume 49.4 35.2
Total wholesale change 28.6 18.0
RTO capacity & other
RTO capacity and other revenues 14.2 (219
Other
Unrealized MTM (3.2) 2.4)
Total other revenue (3.2) 24
Total revenues change 25. $ (126.2)

For the three months ended September 30, 2012, Revenues decreased $25.7 million, or 6%, to $426.8 million from
$452.5 million in the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of lower average retail and wholesale rates,
lower retail sales volumes and decreased RTO capacity and other revenues, offset slightly by increased wholesale
sales volume. The revenue components for the three months ended September 30, 2012 are further discussed below:

Retail revenues decreased $36.9 million primarily due to a 10% decrease in retail sales volumes compared
to the prior year which was largely a result of customer switching due to increased levels of competition 1o
provide transmission and generation services in our service tetritory. This decrease in sales volume was
partially offset by improved economic conditions. Weather during the three months was slightly
unfavorable with a 12% decrease in the number of heating degree days to 110 days from 124 days in 2011
as well as a 2% decrease in the number of cooling degree days to 825 days from 839 days in 2011.
Although DP&L. had a number of customers that switched their retail electric service from DP&L to
DPLER, an affiliated CRES provider, DP&L continued to provide distribution services to those customers
within its service territory. Average retail rates decreased 3% overall primarily as a result of customers
switching from DP&L to DPLER. The remaining distribution services provided by DP&L were billed at a
lower rate resulting in a reduction of total average retail rates. The decrease in average retail rates resulting
from customers switching was partially offset by the implementation of the fuel and energy efficiency
riders, increased TCRR and RPM riders, and the incremental effect of the recovery of costs under the EIR.
The above resulted in an unfavorable $27.2 million retail sales volume variance and an unfavorable $7.7
million retail price variance.

Wholesale revenues increased $28.6 million primarily as a result of a 40% increase in whelesale sales
volume which was largely a result the effect of customer switching discussed in the immediately preceding
paragraph. DP&L records wholesale revenues from its sale of transmission and generation services to
DPLER associated with these switched customers. These resulted in a favorable $49.4 million wholesale
volume variance offset by a $20.8 million unfavorable wholesale price variance.

RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the RPM
construct, decreased $14.2 million compared to the same period in 2011, This decrease in RTQ capacity
and other revenues was primarily the result of a $27.0 million decrease in revenues realized
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from the PJM capacity auction, offset by a slight increase of $12.8 million in transmission and congestion
revenues as a result of receiving the SECA settlement.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Revenues decreased $126.2 million, or 10%, to $1,173.0 million

from $1,299.2 million in the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of lower average retail and wholesale

rates, lower retail sales volumes and decreased RTO capacity and other revenues, partially offset by higher
wholesale sales volume. The reveniue components for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 are further
discussed below:

. Retail revenues decreased $89.9 million primarily due to a 9% decrease in retail sales volumes compared to
those in the prior year largely due to unfavorable weather conditions. The unfavorable weather conditions
resulted in a 22% decrease in the number of heating degree days to 2,828 days from 3,604 days in 2011
offset slightly by a 9% increase in the number of cooling degree days to 1,255 days from 1,138 days in
2011, Although DP&L had a number of customers that switched their retail electric service from DP&L 10
DPLER, an affiliated CRES provider, DP&L continued to provide distribution services to those customers
within its service territory. The average retail rates decreased 2% overall primarily as a result of customers
switching from DP&L to DPLER. The remaining distribution services provided by DP&L were billed at a
lower rate resulting in a reduction of total average retail rates. The decrease in average retail rates resulting
from customers switching was partially offset by the implementation of the fuel and energy efficiency
riders, increased TCRR and RPM riders, and the incremental effect of the recovery of costs under the EIR.
The above resulted in an unfavorable $71.3 million retail sales volume variance and an unfavorable $16.5
million retail price variance.

. Wholesale revenues increased $18.0 million primarily as a result of a 10% increase in wholesale sales
volume which was largely a result of the effect of customer switching discussed in the immediately
preceding paragraph. DP&L records wholesale revenues from its sale of transmission and generation
services to DPLER associated with these switched customers. This increase was partially offset by a 5%
decrease in average wholesale sales prices. This resulted in a favorable $35.2 million wholesale volume
variance offset partially by a $17.2 million unfavorable wholesale price variance.

. RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the RPM
construct, decreased $51.9 million compared to the same period in 2011, This decrease in RTO capacity
and other revenues was primarily the result of a $61.9 million decrease in revenues realized from the PJIM
capacity auction offset by an increage of $10.0 million in transmission and congestion revenues, partially
offset by the receipt of the SECA settlement.

DP&L — Cost of Revenues

For the three months ended September 30, 2012:

- Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, decreased $15.9 million, or 13%,
during the quarter ended September 30, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011. This decrease was
largely due to unrealized MTM gains of $9.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012 versus
$11.1 million of MTM losses during the same period in 2011. Also contributing to this decrease was a $2.1
million decrease in fuel costs driven by a 3% decrease in the volume of generation at our plants. Partially
offsetting the decreases were $3.1 million in realized losses from DP&L’s sale of coal, compared to $3.9
million of realized gains during the same period in 2011.

. Net purchased power decreased $15.7 million, or 16%, compared to the same period in 2011 due largely to
a $31.7 million decrease in RTO capacity and other charges which were incurred as a member of PJM,
including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. This decrease included the
net impact of the deferral and recovery of DP&L.’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges.
Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in purchased power costs of $13.9 million, or 49%,
compared to the same period in 2011, as well as an increase in unrealized MTM losses of $2.1 million. The
increase in purchased power costs was driven by an increase in purchased power volumes of 87% partially
offset by a decrease in purchased power prices of approximately 21%. We purchase power to satisfy retail
sales volume when gencrating facilitics are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when
market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2012:
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Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, decreased $39.4 million, or 13%,
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to the same period in 201 1. This decrease was
largely due to a $31.4 million decrease in fuel costs driven by a 12% decrease in the volume of generation
at our plants. Also contributing to the decrease were realized losses from DP&L.’s sale of coal of $8.4
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 versus $6.8 million in realized gains during the
same period in 2011. Partially offsetting the decreases were $8.2 million in unrealized MTM gains,
compared to $15.0 million of unrealized MTM losses during the same period in 2011,

Net purchased power decreased $83.7 million, or 26%, compared to the same period in 2011 due largely to
an $89.9 million decrease in RTO capacity and other charges which were incurred as a member of PJM,
including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. This decrease included the
net impact of the deferral and recovery of DP&L.’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges.
Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in purchased power costs of $3.8 million, or 4%,
compared to the same period in 2011, as well as an increase in unrealized MTM losses of $2.4 million. The
increase in purchased power costs was driven by an increase in purchased power volumes of 36%, partially
offset by a decrease in purchased power prices of approximately 23%. We purchase power to satisfy retail
sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when
market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities.

DP&L — Operation and Maintenance
The following table provides a summary of changes in operation and maintenance expense from the prior period,

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 vs. 2011 2012 vs, 2011
Low-income payment program ) $ 5.7 3 16.1
Energy efficiency program (" 4.0 8.8
Maintenance of overhead fransmission and
distribution lines 25 (3.9)
Generating facilities operating and maintenance
expense 2.0 34
Pension related expense 28 4.5
Deferred compensation (0.6) (2.6)
Other, net 7.0 3.8
Tota] change in operation and maintenance
expense 3 234 3 32.1

[8)

For the three months ended September 30, 2012, Operation and maintenance expense increased $23.4 million, or

There is a corresponding increase in Revenues associated
with this program resulting in no impact to Net Income.
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29%, compared to the same period in 2011. This variance was primarily the result of:

increased assistance for low-income retail customers which is funded by the USF revenue rate rider,

higher pension expenses primarily related to a one-time SERP settlement charge of $0.6 million which was
recorded as a July 2012 lump-sum payment to a SERP participant triggered by settlement accounting for
the SERP as well as changes in plan assumptions, specifically a lower discount rate and lower expected rate

»
. increased expenses relating to energy efficiency programs that were put in place for our customers,
. increased maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines due to the derecho storm in late
June, partially offset by decreased nen-storm related expenses,
. increased expenses for generating facilities largely due to the length and timing of planned outages at
jointly owned production units relafive to the same period in 2011, and
®
of return on plan assets.
These increases were partially offset by:
[ ]

decreased expenses related to deferred compensation arrangements primarily due to fewer equity awards in
the current periods.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Operation and maintenance expense increased $32.1 million, or
12%, compared to the same period in 2011. This variance was primarily the result of:

° increased assistance for low-income retail customers which is funded by the USF revenue rate rider,

. increased expenses relating to energy efficiency programs that were put in place for our customers,

. increased expenses for generating facilities largely due to the length and timing of planned outages at
jointly owned production units relative to the same period in 2011, and

. higher pension expenses primarily related to a one-time SERP settlement charge of $0.6 million which was

recorded as a July 2012 lump-sum payment to a SERP participant triggered by settlement accounting for
the SERP as well as changes in plan assumptions, specifically a lower discount rate and lower expected rate
of return on plan assets.

These increases were partially offset by:

. decreased expenses related to the maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines primarily as
a result of storms, including a significant ice storm in February 2011, and
. decreased expenses related to deferred compensation arrangements primarily due to fewer equity awards in

the current periods.
On August 10, 2012, DP&L filed with the PUCO for an accounting otder for permission to defer operation and
maintenance costs as a result of damage caused by storms occurring during the final weekend of June 2012. The
deferral request is for distribution expense incurred for these storms. The deferral would earn a return equal to the
carrying cost of debt (5.86%) until these costs are recovered from customers. On October 19, 2012, DP&L amended
its filing to change the method of calculating the deferral. If PUCO approval is received, DP&L will defer
approximately $5.8 million of costs associated with these storms.
DP&L — Depreciation and Amortization
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.7
million and $7.0 million, respectively, as compared to 201 1. The increase primarily reflected the impact of
investments in plant and equipment during the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
DP&L — General Taxes
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, General taxes decreased $4.6 million, or 24%, and $3.5
million, or 6%, tespectively, as compared to 2011. This decrease was primarily the result of the release of a property
tax reserve in 2012 related to purchase accounting property revaluations. Prior to the Merger date, certain excise and
other taxes were recorded gross. Effective on the Merger date, these taxes are accounted for on a net basis and are
recorded as a reduction in Revenues for presentation in accordance with AES policy. The 2011 amounts were
reclassified to conform to this presentation,
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DP&L — Interest Expense
Interest expense recorded during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 did not fluctuate significantly
from that recorded during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011.
DP&L — Income Tax Expense
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, Income tax expense decreased $20.3 million, or 76%, and
decreased $29.9 million, or 43%, respectively, as compared to 201 1. The three meonth increase was primarily due to
the effect of estimate-to-actual income tax provision adjustments and the nine month decrease was primarily due to
decreased pre-tax income,

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
DPL’s financial condition, liquidity and capital requirements include the results of its principal subsidiary DP&L..
All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The following table
provides a sutnmary of the cash flows for DPL and DP&L:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
DPL September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Successor Predecessor

Net cash from operating activities $ 249.7 | § 273.9

Net cash from investing activitics (163.5) (88.0)

Net cash from financing activities (54.1) (242.3)
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Net change 32.1 (56.4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 173.5 124.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2056 | 3 67.6
Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
DP&L September 30, September 30,
% in miilions 2012 2011
Net cash from operating activitics L) 2998 S 294.2
Net cash from investing activities (166.9) (145.9)
Net cash from financing activities (145.7) {180.6)
Net change (12.8) (32.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 322 54.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 194 § 21.7

The significant items that have affected the cash flows for DPL and DP&L are discussed in greater detail below:

Net cash provided by operating activities

The revenue from our energy business continues to be the principal source of cash from operating activities while
our primary uses of cash include payments for fuel, purchased power, operation and maintenance expenses, interest

and taxes.

Fnauia

DPL — Net cash from operating activities

DPL’s Net cash from operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 can be

summarized as follows:

Nine Months Nine Manths
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Successor Predecessor
Net cash from operating activities
Net (loss) / income $ 1,777.3) | § 142.3
Depreciation and amortization 152.6 106.0
Deferred income taxes (10.5) 70.5
Charge for early redemption of debt - 153
Goodwill impairment 1,850.0 -
Contribution to pension plan - (40.0}
Accrued interest 25.2 (3.13
Deferred regulatory costs, net 2.7 79
Prepaid taxes 0.6 (27.0)
Other 6.4 2.0
Net cash from operating activities $ 249.7 | $ 273.9

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of
Net loss adjusted for non-cash depreciation and amortization and the goodwill impairment. Other represents items
that had a current period cash flow impact and includes changes in working capital and other future rights or
obligations to receive or to pay cash. These items arc primarily affected by, among other factors, the timing of when
cash payments are made for fuel, purchased power, operating costs, taxes, and when cash is received from our utility
customers and from the sales of coal and excess emission allowances. Accrued interest relates primarily to the
$1,250.0 million of debt that was assumed by DPL at the merger date and the timing of interest payments.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of
earnings from continuing operations adjusted for non-cash depreciation and amortization, combined with the

following significant transactions:

. A $70.5 million increase to deferred income taxes primarily as a result of depreciation as well as pension
contributions, financial transaction losses and other temporary differences arising from routine changes in

balance sheet accounts giving rise to deferred taxes.

. A $15.3 million charge for the early redemption of DPL Capital Trust 11 securities.
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. A DP&L discretionary contribution of $40.0 million to the defined benefit pension plan in February 2011,

DP&L — Net cash from operating activities

DP&L’s Net cash from operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 can be

summarized as follows:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
3 in millions 2012 2011
Net cash from operating activities
Net income $ 583 % 147.4
Depreciation and amortization 107.3 100.3
Deferred income taxes 3.4) 56.1
Fixed asset impairment 80.8 -
Recognition of deferred SECA revenue (17.8) -
Contribution to pension plan - (40.0)
Increase in current assets 41.1 17.4
Accrued interest 7.4 74
Deferred regulatory costs, net 2.4 7.9
Prepaid taxes 0.8 (11.5)
Other 22.9 0.2
Net cash from operating activities 5 2998 § 294.2

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the significant components of DP&L’s Net cash provided
by operating activities are similar to those discussed under DPL’s Net cash provided by operating activities above.
DPL — Net cash from investing activities

DPL’s Net cash from investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 can be

summarized as follows:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 201
Successor Predecessor
Net cash from investing activities
Other plant acquisitions, net $ (155.6) | $ (132.8)
Environmental and renewable energy capital
expenditures (7.5) (8.5)
Purchase of MC Squared - (8.3)
Increase in restricted cash {0.4) 9.1)
Sales / (purchases) of short-term investments, net - 69.2
Other - 1.5
Net cash from investing activities $ (163.5) | § (88.0)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, DPL’s cash vsed for investing activities reflects assets acquired at
our generation plants,
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, DPL cash used for investing activities was primarily for assets
acquired at our generation plants. Additionally, DPL, on behalf of DPLER, made a cash payment of approximately
$8.3 million to acquire MC Squared. Also during the nine months ended September 30, 201 1, DPL redeemed $70,9
million of short-term investments mostly comprised of VRDN securities as well as purchased an additional $1.7
million of short-term investments during the same period. These securities have variable coupon rates that are
typically reset weekly relative to various short-term rate indices. DPL can tender
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these VRDN securities for sale upon notice to the broker and receive payment for the tendered securities within
seven days.
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DP&L — Net cash from investing activities

DP&L’s Net cash from investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 can be

suminarized as follows:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Net cash from investing activities
Other plant acquisitions, net S (154.2) § (131.4)
Environmental and renewable energy capital
expenditures (7.5) (8.5)
Increase in restricted cash (5.2) (7.4)
Other - 1.4
Net cash from investing activities b (166.9) § (145.9)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the significant components of DP&L’s Net cash used for
investing activities are similar to those discussed under DPL's Net cash used for investing activities above with the

exception of the shori-term investing activity.
DPL — Net cash from financing activities

DPL’s Net cash from financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 can be

summarized as follows:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011
Successor Predecessor
Net cash from financing activities
Dividends paid on common stock $ 450y | § (113.8)
Payment to former warrant holders {9.0) -
Issuance of long-term debt - 300.0
Retirement of long-term debt (0.1) (297.4)
Early redemption of long-term debt, including premium - (134.2)
Payment of MC Squared debt - (13.3)
Exercise of warrants - 14.7
Exercise stock options - 1.9
Other - -
Net cash from financing activities $ (54.1) | $ (242.3)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, DPL paid common stock dividends of $45.0 million to its parent,
partially offset by contributions to additional paid-in capital from its parent, AES. DPL also paid $9.0 million to
former warrant holders, the payment of which represents the difference between the exercise price of $21.00 per

share and the $30.00 per share paid by AES in the Merger.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, DPL paid common stock dividends of $113.8 million. In addition,
DPL issued $300.0 million of new long-term debt and paid $297.4 million to retire existing long-term debt. it also
paid $134.2 million for the purchase of the DPL Capital Trust II capital securities, of which $122.0 million related to
the capital securities and an additional $12.2 million related to the premium paid on the purchase. DPL also paid
down the debt of MC Squared which was acquired in February 2011,
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DP&L — Net cash from financing activities
DP&L’s Net cash from financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 can be
summarized as follows:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
$ in millions 2012 2011
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Net cash from financing activities

Dividends paid on common stock 3 (145.0) % (180.0)
Other {0.7) (0.6)
Net cash from financing activities $ (145.7) $ (180.6)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, DP&L’s Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to
$145.0 million in dividends paid to DPL.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, DP&L’s Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to
$180.0 million in dividends paid to DPL.

Liquidity

We expect our existing sources of liquidity to remain sufficient to meet our anticipated operating needs, Qur
business is capital intensive, requiring significant resources to fund operating expenses, construction expenditures,
scheduled debt maturities and carrying costs, potential margin requirements for retail operations and dividend
payments. For 2012, and in subsequent vears, we expect to satisfy these requirements with a combination of cash
from operations and funds from the capital markets as our internal liquidity needs and market conditions warrant.
We also expect that the borrowing capacity under bank credit facilities will continue to be available to manage
working capital requirements during those periods.

At the filing date of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, DP&L has access to $400.0 million of short-term financing
under two revolving credit facilities, The first facility, established in August 2011, is for $200.0 million, expires in
August 2015 and has eight participating banks, with no bank having more than 22% of the total commitment.
DP&L also has the option to increase the potential borrowing amount under the first facility by $50.0 million. The
second facility, established in April 2010, is for $200.0 million and expires in April 2013. A total of five banks
participate in this facility, with no bank having more than 35% of the total commitment. DP&L also has the option
to increase the potential borrowing amount under the second facility by $50.0 million.

At the filing date of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, DPL has access to $75.0 million of short-term financing
under a revolving credit facility established in August 2011. This facility expires in August 2014 and has seven
participating banks with no bank having more than 32% of the fotal commitment. The size of the facility was
reduced from the original $125.0 million to the current $75.0 million as part of an amendment dated October 19,
2012 that was negotiated between DPL and the syndicated bank group. See “Debt Covenants™ following for more
information on the amendment,

Amounts
available as of
October 19,
$ in millions Type Maturity Commitment 2012
DP&L Revolving August 2015 b 2000 $ 200.0
DP&L Revolving April 2013 200.0 200.0
DPL Inc. Revolving August 2014 75.0 75.0

$ 475.0 $ 475.0
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Each DP&L revolving credit facility has a $50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. The entire DPL revolving credit
facility amount is available for letter of credit issuances. As of September 3¢, 2012 and through the date of filing
this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, there were no letters of credit issued and outstanding on the revolving credit
facilities.

Cash and cash equivalents for DPL and DP&L amounted to $2035.6 million and $19.4 million, respectively, at
September 30, 2012, At that date, neither DPL nor DP&L had any short-term: investments that were not included in
cash and cash equivalents.

On February 23, 2011, DPL purchased and retired $122.0 million principal amount of DPL Capital Trust IT 8.125%
trust preferred securities. As part of this transaction, DPL paid a $12.2 million, or 10%, premium. Debt issuance
costs and unamortized debt discount associated with this transaction, totaling $3.1 million, were also recognized in
February 2011.

Capital Requirements

Planned construction additions for 20112 relate primarily to new investments in and upgrades to DP&L’s power
plant equipment and transmission and distribution system. Capital projects are subject to continuing review and are
revised in light of changes in financial and economic conditions, load forecasts, legislative and regulatory
developments and changing environmental standards, among other factors.
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DPL is projecting to spend an estimated $530.0 million in capital projects for the period 2012 through 2014, of
which $515.0 million is projected to be spent by DP&L. Approximately $15.0 million of this projected amount is to
enable DP&L to meet the recently revised reliability standards of NERC, DP&L is subject to the mandatory
reliability standards of NERC and Reliability First Corporation (RFC), one of the eight NERC regions, of which
DP&L is a member. NERC has changed the definition of the Bulk Electric System (BES) to include 100 kV and
above facilities, thus expanding the facilities to which the reliability standards apply. DP&L’s 138 kV facilities
were previously not subject to these reliability standards. Accordingly, DP&L anticipates spending approximately
$72.0 million within the next 5 years to reinforce its 138 kV system to comply with these new NERC standards. Qur
ability to complete capital projects and the reliability of future service will be affected by our financial condition, the
availability of internal funds and the reasonable cost of external funds, We expect to finance our construction
additions with a combination of cash on hand, short-term financing, long-term debt and cash flows from operations.
Debt Covenants
As mentioned above, DPL has access to $75.0 million of short-term financing under its revolving credit facility and
has borrowed $425.0 million under its term loan facility.
Each of these facilities has two financial covenants, one of which was changed as part of amendments, dated
October 19, 2012, to the facilities negotiated between DPL and the syndicated bank groups. The first financial
covenant, originally a Total Debt to Capitalization ratio, was changed, effective September 30, 2012, to a Total Debt
to EBITDA ratio. The Total Debt to EBITDA ratio is calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing total
debt at the end of the current quarter by consolidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters. The ratio is not to
exceed 7.0 to 1.0 for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2012; it then steps up to not exceed 7.75 to 1.0 for the
fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2013; it then steps up to not exceed 8.0 to 1.0 for the fiscal quarter ending June 30,
2013; and finally it steps up to not exceed 8.25 to 1.0 for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2013 and
thereafter. As of September 30, 2012, the first financial covenant was met with a ratio of 5.29 to 1.00,
The second financial covenant is an EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio. The EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio is
calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing consolidated carnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for the same
pericd. The ratio requires DPL’s consolidated EBITDA to consolidated inlerest expense to be not less than 2.50 to
1.00. As of September 30, 2012 the second covenant was met with a ratio of 4.40 to 1.00.
The amendments, dated Gctober 19, 2012, to the facilities negotiated between DPL and the syndicated bank groups,
restrict dividend payments from DPL to AES. The amendments also adjusted the cost of borrowing under the
facilities. ‘
Also mentioned above, DP&L has access to $400.0 million of short-term financing under its two revolving credit
facilities. The following financial covenant is contained in each revolving credit facility: DP&IL.’s total debt to total
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capitalization ratio is not to exceed 0.65 to 1.00. As of September 30, 2012, this covenant was met with a ratio of
0.43 to 1.00. The above ratio is calculated as the sum of DP&L’s current and long-term portion of debt, including its
guarantee obligations, divided by the total of DP&L’s shareholder’s equity and total debt including guarantee
obligations.

Debt Ratings

The following table outlines the debt ratings and outlook for each company, along with the effective dates of
each rating and outlook for DPL, and DP&L.,

DPL (a) DP&L (b} Qutlook Effective
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB+ Stable November 2011
Moody’s Investors Service Bal A3 Stable November 2011
Standard & Poor’s Corp. BB+ BBB+ CreditWatch April 2012
Negative

(@) Credif rating relates to DPL’s Senior Unsecured debi.
(B} Credif rating relates to DP&L’s Senior Secured debt.

Credit Ratings
The following table outlines the credit ratings (issuer/corporate rating) and outlook for each company, along with
the effective dates of each rating and outlook for DPL and DP&L.

DPL DP&L Qutlook Effective
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB- Stable November 2011
Moody’s Investors Service Bal Baa2 Stable November 2011
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Standard & Poor’s Corp. ' BBB- BBB- CreditWatch April 2012
Negative
Standard & Poor’s recently put both DPL and DP&L on CreditWatch Negative reflecting the potential to lower the
credit ratings of both entities in the near term pending greater clarity on the timing and transition to full market rates
for DP&L. They have also revised their assesstent of DPL and DP&L’s business risk profiles to “strong” from
“excellent” to reflect the increased competition in Ohio, the expected growth of the unregulated retail business and
the increasing competitive pressure due to lower wholesale electric prices stressing profit margins.
If the rating agencies were to reduce our debt or credit ratings, our borrowing costs may increase, our potential pool
of investors and funding resources may be reduced, and we may be required to post additional collateral under
selected contracts. These events may have an adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows. In addition, any such reduction in our debt or credit ratings may adversely affect the trading price of our
outstanding debt securities.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
DPL — Guarantees
In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with its wholly owned subsidiaries, DPLE and
DPLER, and its wholly owned subsidiary MC Squared, providing financial or performance assurance to third
parties. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed
to these subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish these
subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes. During the ning months ended Septerber 30, 2012, DPL did not incur
any losses related to the guarantees of these obligations and we believe it is unlikely that DPL would be required to
perform or incur any losses in the future associated with any of the above guarantees.
At September 30, 2012, DPL had $24.4 million of guarantees to third parties, for future financial or performance
assurance under such agreements, on behalf of DPLE, DPLER and MC Squared. The guarantee arrangements
entered into by DPL with these third parties cover present and future obligations of DPLE, DPLER and MC
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Squared to such beneficiaries and are terminable at any time by DPL upon written notice to the beneficiaries. The
carrying amount of obligations for commercial transactions covered by these guarantees and recorded in our
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets was $1.0 million at September 30, 2012.
DP&L owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost
method of accounting under GAAP. As of September 30, 2012, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of
4.9%, or $78.8 million, of a $1,607.8 million debt obligation that features maturities ranging from 2013 to 2040.
This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on its debt payments. As of September 30,
2012, we have no knowledge of such a default.
Commercial Commitments and Contractual Obligations
There have been no material changes, outside the ordinary course of business, to our commercial commitments and
to the information disclosed in the contractual obligations table in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011.
Also see Note 13 of Notes to DPPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

MARKET RISK
We are subject to certain market risks including, but not limited to, changes in commodity prices for electricity,
coal, environmental emissions and gas, changes in capacity prices and fluctuations in interest rates. We use various
market risk sensitive instruments, including derivative contracts, primarily te limit our exposure to fluctuations in
commodity pricing. Qur Commedity Risk Management Committee (CRMC), comprised of members of senior
management, is responsible for establishing risk management policies and the monitoring and reporting of risk
exposures relating to our DP&L-operated generation units. The CRMC meets on a regular basis with the objective
of identifying, assessing and quantifying material risk issues and developing strategies to manage these risks.
Commuodity Pricing Risk
Commodity pricing risk exposure includes the impacts of weather, market demand, increased competition and other
econoniic conditions. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures at our DP& L-operated generation units,
we use a variety of non-derivative and derivative instruments including forward contracts and futures contracts.
These instruments are used principally for economic hedging purposes and none are held for trading purposes.
Derivatives that fall within the scope of derivative accounting under GAAP must be recorded at their fair value and
marked to market unless they qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. MTM gains and losses on derivative
instruments that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting are deferred in AOCT until the forecasted transactions occur.
We adjust the derivative instruments that do not qualify for cash flow hedging to fair value on a monthly basis and
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where applicable, we recognize a cotresponding Regulatory asset for above-market costs or a Regulatory liability
for below-market costs in accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP.
The coal market has increasingly been influenced by both international and domestic supply and consumption,
making the price of coal more volatile than in the past, and while we have substantially all of the total expected coal
volume needed to meet our retail and firm wholesale sales requirements for 2012 under contract, sales requirements
may change. The majority of the contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices. Some contracts provide for periodic
adjustments. Fuel costs are affected by changes in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables
including weather, the wholesale market price of power, certain provisions in coal contracts related to government
imposed costs, counterparty performance and credit, scheduled outages and generation plant mix, To the extent we
are not able to hedge against price volatility or recover increases through our fuel and purchased power recovery
rider that began in January 2010, our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could be materially
affected.
For purposes of potential risk analysis, we use a sensitivity analysis to quantify potential impacts of market rate
changes on the statements of results of operations. The sensitivity analysis represents hypothetical changes in market
values that may ot may not oceur in the future.

133

Commoeadity Derivatives
To minimize the risk of fluctuations in the market price of commodities, such as coal, power and heating oil, we
may enter into commodity-forward and futures contracts to effectively hedge the cost/revenues of the commodity.
Maturity dates of the contracts are scheduled to coincide with market purchases/sales of the commodity. Cash
proceeds or payments between us and the counter-party at maturity of the contracts are recognized as an adjustment
to the cost of the commodity purchased or sold. We generally do not enter into forward contracts beyond thirty-six
months.
A 10% increase or decrease in the market price of our heating oil forwards, NYMEX coal forwards or power
forward contracts at September 30, 2012 would not have a significant effect on Net income.
Wholesale Revenues
Approximately 10% of DPL’s and 36% of DP&L’s electric revenues for the three months ended September 30,
2012 were from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market (DP&L’s clectric revenues in the
wholesale market are reduced for sales to DPLER). Energy in excess of the needs of existing retail customers is sold
in the wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.
Approximately 15% of DPL’s and 33% of DP&L’s electric revenues for the three months ended September 30,
2011 were from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market (DP&L’s electric revenues in the
wholesale market are reduced for sales to DPLER). Energy in excess of the needs of existing retail customers is sold
in the wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.
Approximately 11% of DPL’s and 35% of DP&L’s electric revenues for the nine months ended September 30,
2012 were from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market (DP&L’s electric revenues in the
wholesale market are reduced for sales to DPLER), Energy in excess of the needs of existing retail customers is sold
in the wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.
Approximately 17% of DPL’s and 34% of DP&L’s electric revenues for the nine months ended September 30,
2011 were from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market (DP&L’s electric revenues in the
wholesale market are reduced for sales to DPLER). Energy in excess of the needs of existing retail customets is sold
in the wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.
The table below provides the effect on annual Net income as of September 30, 2012, of a hypothetical increase or
decrease of 10% in the price per megawatt hour of wholesale power (DP&L’s electric revenues in the wholesale
market are reduced for sales to DPLER), including the impact of a cotresponding 10% change in the portion of
purchased power used as part of the sale (note that the share of the internal generation used to meet the DPLER
wholesale sale would not be affected by the 10% change in wholesale prices):
$ in millions DPL DP&L

8 3
6.1 54

Effect of 10% change in price per mWh

RPM Capacity Revenues and Costs
As a member of PIM, PP&L receives revenues from the RTO related to its transmission and generation assets and
incurs costs associated with its load obligations for retail customers, PJM, which has a delivery year which runs
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from June 1 1o May 31, has conducted auctions for capacity through the 2015/16 delivery year. The clearing prices
for capacity during the PJM delivery periods from 2011/12 through 2015/16 are as follows:

PJM Delivery Year
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 261516
Capacity clearing price ($/MW-day) $110 $16 $28 5126 $136

134

Our computed average capacity prices by calendar year are reflected in the table below:

Calendar Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Computed average capacity price ($/MW-day) $137 $55 $23 $385 $132
Future RPM auction results are dependent on a number of factors, which include the overall supply and demand of
generation and load, other state legislation or regulation, transmission congestion, and PJM’s RPM business rules.
The volatility in the RPM capacity auction pricing has had and will continue to have a significant impact on DPL’s
capacity revenues and costs. Although DP&L currently has an approved RPM rider in place to recover or repay any
excess capacity costs or revenues, the RPM rider only applies to customers supplied under our S80. Customer
switching reduces the number of customers supplied under our SS0, causing more of the RPM capacity costs and
revenues to be excluded from the RPM rider calculation.
The table below provides estimates of the effect on annual net income as of September 30, 2012 of a hypothetical
increase or decrease of $10/MW-day in the RPM auction price. The table shows the impact resulting from capacity
revenue changes. We did not include the impact of a change in the RPM capacity costs since these costs will either
be recovered through the RPM rider for SSO retail customers or recovered through the development of our overall
energy pricing for customers who do not fall under the SSO. These estimates include the impact of the RPM rider
and are based on the levels of customer switching experienced through September 30, 2012. As of September 30,
2012, approximately 48% of DP&E.’s RPM capacity revenues and costs were recoverable from SSO retail
customers through the RPM rider,
$ in millions DPL DP&L

$ $
5.6 4.3
Capacity revenues and costs are also impacted by, among other factors, the levels of customer switching, our
generation capacity, the levels of wholesale revenues and our retail customer load. In determining the capacity price
sensitivity above, we did not consider the impact that may arise from the variability of these other factors.
Fuel and Purchased Power Costs
DPL’s and DP&L’s fuel (including coal, gas, oil and emission allowances) and purchased power costs as a
percentage of total operating costs in the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were 38% and 42%,
respectively. We have a significant portion of projected 2012 fuel needs under contract. The majority of our
contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices although some contracts provide for periodic pricing adjustments, We
may purchase 30, allowances for 2012; however, the exact consumption of SO, allowances will depend on market
prices for power, availability of cur generation units and the actual sulfur content of the coal burned. We may
purchase some NOx allowances for 2012 depending on NOX emissions. Fuel costs are affected by changes in
volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, reliability of coal deliveries, scheduled
outages and generation plant mix.
Purchased power costs depend, in part, upon the timing and extent of planned and unplanned outages of our
generating capacity. We will purchase power on a discretionary basis when wholesale market conditions provide
opportunities to obtain power at a cost below our internal generation costs.
Effective Janwary 1, 2010, DP&L was allowed to recover its SSO retail customers’ share of fuel and purchased
power costs as part of the fuel rider approved by the PUCO. Since there has been an increase in customer switching,
SSO customers currently represent approximately 36% of DP&L’s total fuel costs. The table below provides the
effect on annual net income as of September 30, 2012, of a hypothetical increase or decrease of 10% in the prices of
fuel and purchased power, adjusted for the approximate 48% recovery:
$ in millions DPL DP&L

5 $

21.3 19.3

Effect of a $10/MW-day change in capacity auction pricing

Effect of 10% change in fuel and purchased power
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Interest Rate Risk

As a result of our normal investing and borrowing activities, our financial results are exposed to fluctuations in
interest rates which we manage through our regular financing activities. We maintain both cash on deposit and
investments in cash equivalents that may be affected by adverse interest rate fluctuations. DPL and DP&I. have
both fixed-rate and variable-rate long-term debt. DPL’s variable-rate debt consists of a $425.0 million unsecured
term loan with a syndicated bank group. The term loan interest rate fluctuates with changes in an underlying interest
rate index, typically LIBOR. DP&L’s variable-rate debt is comprised of publicly held pollution control bonds. The
variable-rate bonds bear interest based on a prevailing rate that is reset weekly based on a comparable market index.
Market indexes can be affected by market demand, supply, market interest rates and other economic conditions. See
Note 6 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 6 to DP&L’s Condensed
Financial Statements.

We partially hedge against interest rate fluctuations by entering into interest rate swap agreements to limit the
interest rate exposure on the underlying financing. As of September 30, 2012, we have entered into interest rate
hedging relationships with an aggregate notional amount of $160.0 million related to planned future borrowing
activities in calendar year 2013, The average interest rate associated with the $160.0 million aggregate notional
amount interest rate hedging relationships is 3.8%. We are limiting our exposure to changes in interest rates since
we believe the market interest rates at which we will be able to borrow in the future may increase. Any additional
credit rating downgrades could affect our liquidity and further increase our cost of capital,

Principal Payments and Interest Rate Detail by Contractual Maturity Date

The carrying value of DPL’s debt was $2,614.9 million at September 30, 2012, consisting of DPL’s unsecured notes
and unsecured term loan, along with PP&L’s first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt poliution control bonds, capital
leases, and the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base note. All of DPL’s debt was adjusted to fair value at the Merger
date according to FASC 805. The fair value of this debt at September 30, 2012 was $2,769.4 million, based on
current market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar terms and
remaining maturities. The following table provides information about DPL’s debt obligations that are sensitive to
interest rate changes:

DPL
At September 30, 2012
Twelve Months Ending September 30, Carrying Fair

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter Value Value
Variable-rate
debt $ - % 4250 % -3 - 3 - 5 1000 § 525.0 % 525.0
Average interest
rate 0.0% 22% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.2%
Fixed-rate debt S 0.4 § 4896 8 018 01§ 4501 § 1,1496 2,089.9 2,244 .4
Average interest
rate 5.0% 5.1% 4.2% 4.2% 6.5% 6.6%
Total $ 2,6149 3 2,769.4
@ Fixed rate debt totals include unamortized debi discounts and premiums.
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The carrying value of DP&L’s debt was $903.2 million at September 30, 2012, consisting of its first mortgage
bonds, tax-exempt pollution control bonds, capital leases and the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base note. The fair
value of this debt was $934.5 million, based on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates
for similar issues with similar terms and remaining maturities. The following table provides information about
DP&L.’s debt abligations that are sensitive to interest rate changes. Note that the DP&L debt was not revalued
using push-down accounting as a result of the Merger.

DP&L
At September 30, 2012
Twelve Months Ending September 30, Carrying Fair
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter Value Yalue
Variable-rate
debt $ - 3 -3 -3 -3 - 8 100.0 § 1000 $ 100.0
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Average interest

rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.2%

Fixed-rate debt™$ 04 % 47038 01$ 018% 01% 3322 803.2 834.5
Average interest

rate 5.0% 5.1% 4.2% 42% 4.2% 4.8%

Total $ 903.2 § 934.5

@ Fixed rate debt totals include unamortized debt discounts and premiums.
Debt maturities occurring in 2012 are discussed under FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
REQUIREMENTS.
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Long-term Debt Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

Our estimate of market risk exposure is presented for our fixed-rate and variable-rate debt at September 30, 2012
for which an immediate adverse market movement causes a potential material impact on our financial position,
results of operations, or the fair value of the debt. We believe that the adverse market movement represents the
hypothetical loss to future earnings and does not represent the maximum possible loss nor any expected actual loss,
even under adverse conditions, because actual adverse fluctuations would likely differ. As of September 30, 2012,
we did not hold any market risk sensitive instruments which were entered into for trading purposes.

DPL At September 30, 2012 (One percent
Carrying Fair interest rate
$ in millions Value Value risk
Long-term debt
Variable-rate debt 5 5250 % 5250 % 33
Fixed-rate debt 2,089.9 2,244.4 22.4
Total b 26149 § 27694 % 27.7
DP&L At September 30, 2012 One percent
Carrying Fair interest rate
$ in millions Value Value risk
Long-term debt
Variable-rate debt $ 1000 § 1000 % 1.0
Fixed-rate debt 803.2 834.5 8.4
Total 5 9032 % 9345 § 9.4

DPL’s debt is comprised of both fixed-rate debt and variable-rate debt. In regard to fixed-rate debt, the interest rate
risk with respect to DPL’s long-term debt primarily relates to the potential impact a decrease of one percentage
point in interest rates has on the fair value of DPL’s $2,244.4 million of fixed-rate debt and not on DPL’s financial
condition or results of operations. On the variable-rate debt, the interest rate risk with respect to DPL’s long-term
debt represents the potential impact an increase of one percentage point in the interest rate has on DPL’s results of
operations related to DPL’s $525.0 million variable-rate long-term debt outstanding as of September 30, 2012.
DP&L’s interest rate risk with respect to DP&L’s long-term debt primarily relates to the potential impact a decrease
in interest rates of one percentage point has on the fair value of DP&L’s $834.5 million of fixed-rate debt and not
on DP&L.’s financial condition or DP&L’s results of operations. On the variable-rate debt, the interest rate risk with
respect to DP&LL’s long-term debt represents the potential impact an increase of one percentage point in the interest
rate has on DP&L’s results of operations related to DP&L’s $100.0 million variable-rate long-term debt
outstanding as of September 30, 2012,
Equity Price Risk
As of September 30, 2012, approximately 29% of the defined benefit pension plan assets were comprised of
investments in equity securities and 71% related to investments in fixed income securities, cash and cash
equivalents, and alternative investments. We use an investment adviser to assist in managing our investment
portfolio. The market value of the equity securities was approximately $102.8 million at September 30, 2012, A
hypothetical 10% decrease in prices quoted by stock exchanges would result in a $10.3 million reduction in fair
value of the equity securities as of September 30, 2012,
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Credit Risk
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Credit risk is the risk of an obligor's failure to meet the terms of any investment contract, loan agreement or
otherwise perform as agreed. Credit risk arises from all activities in which success depends on issuer, borrower or
counterparty performance, whether reflected on or off the balance sheet. We limit our credit risk by assessing the
creditworthiness of potential counterparties before entering into transactions with them and continve to evaluate
their creditworthiness after transactions have been originated. We use the three leading corporate credit rating
agencies and other current market-based qualitative and quantitative data to assess the financial strength of our
counterparties on an ongoing basis. We may require various forms of credit assurance from our counterparties in
order to mitigate credit risk.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
DPL’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L’s Condensed Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with LS. GAAP. In connection with the preparation of these financial statements, our management is
required to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses and the related disclosure of contingent liabilities, These assumptions, estimates and judgments
are based on our historical experience and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable at the time. However,
because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, the determination of estimates requires
the exercise of judgment. Our critical accounting estimates are those which require assumptions to be made about
matters that are highly uncertain,
Different estimates could have a material effect on our financial results, Judgments and uncertainties affecting the
application of these policies and estimates may result in materially different amounts being reported under different
conditions or circumstances. Historically, however, recorded estimates have not differed materially from actual
results. Significant items subject to such judgments include: the carrying value of property, plant and equipment;
unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instrutnents; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the
valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves
recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; and assets and liabilities related
to employee benefits. Refer to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 for a complete listing of
our critical accounting policies and estimates. There have been no material changes to these critical accounting
policies and estimates.
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ELECTRIC SALES AND REVENUES

[ DPL H DP&L (a) [ DPLER ) |
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Successor | Predecessor
Electric Sales (millions of kWh) $ 5072 (% 4,598 $ 4,775 % 4310 $ 2,484 § 1,871
Billed electric customers (end of
period) 628,381 515,758 512,219 512,439 175,403 25,309
[ DPL || DP&L(w 11 DPLER (b} |
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Successor | Predecessor
Electric Sales (millions of kWhy § 12,323 | $ 127128 11,502 § 12,122 § 6,100 $§ 5011
Billed electric customers (end of
period) 628,381 515,758 512,219 512,439 175,403 25,369

(a) This chart contains electric soles from DP& L’s generation and purchased power. DP&L sold 1,671 million kWh and 1,567
million kWh of power to DPLER during the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and 4,668
million kWh and 4,330 million kWh of power to DPLER during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
(B) This chari includes all sales of DPLER and MC Squared, both within and outside of the DP&L service territory.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
See the “MARKET RISK” section in Item 2 of this Part I, which is incorporated by reference into this item.
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Item 4, Controls and Procedures
Our Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFQO) are responsible for establishing and
maintaining our disclosure controls and procedures. These controls and procedures were designed to ensure that
material information relating to us and our subsidiaries are communicated to the CEQ and CFO. We evaluated these
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report with the participation of our
CEOQ and CFO. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controts and procedures
are effective: (i) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms; and (ii) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we submit under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and
principa! financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2012
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

PART 11
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
In the normal course of business, we arc subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other matters
asserted under laws and regulations. We are also from time to time involved in other reviews, investigations and
proceedings by governmental and regulatory agencies regarding our business, certain of which may result in adverse
judpments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. We believe the amounts provided in our
Financial Statements, as prescribed by GAAP, for these matters are adequate in light of the probable and estimable
contingencies. However, there can be no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities
from various legal proceedings, claims and other matters (including those matters noted below) and to comply with
applicable laws and regulations will not exceed the amounts reflected in our Financial Statements. As such, costs, if
any, that may be incurred in excess of those amounts provided for in our Financial Statements, cannot be reasonably
determined.
Our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, and the Notes to the Condensed Consclidated
Financial Statements included therein, contain descriptions of certain legal proceedings in which we are or were
involved. The information in or incorporated by reference into this Item 1 to Part II of our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q is limited to certain recent developments concerning our legal proceedings and new legal proceedings, since
the filing of such Form 10-K, and should be read in conjunction with the Form 10-K.
The following information is incorporated by reference into this Item: (i) information about DP&L’s March 30,
2012 MRO filing with the PUCQ in Item 2 to Part [ of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q; and (ii) information
about the legal proceedings contained in Part 1, Item 1 — Note 13 of Notes to DPL’s Condensed Censolidated
Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
A listing of the risk factors that we consider to be the most significant to a decision to invest in our securities is
provided in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. The information in this ltem 1A to Part ]
of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q updates and restates one of the risk factors included in the Form 10-K.
Otherwise, there have been no material changes with respect to the risk factors disclosed in our form 10-K. If
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any of the events described in our risk factors occur, it could have a material effect on our results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

The risks and uncertainties described in our risk factors are not the only ones we face. In addition, new risks may
emerge at any time, and we cannot predict those risks or estimate the extent to which they may affect our business or
financial performance. Our risk factors should be read in conjunction with the other detailed information concerning
DPL and DP&L set forth in the Notes to DPL’s and DP&L’s Financial Statements and the “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ sections included in our filings.

The costs we can recover and the return on capital we are permitted to earn for certain aspects of our
business are regulated and governed by the laws of Ohio and the rules, policies and procedures of the PUCO.
On May 1, 2008, SB 221, an Ohio electric energy bill, was signed by the Governor of Ohio and became effective
July 31, 2008. This law, among other things, requires all Ohio distribution utilities at certain times to file an S50
either in the form of an ESP or MRO, and established a significantly excessive earnings test (SEET) for Ohio public
utilities that compares the utility’s earnings to the earnings of other companies with similar business and financial
risks. The PUCO approved DP&L’s initial ESP on June 24, 2009. DP&L’s ESP provided, among other things, that
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DP&L’s existing rate plan structure will continue through the end of 2012; that DP&L may seek recovery for
adjustments to its existing rate plan structure for costs associated with storm damage, regulatory and tax changes,
new climate change or carbon regulations, fuel and purchased power and certain other costs; and that SB 221°s
significantly excessive earnings test will apply in 2013 based upon DP&L’s 2012 earnings. On March 30, 2012,
DP&L filed an MRO to establish a new rate plan and recovery structure that would have phased in market-based
rates over the time period January 2013 through May 2018. DP&L withdrew its MRO on September 7, 2012 and
filed an ESP on October 5, 2012. As filed, DP&L’s proposed ESP provides an initial rate increase for certain
customers and decreases for others. The outcome of this filing will impact DP&L’s revenues and could adversely
affect our results of operations. DP&L faces regulatory uncertainty from this ESP filing, The PUCO could accept,
reject or seek (o modify DP&L’s proposed ESP. DP&L.’s proposed ESP and current ESP and certain filings made
by us in connection with these plans are further discussed in our periodic reperts. Through the pending ESP filing,
the PUCO may modify the non-bypassable charge, or may establish other rate designs and provisions to reflect new
terms and conditions of standard offer service. The SEET review could result in no adjustment to SSO rates or a
refund to customers. The effect may or may not be significant.
While traditional rate regulation is premised on full recovery of prudently incurred costs and a reasonable rate of
return on invested capital, there can be no assurance that the PUCO will agree that all of our costs have been
prudently incurred or are recoverable or that the regulatory process in which rates are determined will always result
in rates that will produce a full or timely recovery of our costs and permitted rates of return. Certain of our cost
recovery riders are also bypassable by some of our customers who switched to a CRES provider. Accordingly, the
revenue DP&L receives may or may not match its expenses at any given time. Therefore, DPP&L could be subject to
prevailing market prices for electricily and would not necessarily be able to charge rates that produce timely or full
recovery of its expenses. Changes in, or reinterpretations of, the laws, rules, policies and procedures that set electric
rates, permitted rates of return and standard service offer; changes in DP&L.’s rate structure and its ability to recover
amounts for environmental compliance, standard service offer terms and conditions, reliability initiatives, fuel and
purchased power (which account for a substantial portion of our operating costs), customer switching, capital
expenditures and investments and other costs on a full or timely basis through rates; and changes to the frequency
and timing of rate increases could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows.
Impairment of poodwill or long-lived assets would negatively affect our consolidated results of operations and
net worth,
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets acquired in a business combination
{acquisition) that are not individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is not amortized, but is
evaluated for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. In evaluating the
potential impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating cash flows, capital
expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long term forecasts, macroeconomic
projections, and current market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent uncertainties related to
these factors and management’s judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair value of a reporiing unit is
determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to
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evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience
situations, including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions, operating or regulatory
environment; increased competitive environment; increase in fue! costs particularly when we are unable to pass
along such costs to customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer particularly when
we are unable to replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These types
of events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantially affect
our results of operations for those periods. A goodwill impairment could lead to a rating downgrade and adversely
impact the trading price of DPL’s bonds.

Long-lived assets are initially recorded at fair value when acquired in a business combination and are amortized or
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment only when impairment
indicators are present whereas goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if
potential impairment indicators are present. Otherwise, the recoverability assessment of long-lived assets is similar
to the potential impairment evaluation of goodwill particularly as it relates to the identification of potential
impairment indicators, and making estimates and assumptions to determine fair value, as described above,

Itemn 2. Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
Item 5. Other Information

None
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Item 6. Exhibits
xhibit .
DPL Inc.| DP&L [Number  [Exhibit ocation
X Fl(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer F iled herewith as Exhibit 31(a)
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
X 31(b) Certification of Chief Financial Officer iled herewith as Exhibit 31(b)
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
ct of 2002
X 31{c) ertification of Chief Executive Officer iled herewith as Exhibit 31(c)
’pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
X Bl Certification of Chief Financial Officer Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(d)
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
X 32(a) ertification of Chief Executive Officer Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(a)
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
X 32(b) Certification of Chief Financial Officer iled herewith as Exhibit 32(b)
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
X ’32(c) Certification of Chief Executive Officer Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(c)
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
X 2(d) Certification of Chief Financial Officer Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(d)
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
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xhibit iL .
DPL Inc.| DP&L [Number  [Exhibit ocation
X X 101.INS XBRL Instance Furnished herewith as Exhibit
101.INS
X X 101.8CH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Furnished herewith as Exhibit
101.8CH
X X 101.CAL {BRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Furnished herewith as Exhibit
L inkbase 101.CAL
X X 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Furnished herewith as Exhibit
Linkbase 101.DEF
X X JOLLAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase  [Furnished herewith as Exhibit
101.LAB
X X 101.PRE [XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Furnished herewith as Exhibit
[inkbase 101.PRE
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Exhibits referencing File No. 1-9052 have been filed by DPL Inc. and those referencing File No. 1-2385 have been
filed by The Dayton Power and Light Company.
Pursuant to paragraph (b)(4)(iii}(A) of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, we have not filed as an exhibit to this form
10-Q certain instruments with respect to long-term debt if the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does
not exceed 10% of the total assets of us and our subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, but we hereby agree to furnish
to the SEC on request any such instruments.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DPL Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light

Company have duly caused this report to be signed on their behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
DPL Inc.

The Dayton Power and Light Company

(Registrants}
Date: November 6, 2012 /s{ Philip Herrington
Philip Herrington
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)
November 6, 2012 /s/ Craig Jackson
Craig Jackson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)
November 6, 2012 /s/ Gregory S. Campbell
Gregory S, Campbell
Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)
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